
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 1 of 351



Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 2 of 351



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

   

DEC 0 9 2015 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

    

    

DATE: 	December 9, 2015 

TO: 	Mayor Anderson and City Council 

FROM: 	Patsy Nelson, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: 1) CALL TO ORDER; 2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE; 3) CONSENT 
CALENDAR 

1. CALL TO ORDER - The Mayor will call the December 9, 2015 
Regular Meeting to Order. 	The Finance Director will note 
those in attendance and those absent. 

Ward 1 

Ward 2 

Ward 3 

Ward 4 

Ward 5 

Ward 6 

Councilmember Kevin Loy 

Councilmember Germaine Kornegay 

Councilmember Brenda Kinzer 

Councilmember Keith Wagoner 

Councilmember Hugh Galbraith 

Councilmember Rick Lemley 

At-Large Councilmember Brett Sandstrbm 

2 	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - The Mayor will lead the City Council 
and citizens in the Pledge of Allegiance to the United States 
of America. 

3. CONSENT CALENDAR - Mayor will ask for Council approval of 
Consent Calendar items. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 3 of 351



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

DEC 0 9 2015 

  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

  

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL.QVAMBERS 
AGENDA NO, 	  

       

Regular Meeting of the City Council 
November 24, 2015 — 7:00 P.M. — Council Chambers 

  

ROLL CALL: Present: Mayor Mike Anderson; Councilmembers: Kevin Loy, Brenda Kinzer, 
Keith Wagoner, Hugh Galbraith, Rick Lemley and Brett SandstrOm Staff: Recorder Brue, 
Finance Director Nelson, City Supervisor/Attorney Berg, Planning Director Coleman, Fire Chief 
Klinger and Police Chief Tucker. 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 P.M. by Mayor Anderson. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Consent Calendar 

• Approval of Agenda 
• Minutes from Previous Meeting 
• Finance 

• Claim Checks #182661 to #182751 plus EFT's in the amount of $221,515.18. 
• Payroll Checks #58744 to #58755 plus EFT's in the amount of $202,701.44. 

• Professional Services Agreement — First Insurance Agency/WAFD Insurance Group 
• Resolution 929-15 — Surplus of Unit 506 1998 Crane Trash Truck 
• Award of Fuel Bid — Associated Petroleum Products (APP) 
• Request for Approval of Grant Agreement — FY 2015-2017 Biennial Stormwater 

Capacity Grant Funding Agreement 
• Proposed Purchase Order No. 2015-PO-22 — Sound Ocean Metal Fabricators LTD. 

Councilmember Galbraith moved to approve the consent calendar items A through H. Seconded 
by Councilmember Lemley. Motion carried (6-0). 

Public Comment 

No Public Comment 

PUBLIC HEARING 

2016 Budget 

Finance Director Nelson reviewed background information regarding the 2016 Budget. The 
budget has been available for public viewing online as well as paper copies located in the 
Finance Department. 

Mayor Anderson opened the public hearing at 7:03 P.M. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 4 of 351



No comment received. 

Mayor Anderson closed the public hearing at 7:04 P.M. 

Councilmember Galbraith moved to approve Ordinance No. 1829-15 An Ordinance Adopting 
the Annual Budget for the City of Sedro-Woolley, Washington, for the Fiscal Year Ending 
December 31, 2016. Seconded by Councilmember Wagoner. Motion carried (6-0). 

Annual Utility Rate Increases by CPI 
a. Ordinance increasing sewer rates by 1.61% 
b. Ordinance increasing storm water rates by 1.61% 
c. Ordinance increasing solid waste utility rates by 1.61% 

City Supervisor/Attorney Berg introduced the second read of the Annual Utility Rate Increase by 
the CPI. He noted there are three ordinances, one each for sewer, stormwater and solid waste. 
Berg addressed deviations within the Solid Waste ordinance. The increase allows the city to 
tread water with the utilities with the exception of Stormwater which is being subsidized by 
property taxes. 

Mayor Anderson opened the public hearing at 7:07 P.M. on all three ordinances. 

No comment received. 

Mayor Anderson closed the public hearing at 7:07 P.M. on all three ordinances. 

Councilmember Lemley moved to approve Ordinance No. 1830-15 An Ordinance Increasing the 
Fees and Charges for Use of the City of Sedro-Woolley Sanitary Sewer System by the CPI. 
Seconded by Councilmember Wagoner. 

Council discussion was held regarding the CPI used for comparison and the application to Sedro-
Woolley, the CPI measure, actual costs increase being greater than 1.61% and the prior pattern of 
large increases. 

Motion carried (4-2, Councilmembers Kinzer & Loy opposed). 

Councilmember Wagoner moved to approve Ordinance No. 1831-15 An Ordinance Amending 
the Fees and Charges for Use of the City of Sedro-Woolley, Storm and Surface Water Utility 
System by the Amount of the CPI 1.61%. Seconded by Councilmember Lemley. 

Councilmember Wagoner addressed the subsidy of the stormwater noting it would require a 
15.2% increase just to reach the breakeven point. 

Motion carried (4-2, Councilmembers Kinzer and Loy opposed). 

Discussion was held regarding the choice for commercial billing to be billed by impervious 
surface. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 5 of 351



Councilmember Galbraith moved to approve Ordinance No. 1832-15 An Ordinance Amending 
Section 8.04.075 of the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code to Increase Solid Waste Utility Rates 
and Charges by the CPI. Seconded by Councilmember Lemley. Motion carried (4-2, 
Councilmembers Kinzer and Loy opposed). 

Utility Tax on Water 

City Supervisor/Attorney Berg provided history regarding the City's implementation of a 6% 
utility tax on water. He also provided information on the Wenatchee vs. Chelan County PUD 
which allows for a fire flow deduction. Berg stated the purpose of the ordinance is to be able to 
collect the intent of the Council when the original ordinance was passed. The proposed 7.5% tax 
results in 6% to the City. He also noted a correction in the effective date in Section 2 to January 
1, 2016. 

Discussion ensued regarding lack of knowledge of how the % would affect the end result when 
implemented; purpose of the funds for the Council restricted funds for 1). accelerate debt 
repayment on City Hall and; 2) to have funds available specifically targeted to investments that 
could create jobs or economic development. 

Mayor Anderson opened the public hearing at 7:25 P.M. 

No public comments received. Council discussion ensued regarding process to change what has 
been passed. 

Mayor Anderson closed the public hearing at 7.27 P.M. 

Councilmember Wagoner moved to approve Ordinance No. 1833-15 An Ordinance Amending 
SWMC 5.06.020 to Increase the City Utility Tax on Domestic Water, including the change to 
January 1, 2016 in Section 2. Seconded by Councilmember Sandstrom. Motion tied (3-3, 
Councilmembers Kinzer, Loy and Galbraith opposed). 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

NEW BUSINESS 

Preliminary Approval of the Plat of Sauk Mountain View Estates North V — A Planned 
Residential Development (File #LP-2014-094) 

Planning Director Coleman reviewed the history of the Plat of Sauk Mountain View Estates 
North V for 28 lots. The Hearing Examiner has recommended approval, subject to conditions. It 
includes a modification of the removal of lot and dedicating the lot as a play area to include 
playground equipment and trails. Mayor Anderson noted this was a first read with no action. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 6 of 351



Lin Holderman — 24412 Wilida Lane, addressed the Council regarding some points with the 
development in order to maintain the rural atmosphere to the property he purchased. He spoke 
of trees being removed and requested placement of hedges to soften the impact. He also 
addressed the construction time and requested to limit to 7 am — 8 pm. Holderman said he was 
hoping for some softening and would appreciate any help. 

Planning Director Coleman noted the proposed plat is located within the City limits and 
Holderman's property is located within the County. 

Veterans Monument & Letter of Support 

Councilmember Wagoner reported on the proposal of a Veterans Memorial off of Helmick Road 
on County owned property. The project is being spearheaded by Louie Requa and John Schmidt. 
They are requesting a letter of support from the City although the property is located within the 
County. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS AND REPORTS FROM OFFICERS 
Report of Contracts Approved Under SWMC 2.104.060 

Police Chief Tucker — announced the SWHS Cubs football team will be heading to Yakima at 
8:30 am on Saturday. They will parade through town as they leave and he encouraged everyone 
to line the streets to wish them well for the semi-final playoff game. He also reported the radio 
tower has gone live and things are going excellent. Officer Wilson is now out on her own and a 
small remodel project in their office is being completed by Kevin and Nathan who are doing 
outstanding work. Tucker also informed the Council of Detective Sorsdal's first big case that 
involves a pharmacist at Rite Aid. Tucker announced the radar trailer is up and running thanks 
to Officer Rogers who has repaired it while he is doing light duty due to an injury to his hand. 

Fire Chief Klinger — reported on a delay with the ambulance rechassis due to an error in striping. 
He also reported the Department responded to a fire call in Concrete. Volunteer testing will be 
held on December 12th  and there are two vacancies in quarters. Chief Klinger reported the 
Department and District 8 recently became certified in Narcan use. They can now administer 
Narcan which counteracts heroin for overdoses. 

Planning Director Coleman — reported the next worksession topic will be on The Center for 
Innovation Technology Planned Action and Sub Area Plan and will be held in the Council 
Chambers. The Planned Action and Sub Area Plan will be on the agenda for the December 9th  
Council meeting for adoption. The final EIS for the project was issued on November 16th. 
Coleman also reported the Planning Commission is down two members and is looking for 
applicants. The Planning Commission will be holding a public hearing on December 15th  on the 
urban growth area expansion proposal. He also reported the 2015 Docket request was accepted 
by the County Commissioners. 

City Supervisor/Attorney Berg — spoke on the 2016 AWC Legislative Conference. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 7 of 351



Finance Director Nelson — reported on the exit conference with the State Auditors. The City 
received another clean audit. 

Councilmember Wagoner — GO CUBS! 

Councilmember Lemley — Happy Thanksgiving 

Mayor Anderson brought to Council attention a letter to Skagit Valley Bulb Farm thanking them 
for their donation of 550 Tulip bulbs. The bulbs will be planted at the Welcome to Sedro-
Woolley sign at the intersection of Ferry Street and Hwy 20. 

Councilmember Wagoner moved to adjourn. Seconded by all. Motion carried (6-0). 

The meeting adjourned at 8:05 P.M. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 8 of 351



 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

DEC 0 9 2015 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	C  

  

  

DATE: 	December 9, 2015 

TO: 	Mayor Anderson and City Council 

FROM: 	Patsy Nelson, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: FINANCE - CLAIMS 

Attached you will find the Claim Checks register proposed for 
payment for the period ending December 9, 2015. 

Motion to approve Claim Checks #182752  to #182831  in the amount of 
$560,397.72.  

Motion to approve Payroll Checks #58756  to #58772 plus EFT's  in 
the amount of $279,880.57.  

If you have any comments, questions or concerns, please contact me 
for information during the working day at 855-1661. This will 
allow me to look up the invoices that are stored in our office. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 9 of 351



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG #: 0647 

Trans Date 	Type Acct 

11/25/2015 To: 12/09/2015 

# 	Chk # 	Claimant 

Time: 	15:12:35 Date: 	12/03/2015 

	

Page: 	1 

Amount Memo 

8638 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182752 A-1 Mobile Lock & Key 157.33 

001 - 521 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 	 157.33 

8639 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182753 AWC 225.00 

001 - 511 60 43 000 - Travel 	 225.00 

8640 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182754 	All-Phase Electric 764.79 

103 - 542 30 48 000 - Repair/Maint-Streets 	 764.79 

8641 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182755 Alpine Fire & Safety 156.64 

001 - 521 20 31 002 - Office/Operating Supplies 	156.64 

8642 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182756 American Fleet Main LLC 883.10 

001 - 522 20 48 000 - Repairs/Maint-Equip 	 883.10 

8643 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182757 Aramark Uniform Services 29.88 

401 - 535 80 49 000 - Laundry 	 8.22 
401 - 535 80 49 000 - Laundry 	 8.22 
103 - 542 30 49 000 - Misc-Laundry 	 6.72 
103 - 542 30 49 000 - Misc-Laundry 	 6.72 

8644 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182758 	Assoc Petroleum Products 3,136.69 

001 - 521 20 32 000 - Auto Fuel 	 1,249.07 
001 - 522 20 32 000 - Auto Fuel/Diesel 	 450.46 
001 - 523 20 32 000 - Auto Fuel 	 21.21 
401 - 535 80 32 000 - Auto Fuel/Diesel 	 54.78 
412 - 537 80 32 000 - Auto Fuel/Diesel 	 943.73 
412 - 537 80 32 000 - Auto Fuel/Diesel 	 193.36 
412 - 537 80 32 000 - Auto Fuel/Diesel 	 98.90 
103 - 542 30 32 000 - Auto Fuel/Diesel 	 79.53 
103 - 542 30 32 000 - Auto Fuel/Diesel 	 45.65 

8645 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182759 Bay City Supply 74.87 

101 - 576 80 31 009 - Operating Sup - Bingham Par 	74.87 

8646 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182760 Brown & Cole Stores 43.13 

001 - 513 10 44 009 - Senior Crime Watch 	 14.24 
001 - 521 20 31 002 - Office/Operating Supplies 	28.89 

8647 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182761 CPI Plumbing & Heating 2,922.03 

412 - 537 50 48 010 - Repairs/Maint-Building 	2,922.03 

8648 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182762 Capital One Commercial 262.52 

001 - 522 20 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 262.52 

8649 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182763 Cities Insurance Assoc 187,979.47 

001 - 512 50 46 000 - Insurance & Bonds 	 2,673.10 
001 - 514 23 46 000 - Insurance & Bonds 	 6,419.66 
001 - 515 30 46 000 - Insurance 	 3,374.93 
001 - 518 80 41 000 - Professional Services 	 1,076.96 
001 - 521 20 46 000 - Insurance 	 40,437.13 
001 - 522 50 46 000 - Insurance 	 25,060.10 
001 - 524 20 46 000 - Insurance 	 1,505.15 
425 - 531 50 46 000 - Insurance 	 6,030.37 
401 - 535 80 46 000 - Insurance 	 32,833.36 
102 - 536 20 46 000 - Insurance 	 3,963.66 
412 - 537 80 46 000 - Insurance 	 14,690.02 
103 - 543 30 46 000 - Insurance 	 17,722.55 
001 - 558 60 46 000 - Insurance 	 3,163.89 
105 - 572 20 46 000 - Insurance 	 9,089.02 
101 - 576 80 46 000 - Insurance 	 15,861.16 
001 - 595 10 46 000 - Insurance 	 4,078.41 

8650 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 	182764 Collins Office Supply Inc 
	

189.70 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 10 of 351



8651 12/09/2015 

8652 12/09/2015 

8653 12/09/2015 

8654 12/09/2015 

8655 12/09/2015 

8656 12/09/2015 

8657 12/09/2015 

001 - 514 23 31 000 -

Claims 	2 
412 - 537 60 47 000 - 

Claims 	2 
412 - 537 80 31 000 - 

Claims 	2 

401 -535 80 35 010 - 

Claims 	2 
001 -521 20 31 010 - 

Claims 	2 

001-5212048010-

Claims 	2 

001 - 518 20 48 000 - 

Claims 	2 

102 - 536 20 48 030 - 
412 -537 50 48 010 - 
101 -576 80 31 001 - 
101 -576 80 31 004 - 
101 - 576 80 31 006 - 
101 - 576 80 48 004 - 
101 - 576 80 48 004 - 
!CA - 576 80 48 004 - 
ICH - 576 80 48 004 - 
101 - 576 80 48 016 - 
101 

 
- 576 80 48 016 -

101 - 594 76 64 001 -
101 - 594 76 64 001 -
101 - 594 76 64 001 - 

8658 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 

401 - 535 80 41 000 - 
401 - 535 80 41 000 - 
401 - 535 80 41 000 - 

8659 12/09/2015 

8660 12/09/2015 

8661 12/09/2015 

8662 12/09/2015 

8663 12/09/2015 

8664 12/09/2015 

8665 12/09/2015 

Claims 	2 

001 - 521 20 31 002 -
Claims 	2 

401 -535 50 48 050 - 
401 -535 80 31 010 - 
Claims 	2 

501 - 594 22 64 501 -
Claims 	2 

401 - 535 50 48 050 -

Claims 	2 

001 - 522 20 41 000 - 
401 - 535 80 41 000- 
105-5722041000- 

Claims 	2 

425 - 531 50 31 000 - 
425 - 531 50 31 000 - 

Claims 	2 

CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 	 Time: 15:12:35 Date: 12/03/2015 
MCAG #: 0647 
	

11/25/2015 To: 12/09/2015 
	

Page: 	2 

Trans Date 
	

Type 	Acct # Chk # Claimant 	 Amount Memo 

Supplies 	 189.70 
182765 Concrete Nor'west Inc 

Solid Waste Disposal 	 33.91 
182766 Credo Graphics 

Operating Supplies 	 1,375.00 
182767 Custom Embroidery 

Safety Equipment 	 198.96 
182768 Databar 

Printing/Publications 	 491.96 
182769 Day Wireless Systems Inc 

Repair & Maint - Auto 	 97.65 

182770 Dwayne Lane's North Cascade 
Ford 

Repair & Maintenance 	 706.24 

182771 E & E Lumber 
Repair/Maintenance-Land 	40.79 
Repairs/Maint-Building 	 123.14 
Operating Sup - Riverfront 	7.13 
Operating Sup - Comm Cente 	46.57 
Operating Sup - City Hall 	26.13 
Community Center 	 8.93 
Community Center 	 30.07 
Community Center 	 16.39 
Community Center 	 14.01 
City Hall 	 21.15 
City Hall 	 4.87 
Holiday Displays 	 18.94 
Holiday Displays 	 86.43 
Holiday Displays 	 25.65 

182772 Edge Analytical Inc 

Professional Services 	 47.00 
Professional Services 	 47.00 
Professional Services 	 47.00 

182773 Enterprise Office Systems 
Office/Operating Supplies 	 6.47 

182774 Fastenal Company 

Maint Of General Equip 	 11.00 
Operating Supplies 	 54.85 

182775 General Fire Apparatus 

Vehicles - Fire 	 200,875.00 

182776 Generator Services NW 

Maint Of General Equip 	303.80 

182777 Get A Flu Shotcom 

Professional Services 	 175.00 
Professional Services 	 25.00 
Professional Services 	 75.00 

182778 HB Jaeger Co LLC 
Operating Supplies 	 103.40 
Operating Supplies 	 117.27 

182779 Hanson Consulting LLC 

33.91 

1,375.00 

198.96 

491.96 

97.65 

706.24 

470.20 

141.00 

6.47 

65.85 

200,875.00 

303.80 

275.00 

220.67 

4,925.00 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 11 of 351



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG #: 0647 

Trans Date 	Type 

11/25/2015 To: 12/09/2015 

Acct # 	Chic # 	Claimant 

Time: 	15:12:35 	Date: 	12/03/2015 
Page: 	3 

Amount Memo 

001 - 558 70 41 010 - Professional Services 	 4,925.00 

8666 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182780 IMAC Inc. 3,856.77 

101 - 594 76 31 000 - Buildings & Structures 	3,856.77 

8667 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182781 	Ingram Library Services 133.78 

105 - 594 72 64 000 - Books & Materials 	 20.39 
105 - 594 72 64 000 - Books & Materials 	 31.30 
105 - 594 72 64 000 - Books & Materials 	 20.25 
105 - 594 72 64 000 - Books & Materials 	 61.84 

8668 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182782 Ronald John 144.96 

001 - 521 20 27 000 - Retired Medical 	 144.96 

8669 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182783 Kesselring Tactical Supply 4,985.52 

001 - 521 20 31 015 - Ammunition 	 3.20 
001 - 521 20 31 015 - Ammunition 	 4,982.32 

8670 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182784 Joann Lazaron 44.89 

001 - 517 90 49 003 - Employee Wellness (supplies) 	44.89 

8671 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182785 Lithtex NW 254.57 

001 - 514 23 31 000 - Supplies 	254.57 

 

8672 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182786 Golden Spoon LLC Little 16.32 Refund Utiliq Deposit 

Thailand 

412 - 386 00 00 412 - Dumpster Deposit 	 -16.32 Refund Utility Deposit 

8673 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182787 Martin Marietta Materials 1,428.80 

103 - 542 30 48 000 - Repair/Maint-Streets 	 346.73 
103 - 542 30 48 000 - Repair/Maint-Streets 	 556.74 
103 - 542 30 48 000 - Repair/Maint-Streets 	 525.33 

8674 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182788 McLoughlin & Eardley Corp 2,937.95 

001 - 521 20 48 010 - Repair & Maint - Auto 	 1,253.97 
501 - 594 21 64 501 - Vehicles - Police 	 1,683.98 

8675 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182789 Neopost Northwest 1,200.00 

001 - 512 50 42 010 - Postage 	 133.54 
001 - 514 23 42 010 - Postage 	 246.07 
001 - 515 30 42 000 - Postage 	 2.57 
001 - 521 20 42 010 - Postage 	 117.86 
001 - 522 20 42 010 - Postage 	 4.63 
001 - 522 20 42 010 - Postage 	 13.86 
001 - 524 20 42 000 - Postage 	 21.78 
425 - 531 50 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 3.74 
401 - 535 80 42 015 - Postage 	 48.62 
102 - 536 20 42 010 - Postage 	 2.66 
412 - 537 80 42 010 - Postage 	 22.44 
001 - 558 60 42 010 - Postage 	 501.20 
001 - 595 10 42 000 - Postage 	 81.03 

8676 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182790 Oasys 108.43 

001 - 514 23 31 000 - Supplies 	 36.16 
001 - 524 20 31 000 - Off/Oper Supps & Books 	 24.09 
001 - 558 60 31 000 - Supplies/Books 	 24.09 
001 - 595 10 31 000 - Supplies 	 24.09 

8677 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182791 	Office Depot 87.80 

001 - 558 60 31 000 - Supplies/Books 	 43.90 
001 - 595 10 31 000 - Supplies 	 43.90 

8678 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182792 Open Door Community 100.00 

101 - 386 20 00 000 - Senior Center Deposits 	 -100.00 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 12 of 351



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG #: 0647 

Trans Date 	Type 

11/25/2015 To: 12/09/2015 

Acct # 	Chk # 	Claimant 

Time: 	15:12:35 	Date: 	12/03/2015 
Page: 	4 

Amount Memo 

8679 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182793 Orion Safety Products 491.76 

001 - 521 20 31 002 - Office/Operating Supplies 	245.94 
001 - 522 20 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 245.82 

8680 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182794 	Pacific Power Batteries 28.61 

401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 	 28.61 

8681 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182795 Pat Rimmer Tire Ctr Inc 3,678.64 

401 - 535 50 48 040 - Maintenance Of Vehicles 	 649.70 
412 - 537 50 48 000 - Repairs/maint-equip 	 1,748.98 
412 - 537 50 48 000 - Repairs/maint-equip 	 783.29 
101 - 576 80 48 021 - Equipment 	 496.67 

8682 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182796 	Public Utility Dis Nol 93.40 

401 - 535 80 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 93.40 

8683 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182797 Puget Sound Energy 24,397.31 

001 - 521 20 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 109.11 
001 - 522 50 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 139.94 
425 - 531 50 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 189.79 
401 - 535 80 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 11,040.02 
102 - 536 20 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 66.52 
412 - 537 80 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 159.75 
103 - 542 63 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 6.19 
103 - 542 63 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 138.35 
103 - 542 63 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 97.68 
108 - 557 30 41 000 	Advertising 	 22.56 
105 - 572 20 47 000 - Public Utilities 	 327.48 
101 - 576 80 47 000 - Riverfront 	 656.09 
101 - 576 80 47 000 - Riverfront 	 7,737.76 
101 - 576 80 47 010 - Community Center 	 185.82 
101 - 576 80 47 020 - Senior Center 	 460.79 
101 - 576 80 47 040 - Train 	 49.33 
101 - 576 80 47 050 - Hammer Square 	 223.72 
101 - 576 80 47 051 	Bingham / Memorial 	 132.69 
101 - 576 80 47 052 - Bingham Caretaker 	 14.44 
101 - 576 80 47 052 - Bingham Caretaker 	 122.57 
101 - 576 80 47 053 - Other Utilities 	 10.81 
101 - 576 80 47 070 - City Hall 	 2,505.90 

8684 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182798 Quiring Monuments Inc 335.00 

102 - 536 20 34 000 - Liners 	 335.00 

8685 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182799 Rene's World 91.14 

001 - 511 60 31 000 - Supplies 	 91.14 

8686 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182800 Ricoh USA Inc 352.00 

001 - 521 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 	 100.05 
001 - 521 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 	 75.95 
001 - 522 20 45 000 - Equipment Lease 	 75.95 
001 - 522 20 48 000 - Repairs/Maint-Equip 	 100.05 

8687 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182801 	Schwetz Construction Inc. 3,260.00 

103 - 595 30 63 020 - Contracted Overlay 	 3,260.00 

8688 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182802 	Sedro-Woolley Auto Parts 236.69 

001 - 518 20 48 000 - Repair & Maintenance 	 19.88 
001 - 521 20 48 010 - Repair & Maint - Auto 	 5.15 
001 - 521 20 48 010 - Repair & Maint - Auto 	 138.86 
001 - 522 20 48 000 - Repairs/Maint-Equip 	 5.95 
401 - 535 50 48 050 - Maint Of General Equip 	 6.69 
102 - 536 20 31 010 - Operating Supplies 	 10.61 
103 - 542 30 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 48.35 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 13 of 351



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
	

Time: 15:12:35 Date: 12/03/2015 
MCAG #: 0647 
	

11/25/2015 To: 12/09/2015 
	

Page: 
	

5 

Trans Date 
	

Type 	Acct # Chk # Claimant 
	

Amount Memo 

103 - 542 30 31 000 - 

8689 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 

101 -576 80 49 020 - 

8690 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 

001 - 522 20 11 010 - 

8691 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 

001 - 521 20 31 002 - 

8692 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 

401 -535 80 49 040 - 
401 - 535 80 49 040 -
412 - 537 80 49 020 -
412-537  80 49 020 - 

8693 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 

001 518 80 41 000 - 
001 - 521 20 51 020 - 

8694 12/09/2015 Claims 

001 - 523 60 51 010 - 

8695 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 

114 - 523 60 51 022 - 

8696 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 

103 - 542 30 35 000 - 

8697 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 

401 - 535 50 48 040 - 

8698 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 

001 - 511 60 31 001 -
001 -511 60 31 001 -
001 - 511 60 31 001 -
001 -521 10 41 010 - 
001 -558 60 41 001 -
001 - 558 60 41 010-
001-5586041010- 

8699 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 

001 - 558 60 41 000 - 

8700 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 

101 -594 76 63 015 - 

8701 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 

105 - 594 72 64 000 - 

8702 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 

001 - 522 20 31 000 - 

8703 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 

412 - 537 50 48 000 - 

8704 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 

401 - 535 50 48 050 - 

8705 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 

001 - 522 20 49 030 - 

8706 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 

001 - 521 20 31 002 - 
001 - 521 20 31 002 - 

Operating Supplies 	 1.20 

182803 Sedro-Woolley High School 

Misc-Dues/CDL/Background 	210.00 

182804 Sedro-Woolley Volunteer 

Salaries-Volunteers 	 15,752.00 

182805 Sirchie Finger Print 

Office/Operating Supplies 	145.95 

182806 Skagit County Auditor 

Misc-Filing Fees/Lien Exp 	330.00 
Misc-Filing Fees/Lien Exp 	165.00 
Misc-Filing Fees/Lien Exp 	330.00 
Misc-Filing Fees/Lien Exp 	165.00 

182807 Skagit County Government 

Professional Services 
	

1,544.42 
Spillman System 
	

12,509.85 

Jail Sales Tax Pass Through 2 	37,106.03 

182810 Skagit Farmers Supply 

Small Tools/Minor Equip 	 66.17 

182811 Skagit Hydraulics Inc 

Maintenance Of Vehicles 	 990.74 

182812 Skagit Publishing 

Legal Publications 	 52.75 
Legal Publications 	 94.95 
Legal Publications 	 94.95 
Advertising 	 191.76 
Professional Svcs-Reimb 	 226.83 
Advertising 	 205.73 
Advertising 	 100.23 

182813 Skagit Surveyors & 

Professional Services 	 1,472.50 

182814 Skagit Valley Babe Ruth 

Janicki Field Construction 	15,000.00 

182815 Skagit Valley Herald 

Books & Materials 	 144.00 

182816 Skagit Valley Signs 

Operating Supplies 	 177.94 

182817 Solid Waste Systems Inc 

Repairs/maint-equip 	 180.98 

182818 Sound Ocean Metal Fab 

Maint Of General Equip 	4,829.00 

182819 Sparkle Shop Laundries 

Misc-Laundry 	 7.60 

182820 Staples Business Advantage 

Office/Operating Supplies 	 51.80 
Office/Operating Supplies 	185.02 

2 	182808 Skagit County Sheriff Office 

Prisoner Transport 	 1,165.04 

182809 Skagit County Treasurer 

210.00 

15,752.00 

145.95 

990.00 

14,054.27 

1,165.04 

37,106.03 

66.17 

990.74 

967.20 

1,472.50 

15,000.00 

144.00 

177.94 

180.98 

4,829.00 

7.60 

236.82 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 14 of 351



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG #: 0647 

Trans Date 	Type 

11/25/2015 To: 12/09/2015 

Acct # 	Chk # 	Claimant 

Time: 	15:12:35 	Date: 	12/03/2015 
Page: 	6 

Amount Memo 

8707 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182821 TKE Corp 1,047.16 

101 - 576 80 48 016 - City Hall 1,047.16 

8708 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182822 	Traffic Safety Supply Co 973.83 

401 - 535 50 48 010 - Maintenance Of Lines 973.83 

8709 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182823 True Value 665.19 

001 - 521 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 20.57 
001 - 521 20 48 000 - Repairs & Maintenance 8.66 
001 - 522 20 31 000 - Operating Supplies 2.59 
001 - 522 20 31 000 - Operating Supplies 4.33 
001 - 522 20 48 000 - Repairs/Maint-Equip 11.91 
001 - 522 20 48 000 - Repairs/Maint-Equip 3.57 
401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 20.05 
401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 26.78 
401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 20.05 
401 - 535 80 31 010 - Operating Supplies 27.99 
102 - 536 20 31 010 - Operating Supplies 17.86 
102 - 536 20 48 030 - Repair/Maintenance-Land 2.16 
412 - 537 80 31 000 - Operating Supplies 34.70 
103 - 542 30 35 000 - Small Tools/Minor Equip 15.71 
101 - 576 80 31 001 - Operating Sup - Riverfront 102.97 
101 - 576 80 31 006 - Operating Sup - City Hall 14.09 
101 - 576 80 31 007 - Operating Sup - Library 18.43 
101 - 576 80 35 000 - Small Tools & Minor Equip 6.49 
101 - 576 80 48 009 - Hammer Square 234.19 
101 - 594 76 64 001 - Holiday Displays 15.18 
101 - 594 76 64 001 - Holiday Displays 56.91 

8710 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182824 UPS 27.59 

001 - 522 20 42 010 - Postage 11.33 
001 - 522 20 42 010 - Postage 16.26 

8711 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182825 USA Blue Book 308.89 

401 - 535 50 48 010 - Maintenance Of Lines 308.89 

8712 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182826 Verizon Wireless 4,264.73 

001 - 513 10 42 020 - Telephone 569.58 
001 - 514 23 42 020 - Telephone 55.27 
001 - 515 30 42 001 - Telephone 569.58 
001 - 518 80 42 020 - Telephone 79.27 
001 - 521 20 42 020 - Telephone 946.54 
001 - 521 20 42 020 - Telephone 102.91 
001 - 521 20 42 020 - Telephone 512.68 
001 - 522 20 42 020 - Telephone 73.08 
001 - 522 20 42 020 - Telephone 283.16 
001 - 524 20 42 020 - Telephone 91.03 
401 - 535 80 42 030 - Nextel Cell Phones 90.45 
401 - 535 80 42 030 - Nextel Cell Phones 134.57 
401 - 535 80 42 030 - Nextel Cell Phones 44.64 
102 - 536 20 42 020 - Telephone 55.27 
102 - 536 20 42 020 - Telephone 18.27 
412 - 537 80 42 025 - Nextel Cell Phones 221.08 
412 - 537 80 42 025 - Nextel Cell Phones 18.59 
412 - 537 80 42 025 - Nextel Cell Phones 10.02 
103 - 542 30 42 020 - Telephone 94.58 
101 - 576 80 42 020 - Telephone 110.54 
101 - 576 80 42 020 - Telephone 54.81 
001 - 595 10 42 025 - Cell Phones 110.54 
001 - 595 10 42 025 - Cell Phones 18.27 

8713 12/09/2015 Claims 2 	182827 WA St Dept Of Agriculture 165.00 

401 - 535 80 49 010 - Misc-Dues/Subscriptions 33.00 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 15 of 351



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
MCAG #: 0647 	 11/25/2015 To: 12/09/2015 

Trans Date 	Type 	Acct # 	Chk # 	Claimant 

Time: 	15:12:35 	Date: 
Page: 

Amount Memo 

12/03/2015 
7 

8714 

8715 

12/09/2015 

12/09/2015 

102 - 536 20 49 010 - Misc-Tuition/Registration 	33.00 
103 - 542 30 49 030 - Misc-Tuition/Registration 	33.00 
103 - 542 30 49 030 - Misc-Tuition/Registration 	33.00 
103 - 542 30 49 030 - Misc-Tuition/Registration 	33.00 

Claims 	2 	182828 WA St Dept Of Trans 

104 - 595 10 63 040 - Eng-SR9 Jameson 	 47.68 
104 - 595 10 63 040 - Eng-SR9 Jameson 	 0.66 

Claims 	2 	182829 WAFD Insurance Group Inc. 

48.34 

3,500.00 

001 - 512 50 46 000 - Insurance & Bonds 	 40.46 
001 - 514 23 46 000 - Insurance & Bonds 	 113.62 
001 - 515 30 46 000 - Insurance 	 59.84 
001 - 518 80 41 000 - Professional Services 	 36.70 
001 - 521 20 46 000 - Insurance 	 993.92 
001 - 522 50 46 000 - Insurance 	 443.06 
001 - 524 20 46 000 - Insurance 	 15.95 
425 - 531 50 46 000 - Insurance 	 167.44 
401 - 535 80 46 000 - Insurance 	 498.13 
102 - 536 20 46 000 - Insurance 	 62.85 
412 - 537 80 46 000 - Insurance 	 331.81 
103 - 543 30 46 000 - Insurance 	 177.60 
001 - 558 60 46 000 - Insurance 	 64.32 
105 - 572 20 46 000 - Insurance 	 250.09 
101 - 576 80 46 000 - Insurance 	 191.87 
001 - 595 10 46 000 - Insurance 	 52.34 

8716 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 	182830 Win-911 Software 395.00 

401 - 535 50 48 000 - Maintenance Contracts 	 395.00 

8717 12/09/2015 Claims 	2 	182831 	Wood's Logging Supply Inc 229.55 

001 - 522 20 31 000 - Operating Supplies 	 34.72 
401 - 535 50 48 010 - Maintenance Of Lines 	 25.50 
401 - 535 50 48 010 - Maintenance Of Lines 	 53.69 
102 - 536 20 48 040 - Repair/Maint-Equip & Bldg 	9.62 
103 - 542 30 48 010 - Repair/Maintenance-Equip 	26.04 
101 - 576 80 31 001 - Operating Sup - Riverfront 	79.98 

001 Current Expense Fund 146,511.66 
101 Parks & Facilities Fund 49,938.28 
102 Cemetery Fund 4,618.27 
103 Street Fund 24,085.63 
104 Arterial Street Fund 48.34 
105 Library Fund 10,019.37 
108 Stadium Fund 22.56 
114 Law Enforcement Sales Tax 37,106.03 
401 Sewer Fund 54,473.54 
412 Solid Waste Fund 24,403.05 
425 Stormwater 6,612.01 
501 Equipment Replacement Fund 202,558.98 

Claims: 560,397.72 
* Transaction Has Mixed Revenue And Expense Accounts 560,397.72 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 16 of 351



CHECK REGISTER 
City Of Sedro-Woolley 
	

Time: 15:12:35 Date: 12/03/2015 
MCAG #: 0647 
	

11/25/2015 To: 12/09/2015 	 Page: 	8 

Trans Date 
	

Type 	Acct # Chk # Claimant 	 Amount Memo 

CERTIFICATION: I, the undersigned do hereby certify under penalty of perjury, that the materials have 
been furnished, the services rendered or the labor performed as described and that the claim is a due and 
unpaid obligation against the City of Sedro-Woolley and that I am authorized to authenticate and certify 
to said claim. 

Finance Director 

 

Date 

Date 

 

Finance Committee Member 

  

    

Finance Committee Member 	 Date 

Finance Committee Member 	 Date 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 17 of 351



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

DEC 0 9 2015 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

Memorandum 

To: Mayor Anderson and City Council 

From: Patsy Nelson 

Date: 12/3/2015 

Re: 2015 Budget Amendment #4 

Issue: Should the Council adopt the attached ordinance which amends the 2015 budget? 

Revenue Expenditures 

General Fund  
(Increased salaries due to Goodell Complex fire & hiring of building 
inspector, increased building review fees before staff hire and 
mid-year dual insurance selections) 
342.21.00.000 001 	Fire Control Services 9,000 
342.40.03.000 001 	Building Inspections 9,390 
345.83.00.003 001 Building Review Fees 10,000 
521.10.11.000 001 	Salaries Police 8,600 
521.10.25.001 001 Medical/Dental/Vision Police -8,600 
522.20.11.010 001 Salaries Fire Volunteers 9,000 
523.20.11.000 001 	SalariesCWP 500 
523.20.25.001 001 Medical/DentalNisionCWP -500 
524.20.11.000 001 	Salaries Building 7,500 
524.20.22.001 001 Payroll taxes - Building 1,890 
524.20.41.000 001 Professional Services — Building 10,000 

Special Investigations Fund 
(additional real property seizure costs) 
369.30.00.000 109 Evidence confiscations 4,500 
594.21.62.000 109 Seizure — Real Property 4,500 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 18 of 351



Revenue Expenditures 

Law Enforcement Sales Tax Fund 
(Additional sales tax receipts due to County Jail Fund) 
313.15.00.001 114 Sales Tax — Jail (2/10) 

	
60,000 

523.60.51.022 114 Jail Sales Tax Pass Through (2/10) 
	

60,000 

Solid Waste 
(Additional payroll costs due to multi-equipment breakdowns and 
delivery of toters; transfer from medical insurance to salaries due to 
mid-year dual insurance selection) 
537.80.11.000 412 Salaries 	 2,500 
537.80.12.000 412 Extra Help 	 2,500 
537.80.13.000 412 Overtime 	 9,000 
537.80.25.001 412 Medical/Dental/Vision 	 -5,000 
537.80.34.001 412 Containers — Recycling 	 -9,000 

ERR/Fleet Fund 
(Potential early arrival of 2 police cruisers, previously scheduled for 2016) 
594.21.64.501 501 Vehicles — Police 	 70,000 
508.80.00.501 501 Ending Cash 	 -70,000 

Recommendation: Approve Ordinance # 	-15 an Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 1807-14 entitled, 
"An Ordinance adopting the Annual Budget for the City of Sedro-Woolley, Washington, for the fiscal year ending 
December 31, 2015.- 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 19 of 351



ORDINANCE NO. -15 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 1807-14 ADOPTING THE ANNUAL 
BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON, FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2015 

WHEREAS, the Sedro-Woolley City Council has determined that it is in the best interest 
of the City to amend the 2015 Budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Sedro-Woolley do ordain as 
follows: 

Section 1. The 2015 Budget, adopted by Ordinance 1807-14, and passed by the City 
Council on November 25, 2014 and is hereby amended as set forth in this Ordinance. 

Section 2. Estimated resources, including fund balances or working capital from each 
separate fund of the City of Sedro-Woolley, and aggregate totals for all such funds 
combined, for the year 2015 are set forth in summary form below, and are hereby 
appropriated for expenditure at the fund level during the year 2015 as set forth below: 

FUND: AMOUNT: 

001 GENERAL FUND 5,588,334 
101 PARKS FUND 754,110 
102 CEMETERY FUND 134,540 
103 STREET FUND 891,732 
104 ARTERIAL STREET FUND 1,348,492 
105 LIBRARY FUND 336,573 
106 CEMETERY ENDOWMENT FUND 93,645 
107 PARKS RESERVE FUND 15,654 
108 LODGING TAX FUND 41,726 
109 SPECIAL INVESTIGATIONS FUND 32,505 
112 CODE ENFORCEMENT FUND 57,331 
113 PATHS AND TRAILS FUND 41,485 
114 LAW ENFORCEMENT SALES TAX 422,500 
115 CITY COUNCIL STRATEGIC RESERVE FUND 77,750 
205 G/O BOND REDEMPTION FUND 2008 342,885 
206 G/O BOND 2008 RESERVE FUND 150,000 
230 G/O BOND 1996 REDEMPTION FUND 257,719 
302 CAPITAL PROJECTS RESERVE FUND 291,388 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 20 of 351



303 BUILDING MAINTENANCE RESERVE FUND 240,881 
310 POLICE MITIGATION RESERVE FUND 6,762 
311 PARKS IMPACT FEE RESERVE FUND 22,911 
312 FIRE IMPACT FEE RESERVE FUND 10,057 
401 SEWER OPERATIONS FUND 4,117,151 
402 SEWER OPERATIONS RESERVE FUND 848,613 
407 98 SEWER REV BOND REDEPTION FUND 835,345 
410 SEWER FACILITES RESERVE FUND 2,529,432 
411 98 SEWER REV BOND RESERVE FUND 376,482 
412 SOLID WASTE OPERATIONS FUND 2,241,366 
413 SOLID WASTE RESERVE FUND 316,682 
425 STORMWATER FUND 582,559 
426 STORMWATER RESERVE FUND 148,654 
501 EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 1,238,716 
621 SUSPENSE (SWSD) 44,129 

TOTAL ALL FUNDS 24,438,109 

Section 3. This ordinance shall be in force and take effect five (5) days after its 
publication according to law. 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS 9TH 
DAY OF DECEMBER, 2015. 

Mike Anderson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 	 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Finance Director 	 City Attorney 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 21 of 351



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

DEC 0 9 2015 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL. CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO 	  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone 136th 855-9922 
Fax 1360 ) 855-9923 

Eron M. Berg 
City Supervisor & Attorney 

MEMO TO: City Council 
FROM: 
	

Eron Berg 
RE: 
	

Employment Contract 
DATE: 
	

December 9. 2015 

ISSUE: 	Should the Council authorize the Mayor to sign an extension amendment to Dean 
Klinger's contract extending his term until January 31, 2023? 

BACKGROUND: 	Chief Klinger's contract expires on December 31.2015: he continues to 
exceed my expectations for performance. 

I am requesting that his contract remains the same with the exception of the term. 

RECOMMENDATION: 	Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign the proposed amendment 
extending Dean Klinger 's employment contract. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 22 of 351



AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS Amendment. made and entered into this 9th  day of December. 2015, by and 
between the City of Sedro-Woolley. a municipal corporation, hereinafter called 
"Employer." and Dean B. Klinger, hereinafter called "Employee."' both of whom 
understand as follows: 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS. the parties are subject to an employment agreement dated July I, 
2005; and 

WHEREAS. that agreement was amended on June 25. 2008 to extend the term 
and make other changes; and 

WHEREAS. it is the desire of the Employer to extend Employee's contract; and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Employee to remain employed by the City; 

NOW, THEREFORE. in consideration of the mutual covenants herein 
contained, the parties agree as follows: 

Section 1. 	The following amendments are made to the Employment Agreement 
dated July 1, 2005 as amended on June 25, 2008 and amended again on November 2, 
2011: 

A. Section 2. C. is revised to read as follows: 

Section 2. C. Term 
Employee agrees to remain in the exclusive employ of Employer until January 31. 

2023, and neither to accept other employment nor to become employed by any other 
employer until said termination date, unless said termination date is affected as 
hereinafter provided. 

Section 2. 	All other provisions remain unchanged. 

Section 3. 	This amendment shall become effective immediately. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Sedro-Woolley has caused this 
amendment to be signed and executed in its behalf by its Mayor. and duly attested by its 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 23 of 351



Finance Director. and the Employee has signed and executed this agreement, both in 
duplicate, the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 	 EMPLOYEE 

By: 	  
Mike Anderson, Mayor 	 Dean B. Klinger 

Attest: 

Finance Director 

Approved As to Form: 

City Attorney 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 24 of 351



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

DEC 0 9 2015 

Memorandum 
7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	3-F'  

To: 	City Council 

From: Patsy Nelson  RcYh).\ 
Date: 11/25/2015 

Re: 2016 Salary Ordinance 

Issue: Should the Council adopt the attached ordinance which establishes 2016 
salaries for the City's appointed and elected officials? 

Background information: All represented, non-represented and non-elected 
employees (except facility monitor and park caretakers) are scheduled to receive a 
2.5% salary increase in 2016 unless otherwise adjusted per Council review. All base 
salaries and wages for non-elected staff are shown prior to longevity, specialty pay, 
or incentive pay. 

Recommendation: Motion to approve the 2016 Salary Ordinance. 

Ordinance No. 	15 An Ordinance Establishing the Salaries and Wages for 
Elected Officials, Union/Guild and Non-Represented Employees of the City of 
Sedro-Woolley for the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2016. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 25 of 351



ORDINANCE NO. -15 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE SALARIES AND WAGES FOR ELECTED 
OFFICIALS, UNION/GUILD AND NON-REPRESENTED EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF 
SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 
2016 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to establish, on an annual basis, the salaries and wages of Elected 
Officials and Union/Guild and Non-Represented staff; and 

WHEREAS, the City is in the third year of a three year agreement with the Sedro-Woolley 
Public Safety Guild — Police Department Commissioned Employees, and Police Department 
Support Employees, and applicable wages are depicted below; and 

WHEREAS, the City is in the second year of a four year agreement with the American 
Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, Local 176-SW, (AFSCME); 
and applicable wages are depicted below; and 

WHEREAS, Non-Union represented staff shall receive a 2.5% cost of living increase with 
salaries and wages depicted below. The City Council has reviewed certain positions and 
increased salaries as deemed appropriate; and 

WHEREAS, SWMC 2.02.010 requires an annual review of the mayor's salary and cost of living 
adjustments consistent with other non-represented employees; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The year 2016 wages for AFSCME represented City employees shall be established 
per the current agreement, which increases wages as depicted below. 

Section 2. The 2016 wages for Sedro-Woolley Public Safety Guild represented City employees 
shall be established per the current contracts which increases wages as depicted below. 

Section 3. The 2016 salaries and wages for non-union employees shall increase by 2.5% and as 
depicted below. 

Section 4. The 2016 annual salary for members of the Sedro-Woolley City Council shall be 
$500 per month. 

Section 5. SWMC 2.02.010 is amended to read as follows: The mayor of Sedro-Woolley shall 
be paid an annual salary of twenty-six thousand two hundred ninety-six dollars. Annually or at 
other such intervals as the council desires, the council shall review the salary of the mayor and 
make cost of living adjustments consistent with those of other nonrepresented employees. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 26 of 351



Section 6.  The base salaries and wages for all other employees of the City of Sedro-Woolley 
are established as follows, not including applicable longevity, specialty pay, or incentive pay: 

TITLE: 

Non-Represented 
City Supervisor/City Attorney 
Public Works Director 
Police Chief 
Fire Chief 
Finance Director 
City Engineer 
Assistant Fire Chief-Training 
Assistant Fire Chief-Operations 
IT Director 
Planning Director 
Librarian 
Court Clerk 
Assistant Librarian 
Engineering Technician/Project Inspector 
Park Caretakers (part time) 
Facility Monitor (part time) 
Transcriptionist (part time) 
Public Safety Receptionist (part time) 
Firefighters (part-time) 
Library Extra Help (part time) 
Extra Help (part time & temporary) 

SALARY OR WAGE RANGE: 

$ 9,617 Per Month 
$ 8,947 Per Month 
$ 8,052 Per Month 
$ 8,052 Per Month 
$ 7,399 Per Month 
$ 7,071 Per Month 
$ 6,796 Per Month 
$ 6,796 Per Month 
$ 6,768 Per Month 
$ 5,612 Per Month 
$ 5,451 Per Month 
$ 4,308 Per Month 
$ 3,855 Per Month 
$ 3,417 — $3,759 Per Month 
$ 100 Per Month 
$ 25.00 Per Hour 
$ 15.10 - $15.48 Per Hour 
$ 14.97 Per Hour 
$ 15.00 Per Hour 
$ 10.75 - $19.25 Per Hour 
$ 9.47 - $12.80 Per Hour 

Sedro-Woolley Public Safety Guild 
Commissioned Employees  

Police Sergeant 
Police Officer 

Support Employees  
Records Supervisor 
Records Clerk 
Code Enforcement Officer 

$6,607 - $6,873 Per Month 
$4,973 - $6,120 Per Month 

$3,511 - $4,359 Per Month 
$3,343 - $4,192 Per Month 
$3,519 - $3,852 Per Month 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 27 of 351



TITLE: 	 SALARY OR WAGE RANGE: 

Union, AFSCME 
Wastewater Treatment Supervisor 	$4,994 - $6,373 Per Month 
Foreman/Supervisor 	 $4,729 - $6,035 Per Month 
Lead Plant Operator 	 $4,064 - $5,185 Per Month 
Lead Utility Worker/Equip Operator 	$3,863 - $4,930 Per Month 
Plant Operator II 	 $3,848 - $4,911 Per Month 
Wastewater Collection Specialist II 	$3,848 - $4,911 Per Month 
Utility Worker/Equip Operator II 	$3,647 - $4,657 Per Month 
Plant Operator I 	 $3,623 - $4,625 Per Month 
Wastewater Collection Specialist I 	$3,623 - $4,625 Per Month 
Utility Worker/Equipment Operator I 	$3,518 - $4,488 Per Month 
Engineering/Planning Technician 	$3,348 - $4,274 Per Month 
Public Works Assistant 	 $3,318 - $4,235 Per Month 
Deputy Clerk 	 $3,285 - $4,191 Per Month 
Accounting Clerk/HR Assistant 	 $3,254 - $4,174 Per Month 
Building Inspector 	 $3,207 - $4,092 Per Month 
Accounting Clerk 	 $3,187 - $4,069 Per Month 
Permitting Technician 	 $3,187 - $4,069 Per Month 
Secretary Clerk 	 $3,052 - $3,895 Per Month 
Custodian 	 $2,930 - $3,743 Per Month 
Mechanic (part-time) 	 $20.50 - $31.91 Per Hour 
Offender Work Program Supervisor 	$18.95 - $24.18 Per Hour 
Seasonal positions 	 $10.00 - $15.00 Per Hour 

Section 7. The above depicted salaries and wages shall be in effect beginning January 1, 2016. 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS 9TH DAY 
OF DECEMBER, 2015. 

Mike Anderson 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 	 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Finance Director 	 City Attorney 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 28 of 351



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY REGULAR MEETING 
Sedro-Woolley Wastewater Treatment 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 856-1100 
Fax (360) 856-6959 

DEC 0 9 2015 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 

Debbie Allen 
Wastewater Treatment Supervisor 

MEMO TO: 	City Council and Mayor Mike Anderson 

FROM: 
	

Debbie Allen, Wastewater Treatment Supervisor 

RE: 
	

Biosolids Contract with King County and BPI 
Amendment No. 1 

DATE: 	December 2, 2015 (for Council action December 9, 2015) 

ISSUE 

Should Mayor Anderson execute the attached Amendment No. 1 to our Biosolids Contract with King 
County and Boulder Park, Incorporated (BPI)? 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 

Our current contract expiring on December 31, 2015 was entered into on January 1, 2012 for the trucking 
and land application of Sedro-Woolley Biosolids. Amendment No. 1 between King County, Boulder Park 
Inc., and the City of Sedro-Woolley would extend our current contract for an additional five years 
"December 31, 2015 to December 31, 2020". Amendment No. 1 also covers Section 7.2 of the contract 
to increase the BPI base unit price to reflect current pricing. All other terms of the original contract and 
change order dated July 30, 2013 remain the same. 

FINANCE 

This work will be covered by Account 401 Solids Handling 

535.80.35.020.401 Solids Handling $ 80,000 

MOTION: 

Move to authorize City Supervisor, Eron Berg to sign Amendment No. 1 to our Biosolids Contract 
with King County, and Boulder Park, Inc. 

2015-12-01 Biosolids Contract with King County and BPI Amendment 1 	 1212/2015 1:40:48 PM Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 29 of 351



AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO 

BIOSOLIDS HAULING AND BENEFICIAL USE SERVICES 

FOR THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

AT THE BOULDER PARK PROJECT 

CONTRACT NO. 01-1111 

PURPOSE: To amend Contract No. 01-1111 (Contract) between the City of Sedro-
Woolley, Boulder Park, Inc. (BPI), and King County (KC), all of which may be referred 
to collectively hereinafter as "Parties". This three-party contract allows the City of Sedro-
Woolley to have their biosolids beneficially used through land application at the Boulder 
Park Project Beneficial Use Facility (BPP) in Douglas County, Washington. 

WHERE AS: The Parties entered into the Contract, effective January 1, 2012. 

WHERE AS: The Parties desire to amend the Contract. 

NOW THEREFORE IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED that the Contract is amended as 
follows: 

• Pursuant to Section 6.1 of the Contract the Parties agree to extend the term of the 
Contract by replacing the date as follows: 

"December 31, 2015" to "December 31, 2020". 

• Pursuant of Section 7.2 of Contract, the Parties agree to increase the BPI base unit 
price by replacing the following rate information: 

"...$54.04 ($2.36 KC, $0.18 Tax at Mansfield rate of 7.7%, and $51.50 BPI)..." with 
"...$62.27 ($2.83 KC, $0.22 Tax at Mansfield rate of 7.7%, and $59.22 BPI)...". 

All other terms and conditions of the original Contract and the Change Order dated July 
30, 2013 remain in full force and effect. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 30 of 351



y Thomsen, President 

PAGE 2 
CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. I 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties execute this Amendment No. 1 to this Contract as 
of the date last signed below by the Parties. 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 	 BOULDER PARK, INC. 

By  	By 
Erin M. Berg, City Supervisor/Attorney 

Date  	Date  j/— 1) 5--  

KING COUNTY 

By 	  
Pam Elardo, P.E. 
Director, Wastewater Treatment Division 

Date 

Approved as to form only: 

t„:„.6   
William E. Blakney, Depu Prosecuting 	mey 

Date 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 31 of 351



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

DEC 0 9 2015 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
GENDA NO 	_2 L,  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

   

Mark A. Freiberger, PE 
Director of Public Works 

MEMO TO: 	City Council and Mayor Mike Anderson 

FROM: 	Mark A. Freiberger, PE 

RE: 
	

Professional Services Agreements No. 2016-PS-02, and 06 thru 11 for 
Miscellaneous On-Call Professional Services 

DATE: 	December 3, 2014 (for Council action December 9, 2014) 

ISSUE 
Should Mayor Anderson execute the attached Professional Services Agreements No. 2016-PS-02, 06, 
07, 08, 09, 10, and 11, as noted below for miscellaneous on-call professional service agreements? 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
The city has utilized the services of various firms for on-call professional services for miscellaneous 
engineering and other professional services. The attached agreements represent a few of our 2016 on-
call services that are currently anticipated. 

Following is a list of these agreements and proposed use: 

2016-PS-02 — Skagit Surveyors & Engineers — NTE $25,000 — on-call engineering and surveying 
2016-PS-06 — Lisser & Associates PLLC — NTE $25,000 — on-call survey services 
2016-PS-07 — J Hanson Consulting LLC — NTE $25,000 — economic development coordinator services 
2016-PS-08 — Transpo Group USA Incorporated — NTE $10,000 - on-call transportation services 
2016-PS-09 — The Otos Group, LLC — NTE $12,500 — on-call planning and development of parks 
2016-PS-10 — Scott Thomas, Esq — Hourly — on-call hearing examiner 
2016-PS-11 — Guardian Northwest Title & Escrow NTE $5,000 — title and escrow professional service 

FINANCE 
Individual Task Orders will be issued for work items as needed. Budgets will be identified and approval 
sought through the normal process. Task order work will generally be from one of the following budget 
line items: 

558.60.41.000.001 Professional Services - Planning $ 10,000 
558.70.41.010.001 Professional Services — Plan & Community Dev. $ 25,000 
595.10.41.000.001 Professional Services — Engineering $ 10,500 
570.80.41.000.101 Professional Services — Parks $ 17,500 
544.40.41.000.104 Transportation Plan Update — Arterial $ 26,539 
535.80.41.000.401 Professional Services - Sewer Fund $ 46,000 
531.50.41.000.425 Professional Services — Stormwater $ 	5,500 

MOTION: 

Move to authorize Mayor Anderson to execute the attached Professional Services Agreements No. 
2016-PS-02, 06, 07, 08, 09, 10 and 11 as noted above for miscellaneous on-call professional 
service agreements. 

2015-12-09 2016-PS-02, 06 thru II Misc 2016 On Call Agreements 
	

12'2,2015 5:09:38 PM Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 32 of 351



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT No. 2016-PS-02 
(To be used for engineering and architect services) 

This Agreement made and entered into this 1st day of January, 2016 by and between the 
City of Sedro-Woolley, a municipal corporation under the laws of the State of Washington, 
hereinafter referred to as "City" and Skagit Surveyors Inc., DBA Skagit Surveyors and 
Engineers whose address is 806 Metcalf Street, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284, hereinafter referred 
to as the "Contractor". 

WHEREAS, the City desires to engage the Contractor to perform certain duties relating to 
professional services, and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has agreed to offer its professional services to perform said 
work, and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has represented and by entering into this Agreement now 
represents that it is fully qualified to perform the work to which it will be assigned in a competent 
and professional manner, to the standards required by City, 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES: 
The City hereby agrees to engage the Contractor and the Contractor hereby agrees to 

perform, in a satisfactory and proper manner, as determined by City, the services hereafter set forth 
in connection with this Agreement: 

1. Scope of Services. 
The Contractor agrees to perform in a satisfactory and proper manner, as determined by the 

City, as On Call Engineering Services as assigned by task order that are requested by the City of 
Sedro-Woolley. 

2. Relationship of Parties. 
The Contractor, its subcontractors, agents and employees are independent Contractors 

performing professional services for City and are not employees of City. The Contractor, its 
subcontractors, agents and employees, shall not, as a result of this Agreement, accrue leave, 
retirement, insurance, bonding or any other benefits afforded to City employees. The contractor, 
subcontractors, agents, and employees shall not have the authority to bind City any way except as 
may be specifically provided herein. 

The Contractor represents that it is customarily engaged in an independently established 
trade, occupation, profession or business of the same nature as that involved in the contract of 
services, and that it maintains a principal place of business other than City's office that is eligible 
for a business deduction under IRS regulations, and that on the effective date of this agreement it 
assumes responsibility for filing, at the next applicable filing period, a schedule of expenses with the 
IRS for the services subject to this agreement, it has established all required tax accounts with state 
government agencies, has a Washington State Uniform Business Identifier number, and is 
maintaining a separate set of books and records reflecting all expenses and income items of its 
business. 

3. Time of Performance. 
The service of the Contractor is to commence 
[ ] on or before 	  
[ X ] as soon as practicable after the execution of this Agreement shall be undertaken so as 

to ensure its expeditious completion in light of the purpose of this Agreement. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 33 of 351



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 2 of 5 

The service of the Contractor is to be completed 
[ ] not later than 	  
[ ] pursuant to the schedule set forth on Attachment C, Schedule of Work. 

4. Standard of Care. 
Contractor shall exercise the degree of skill and diligence normally employed by 

professional engineers or consultants performing the same or similar services at the time such 
services are performed. 

5. Delays and Extensions of Time. 
If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of providing services covered by this 

Agreement, by any causes beyond the party's control, the time for performance may be extended by 
such time as shall be mutually agreed upon by Contractor and City and shall be incorporated in a 
written amendment to this Agreement. Any request for an extension of time shall be made in 
writing to the other party. 

6. Compensation and Schedule of Payments. 
City shall pay the Contractor its hourly rates pursuant to the schedule set forth on Exhibit B. 
The Contractor shall be paid monthly on the basis of invoices for compensation earned by 

the Contractor during the billing period, as agreed by the parties. Payment shall be made within ten 
(10) days after approval of the voucher by the City council. 

Cost not to exceed $ 25,000.00 without prior approval of the Director of Public Works. 

7. Ownership of Records and Documents. 
The written, graphic, mapped, photographic, or visual documents prepared by the Contractor 

under the scope of work of this Agreement are instruments of the Contractor's services for use by 
the City with respect to this project and, unless otherwise provided, shall be deemed the property of 
the City. The City shall be permitted to retain these documents, including reproducible camera-
ready originals of reports, reproduction quality mylars of maps, duplicates of 35 mm slides, and 
copies in the form of computer files, for the City's use. The City shall have unrestricted authority to 
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data, drawings, 
images or other material prepared under this Agreement, provided that the Contractor shall have no 
liability for the use of the Contractor's work product outside of the scope of its intended purpose. 

8. Termination. 
The term of this agreement shall be from the date signed through December 31, 2016. 
A. 	This agreement may be terminated by either party for reasonable cause, upon written 

notice to the other party. Reasonable cause shall include: 
a) Material violation of this agreement. 
b) Failure to maintain professional standards in the performance of services related 

to this agreement. 
B. 	This agreement may be terminated without cause upon thirty (30) days notice by 

either party. 
C. 	Termination of this agreement shall not relieve either party of their obligations under 

this agreement which accrues prior to the date of termination, or which, by their nature, is intended 
to survive completed performance of the scope of work, including the obligation of the City to pay 
for competent services performed prior to the date of termination. 

2016-PS-02 Skagit Surveyors and Engineers Prof Svs Agreement 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 34 of 351



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 3 of 5 

9. Evaluation and Compliance with the Law. 
The Contractor agrees to comply with all relevant, federal, state and municipal laws, rules 

and regulations, including laws governing equal employment opportunity, and prevailing or area 
standard wage laws, if applicable. 

10. Joinder in Arbitration Proceedings. 
If the City and any third party agree to binding arbitration as the method of dispute 

resolution between them and their claims or any of them arise out of or are related to Contractor's 
services, Contractor agrees to be joined in such arbitration proceeding as a party and that the 
Arbitrator(s) decision therein shall be final and binding on Contractor and judgment may be entered 
upon it in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 

11. City Business and Occupation License. 
Prior to performing work under this Agreement, Contractor shall secure a City of Sedro-

Woolley Business and Occupation License. 

12. Indemnification / Hold Harmless. 
The Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees 

and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including 
attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from the acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant in 
performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of 
the City. Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 
4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or 
damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Consultant and the 
City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Consultant's liability, including the duty 
and cost to defend, hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant's negligence. It is further 
specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the 
Consultant's waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes 
of this indemnification. This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties. The provisions of 
this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

13. Insurance. 
The Contractor shall provide proof to the City that it and its subcontractors are insured 

under professional liability insurance policies covering the work within the scope of this agreement, 
in such form and amounts ($1 Million) as are acceptable to the City. 

The Contractor shall provide proof to the City that it is insured under automobile and 
vehicle liability insurance covering claims for injuries to members of the public and/or damages to 
property of others arising from use of motor vehicles, including onsite and offsite operations, and 
owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles, and general comprehensive liability insurance covering the 
work within the scope of this agreement, in such form and with policy limits in such amounts ($1 
Million) as are acceptable to the City. 

The Contractor agrees to name the City as an additional insured when obtaining liability 
insurance and to provide a Certificate of Insurance to this effect. 

14. Employment Security. 
The Contractor shall comply with all employment security laws of the State of Washington, 

and shall timely make all required payments in connection therewith. 

2016-PS-02 Skagit Surveyors and Engineers Prof Sys Agreement 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 35 of 351



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 4 of 5 

15. Amendments. 
This Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended except by an instrument in 

writing executed by the parties hereto. Any changes in the scope of work or compensation shall be 
mutually agreed upon between the City and the Contractor and shall be incorporated in written 
amendments to this Agreement. 

16. Scope of Agreement. 
This Agreement incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understanding between the 

parties hereto which are merged into this written agreement. No prior agreement or prior 
understanding, verbal or otherwise, of the parties or their agents shall be valid or enforceable unless 
set forth in this Agreement or written amendment hereto. 

17. Ratification. 
Acts taken pursuant to this Agreement but prior to its effective date are hereby ratified and 

confirmed. 

18. Assignability. 
This agreement is not assignable by either party, without written consent of the other party. 

19. Notices. 
Any notice given in connection with this agreement shall be given in writing and shall be 

delivered either by hand to the party or by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the party at the 
party's address stated herein. Any party may change its address stated herein by giving notice of the 
change in accordance with this paragraph. 

20. Choice of Law/Venue. 
Any dispute under this agreement or related to this agreement shall be decided in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Washington. Venue for any court proceeding arising under or related 
to this agreement shall be in Skagit County Superior Court. 

21. Attorneys Fees. 
The prevailing party in any litigation of any dispute arising out of this agreement shall be 

entitled to its actual attorneys fees incurred and all costs of such litigation (including expert witness 
fees) in addition to any costs otherwise taxable by statute or court rule. 

22. Non-exclusive Agreement. 
This agreement shall not prevent the City of Sedro-Woolley from entering into a contract 

with another person or firm for similar services. 

23. MRSC Roster Registration. 
The Contractor shall register or maintain registration on the MRSC Consultant Roster. 

24. Washington State Department of Retirement Systems. 
Have you retired under the 2008 early retirement factors? Yes 	No 	N/A 

2016-PS-02 Skagit Surveyors and Engineers Prof Sys Agreement Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 36 of 351



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 5 of 5 

25. Debarment. 
Contractor represents and agrees that it is not listed on any state or federal debarment list and 

further agrees that none of its sub-consultants are listed on any state or federal debarment list. 

DATED this 	 day of 	 , 	 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
A Washington municipal corporation 

By: 	  
Mayor 

Attest: 

Finance Director 

Approved as to Form: 

City Attorney 

CONTRACTOR: 

Skagit Surveyors Inc. 
DBA Skagit Surveyors & Engineers 

By: 	  

2016-PS-02 Skagit Surveyors and Engineers Prof Sys Agreement 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 37 of 351



EXHIBIT B 
Skagit Surveyors, Inc. d/b/a 

Skagit Surveyors & Engineers 

SURVEYING - CIVIL ENGINEERING — SUBDIVISIONS - LAND USE PLANNING - ELEVATIONS 
806 Metcalf Street, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 - PHONE (360) 855-2121 - FAX (360) 855-1658 

Skagit Surveyors & Engineers Fee Schedule for Surveying, Planning and Engineering services 
effective January 1, 2016 are as follows: 

RATE 
• Principal Engineer or Principal Surveyor $125/hr. 
• Principal Engineer or Principal Surveyor- 

Litigation Preparation/Expert Witness $150/hr. 
• Licensed Surveyor $100/hr. 
• Licensed Engineer $100/hr. 
• Certified Planner $100/hr. 
• Certified Planner—Litigation Preparation/Expert Witness $150/hr. 
• On Call Planning Consultant—Municipal Rate $ 95/hr. 
• Project Engineer or Project Surveyor $ 90/hr. 
• Project Engineer or Project Surveyor- 

Litigation Preparation/Expert Witness $125/hr. 
• Assistant Project Manager $ 80/hr. 
• CAD Design Technician $ 75/hr. 
• Two Person Survey Crew $150/hr. 
• Additional Crew Member $ 75/hr. 
• One Person with Equipment in Field $100/hr. 
• One Person with RTK- GPS Equipment $190/hr. 

• Minimum Fee for Bench Mark $600.00 
• Minimum Fee for Elevation Certificate $900.00 
• Minimum Fee for Establishing Bench Mark & 

Completing Elevation Certificate $1200.00 

• Minimum Fee for Office Consultation $100/hr. 
• Office Assistant $ 60/hr. 

• Outside expenses incurred for supplies used in extraordinary Actual Cost 
quantities or special equipment used on a project Plus 5% 

This Rate Schedule is subject to change without notice. Fees, such as Permit or Application 
Fees are not included in this Schedule. 

\\Rainier\Public\SSRSSE  Fee Schedule January 1, 2013.docx 
11/30/2015 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 38 of 351



 

wSITOOL   

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT No. 2016-PS-06 
(To be used for engineering and architect services) 

This Agreement made and entered into this 1st day of January, 2016 by and between the 
City of Sedro-Woolley, a municipal corporation under the laws of the State of Washington, 
hereinafter referred to as "City" and Lisser & Associates PLLC whose address is PO Box 1109, 
Mount Vernon, WA 98273, hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor". 

WHEREAS, the City desires to engage the Contractor to perform certain duties relating to 
professional services, and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has agreed to offer its professional services to perform said 
work, and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has represented and by entering into this Agreement now 
represents that it is fully qualified to perform the work to which it will be assigned in a competent 
and professional manner, to the standards required by City, 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES: 
The City hereby agrees to engage the Contractor and the Contractor hereby agrees to 

perform, in a satisfactory and proper manner, as determined by City, the services hereafter set forth 
in connection with this Agreement: 

1. Scope of Services. 
The Contractor agrees to perform in a satisfactory and proper manner, as determined by the 

City, as On Call Survey Services as assigned by task order that are requested by the City of 
Sedro-Woolley. 

2. Relationship of Parties. 
The Contractor, its subcontractors, agents and employees are independent Contractors 

performing professional services for City and are not employees of City. The Contractor, its 
subcontractors, agents and employees, shall not, as a result of this Agreement, accrue leave, 
retirement, insurance, bonding or any other benefits afforded to City employees. The contractor, 
subcontractors, agents, and employees shall not have the authority to bind City any way except as 
may be specifically provided herein. 

The Contractor represents that it is customarily engaged in an independently established 
trade, occupation, profession or business of the same nature as that involved in the contract of 
services, and that it maintains a principal place of business other than City's office that is eligible 
for a business deduction under IRS regulations, and that on the effective date of this agreement it 
assumes responsibility for filing, at the next applicable filing period, a schedule of expenses with the 
IRS for the services subject to this agreement, it has established all required tax accounts with state 
government agencies, has a Washington State Uniform Business Identifier number, and is 
maintaining a separate set of books and records reflecting all expenses and income items of its 
business. 

3. Time of Performance. 
The service of the Contractor is to commence 
[ ] on or before 	  
[ X ] as soon as practicable after the execution of this Agreement shall be undertaken so as 

to ensure its expeditious completion in light of the purpose of this Agreement. 
The service of the Contractor is to be completed 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 39 of 351



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 2 of 5 

[ ] not later than 
[ ] pursuant to the schedule set forth on Attachment C, Schedule of Work. 

4. Standard of Care. 
Contractor shall exercise the degree of skill and diligence normally employed by 

professional engineers or consultants performing the same or similar services at the time such 
services are performed. 

5. Delays and Extensions of Time. 
If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of providing services covered by this 

Agreement, by any causes beyond the party's control, the time for performance may be extended by 
such time as shall be mutually agreed upon by Contractor and City and shall be incorporated in a 
written amendment to this Agreement. Any request for an extension of time shall be made in 
writing to the other party. 

6. Compensation and Schedule of Payments. 
City shall pay the Contractor its hourly rates pursuant to the schedule set forth on Exhibit B. 
The Contractor shall be paid monthly on the basis of invoices for compensation earned by 

the Contractor during the billing period, as agreed by the parties. Payment shall be made within ten 
(10) days after approval of the voucher by the City council. 

Cost not to exceed $ 25,000.00 without prior approval of the Director of Public Works/City 
Engineer. 

7. Ownership of Records and Documents. 
The written, graphic, mapped, photographic, or visual documents prepared by the Contractor 

under the scope of work of this Agreement are instruments of the Contractor's services for use by 
the City with respect to this project and, unless otherwise provided, shall be deemed the property of 
the City. The City shall be permitted to retain these documents, including reproducible camera-
ready originals of reports, reproduction quality mylars of maps, duplicates of 35 mm slides, and 
copies in the form of computer files, for the City's use. The City shall have unrestricted authority to 
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data, drawings, 
images or other material prepared under this Agreement, provided that the Contractor shall have no 
liability for the use of the Contractor's work product outside of the scope of its intended purpose. 

8. Termination. 
The term of this agreement shall be from the date signed through December 31, 2016. 
A. 	This agreement may be terminated by either party for reasonable cause, upon written 

notice to the other party. Reasonable cause shall include: 
a) Material violation of this agreement. 
b) Failure to maintain professional standards in the performance of services related 

to this agreement. 
B. 	This agreement may be terminated without cause upon thirty (30) days notice by 

either party. 
C. 	Termination of this agreement shall not relieve either party of their obligations under 

this agreement which accrues prior to the date of termination, or which, by their nature, is intended 
to survive completed performance of the scope of work, including the obligation of the City to pay 
for competent services performed prior to the date of termination. 

2016-PS-06 Lisser & Associates Prof Sys Agreement 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 40 of 351



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 3 of 5 

9. Evaluation and Compliance with the Law. 
The Contractor agrees to comply with all relevant, federal, state and municipal laws, rules 

and regulations, including laws governing equal employment opportunity, and prevailing or area 
standard wage laws, if applicable. 

10. Joinder in Arbitration Proceedings. 
If the City and any third party agree to binding arbitration as the method of dispute 

resolution between them and their claims or any of them arise out of or are related to Contractor's 
services, Contractor agrees to be joined in such arbitration proceeding as a party and that the 
Arbitrator(s) decision therein shall be final and binding on Contractor and judgment may be entered 
upon it in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 

11. City Business and Occupation License. 
Prior to performing work under this Agreement, Contractor shall secure a City of Sedro-

Woolley Business and Occupation License. 

12. Indemnification / Hold Harmless. 
The Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees 

and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including 
attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from the acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant in 
performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of 
the City. Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 
4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or 
damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Consultant and the 
City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Consultant's liability, including the duty 
and cost to defend, hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant's negligence. It is further 
specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the 
Consultant's waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes 
of this indemnification. This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties. The provisions of 
this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

13. Insurance. 
The Contractor shall provide proof to the City that it and its subcontractors are insured 

under professional liability insurance policies covering the work within the scope of this agreement, 
in such form and amounts ($1 Million) as are acceptable to the City. 

The Contractor shall provide proof to the City that it is insured under automobile and 
vehicle liability insurance covering claims for injuries to members of the public and/or damages to 
property of others arising from use of motor vehicles, including onsite and offsite operations, and 
owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles, and general comprehensive liability insurance covering the 
work within the scope of this agreement, in such form and with policy limits in such amounts ($1 
Million) as are acceptable to the City. 

The Contractor agrees to name the City as an additional insured when obtaining liability 
insurance and to provide a Certificate of Insurance to this effect. 

14. Employment Security. 
The Contractor shall comply with all employment security laws of the State of Washington, 

and shall timely make all required payments in connection therewith. 

2016-PS-06 Lisser & Associates Prof Sys Agreement 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 41 of 351



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 4 of 5 

15. Amendments. 
This Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended except by an instrument in 

writing executed by the parties hereto. Any changes in the scope of work or compensation shall be 
mutually agreed upon between the City and the Contractor and shall be incorporated in written 
amendments to this Agreement. 

16. Scope of Agreement. 
This Agreement incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understanding between the 

parties hereto which are merged into this written agreement. No prior agreement or prior 
understanding, verbal or otherwise, of the parties or their agents shall be valid or enforceable unless 
set forth in this Agreement or written amendment hereto. 

17. Ratification. 
Acts taken pursuant to this Agreement but prior to its effective date are hereby ratified and 

confirmed. 

18. Assignability. 
This agreement is not assignable by either party, without written consent of the other party. 

19. Notices. 
Any notice given in connection with this agreement shall be given in writing and shall be 

delivered either by hand to the party or by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the party at the 
party's address stated herein. Any party may change its address stated herein by giving notice of the 
change in accordance with this paragraph. 

20. Choice of Law/Venue. 
Any dispute under this agreement or related to this agreement shall be decided in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Washington. Venue for any court proceeding arising under or related 
to this agreement shall be in Skagit County Superior Court. 

21. Attorneys Fees. 
The prevailing party in any litigation of any dispute arising out of this agreement shall be 

entitled to its actual attorneys fees incurred and all costs of such litigation (including expert witness 
fees) in addition to any costs otherwise taxable by statute or court rule. 

22. Non-exclusive Agreement. 
This agreement shall not prevent the City of Sedro-Woolley from entering into a contract 

with another person or firm for similar services. 

23. MRSC Roster Registration. 
The Contractor shall register or maintain registration on the MRSC Consultant Roster. 

24. Washington State Department of Retirement Systems. 
Have you retired under the 2008 early retirement factors? Yes 	No 	N/A 

2016-PS-06 Lisser & Associates Prof Sys Agreement Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 42 of 351



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 5 of 5 

25. Debarment. 
Contractor represents and agrees that it is not listed on any state or federal debarment list and 

further agrees that none of its sub-consultants are listed on any state or federal debarment list. 

DATED this 

 

day of 	 , 	 

  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
A Washington municipal corporation 

By: 	  
Mayor 

Attest: 

Finance Director 

Approved as to Form: 

City Attorney 

CONTRACTOR: 

Lisser & Associates PLLC 

By: 	  

2016-PS-06 Lisser & Associates Prof Sys Agreement 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 43 of 351



EXHIBIT B 

LISSER & ASSOCIATES PLLC 

FEE SCHEDULE FOR LAND SURVEYING SERVICES 

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2016 

OFFICE PERSONNEL  

Principal 	 $170.00 per hour 

Licensed Professional Personnel 	 $ 90.00 per hour 

Surveying Technician 	 $ 80.00 per hour 

Draftsperson 	 $ 95.00 per hour 

Office Assistant 	 $ 53.00 per hour 

Office expense (special printing, fees paid etc.) 	Cost plus 15% 

FIELD PERSONNEL 

2 person crew 	 $160.00 per hour 

2 person crew (construction work) 	 $170.00 per hour 

3 person crew 	 $185.00 per hour 

3 person crew (construction work) 	 $190.00 per hour 

Special field supplies 	 Cost plus 15% 

C:011ice/Agreement/fee 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 44 of 351



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT No. 2016-PS-07 
(To be used for consultant services excluding engineers and architects) 

This Agreement made and entered into this 1st day of January, 2016, by and between the 
City of Sedro-Woolley, a municipal corporation under the laws of the State of Washington, 
hereinafter referred to as "City" and J Hanson Consulting LLC whose address is 17446 Mallard 
Cove Lane, Mt. Vernon, WA 98274, hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor". 

WHEREAS, the City desires to engage the Contractor to perform certain duties relating to 
professional services, and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has agreed to offer its professional services to perform said 
work, and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has represented and by entering into this Agreement now 
represents that it is fully qualified to perform the work to which it will be assigned in a competent 
and professional manner, to the standards required by City, 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES: 
The City hereby agrees to engage the Contractor and the Contractor hereby agrees to 

perform, in a satisfactory and proper manner, as determined by City, the services hereafter set forth 
in connection with this Agreement: 

1. Scope of Services. 
The Contractor agrees to provide economic development coordinator services as requested 

by the City Supervisor, on a task order basis. 

2. Relationship of Parties. 
The Contractor, its subcontractors, agents and employees are independent Contractors 

performing professional services for City and are not employees of City. The Contractor, its 
subcontractors, agents and employees, shall not, as a result of this Agreement, accrue leave, 
retirement, insurance, bonding or any other benefits afforded to City employees. The contractor, 
subcontractors, agents, and employees shall not have the authority to bind City any way except as 
may be specifically provided herein. 

The Contractor represents that it is customarily engaged in an independently established 
trade, occupation, profession or business of the same nature as that involved in the contract of 
services, and that it maintains a principal place of business other than City's office that is eligible 
for a business deduction under IRS regulations, and that on the effective date of this agreement it 
assumes responsibility for filing, at the next applicable filing period, a schedule of expenses with the 
IRS for the services subject to this agreement, it has established all required tax accounts with state 
government agencies, has a Washington State Uniform Business Identifier number, and is 
maintaining a separate set of books and records reflecting all expenses and income items of its 
business. 

3. Time of Performance. 
The service of the Contractor is to commence 
[ 	on or before 	  
[ x ] as soon as practicable after the execution of this Agreement shall be undertaken so as 

to ensure its expeditious completion in light of the purpose of this Agreement. 
The service of the Contractor is to be completed 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 45 of 351



[ ] not later than 
[ ] pursuant to the schedule set forth on Attachment C, Schedule of Work. 

4. Standard of Care. 
Contractor shall exercise the degree of skill and diligence normally employed by 

professional engineers or consultants performing the same or similar services at the time such 
services are performed. 

5. Delays and Extensions of Time. 
If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of providing services covered by this 

Agreement, by any causes beyond the party's control, the time for performance may be extended by 
such time as shall be mutually agreed upon by Contractor and City and shall be incorporated in a 
written amendment to this Agreement. Any request for an extension of time shall be made in 
writing to the other party. 

6. Compensation and Schedule of Payments. 
City shall pay the Contractor $50.00/hour for labor, plus expenses. The Contractor shall 

be paid monthly on the basis of invoices for compensation earned by the Contractor during the 
billing period, as agreed by the parties. Payment shall be made within ten (10) days after approval of 
the voucher by the City council. 

Cost not to exceed $25,000.00 without prior approval of the City Supervisor. 

7. Ownership of Records and Documents. 
The written, graphic, mapped, photographic, or visual documents prepared by the Contractor 

under the scope of work of this Agreement are instruments of the Contractor's services for use by 
the City with respect to this project and, unless otherwise provided, shall be deemed the property of 
the City. The City shall be permitted to retain these documents, including reproducible camera-
ready originals of reports, reproduction quality mylars of maps, duplicates of 35 mm slides, and 
copies in the form of computer files, for the City's use. The City shall have unrestricted authority to 
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data, drawings, 
images or other material prepared under this Agreement, provided that the Contractor shall have no 
liability for the use of the Contractor's work product outside of the scope of its intended purpose. 

8. Termination. 
The term of this agreement shall be from the date signed through December 31, 2016. 
A. 	This agreement may be terminated by either party for reasonable cause, upon written 

notice to the other party. Reasonable cause shall include: 
a) Material violation of this agreement. 
b) Failure to maintain professional standards in the performance of services related 

to this agreement. 
B. 	This agreement may be terminated without cause upon thirty (30) days notice by 

either party. 
C. 	Termination of this agreement shall not relieve either party of their obligations under 

this agreement which accrues prior to the date of termination, or which, by their nature, is intended 
to survive completed performance of the scope of work, including the obligation of the City to pay 
for competent services performed prior to the date of termination. 

2016-PS-07 J Hanson Consulting LLC Agreement 	Page 2 of 5 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 46 of 351



9. Evaluation and Compliance with the Law. 
The Contractor agrees to comply with all relevant, federal, state and municipal laws, rules 

and regulations, including laws governing equal employment opportunity, and prevailing or area 
standard wage laws, if applicable. 

10. Joinder in Arbitration Proceedings. 
If the City and any third party agree to binding arbitration as the method of dispute 

resolution between them and their claims or any of them arise out of or are related to Contractor's 
services, Contractor agrees to be joined in such arbitration proceeding as a party and that the 
Arbitrator(s) decision therein shall be final and binding on Contractor and judgment may be entered 
upon it in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 

11. City Business and Occupation License. 
Prior to performing work under this Agreement, Contractor shall secure a City of Sedro-

Woolley Business and Occupation License. 

12. Indemnification. 
The Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold the City harmless from and against any 

claim, damages, losses, liability or expense arising out of its breach of contract or negligence. 
The Contractor's duty to indemnify City shall not apply to liability for damages arising out of 

bodily injury to persons or damage caused to property caused by or resulting from the sole 
negligence of City or City 's agents or employees. 

The Contractor's duty to indemnify City for liability for damages arising out of bodily injury 
or damage to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of (a) City or City's 
agents or employees, (b) Contractor and Contractor's agents or employees, or (c) any third parties 
shall apply only to the extent of negligence of Contractor or Contractor's agents or employees. 

The Contractor specifically and expressly waives any immunity that may be granted it under 
the Washington State Industrial Insurance Act. Title 51 RCW. Further, the indemnification 
obligation under this AGREEMENT shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount 
or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable to or for any third party under workers' 
compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts; provided Contractor's 
waiver of immunity by the provisions of this paragraph extends only to claims against Contractor by 
City, and not include, or extend to, any claims by Contractor 's employees directly against 
Contractor. 

The Contractor 's duty to defend, indemnify, and hold City harmless shall include, as to all 
claims, demands, losses, and liabilities to which it applies, City's personnel-related costs, attorneys' 
fees, and all other costs whether or not taxable by statute or court rule. 

13. Insurance. 
The Contractor shall provide proof to the City that it and its subcontractors are insured 

under professional liability insurance policies covering the work within the scope of this agreement, 
in such form and amounts ($1 million minimum) as are acceptable to the City. 

The Contractor shall provide proof to the City that it is insured under automobile and 
vehicle liability insurance covering claims for injuries to members of the public and/or damages to 
property of others arising from use of motor vehicles, including onsite and offsite operations, and 
owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles, and general comprehensive liability insurance covering the 
work within the scope of this agreement, in such form and with policy limits in such amounts ($1 
million minimum) as are acceptable to the City. 

2016-PS-07 J Hanson Consulting LLC Agreement 	Page 3 of 5 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 47 of 351



The Contractor agrees to name the City as an additional insured when obtaining liability 
insurance and to provide a Certificate of Insurance to this effect. 

14. Employment Security. 
The Contractor shall comply with all employment security laws of the State of Washington, 

and shall timely make all required payments in connection therewith. 

15. Amendments. 
This Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended except by an instrument in 

writing executed by the parties hereto. Any changes in the scope of work or compensation shall be 
mutually agreed upon between the City and the Contractor and shall be incorporated in written 
amendments to this Agreement. 

16. Scope of Agreement. 
This Agreement incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understanding between the 

parties hereto which are merged into this written agreement. No prior agreement or prior 
understanding, verbal or otherwise, of the parties or their agents shall be valid or enforceable unless 
set forth in this Agreement or written amendment hereto. 

17. Ratification. 
Acts taken pursuant to this Agreement but prior to its effective date are hereby ratified and 

confirmed. 

18. Assignability. 
This agreement is not assignable by either party, without written consent of the other party. 

19. Notices. 
Any notice given in connection with this agreement shall be given in writing and shall be 

delivered either by hand to the party or by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the party at the 
party's address stated herein. Any party may change its address stated herein by giving notice of the 
change in accordance with this paragraph. 

20. Choice of Law/Venue. 
Any dispute under this agreement or related to this agreement shall be decided in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Washington. Venue for any court proceeding arising under or related 
to this agreement shall be in Skagit County Superior Court. 

21. Attorneys Fees. 
The prevailing party in any litigation of any dispute arising out of this agreement shall be 

entitled to its actual attorneys fees incurred and all costs of such litigation (including expert witness 
fees) in addition to any costs otherwise taxable by statute or court rule. 

22. Non-exclusive Agreement. 
This agreement shall not prevent the City of Sedro-Woolley from entering into a contract 

with another person or firm for similar services. 

23. MRSC Roster Registration. 
The Contractor shall register or maintain registration on the MRSC Consultant Roster. 

2016-PS.07 J Hanson Consulting LLC Agreement 	Page 4 of 5 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 48 of 351



24. Washington State Department of Retirement Systems. 
Have you retired under the 2008 early retirement factors? Yes No 	N/A 

25. Debarment. 
Contractor represents and agrees that it is not listed on any state or federal debarment list and 

further agrees that none of its sub-consultants are listed on any state or federal debarment list. 

DATED this 	 day of 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
A Washington municipal corporation 

By: 	  
Mayor 

Attest: 

Finance Director 

Approved as to Form: 

City Attorney 

CONTRACTOR: 

J Hanson Consulting LLC 

By: 	  

2016-PS-07 J Hanson Consulting LLC Agreement 	Page 5 of 5 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 49 of 351



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT No. 2016-PS-08 
(To be used for engineering and architect services) 

This Agreement made and entered into this 1st day of January, 2016 by and between the 
City of Sedro-Woolley, a municipal corporation under the laws of the State of Washington, 
hereinafter referred to as "City" and Transpo Group USA Incorporated whose address is 11730 
118th  Avenue NE, Ste 600, Kirkland, WA 98034, hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor". 

WHEREAS, the City desires to engage the Contractor to perform certain duties relating to 
professional services, and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has agreed to offer its professional services to perform said 
work, and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has represented and by entering into this Agreement now 
represents that it is fully qualified to perform the work to which it will be assigned in a competent 
and professional manner, to the standards required by City, 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES: 
The City hereby agrees to engage the Contractor and the Contractor hereby agrees to 

perform, in a satisfactory and proper manner, as determined by City, the services hereafter set forth 
in connection with this Agreement: 

1. Scope of Services. 
The Contractor agrees to perform in a satisfactory and proper manner, as determined by the 

City, as On Call Transportation Services as assigned by task order that are requested by the City 
of Sedro-Woolley. 

2. Relationship of Parties. 
The Contractor, its subcontractors, agents and employees are independent Contractors 

performing professional services for City and are not employees of City. The Contractor, its 
subcontractors, agents and employees, shall not, as a result of this Agreement, accrue leave, 
retirement, insurance, bonding or any other benefits afforded to City employees. The contractor, 
subcontractors, agents, and employees shall not have the authority to bind City any way except as 
may be specifically provided herein. 

The Contractor represents that it is customarily engaged in an independently established 
trade, occupation, profession or business of the same nature as that involved in the contract of 
services, and that it maintains a principal place of business other than City's office that is eligible 
for a business deduction under IRS regulations, and that on the effective date of this agreement it 
assumes responsibility for filing, at the next applicable filing period, a schedule of expenses with the 
IRS for the services subject to this agreement, it has established all required tax accounts with state 
government agencies, has a Washington State Uniform Business Identifier number, and is 
maintaining a separate set of books and records reflecting all expenses and income items of its 
business. 

3. Time of Performance. 
The service of the Contractor is to commence 
[ ] on or before 	  
[ X ] as soon as practicable after the execution of this Agreement shall be undertaken so as 

to ensure its expeditious completion in light of the purpose of this Agreement. 
The service of the Contractor is to be completed 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 50 of 351



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 2 of 5 

[ ] not later than 
[ ] pursuant to the schedule set forth on Attachment C, Schedule of Work. 

4. Standard of Care. 
Contractor shall exercise the degree of skill and diligence normally employed by 

professional engineers or consultants performing the same or similar services at the time such 
services are performed. 

5. Delays and Extensions of Time. 
If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of providing services covered by this 

Agreement, by any causes beyond the party's control, the time for performance may be extended by 
such time as shall be mutually agreed upon by Contractor and City and shall be incorporated in a 
written amendment to this Agreement. Any request for an extension of time shall be made in 
writing to the other party. 

6. Compensation and Schedule of Payments. 
City shall pay the Contractor its hourly rates pursuant to the schedule set forth on Exhibit B. 
The Contractor shall be paid monthly on the basis of invoices for compensation earned by 

the Contractor during the billing period, as agreed by the parties. Payment shall be made within ten 
(10) days after approval of the voucher by the City council. 

Cost not to exceed $ 10,000.00 without prior approval of the Director of Public Works/City 
Engineer. 

7. Ownership of Records and Documents. 
The written, graphic, mapped, photographic, or visual documents prepared by the Contractor 

under the scope of work of this Agreement are instruments of the Contractor's services for use by 
the City with respect to this project and, unless otherwise provided, shall be deemed the property of 
the City. The City shall be permitted to retain these documents, including reproducible camera-
ready originals of reports, reproduction quality mylars of maps, duplicates of 35 mm slides, and 
copies in the form of computer files, for the City's use. The City shall have unrestricted authority to 
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data, drawings, 
images or other material prepared under this Agreement, provided that the Contractor shall have no 
liability for the use of the Contractor's work product outside of the scope of its intended purpose. 

8. Termination. 
The term of this agreement shall be from the date signed through December 31, 2016. 
A. 	This agreement may be terminated by either party for reasonable cause, upon written 

notice to the other party. Reasonable cause shall include: 
a) Material violation of this agreement. 
b) Failure to maintain professional standards in the performance of services related 

to this agreement. 
B. 	This agreement may be terminated without cause upon thirty (30) days notice by 

either party. 
C. 	Termination of this agreement shall not relieve either party of their obligations under 

this agreement which accrues prior to the date of termination, or which, by their nature, is intended 
to survive completed performance of the scope of work, including the obligation of the City to pay 
for competent services performed prior to the date of termination. 

2016-PS-08 Transpo Group Prof Sys Agreement 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 51 of 351



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 3 of 5 

9. Evaluation and Compliance with the Law. 
The Contractor agrees to comply with all relevant, federal, state and municipal laws, rules 

and regulations, including laws governing equal employment opportunity, and prevailing or area 
standard wage laws, if applicable. 

10. Joinder in Arbitration Proceedings. 
If the City and any third party agree to binding arbitration as the method of dispute 

resolution between them and their claims or any of them arise out of or are related to Contractor's 
services, Contractor agrees to be joined in such arbitration proceeding as a party and that the 
Arbitrator(s) decision therein shall be final and binding on Contractor and judgment may be entered 
upon it in any court having jurisdiction thereof 

11. City Business and Occupation License. 
Prior to performing work under this Agreement, Contractor shall secure a City of Sedro-

Woolley Business and Occupation License. 

12. Indemnification / Hold Harmless. 
The Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees 

and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including 
attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from the negligent acts, errors or omissions of the 
Consultant in performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole 
negligence of the City. Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is 
subject to RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to 
persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the 
Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Consultant's liability, 
including the duty and cost to defend, hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant's 
negligence. It is further specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided 
herein constitutes the Consultant's waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, 
solely for the purposes of this indemnification. This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the 
parties. The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

13. Insurance. 
The Contractor shall provide proof to the City that it and its subcontractors are insured 

under professional liability insurance policies covering the work within the scope of this agreement, 
in such form and amounts ($2 Million) as are acceptable to the City. 

The Contractor shall provide proof to the City that it is insured under automobile and 
vehicle liability insurance covering claims for injuries to members of the public and/or damages to 
property of others arising from use of motor vehicles, including onsite and offsite operations, and 
owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles, and general comprehensive liability insurance covering the 
work within the scope of this agreement, in such form and with policy limits in such amounts ($2 
Million) as are acceptable to the City. 

The Contractor agrees to name the City as an additional insured when obtaining liability 
insurance and to provide a Certificate of Insurance to this effect. 

14. Employment Security. 
The Contractor shall comply with all employment security laws of the State of Washington, 

and shall timely make all required payments in connection therewith. 

2016-PS-08 Transpo Group Prof Sys Agreement Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 52 of 351



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 4 of 5 

15. Amendments. 
This Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended except by an instrument in 

writing executed by the parties hereto. Any changes in the scope of work or compensation shall be 
mutually agreed upon between the City and the Contractor and shall be incorporated in written 
amendments to this Agreement. 

16. Scope of Agreement. 
This Agreement incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understanding between the 

parties hereto which are merged into this written agreement. No prior agreement or prior 
understanding, verbal or otherwise, of the parties or their agents shall be valid or enforceable unless 
set forth in this Agreement or written amendment hereto. 

17. Ratification. 
Acts taken pursuant to this Agreement but prior to its effective date are hereby ratified and 

confirmed. 

18. Assignability. 
This agreement is not assignable by either party, without written consent of the other party. 

19. Notices. 
Any notice given in connection with this agreement shall be given in writing and shall be 

delivered either by hand to the party or by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the party at the 
party's address stated herein. Any party may change its address stated herein by giving notice of the 
change in accordance with this paragraph. 

20. Choice of Law/Venue. 
Any dispute under this agreement or related to this agreement shall be decided in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Washington. Venue for any court proceeding arising under or related 
to this agreement shall be in Skagit County Superior Court. 

21. Attorneys Fees. 
The prevailing party in any litigation of any dispute arising out of this agreement shall be 

entitled to its actual attorneys fees incurred and all costs of such litigation (including expert witness 
fees) in addition to any costs otherwise taxable by statute or court rule. 

22. Non-exclusive Agreement. 
This agreement shall not prevent the City of Sedro-Woolley from entering into a contract 

with another person or firm for similar services. 

23. MRSC Roster Registration. 
The Contractor shall register or maintain registration on the MRSC Consultant Roster. 

24. Washington State Department of Retirement Systems. 
Have you retired under the 2008 early retirement factors? Yes 	No 	N/A 

25. Debarment. 
Contractor represents and agrees that it is not listed on any state or federal debarment list and 

further agrees that none of its sub-consultants are listed on any state or federal debarment list. 

2016-PS-08 Transpo Group Prof Sys Agreement Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 53 of 351



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 5 of 5 

DATED this 	 day of 	  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
A Washington municipal corporation 

By: 	  
Mayor 

Attest: 

Finance Director 

Approved as to Form: 

City Attorney 

CONTRACTOR: 

Transpo Group USA Incorporated 

By: 	  

2016-PS-08 Transpo Group Prof Sys Agreement 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 54 of 351



EXHIBIT B 
transpooroup it 

`4%,;.7 1-'!..P !Al .O\ CAN A 

Transpo Billing Rate Range Schedule 

Rates are effective June 27, 2015 through June 24, 2016 Updated 0612712015 

Category Billing Rate Range 

Min Max 
Engineer/Planner/Analyst/Principal/Director - Level 7 $190 $250 

Engineer/Planner/Analyst/Proj Adm - Level 6 $175 $205 

Engineer/Planner/Analyst/Proj Adm - Level 5 $145 $180 

Engineer/Planner/Analyst/Proj Adm - Level 4 $110 $150 

Engineer/Planner/Analyst/Proj Mm - Level 3 $95 $130 

Engineer/Planner/Analyst/Proj Adm - Level 2 $90 $110 

Engineer/Planner/Analyst/Proj Adm - Level 1 $60 $95 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 55 of 351



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT No. 2016-PS-09 
(To be used for consultant services excluding engineers and architects) 

This Agreement made and entered into this 1st day of January, 2016 by and between the 
City of Sedro-Woolley, a municipal corporation under the laws of the State of Washington, 
hereinafter referred to as "City" and The Otos Group, LLC, whose address is 4601 Monte Vista 
Drive, Mount Vernon, WA 98273-9153, hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor". 

WHEREAS, the City desires to engage the Contractor to perform certain duties relating to 
professional services, and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has agreed to offer its professional services to perform said 
work, and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has represented and by entering into this Agreement now 
represents that it is fully qualified to perform the work to which it will be assigned in a competent 
and professional manner, to the standards required by City, 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES: 
The City hereby agrees to engage the Contractor and the Contractor hereby agrees to 

perform, in a satisfactory and proper manner, as determined by City, the services hereafter set forth 
in connection with this Agreement: 

1. Scope of Services. 
The Contractor agrees to perform in a satisfactory and proper manner, as determined by the 

City, as design phase services for the Planning and Development of Parks as defined in Exhibit A 
attached hereto that are requested by the City of Sedro-Woolley. 

2. Relationship of Parties. 
The Contractor, its subcontractors, agents and employees are independent Contractors 

performing professional services for City and are not employees of City. The Contractor, its 
subcontractors, agents and employees, shall not, as a result of this Agreement, accrue leave, 
retirement, insurance, bonding or any other benefits afforded to City employees. The contractor, 
subcontractors, agents, and employees shall not have the authority to bind City any way except as 
may be specifically provided herein. 

The Contractor represents that it is customarily engaged in an independently established 
trade, occupation, profession or business of the same nature as that involved in the contract of 
services, and that it maintains a principal place of business other than City's office that is eligible 
for a business deduction under IRS regulations, and that on the effective date of this agreement it 
assumes responsibility for filing, at the next applicable filing period, a schedule of expenses with the 
IRS for the services subject to this agreement, it has established all required tax accounts with state 
government agencies, has a Washington State Uniform Business Identifier number, and is 
maintaining a separate set of books and records reflecting all expenses and income items of its 
business. 

3. Time of Performance. 
The service of the Contractor is to commence 
[ ] on or before 	  
[ X ] as soon as practicable after the execution of this Agreement shall be undertaken so as 

to ensure its expeditious completion in light of the purpose of this Agreement. 
The service of the Contractor is to be completed 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 56 of 351



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 2 of 5 

[ ] not later than 
[ ] pursuant to the schedule set forth on Attachment C, Schedule of Work. 

4. Standard of Care. 
Contractor shall exercise the degree of skill and diligence normally employed by 

professional engineers or consultants performing the same or similar services at the time such 
services are performed. 

5. Delays and Extensions of Time. 
If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of providing services covered by this 

Agreement, by any causes beyond the party's control, the time for performance may be extended by 
such time as shall be mutually agreed upon by Contractor and City and shall be incorporated in a 
written amendment to this Agreement. Any request for an extension of time shall be made in 
writing to the other party. 

6. Compensation and Schedule of Payments. 
City shall pay the Contractor its hourly rates pursuant to the schedule set forth on Exhibit B. 
The Contractor shall be paid monthly on the basis of invoices for compensation earned by 

the Contractor during the billing period, as agreed by the parties. Payment shall be made within ten 
(10) days after approval of the voucher by the City council. 

Cost not to exceed $12,500.00 without prior approval of the City of Supervisor. 

7. Ownership of Records and Documents. 
The written, graphic, mapped, photographic, or visual documents prepared by the Contractor 

under the scope of work of this Agreement are instruments of the Contractor's services for use by 
the City with respect to this project and, unless otherwise provided, shall be deemed the property of 
the City. The City shall be permitted to retain these documents, including reproducible camera-
ready originals of reports, reproduction quality mylars of maps, duplicates of 35 mm slides, and 
copies in the form of computer files, for the City's use. The City shall have unrestricted authority to 
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data, drawings, 
images or other material prepared under this Agreement, provided that the Contractor shall have no 
liability for the use of the Contractor's work product outside of the scope of its intended purpose. 

8. Termination. 
The term of this agreement shall be from the date signed through December 31, 2016. 
A. 	This agreement may be terminated by either party for reasonable cause, upon written 

notice to the other party. Reasonable cause shall include: 
a) Material violation of this agreement. 
b) Failure to maintain professional standards in the performance of services related 

to this agreement. 
B. 	This agreement may be terminated without cause upon thirty (30) days notice by 

either party. 
C. 	Termination of this agreement shall not relieve either party of their obligations under 

this agreement which accrues prior to the date of termination, or which, by their nature, is intended 
to survive completed performance of the scope of work, including the obligation of the City to pay 
for competent services performed prior to the date of termination. 

2016-PS-09 The Otos Group LLC Professional Services Agreement 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 57 of 351



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 3 of 5 

9. Evaluation and Compliance with the Law. 
The Contractor agrees to comply with all relevant, federal, state and municipal laws, rules 

and regulations, including laws governing equal employment opportunity, and prevailing or area 
standard wage laws, if applicable. 

10. Joinder in Arbitration Proceedings. 
If the City and any third party agree to binding arbitration as the method of dispute 

resolution between them and their claims or any of them arise out of or are related to Contractor's 
services, Contractor agrees to be joined in such arbitration proceeding as a party and that the 
Arbitrator(s) decision therein shall be final and binding on Contractor and judgment may be entered 
upon it in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 

11. City Business and Occupation License. 
Prior to performing work under this Agreement, Contractor shall secure a City of Sedro-

Woolley Business and Occupation License. 

12. Indemnification. 
The Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold the City harmless from and against any 

claim, damages, losses, liability or expense arising out of its breach of contract or negligence. 
The Contractor's duty to indemnify City shall not apply to liability for damages arising out of 

bodily injury to persons or damage caused to property caused by or resulting from the sole 
negligence of City or City 's agents or employees. 

The Contractor's duty to indemnify City for liability for damages arising out of bodily injury 
or damage to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of (a) City or City's 
agents or employees, (b) Contractor and Contractor's agents or employees, or (c) any third parties 
shall apply only to the extent of negligence of Contractor or Contractor's agents or employees. 

The Contractor specifically and expressly waives any immunity that may be granted it under 
the Washington State Industrial Insurance Act. Title 51 RCW, Further, the indemnification 
obligation under this AGREEMENT shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount 
or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable to or for any third party under workers' 
compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts; provided Contractor's 
waiver of immunity by the provisions of this paragraph extends only to claims against Contractor by 
City, and not include, or extend to, any claims by Contractor 's employees directly against 
Contractor. 

The Contractor 's duty to defend, indemnify, and hold City harmless shall include, as to all 
claims, demands, losses, and liabilities to which it applies, City's personnel-related costs, attorneys' 
fees, and all other costs whether or not taxable by statute or court rule. 

13. Insurance. 
The Contractor shall provide proof to the City that it and its subcontractors are insured 

under professional liability insurance policies covering the work within the scope of this agreement, 
in such form and amounts ($1 Million) as are acceptable to the City. 

The Contractor shall provide proof to the City that it is insured under automobile and 
vehicle liability insurance covering claims for injuries to members of the public and/or damages to 
property of others arising from use of motor vehicles, including onsite and offsite operations, and 
owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles, and general comprehensive liability insurance covering the 
work within the scope of this agreement, in such form and with policy limits in such amounts ($1 
Million) as are acceptable to the City. 

2016-PS-09 The Otos Group LLC Professional Services Agreement Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 58 of 351



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 4 of 5 

The Contractor agrees to name the City as an additional insured when obtaining liability 
insurance and to provide a Certificate of Insurance to this effect. 

14. Employment Security. 
The Contractor shall comply with all employment security laws of the State of Washington, 

and shall timely make all required payments in connection therewith. 

15. Amendments. 
This Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended except by an instrument in 

writing executed by the parties hereto. Any changes in the scope of work or compensation shall be 
mutually agreed upon between the City and the Contractor and shall be incorporated in written 
amendments to this Agreement. 

16. Scope of Agreement. 
This Agreement incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understanding between the 

parties hereto which are merged into this written agreement. No prior agreement or prior 
understanding, verbal or otherwise, of the parties or their agents shall be valid or enforceable unless 
set forth in this Agreement or written amendment hereto. 

17. Ratification. 
Acts taken pursuant to this Agreement but prior to its effective date are hereby ratified and 

confirmed. 

18. Assignability. 
This agreement is not assignable by either party, without written consent of the other party. 

19. Notices. 
Any notice given in connection with this agreement shall be given in writing and shall be 

delivered either by hand to the party or by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the party at the 
party's address stated herein. Any party may change its address stated herein by giving notice of the 
change in accordance with this paragraph. 

20. Choice of Law/Venue. 
Any dispute under this agreement or related to this agreement shall be decided in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Washington. Venue for any court proceeding arising under or related 
to this agreement shall be in Skagit County Superior Court. 

21. Attorneys Fees. 
The prevailing party in any litigation of any dispute arising out of this agreement shall be 

entitled to its actual attorneys fees incurred and all costs of such litigation (including expert witness 
fees) in addition to any costs otherwise taxable by statute or court rule. 

22. Non-exclusive Agreement. 
This agreement shall not prevent the City of Sedro-Woolley from entering into a contract 

with another person or firm for similar services_ 

23. MRSC Roster Registration. 
The Contractor shall register or maintain registration on the MRSC Consultant Roster. 

2016-PS-09 The Otos Group LLC Professional Services Agreement 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 59 of 351



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 5 of 5 

24. Washington State Department of Retirement Systems. 
Have you retired under the 2008 early retirement factors? Yes 	No 	N/A 

25. Debarment. 
Contractor represents and agrees that it is not listed on any state or federal debarment list and 

further agrees that none of its sub-consultants are listed on any state or federal debarment list. 

DATED this 	day of 	 , 2016. 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
A Washington municipal corporation 

By: 
Mayor 

Attest: 

Finance Director 

Approved as to Form: 

City Attorney 

CONTRACTOR: 

The Otos Group, LLC 

By: 	  

2016-PS-09 The Otos Group LLC Professional Services Agreement 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 60 of 351



EXHIBIT "A"  

Scope of Services 

The Otos Group, LLC (Contractor) will provide services related to the planning and 
development of Parks. Tasks may include, but are not limited to the 
following: planning and projects, in fulfilling the objectives of the Sedro Woolley 
Parks and Recreation Comprehensive Plan. 

Services include: 

1. Spray Park Design (with Vendor(s)) and Community Meeting 
2. Review possible sites to locate spray/splash park 
3. Work with SW staff in preparing pre-grant application for RCO (Evaluation 

Questions) 
4. Other on-call park planning related to City Parks 

Tasks assigned under this agreement Do Not include full graphic design. SW will 
contract with a licensed graphic designer or landscape architect to work in 
conjunction with contractor/staff for this project. 

EXHIBIT "B" 

COMPENSATION 

City agrees to compensate Contractor at the hourly rate of $90.00 plus expenses and not to 
exceed a contract maximum of $12,500.00. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 61 of 351



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT No. 2016-PS-10 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 1st day of January, 2016, by and between the 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington 
(hereinafter referred to as the "CITY"), and SCOTT THOMAS, address 801 Apache Drive, 
Mount Vernon, WA 98273 (hereinafter referred to as the CONSULTANT). 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Ordinance 1607-08 establishing the office of the Sedro-
Woolley Hearing Examiner and qualifications for that office; and, 

WHEREAS, the City desires to engage a professional skilled in land-use law, to serve as the 
City's hearing examiner; and, 

WHEREAS, SCOTT THOMAS, ESQ., (hereinafter referred to as the "HEARING 
EXAMINER"); will perform Hearing Examiner duties; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and obligations hereinafter set 
forth, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

I. Scope and Schedule of Work. 

A. The HEARING EXAMINER on behalf of the CONSULTANT agrees to perform the 
following professional services for the city: 

(1) To act in the capacity of Hearing Examiner for the City of Sedro-Woolley, as set 
forth in the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code (Ordinance 1607-08 as exists today or 
as hereafter amended; a copy of which is attached and incorporated into this 
Agreement); 

(2) To conduct and hearings related to the City's land use regulatory laws. The 
Hearing Examiner shall receive and examine all admissible evidence regarding 
cases to be heard, conduct public hearings, and submit written Findings, 
Conclusions, Recommendations and Decisions within statutory time limits and as 
specified by the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code; 

(3) To conduct public hearings not related to land use matters, as mutually agreed by 
the CITY and the Hearing Examiner; 

(4) To meet with the City Council, as requested by the Council, to discuss matters 
pertinent to the conduct and practices of the Hearing Examiner. 

B. All obligations and services of the HEARING EXAMINER undertaken pursuant to this 
Agreement on behalf of the CONSULTANT shall be performed diligently and completely 
in accordance with professional standards of conduct and performance, including the 
Cannons of Judicial Conduct promulgated by the Washington Supreme Court. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 62 of 351



C. This Agreement shall terminate on December 31, 2016, unless sooner terminated in 
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, provided that this Agreement may be 
extended for such times and on such terms as the parties mutually agree. Subsequent 
changes to the hourly rate schedule shall be negotiated between the parties at least 45 
days prior to the date of termination. 

H. 	Hearing Examiner's Obligations 
A. The Hearing Examiner at the CONSULTANT'S own expense shall provide at least one 

original report of the Examiner's Findings, Conclusions and Decisions or 
Recommendations (as required by the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code) for each case by 
delivering the same to the Sedro-Woolley Planning Department within the time 
constraints imposed by law. 

III. 	City's obligations. 

A. The City shall schedule all hearings to be heard by the HEARING EXAMINER, and shall 
provide the HEARING EXAMINER with at least 10 days notice of the date of such 
hearings; shall provide to the HEARING EXAMINER written staff reports, maps, and 
such other exhibits as may be required at least seven (7) days prior to hearing; shall 
provide public notice of hearings and decisions as required by law; shall make all the 
required copies of said decisions and correspondence, and mail such decisions and 
correspondence to all parties of record as may be required by law; shall keep and maintain 
all official files and records of the hearings; and shall do all other tasks necessary to 
administratively process said materials. 

B. The City shall furnish a hearing room, speaking system, tapes and tape-recorder; shall 
schedule all necessary meetings before the City Council; prepare draft ordinances for City 
Council review, and approval; and provide a secretary who shall be present at Hearing 
Examiner hearings to tape record the verbatim record, keep notes, letters and list exhibits. 
The City shall also prepare a formal list of exhibits for the final written hearing examiner 
decision or recommendation. 

IV. Compensation and Payment. 

A. The CITY shall pay the CONSULTANT as sole compensation for the services performed 
under this contract, such sums of money as are arrived at by computing the actual number 
of hours expended by the HEARING EXAMINER in the performance of this contract and 
multiplying such total hours by ONE HUNDRED TEN DOLLARS ($110.00). 

B. The CONSULTANT shall be paid monthly, on the basis of invoices submitted. 
The CONSULTANT shall submit an original written invoice, with necessary 
and appropriate documentation, as determined by the CITY, for work completed during 
the previous month. 

C. Payment shall be made through the CITY'S ordinary payment process, and shall be 
considered timely if made within 30 days of receipt of a properly completed invoice. 

2016-PS-10 HEX Professional Services Agreement THOMAS 	 Page 2 of 5 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 63 of 351



D. All payments shall be subject to adjustment for any amounts, upon audit or otherwise, 
determined to have been improperly invoiced. 

E. In the event the CONSULTANT fails to pay any taxes, assessments, penalties, or fees 
imposed by any governmental body, including a court of law, then the CONSULTANT 
authorizes the CITY to deduct and withhold or pay over to the appropriate governmental 
body those unpaid amounts upon demand by the governmental body. It is agreed that this 
provision shall apply to taxes and fees imposed by City ordinance. Any such payments 
shall be deducted from the CONSULTANT'S total compensation. 

III. Termination of Agreement. 

A. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time, with or without cause, by giving 
30 days notice to the other party in writing. In the event of termination, all finished and 
unfinished work prepared by the HEARING EXAMINER pursuant to this Agreement 
shall be provided to the CITY by the CONSULTANT, provided, that the CITY'S 
termination shall be pursuant to Ordinance 1607-08. 

IV. Rights in Data and Publications. 

A. Data which is developed pursuant to this Agreement shall be "works for hire" as defined 
by the U.S. Copyright Act of 1976, as amended, and shall be owned by the CITY. 
Pursuant to U.S.C. § 201, the CITY will be deemed the author of the data and will own 
all copyrights in the data. "Data" shall mean all work products to be provided by the 
HEARING EXAMINER under this Agreement and shall include, but not be limited to, 
draft and final reports, documents surveys, studies, films, tapes and/or sound 
reproductions. 

V. Contract Administration and Management. 

A. The Director of the Planning Department for the CITY shall have primary responsibility 
for administering and approving services to be performed by the HEARING 
EXAMINER, and shall coordinate all communications between the CONSULTANT, 
HEARING EXAMINER and the CITY. 

B. Any and all notices affecting or relative to this Agreement shall be effective if in writing 
and delivered or mailed, postage prepaid, to the respective party being notified at the 
address listed with the signature of this Agreement. 

C. The CONSULTANT, at such times and in such form as the CITY may require, shall 
furnish the CITY with periodic reports pertaining to the work and services undertaken 
pursuant to this Agreement. The CONSULTANT will make available to the CITY all 
work-related accounts, records and documents for inspection, auditing, or evaluation 
during normal business hours in order to assess performance, compliance and/or quality 
assurance under this Agreement. 

2016-PS-1D HEX Professional Services Agreement THOMAS 	 Page 3 of 5 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 64 of 351



D. The CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, 
ordinances, rules and regulations. 

E. The CONSULTANT shall not assign, subcontract, delegate, or transfer any obligation, 
interest or claim to or under this Agreement or for any of the compensation due hereunder 
without the prior written consent of the CITY. 

VI. Independent Contractor Status. 

A. The CONSULTANT is and shall be at all times during the term of this Agreement an 
independent contractor, and not an employee of the CITY. 

B. The CONSULTANT acknowledges that it is responsible for the payment of all charges 
and taxes applicable to the services performed under this Agreement, and the 
CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all applicable laws regarding the reporting of 
income, maintenance of insurance and records, and all other requirements and obligations 
imposed as a result of the CONSULTANT'S status as an independent contractor. If the 
CITY is assessed, liable or responsible in any manner for those charges or taxes, the 
CONSULTANT agrees to hold the CITY harmless from those costs, including attorney's 
fees. 

C. The CONSULTANT shall provide at its sole expense all materials, office space, and 
other necessities to perform its duties under this Agreement, unless otherwise specified in 
writing, provided that the CITY shall provide appropriate chambers for the HEARING 
EXAMINER to conduct hearings. 

D. The CONSULTANT, at its expense, shall obtain and keep in force any and all necessary 
licenses and permits. The CONSULTANT shall obtain a business license under Title V 
of the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code. 

E. This Agreement shall be for the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing contained 
herein shall create a contractual relationship with, or create a cause of action in favor of, a 
third party against either party hereto. 

VII. Non-discrimination. 

The CONSULTANT agrees to take all steps necessary to comply with all federal, state, 
and City laws and policies regarding non-discrimination and equal employment 
opportunities. The CONSULTANT shall not discriminate in any employment action 
because of race, creed, color, national origin, marital status, sex, age, or the presence of 
any sensory, mental or physical handicap. In the event of non-compliance by the 
CONSULTANT with any of the non-discrimination provisions of this Agreement, the 
CITY shall be deemed to have cause to terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part. 

2016-PS-10 HEX Professional Services Agreement THOMAS 	 Page 4 of 5 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 65 of 351



VIII. Conflict of Interest. 

A. It is anticipated that there will be times when the HEARING EXAMINER cannot serve 
because of illness, vacation, conflict of interest, appearance of fairness, or other reasons. 
The City may appoint an examiner pro tern during these periods or any other time deemed 
appropriate by the City. 

B. The CONSULTANT shall comply with all federal, state, and City conflict of interest 
laws, statutes and regulations. 

IX. Interpretation and Venue. 

A. Washington law shall govern the interpretation of this Agreement. Skagit County shall 
be the venue of any arbitration or lawsuit arising out of this Agreement. 

B. If one or more of the clauses of this Agreement is found to be unenforceable, illegal or 
contrary to public policy, the Agreement will remain in full force and effect except for the 
clauses that are unenforceable, illegal or contrary to public policy. 

C. This Agreement constitutes the complete and final agreement of the parties, replaces and 
supersedes all oral and/or written proposals and agreements heretofore made on the 
subject matter, and may be modified only by a writing signed by both parties. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and 
year first written above. 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 	SCOTT THOMAS, ESQ. 

Mayor SCOTT THOMAS, ESQ. 
801 Apache Drive 
Mount Vernon, WA 98273 
Tax ID#: 

   

Finance Director 

Approved as to form: 

City Attorney 

2016-PS-10 HEX Professional Services Agreement THOMAS 	 Page 5 of 5 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 66 of 351



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT No. 2016-PS-11 
(To be used for consultant services excluding engineers and architects) 

This Agreement made and entered into this 1st day of January, 2016 by and between the 
City of Sedro-Woolley, a municipal corporation under the laws of the State of Washington, 
hereinafter referred to as "City" and Guardian Northwest Title & Escrow, whose address is PO 
Box 1667, Mount Vernon, WA 98273 hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor". 

WHEREAS, the City desires to engage the Contractor to perform certain duties relating to 
professional services, and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has agreed to offer its professional services to perform said 
work, and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has represented and by entering into this Agreement now 
represents that it is fully qualified to perform the work to which it will be assigned in a competent 
and professional manner, to the standards required by City, 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES: 
The City hereby agrees to engage the Contractor and the Contractor hereby agrees to 

perform, in a satisfactory and proper manner, as determined by City, the services hereafter set forth 
in connection with this Agreement: 

1. Scope of Services. 
The Contractor agrees to perform in a satisfactory and proper manner, as determined by the 

City, as Title and Escrow Professional Services as assigned by task order that are requested by 
the City of Sedro-Woolley. 

2. Relationship of Parties. 
The Contractor, its subcontractors, agents and employees are independent Contractors 

performing professional services for City and are not employees of City. The Contractor, its 
subcontractors, agents and employees, shall not, as a result of this Agreement, accrue leave, 
retirement, insurance, bonding or any other benefits afforded to City employees. The contractor, 
subcontractors, agents, and employees shall not have the authority to bind City any way except as 
may be specifically provided herein. 

The Contractor represents that it is customarily engaged in an independently established 
trade, occupation, profession or business of the same nature as that involved in the contract of 
services, and that it maintains a principal place of business other than City's office that is eligible 
for a business deduction under IRS regulations, and that on the effective date of this agreement it 
assumes responsibility for filing, at the next applicable filing period, a schedule of expenses with the 
IRS for the services subject to this agreement, it has established all required tax accounts with state 
government agencies, has a Washington State Uniform Business Identifier number, and is 
maintaining a separate set of books and records reflecting all expenses and income items of its 
business. 

3. Time of Performance. 
The service of the Contractor is to commence 
[ ] on or before 	  
[ X ] as soon as practicable after the execution of this Agreement shall be undertaken so as 

to ensure its expeditious completion in light of the purpose of this Agreement. 
The service of the Contractor is to be completed 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 67 of 351



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 2 of 5 

[ ] not later than 	  
[ ] pursuant to the schedule set forth on Attachment C, Schedule of Work. 

4. Standard of Care. 
Contractor shall exercise the degree of skill and diligence normally employed by 

professional engineers or consultants performing the same or similar services at the time such 
services are performed. 

5. Delays and Extensions of Time. 
If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of providing services covered by this 

Agreement, by any causes beyond the party's control, the time for performance may be extended by 
such time as shall be mutually agreed upon by Contractor and City and shall be incorporated in a 
written amendment to this Agreement. Any request for an extension of time shall be made in 
writing to the other party. 

6. Compensation and Schedule of Payments. 
City shall pay the Contractor its hourly rates pursuant to the schedule set forth on Exhibit B. 
The Contractor shall be paid monthly on the basis of invoices for compensation earned by 

the Contractor during the billing period, as agreed by the parties. Payment shall be made within ten 
(10) days after approval of the voucher by the City council. 

Cost not to exceed $5,000.00 without prior approval of the Director of Public Works. 

7. Ownership of Records and Documents. 
The written, graphic, mapped, photographic, or visual documents prepared by the Contractor 

under the scope of work of this Agreement are instruments of the Contractor's services for use by 
the City with respect to this project and, unless otherwise provided, shall be deemed the property of 
the City. The City shall be permitted to retain these documents, including reproducible camera-
ready originals of reports, reproduction quality mylars of maps, duplicates of 35 mm slides, and 
copies in the form of computer files, for the City's use. The City shall have unrestricted authority to 
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data, drawings, 
images or other material prepared under this Agreement, provided that the Contractor shall have no 
liability for the use of the Contractor's work product outside of the scope of its intended purpose. 

8. Termination. 
The term of this agreement shall be from the date signed through December 31, 2016. 
A. 	This agreement may be terminated by either party for reasonable cause, upon written 

notice to the other party. Reasonable cause shall include: 
a) Material violation of this agreement. 
b) Failure to maintain professional standards in the performance of services related 

to this agreement. 
B. 	This agreement may be terminated without cause upon thirty (30) days notice by 

either party. 
C. 	Termination of this agreement shall not relieve either party of their obligations under 

this agreement which accrues prior to the date of termination, or which, by their nature, is intended 
to survive completed performance of the scope of work, including the obligation of the City to pay 
for competent services performed prior to the date of termination. 

2016-PS-11 Guardian NW Title & Escrow Professional Service Agreement 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 68 of 351



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 3 of 5 

9. Evaluation and Compliance with the Law. 
The Contractor agrees to comply with all relevant, federal, state and municipal laws, rules 

and regulations, including laws governing equal employment opportunity, and prevailing or area 
standard wage laws, if applicable. 

10. Joinder in Arbitration Proceedings. 
If the City and any third party agree to binding arbitration as the method of dispute 

resolution between them and their claims or any of them arise out of or are related to Contractor's 
services, Contractor agrees to be joined in such arbitration proceeding as a party and that the 
Arbitrator(s) decision therein shall be final and binding on Contractor and judgment may be entered 
upon it in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 

11. City Business and Occupation License. 
Prior to performing work under this Agreement, Contractor shall secure a City of Sedro-

Woolley Business and Occupation License. 

12. Indemnification. 
The Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold the City harmless from and against any 

claim, damages, losses, liability or expense arising out of its breach of contract or negligence. 
The Contractor's duty to indemnify City shall not apply to liability for damages arising out of 

bodily injury to persons or damage caused to property caused by or resulting from the sole 
negligence of City or City 's agents or employees. 

The Contractor's duty to indemnify City for liability for damages arising out of bodily injury 
or damage to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of (a) City or City's 
agents or employees, (b) Contractor and Contractor's agents or employees, or (c) any third parties 
shall apply only to the extent of negligence of Contractor or Contractor's agents or employees. 

The Contractor specifically and expressly waives any immunity that may be granted it under 
the Washington State Industrial Insurance Act. Title 51 RCW. Further, the indemnification 
obligation under this AGREEMENT shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount 
or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable to or for any third party under workers' 
compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts; provided Contractor's 
waiver of immunity by the provisions of this paragraph extends only to claims against Contractor by 
City, and not include, or extend to, any claims by Contractor 's employees directly against 
Contractor. 

The Contractor 's duty to defend, indemnify, and hold City harmless shall include, as to all 
claims, demands, losses, and liabilities to which it applies, City's personnel-related costs, attorneys' 
fees, and all other costs whether or not taxable by statute or court rule. 

13. Insurance. 
The Contractor shall provide proof to the City that it and its subcontractors are insured 

under professional liability insurance policies covering the work within the scope of this agreement, 
in such form and amounts ($1 Million) as are acceptable to the City. (WAIVED /MF) 

The Contractor shall provide proof to the City that it is insured under automobile and 
vehicle liability insurance covering claims for injuries to members of the public and/or damages to 
property of others arising from use of motor vehicles, including onsite and offsite operations, and 
owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles, and general comprehensive liability insurance covering the 
work within the scope of this agreement, in such form and with policy limits in such amounts ($1 
Million) as are acceptable to the City. (WAIVED /MF) 

2016-PS-11 Guardian NW Title & Escrow Professional Service Agreement 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 69 of 351



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 4 of 5 

The Contractor agrees to name the City as an additional insured when obtaining liability 
insurance and to provide a Certificate of Insurance to this effect. (WAIVED / MF) 

14. Employment Security. 
The Contractor shall comply with all employment security laws of the State of Washington, 

and shall timely make all required payments in connection therewith. 

15. Amendments. 
This Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended except by an instrument in 

writing executed by the parties hereto. Any changes in the scope of work or compensation shall be 
mutually agreed upon between the City and the Contractor and shall be incorporated in written 
amendments to this Agreement. 

16. Scope of Agreement. 
This Agreement incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understanding between the 

parties hereto which are merged into this written agreement. No prior agreement or prior 
understanding, verbal or otherwise, of the parties or their agents shall be valid or enforceable unless 
set forth in this Agreement or written amendment hereto. 

17. Ratification. 
Acts taken pursuant to this Agreement but prior to its effective date are hereby ratified and 

confirmed. 

18. Assignability. 
This agreement is not assignable by either party, without written consent of the other party. 

19. Notices. 
Any notice given in connection with this agreement shall be given in writing and shall be 

delivered either by hand to the party or by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the party at the 
party's address stated herein. Any party may change its address stated herein by giving notice of the 
change in accordance with this paragraph. 

20. Choice of Law/Venue. 
Any dispute under this agreement or related to this agreement shall be decided in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Washington. Venue for any court proceeding arising under or related 
to this agreement shall be in Skagit County Superior Court. 

21. Attorneys Fees. 
The prevailing party in any litigation of any dispute arising out of this agreement shall be 

entitled to its actual attorneys fees incurred and all costs of such litigation (including expert witness 
fees) in addition to any costs otherwise taxable by statute or court rule. 

22. Non-exclusive Agreement. 
This agreement shall not prevent the City of Sedro-Woolley from entering into a contract 

with another person or firm for similar services. 

23. MRSC Roster Registration. 
The Contractor shall register or maintain registration on the MRSC Consultant Roster. 

2016-PS-11 Guardian NW Title & Escrow Professional Service Agreement Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 70 of 351



Professional Services Agreement 
Page 5 of 5 

24. Washington State Department of Retirement Systems. 
Have you retired under the 2008 early retirement factors? Yes No 	N/A 

25. Debarment. 
Contractor represents and agrees that it is not listed on any state or federal debarment list and 

further agrees that none of its sub-consultants are listed on any state or federal debarment list. 

DATED this 

 

day of  	 . 

  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
A Washington municipal corporation 

By: 	  
City Supervisor 

CONTRACTOR: 

Guardian Northwest Title & Escrow 

By: 	  

2016-1'S-11 Guardian NW Title & Escrow Professional Service Agreement 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 71 of 351



EXHIBIT B 
Julie Rosario 

From: 	 John Milnor <John.Milnor@GNWTitle.com > 
Sent: 	 Monday, November 30, 2015 11:45 AM 
To: 	 Julie Rosario 
Subject: 	 RE: 2016 Professional Services Agreement - Need Rate Sheet 

Julie: 

We are good with the 2015 rates. 

John Milnor 

From: Julie Rosario [mailto:irosario@ci.sedro-woolley.wa.us]  
Sent: Monday, November 30, 2015 8:48 AM 

To: John Milnor 

Subject: 2016 Professional Services Agreement - Need Rate Sheet 

Hi John"' 

We are putting together our 2016 On-Call Professional Services Agreements. Can you send us a current rate sheet for 
2016? 

Any questions — let us know. 

Thanks! 

JULIE ROSARIO 
PUBLIC WORKS ASSISTANT 
City of Sedro-Woolley 
325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 
Direct (360) 855-9932 * Fax (360) 855-0733 
irosario@ci.sedro-woolley.wa.us   

1 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 72 of 351



Guardian Northwest Title & Escrow 

By 
ohn S. Manor 

Senior Title Officer 

GUARDIAN NORTHWEST TITLE i& ESCROW ForradyrustAmericunlitie CamponyofSkogit County 

1301-B Riverside Drive I PO Box 1667, Mount Vernon, WA 98273 
Toll Free: 800-869-7045 Phone: 360-424-0115 Fax; 360-424-5885 www.gortitle,com 

EXTIEBIT "B" TO 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT NO. 2012-PS-08 

Guardian Northwest Title & Escrow Company will charge the following rates for its 
work with the City of Sedro-Woolley during 2012 pursuant to the above referenced 
Agreement No. 2012-PS-08: 

1 Requests for title policies, guarantees and cancellations of same will be billed 
pursuant to our state approved rate schedule. 

2 Requests of miscellaneous research projects without a policy or guarantee will 
be billed at $200 for the first hour and $110 for each subsequent hour. 

3 Requests to record documents not associated with a title policy will be billed at 
up to $25 per document plus Skagit County collected excise and recording 
fees. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 73 of 351



SUBJECT: PUBLIC COMMENT 

Name: 
Address: 
Narrative: 

Name: 
Address 
Narrative: 

Name: 
Address: 
Narrative: 

Name: 
Address: 
Narrative: 

Name: 
Address: 
Narrative: 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

DEC 0 9 2015 

7:00 P.M. COUNCILTAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 74 of 351



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

DEC 0 9 2015 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO 	  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-9922 
Fax (360) 855-9923 

Eron Berg 
City Supervisor & Attorney 

MEMO TO: 	City Council 
FROM: 	 Eron Berg 
RE: 	 Moratorium on public uses in the mixed commercial zone 
FOR MEETING ON: December 9, 2015 

ISSUE: 	Should the Council adopt the attached ordinance which includes findings of fact, 
a work plan and extends the moratorium imposed by Ordinance 1827-15 on public uses in the 
mixed commercial zone for six months? 

BACKGROUND: 	Ordinance 1827-15 was adopted on October 28, 2015. Pursuant to state 
law and the terms of the ordinance, a public hearing is required, following which the city council 
may (1) adopt findings of fact and continue the moratorium for up to six months or (2) cancel the 
moratorium. 

RECOMMENDATION: 	Following a public hearing: depending upon whether the council 
desires to extend the moratorium or not, 

If the City Council desires to continue the moratorium and direct the planning 
commission to begin a public review process for council consideration, MOTION to adopt the 
attached ordinance which includes findings of fact, a work plan and extends the moratorium 
imposed by Ordinance 1827-15 on public uses in the mixed commercial zone for six months. 

If the City Council desires to discontinue the moratorium, MOTION to cancel the 
moratorium imposed by Ordinance 1827-15. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 75 of 351



ORDINANCE NO. 	-15 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING FINDINGS OF FACT RATIFYING, 
CONFIRMING AND CONTINUING ORDINANCE 1827-15 ADOPTED 
OCTOBER 28, 2015 PROCLAMING AN EMERGENCY AND PLACING A 
MORATORIUM ON THE PROCESSING OR ACCEPTING OF APPLICATIONS 
FOR PERMITS OR LICENSING AND ESTABLISHMENT FOR ANY BUILDING 
OR LAND USE ACTIVITY INVOLVING PUBLIC USES IN THE MIXED 
COMMERCIAL ZONE. 

WHEREAS, RCW 35A.63.220 and RCW 36.70A.390 authorize Sedro-Woolley to enact 
moratoria to preserve the status quo while new plans or regulations are considered and 
prepared and will not be rendered moot and to hold a public hearing on the moratorium 
within 60 days of the commencement of the moratorium; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Growth Management Act (GMA), Chapter 36.70A RCW, 
the City Council has adopted the City of Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan and Title 
17 SWMC, the City of Sedro-Woolley Zoning Code, for the areas within the City of 
Sedro-Woolley's Urban Growth Area; and 

WHEREAS, the GMA pursuant to RCW 36.70A.390 provides that the City Council may 
adopt a moratorium, interim zoning ordinance and interim official control in addition to 
authorization under RCW 35A.63.220; and 

WHEREAS, on October 28, 2015 at a regularly scheduled City Council meeting, the 
City Council declared an emergency and adopted an immediate moratorium by 
unanimous passage of Ordinance 1827-15 upon the filing of applications for building 
permits or any other development permits, or license or the establishment for any existing 
building or land use activity involving public uses in the mixed commercial zone, 
adopting findings of fact and scheduling the necessary public hearing as required by law; 
and 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to RCW 36.70A.390 and/or RCW 35A.63.220, the City Council 
may renew or continue the moratorium placed into effect through Ordinance 1827-15 for 
one or more six-month periods so long as a subsequent public hearing is held within 60 
days and findings of fact are made to justify its action; and 

WHEREAS, On December 9, 2015, the City Council held a public hearing regarding the 
continuation of the moratorium established by Ordinance 1827-15. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, 
WASHINGTON DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The City Council hereby adopts the recitals set forth above in their entirety 
and makes the following findings: 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 76 of 351



1. SWMC 17.20.010 A. includes permitted uses in the city's mixed commercial zone 
and those uses currently include non-tax generating uses such as "public uses" 
which are uses carried on by a government agency or its authorized 
representative, and 

2. The intent of the mixed commercial zone is to encourage a compatible mix of 
commercial and residential development with standards intended to present an 
attractive and welcoming appearance to visitors at the entrances to the city and at 
selected nodes along major roads; manage traffic impacts; encourage more non-
motorized trips and reduce stormwater runoff; and 

3. The mixed commercial zones are generally located along the city's busiest streets 
and intersections which have been developed to support high intensity retail, and 

4. The city recently completed significant and expensive improvements to the SR 
20/Moore Street corridor including center turn lanes, sidewalks, street frontage 
improvements, intersection improvements and the lowering of the highway under 
the BNSF trestle to support redevelopment in the mixed commercial zone, and 

5. The city council recently rezoned a number of parcels from residential zoning to 
mixed commercial to further support the redevelopment of those properties and 
create a vibrant retail corridor along SR 20/Moore Street; and 

6. All of these improvements were intended to increase business development and 
increase tax revenues to support vital services to the citizens of Sedro-Woolley, 
and 

7. Public uses generally are exempt from property taxes and do not generate any 
retail sales tax; and 

8. Some public uses offer no access or benefits to residents of the City of Sedro-
Woolley; and 

9. Public uses create a demand for services from the city such as law enforcement 
and fire department responses but may not contribute to the costs of those 
services; and 

10. The city council finds that allowing for unfettered public uses in the mixed 
commercial zone would defeat the improvements, zoning and plans for the vibrant 
retail corridor, and 

11. The city's current zoning regulations do not address the impacts associated with 
public uses which may be detrimental to the community; and 

12. SWMC 17.20.050 requires design review for developments in the mixed 
commercial zone only in cases where the development is subject to environmental 
review; and 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 77 of 351



13. Said developments could have a significant impact on the appearance of the city's 
mixed commercial zone that could adversely impact the community; and 

14. RCW 35A.63.220 and RCW 36.70A.390 authorize cities to adopt moratoria to 
preserve the status quo while new plans or regulations are considered and 
prepared and to hold a public hearing on the moratorium within 60 days of the 
commencement of the moratorium; and 

15. The city council finds that the impacts associated with unplanned and 
uncoordinated public uses in the mixed commercial zone are deleterious to the 
health, safety and welfare of the city, and 

16. The citizens of Sedro-Woolley would be well served if the city more fully 
addressed and understood the potential effects of public uses in the mixed 
commercial zone as well as the limited design review currently required under 
SWMC 17.20.050; and 

17. The city needs time to review existing information on the effects of these 
potential uses and to evaluate where such activities should be permitted and to 
review the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code in a comprehensive fashion to 
determine whether it sufficiently addresses the impacts of such uses, and if not, to 
adopt appropriate regulation; and 

18. RCW 35A.63.220 and RCW 36.70A.390 authorize cities to adopt moratoria to 
preserve the status quo while new plans or regulations are considered and 
prepared and to hold a public hearing on the moratorium within 60 days of the 
commencement of the moratorium and that the city has adopted such emergency 
ordinance on October 28, 2015 by adoption of Ordinance 1827-15 and has held a 
public hearing on its continuance on December 9, 2015 at a regularly scheduled 
hearing; and 

19. The citizens of Sedro-Woolley would be well served if the city more fully 
addressed and understood the potential effects of these potential uses upon 
neighboring properties and the community as a whole; and 

20. The city utilized the State Attorney General Advisory Memorandum: Avoiding 
Unconstitutional Takings of Private Property for evaluating constitutional issues, 
in conjunction with and to inform its review of the Ordinance. The city has 
utilized the process, a process protected under Attorney-Client privilege pursuant 
to law including RCW 36.70A.370(4), with the City Attorney's Office which has 
reviewed the Advisory Memorandum has discussed this Memorandum, including 
the "warning signals' identified in the Memorandum, with decisions makers, and 
conducted an evaluation of all constitutional provisions potentially at issue and 
advised of the genuine legal risks, if any, with the adoption of this Ordinance to 
assure that the proposed regulatory or administrative actions did not result in an 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 78 of 351



unconstitutional taking of private property, consistent with RCW 36.70A.370(2); 
and 

21. The city council finds that an emergency exists within the city, and that imposing 
a moratorium and barring the acceptance of all applications for and the issuance 
of business licenses or land use/development approvals/permits under the Sedro-
Woolley Municipal Code for public uses in the mixed commercial zone is 
necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety and 
welfare and for the support of city government and its existing institutions until 
additional review has been completed and any necessary code revisions have been 
adopted by the city council; and 

22. The immediate enactment of a moratorium on the acceptance or processing of 
applications for building or land use activities involving public uses within the 
mixed commercial zone is necessary to protect the public health, safety, or 
welfare and is a legitimate exercise of the city's police power. 

Section 2. 	That the City Council hereby ratifies, continues and renews the 
moratorium adopted through Ordinance 1827-15 for a six month period or at the time that 
the City's comprehensive review and possible amendment/adoption of regulations have 
been completed, whichever is sooner. The City Council shall make this decision to 
terminate the moratorium by ordinance, and termination shall not otherwise be presumed 
to have occurred. The City shall hold all necessary public hearings and adopt new 
findings as required under RCW 35A.63.220 and RCW 36.70A.390 if necessary and 
justified to continue the imposition of Ordinance 1827-15 until the City's review has 
been completed. 

Section 3. 	The City Council hereby adopts a work plan, which includes public 
engagement and opportunity to participate as follows: 

December 15, 2015 

January 19, 2016 
February 16, 2016 

March 9, 2016 
March 23, 2016 

Forward moratorium to Planning Commission for initial 
reading 
Planning Commission discussion and direction to staff 
Planning Commission public hearing and recommendation 
to City Council 
First reading at City Council 
Second reading and possible action by City Council 

Section 4. 	This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon passage by the City 
Council. 

Section 5. 	If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance should be held 
to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality 'shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, 
sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 79 of 351



PASSED by majority vote of the members of the Sedro-Woolley City Council this 9th  
day of December, 2015, and signed in authentication of its passage this 9th  day of 
December, 2015. 

By 	  
MIKE ANDERSON, Mayor 

Attest: 
PATSY NELSON, Finance Director 

Approved as to form: 

ERON BERG, City Attorney 

Published: 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 80 of 351



MEMO: 
To: 

From: 

Date: 

City Council 
Mayor Anderson 

Jana Hanson 
Planning Consultant 

December 9, 2015 

2ND READING 
OLD BUSINESS 

Subject: Proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Subarea Plan for the Center for 
Innovation and Technology — Second Read 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

DEC 0 9 2015 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL )1.1.AMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

Building and Planning Departments 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

ISSUE 

The City of Sedro-Woolley, Skagit County and the Port of Skagit have worked in cooperation to 
develop a subarea plan for the revitalization of the Northern State Campus, now named the Center 
for Innovation and Technology (the Center). A Planned Action Environmental Impact Statement 
(EIS) was completed to study the impacts of future development at the Centre and set the stage 
for planned action activities. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION I HISTORY 

The City, the Port of Skagit and Skagit County have successfully completed a robust planning 
process for the Center for Innovation and Technology (the Center), which will result in the adoption 
of a Subarea Plan and Planned Action Ordinance. The plans and uses envisioned for the site 
include research & development facilities, manufacturing, hospitality and general commercial uses. 

In order to support future redevelopment activities, a Planned Action Environmental Impact 
Statement (EIS) was utilized in accordance with RCW 43.21C.440 and WAC 197-11-164 the 
purpose of which is to emphasize quality environmental review of early planning efforts and early 
public input to shape decisions. The EIS studied elements of the human and physical environment 
and identified impacts associated with future development as envisioned within the Subarea Plan. 
The mitigation measures for impacts associated with future development were incorporated into 
conditions along with elements from the adopted Subarea Plan. These conditions are outlined in the 
Planned Action Ordinance which will be considered by the City Council for final action. 

Before the City Council for consideration and action is the Center for Innovation and Technology 
Subarea Plan. The Subarea Plan is a policy document which will guide future development at the 
Center through the adopted policies, goals and objectives contained within. The Subarea Plan, 
once adopted, will reside within the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan under the Land Use 
Element. Also for Council consideration, is Attachment 3, a memo prepared by Maul Foster Alongi 
which lists the public comments and responses to those comments which were received during the 
public comment period on the Draft Subarea Plan. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 81 of 351



Council reviewed the attached materials at their meeting on December 2, 2015. 
Staff recommends amending the Comprehensive Plan and adopting the Center Subarea Plan as 
proposed. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment 1  — Proposed Ordinance No. 	amending the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive 
Plan and adopting the Subarea Plan for the Center for Innovation and Technology 
Attachment 2  — The Center for Innovation and Technology — Subarea Plan 
Attachment 3 — Memo addressing comments received on the Center Subarea Plan during the public 
comment period. These comments and responses should be considered together with the Subarea 
Plan 
Attachment 4  — Planning Commission Findings and Recommendation; Procedural Items 

REQUESTED ACTION 

Council is requested to make the following motion: 
Motion to approve Ordinance No. 	adopting the Center for Innovation and Technology 
Subarea Plan and amending the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 82 of 351



Attachment 1 
Proposed Ordinance Amending the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan 
and Adopting the Center for Innovation and Technology Subarea Plan 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 83 of 351



Ordinance No. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON AMENDING 
THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

ADOPTING A SUBAREA PLAN FOR THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND 
TECHNOLOGY 

WHEREAS, the City of Sedro-Woolley (City) in 1994 adopted the Sedro-Woolley Growth 
Management Comprehensive Plan, and subsequently has reviewed, amended and updated the 
plan in compliance with the State Growth Management Act; and 

WHEREAS, the City, in partnership with the Port of Skagit and Skagit County initiated the 
preparation of a sub-area plan for the redevelopment of The Center for Innovation and 
Technology ( The Center) consistent with the comprehensive plan; and 

WHEREAS, this plan articulates a framework for development of the property over the next 20 
years. It is based on the goals of the local governments and public and provides direction for 
potential investors seeking to develop and or locate within The Center; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Sedro-Woolley established an on-going public participation process in 
accordance with RCW 36.70A.130(2) including the regular Planning Commission meetings and 
Public Meetings and Hearings to discuss the proposed subarea plan; and 

WHEREAS, staff utilized RCW 36.70A.130 (2) (a) (i) and (v) which recognizes exceptions to 
the consideration of amendments more frequently than once a year. The cited RCW sections 
recognize subarea plans and comprehensive plan amendments necessary to enact a planned 
action under RCW 43.21C.440 as exceptions, allowing a jurisdiction to amend its comprehensive 
plan more frequently than once a year. 

WHEREAS, to ensure a robust and transparent public process, a Public Participation Plan 
outlining opportunities for public involvement at the various stages of the Subarea Plan and the 
Planned Action EIS processes was prepared and attached to approved Resolution 913-15; and 

WHEREAS, concurrent with the subarea planning process, the City initiated a Planned Action 
Environmental Impact Statement in accordance with RCW 43.21C.440 and WAC 197-11-164 
the purpose of which is to emphasize quality environmental review of early planning efforts and 
early public input to shape decisions. The basic steps in designating planned action projects are 
to prepare an environmental impact statement (EIS), designate the planned action projects by 
ordinance, and review permit applications for consistency with the designated planned action. 
The intent is to provide more detailed environmental analysis during formulation of planning 
proposals, rather than at the project permit review stage; and 

WHEREAS, the Final EIS was issued on November 16, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the draft subarea plan and amendment to the Comprehensive Plan was submitted to 
the Washington State Department of Commerce for a required 60-day review on September 21, 
2015 without receiving comment; and 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 84 of 351



WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was conducted before the Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission 
on November 17, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed the proposed Subarea Plan as contained in 
this ordinance and has made a recommendation to the City Council to adopt The Center for 
Innovation and Technology Subarea Plan without further amendments; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the interest of the public health, safety and 
welfare to adopt the revisions to the Comprehensive Plan as set forth below; 

NOW THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  The City Council hereby adopts the forgoing as its findings of fact justifying its 
adoption of this Ordinance. 

Section 2.  The Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan, Land Use Element will be amended to 
include The Center of Innovation and Technology Subarea Plan (Exhibit A). 

Section 3.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance should be held to be 
invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, sentence, 
clause or phrase of this ordinance. 

Section 4.  This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after the approval by the City Council 
and publication as provided by law. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 85 of 351



PASSED by majority vote of the members of the Sedro-Woolley City Council this 	 

day of 	 , 2015, and signed in authentication of its passage this 	day of 

	 , 2015. 

Mike Anderson, Mayor 

Attest: 

Patsy Nelson, Finance Director 

Approved as to form: 

Eron Berg, City Attorney 

Published 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 86 of 351



Attachment 2 

The Center for Innovation and Technology Subarea Plan 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 87 of 351



PApartor 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

November 17, 2015 

 

SUBAREA PLAN 
THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 88 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

CONTENTS 

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

1 	INTRODUCTION 
1.1 	LOCATION 

1.2 	HISTORY OF NORTHERN STATE HOSPITAL 

1.3 	LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVOLVEMENT 

1.4 	PLANNING PROCESS 

2 VISION FOR FUTURE USE 
2.1 	REVITALIZE OLMSTED CAMPUS WITH TWENTY-FIRST CENTURY USES 

2.2 	GOALS 

3 EXISTING CONDITIONS ASSESSMENT 

III 

1 
1 

3 

7 

7 

10 
10 

10 

11 
3.1 PROPERTY PROFILE 11 

3.2 ADJACENT LAND USES 11 

3.3 CURRENT LEASES 13 

3.4 EXISTING BUILDINGS 13 

3.5 ARCHAEOLOGICAL RESOURCES 18 

3.6 INFRASTRUCTURE 18 

3.7 NATURAL RESOURCES 23 

4 REAL ESTATE MARKET CONDITIONS 28 
4.1 MARKET CONDITIONS AND TRENDS 28 

4.2 POPULATION AND EMPLOYMENT 28 

4.3 JANICKI BIOENERGY 38 

5 LAND USE REGULATORY FRAMEWORK 39 
5.1 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 39 

5.2 ZONING 40 

6 SUBAREA LAND USE MAP AND POLICIES 41 
6.1 SUBAREA LAND USE MAP 42 

6.2 POLICIES 46 

6.3 DESIGN STANDARDS 48 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 
	

PAGE I 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 89 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

7 IMPLEMENTATION ACTIONS 	 49 
7.1 LAND USE POLICY AND REGULATION 	 49 

7.2 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 	 49 

TABLES 
1 	TENANT SUMMARY 	 13 

2 	SURVEY OF CONDITION OF CONTRIBUTING BUILDINGS 	 16 

3 	SURVEY OF HISTORIC INTEGRITY AND CHARACTER OF CONTRIBUTING BUILDINGS 16 

4 	SKAGIT COUNTY POPULATION TRENDS AND FORECAST 	 28 

5 	SEDRO-WOOLLEY UGA POPULATION FORECAST 	 29 

6 	LAND USE AREAS 	 42 

7 	SITING OF USES 	 44 

FIGURES 
1 	LOCATION MAP 	 2 

2 	HISTORIC SITE PLAN 	 5 

3 	EXISTING LEASES AND COMMITMENTS 	 6 

4 	ZONING 	 12 

5 	BUILDING CONDITION ASSESSMENT 	 15 

6 	HISTORIC INTEGRITY 	 17 

7 	UTILITIES 	 21 

8 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 	 22 

9 	WETLANDS AND STREAMS 	 25 

10 SKAGIT COUNTY AND SEDRO-WOOLLEY POPULATION GROWTH TRENDS 
AND FORECAST 	 29 

11 SKAGIT COUNTY EMPLOYMENT DISTRIBUTION AND MAJOR PRIVATE EMPLOYERS 30 

12 SKAGIT COUNTY EMPLOYMENT AND UNEMPLOYMENT RATE TRENDS 	 31 

13 SKAGIT COUNTY OFFICE DELIVERY TREND 	 32 

14 SKAGIT COUNTY OFFICE PRODUCT DISTRIBUTION MAP 	 33 

15 SKAGIT COUNTY/SEDRO-WOOLLEY OFFICE MARKET FUNDAMENTALS 	 34 

16 SKAGIT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DELIVERY TREND 	 35 

17 SKAGIT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL PRODUCT DISTRIBUTION MAP 	 35 

18 SKAGIT COUNTY/SEDRO-WOOLLEY INDUSTRIAL MARKET FUNDAMENTALS 	36 

19 AERIAL IMAGE OF MCMENAMIN'S EDGEFIELD RESORT 	 37 

20 HIGHER EDUCATION LOCATOR MAP 	 38 

21 SUBAREA LAND USE MAP 	 43 

22 POTENTIAL RECREATIONAL ACCESS MAP 	 45 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 
	

PAGE I! 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 90 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

City of Sedro-Woolley 

Mayor Mike Anderson 

Council Members 

Kevin Loy 

Germaine J. Komegay 

Brenda Kinzer 

Hugh Galbraith 

Rick Lemley 

Brett Sandstri5m 

Keith Wagoner 

City Staff 

Eron Berg, City Supervisor 

John Coleman, Planning Director 

Jana Hanson, Contract Planner 

Skagit County 

Commissioners 

Ron Wesen 

Ken Dahlstedt 

Lisa Janicki (recused) 

Skagit County Staff 

Tim Holloran, County 
Administrator 

Port of Skagit 

Port Commission 

Kevin Ware 

Steven Omdal 

William Shuler 

Port Staff 

Patricia H. Botsford-Martin, 
Executive Director 

Heather Haslip, Planning and 
Environmental Project 
Administrator 

Carl Molesworth, Community 
Outreach Administrator 

Project Manager, Marc Estvold 

Consulting Team 

Maul Foster & Alongi, Inc. 

RMC Architects 

Stephen Day Architecture 

TSI, Inc. 

Widener, LLC 

Heartland, LLC 

Drayton Archaeology 

Materials Testing Consultants, Inc. 

The Port, City, and County would like to thank 
all of the community members who participated in 
this planning process by attending the community 
open house meetings and providing comments. 

The Subarea Plan has been funded in part by an 
Advanced Environmental Permitting Grant from 
the Washington State Department of Commerce 
(AP-15-68610-003). 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 	 PAGE III 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 91 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

1 INTRODUCTION 

The City of Sedro-Woolley (City), Skagit County (County), and Port of Skagit (Port) entered into an 
Interlocal Agreement to promote revitalization of The Center for Innovation and Technology (Center). The 
Center today represents much of the central buildings and surrounding grounds of the former Northern 
State Hospital and the property was commonly known as Northern State. 

This Subarea Plan is intended to provide planning and policy guidance to position the Center to achieve its 
potential for economic development. This Subarea Plan serves as a statement of the City's commitment and 
direction for the Center and as a resource for potential investors, property owners, the community, and 
public agencies. This Subarea Plan supports the City's Comprehensive Plan, while focusing on issues and 
opportunities at a scale that is responsive to the Subarea's specific needs. This Subarea Plan builds on the 
public planning process that resulted in the Northern State Adaptive Re-use Study (2015). 

This Subarea Plan is supported by a Planned Action Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) and Planned 
Action Ordinance. The intent of coordinating the Subarea Plan and Planned Action EIS is to develop a 
long-range plan for redevelopment of the Center and to complete a predevelopment environmental review 
that will identify how to address environmental and community concerns while reducing development 
uncertainty and risk. The Planned Action Ordinance establishes criteria and procedures for administrative 
review of future building permit applications within the Center Subarea. The ordinance references the 
approved Subarea Plan, final EIS, and mitigating conditions. 

1.1 LOCATION 

The Center is located in the northeast corner of the City of Sedro-Woolley (see Figure 1). The 
approximately 225-acre Center includes four tax parcels identified by the County Assessor as (P380607, 
P39356, P100646, and P100632). The Center was within the city's Urban Growth Boundary since 1997. The 
property was annexed into the city which became effective on September 19, 2015. To avoid creating an 
island of unincorporated land, five adjacent residential parcels on the western border were annexed along 
with the Center. However, the Subarea Plan does not include these five residential parcels. The Center is 
bordered on the north, east, and south by the Northern State Recreation Area, a public open space owned 
and managed by Skagit County that was historically associated with the Northern State Hospital. The area 
west of the Center is characterized by residential uses. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 
	

PAGE 1 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 92 of 351



Figure 1 
Location Map 

Center Subarea 

Northern State 
Recreational Area 

Parcel Boundary 

Legend Figure 
Subarea Location 

Sedro-Woolley, Washington 

A.1.1 molocnon obtained ham Earl AneGIS 
Online. parcel, mods ad abeents deb:sate 
obtained tom Skagit Coolly. cily Hob dorsal 
obtained tons Ley o7 Sedro-Woolley 

Prcperty ddress: 
24909 Hub Diet 
&dna-Wad/a. Wasnktplen 

o. PH 3H 2133,  . unw. fr.. foil eelern 
0 	 WO 	1,000 

Feel 

,..e• City Limits 
1.J (Post Annexation) 

Stream 

tg MAUL (OSIER ALONG,  

DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT 
	

PAGE 2 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 93 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

1.2 HISTORY OF NORTHERN STATE HOSPITAL 

The Northern State Hospital was opened in 1912 to provide services for people with mental illnesses and 
disabilities.' The hospital was designed to be a self-sustaining facility and included patient and staff housing, 
a dedicated reservoir, a lumber mill, a quarry, a steam plant, and gardens. Adjacent to the developed campus, 
the hospital also included more than 700 acres of farmland and livestock operation. Designed by renowned 
landscape architects John Charles Olmsted and Frederick Dawson of the Olmsted Brothers firm, the 
campus layout complemented the scenic topography and natural landscapes of the Skagit Valley. 

The original landscape plan divided the campus into terraced sections framed by a series of parallel roads 
that run generally east-west with the overall topography, creating a stepped layout. (See Figure 2). The 
central section of the site contained the major buildings that served the complex, including the buildings 
historically used for the hospital, administration, auditorium, residential patient wards and nurses' buildings. 
The buildings were oriented along a main axis toward the distant views of the mountains. The northern 
section contains the support buildings, including the steam plant, maintenance shops, and (originally) the 
laundry facilities. The agricultural complex, canning operations, orchards, and farmlands were located to the 
east of the central campus. Many of these historic agricultural structures remain today, although they are 
unused. In addition, the site retains a series of rock walls, ponds, altered stream courses, open expanses of 
lawn, and now-mature trees and shrubs that were planted in accordance with the Olmsted Brothers planting 
design and specifications. 

The historic buildings are characterized by Spanish Colonial/Mediterranean Revival elements, including red 
clay tile roofs; cast ornamentation; exterior stucco; copper cupolas, gutters and downspouts; and steel sash 
multi-pane windows. The major buildings on the campus were originally linked with covered walkway 
structures. The architects responsible for the majority of the extant contributing buildings (1912 through the 
1940s) were the firms of Saunders & Lawton; Heath, Gove & Bell; James Taylor, Jr.; Blackwell & Taylor; 
and James W. Carey & Associates. 

The Northern State Hospital closed in 1973, but the property continues to serve as a landmark for the local 
community. In 1975, following the hospital's closure, the developed campus was transferred from the 
Washington State Department of Social and Health Services to the General Services Administration (known 
today as Department of Enterprise Services). The farm operations and adjacent woodlots were transferred 
to the Washington State Department of Natural Resources. In 1990, the Department of Natural Resources 
conveyed the farm and woodlands to the County to create the Northern State Recreation Area. 

The Department of Enterprise Services currently leases buildings and grounds to eight different 
organizations (see Figure 3). Public access to the facility is restricted because of the security and privacy 
needs of some of the current tenants. Despite state and local efforts to recruit users to the facility, it has 
been underutilized since the Northern State Hospital closed. Approximately 60 percent of the buildings on 
the Center are currently occupied. A number of historic structures have been demolished because they fell 
into poor condition during vacancy. In December 2010, the Center was identified as surplus to the needs of 
the state and was considered for sale but no further action was taken related to disposition until the 
Department of Enterprise Services initiated the collaborative planning process in 2013. 

I For a detailed history of Northern State Hospital, see "North Cascades Gateway Center Cultural Resources Assessment," 
prepared by Artifacts Consulting, Inc. in 2008, and "Under the Red Roof: 100 years at Northern State Hospital" by Mary 
McGoffin, 2011. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT 
	

PAGE 3 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 94 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

In 2010, portions of the former Northern State Hospital were listed on the National Register of Historic 
Places. The listing is classified as a district; it includes 276.5 acres of the original 1,086 acres of the original 
facility, including the core hospital buildings, farm-related buildings near Helmick Road, and the Olmsted-
designed landscape (see Figure 3). The listing identifies a total of 83 contributing features, including 56 
contributing buildings. 

Implications of Listing on National Register of Historic Places 

The National Register of Historic Places is the nation's official list of properties recognized for their 
significance in American history, architecture, archaeology, engineering and culture. The National 
Register Program was established by the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 to coordinate and 
support public and private efforts to identify, evaluate, and protect historic and archaeological resources. 
National Register properties include districts, sites, buildings, structures, and objects. They can be 
significant to a local community, a state, a Native American tribe, or the nation as a whole. 

National Register properties are distinguished by having been documented and evaluated according to 
uniform standards. These criteria recognize the accomplishments of all peoples who have contributed to 
the history and heritage of the United States and are designed to help state and local governments, 
federal agencies, and others identify important historic and archeological properties worthy of 
preservation and of consideration in planning and development decisions. listing in the National 
Register, however, does not preclude a private property owner's right to alter, manage, or dispose of 
property. 

Listing in the National Register contributes to preserving historic properties in a number of ways: 

• Recognition that a property is of significance to the nation, the state, or local community 

• Eligibility for federal historic tax credits for income-producing buildings 

• Eligibility for state and federal preservation grants for planning and rehabilitation of buildings 
owned by not-for-profit organizations and local governments 

Listing in the National Register does not 

• Require that properties be maintained, repaired, or restored 

• Require property owners to follow federal preservation standards on their properties unless they 
wish to quality for tax benefits 

Federal and State Historic Preservation Laws 

A suite of federal and state laws have been established to protect historic and cultural resources. Section 
106 of the National Historic Preservation Act requires that any federal agency having direct or indirect 
jurisdiction over a proposed federal or federally assisted undertaking, or issuing licenses or permits, must 
consider the effect of a proposed undertaking on historic properties. 

Executive Order 05-05 requires that all Washington State agencies with capital improvement projects 
integrate the Department of Archaeology & Historic Preservation, the Governor's Office of Indian 
Affairs, and concerned tribes into their capital project planning process in order to protect the public 
interest in historic and cultural sites. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 
	

PAGE 4 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 95 of 351



3rzrznb 	 — 	 ' 

s. 

Erg 

--ss.136°- 
, 

...„...* t• • 

	

..kli 	
i

ll; 

	

-:.- '. 	 .J 	pi; 
,----'—'-',A , ,-...--.--- 

	

-,%. 	1. 
? 	s ,-.,,at, 	•,- !-  

v. 	s: 

In the early 50's, Northern 
Mate HoiPttal had: 

$1,150,000 in payroll 

• 2,qo 	flhts - -• 

AI 415 staff members 

NORTHERN HOSPITAL FOR TB INSANE 

REKSED PRELIMINARY PLAN 
• • 	'"-"T" 	-• 

f 

r 

	 • 
Figure 

Historic Site Plan 

rn"  190,.•'1-• 

Port of Skagit 
SedraWoolley, Washington 

ra 
MAIL FollEllA,Okel 

5.+2'3. I 

SCALE AS NO1ED 

DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

Figure 2 
Historic Site Plan 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT 
	

PAGE 5 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 96 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

TH E CENTER  FOR  INNOVATION AND  TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 97 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

1.3 LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVOLVEMENT 

In response to a long-held perception in the local community that the public asset of the Center has been 
underutilized and to recent concerns about specific redevelopment proposals; the City, County, and Port 
decided to work together to proactively explore a new future for the property. The Department of 
Enterprise Services, manager of the site for Washington State, convened a collaborative stakeholder 
planning process in response to requests from local governments to examine the potential for 
redevelopment of the Northern State campus. The initial meeting of state, local, and tribal government 
agencies was held on November 6, 2013. 

The Department of Enterprise Services established a set of criteria for consideration of a proposal for 
transition and redevelopment of the Center. 

• Address existing site commitments, including existing tenants, current public employees, and current 
uses and conditions such as wetlands, streams, and landscaped areas. 

• Address stewardship and preservation of historic resources, including seeking to appropriately 
protect and maintain the National Register of Historic Places listing. 

• Balance risk and reasonable compensation to the State of Washington. 

• Unify and accommodate community interests and goals. 

• Support or approval from the authorizing environment(s). 

The City, County, and Port entered into an Interlocal Agreement on January 13, 2014, to work together to 
explore their long-range vision for the Center and to assess potential transfer of ownership or control of the 
facility to local government. The Interlocal Agreement was amended in February 27, 2015, to allow the 
continued pursuit of redevelopment of the Center, including annexation of the property into the city, 
preparing a Subarea Plan and Planned Action EIS under the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA), and 
supporting development of the proposed Janicki Bioenergy research and technology center on the Center. 
Janicki Bioenergy has proposed to utilize the Center as a technology innovation center focused on public 
health and sanitation issues in developing and industrialized countries. 

1.4 PLANNING PROCESS 

1,4.1 Adaptive Reuse Study 

This Subarea Plan builds on the Northern State Adaptive Re-use Study prepared by the City, County, and 
Port. The purpose of the Adaptive Re-Use Study was to evaluate options for redevelopment of the Center 
and the potential for transfer of ownership or control from the State of Washington to local governments. 
This study was a component of the broader planning process convened by the Washington State 
Department of Enterprise Services to bring all the key stakeholders around a common table to openly 
discuss opportunities and concerns. The Adaptive Re-Use Study was initiated in the spring of 2014 and 
completed in the spring of 2015. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 
	

PAGE 7 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 98 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

The Adaptive Re-use Study involved the following key elements: 

• Community Involvement 

- Department of Enterprise Stakeholder Group Meeting (April 23, 2014)—Discuss project scope 
and schedule. 

- Community Meeting No. 1 (June 5, 2014)—Review findings of existing conditions assessment 
and solicit ideas and preferences for future uses. 

- Department of Enterprise Stakeholder Group Meeting (September 16, 2014)—Review feedback 
from community, discuss outcomes/definition of success, assess benefits and feasibility of 
future use concepts. 

- Community Meeting No. 2 (September 25, 2014)—Reviewed evaluation of feasibility and 
benefits of future use options and conceptual site plan options. 

- Department of Enterprise Services Stakeholder Group Meeting (December 2, 2014)—Review 
feedback from community, discuss implementation strategies. 

- Joint Meeting of City of Sedro-Woolley Council, Skagit County Commission, and Port of Skagit 
Commission (December 19, 2014) 

- Joint Meeting of City of Sedro-Woolley Council, Skagit County Commission, and Port of Skagit 
Commission (February 27, 2015) 

- Department of Enterprise Services Stakeholder Group Meeting (March 26, 2015). 

• Existing Conditions Assessment 

- Assessment of Existing Buildings 

- Assessment of Critical Areas 

- Assessment of Existing Infrastructure 

• Market Assessment 

• Evaluation of Future Use Options 

• Implementation Strategy 

1.4.2 Subarea Plan 

The City passed Resolution 913-15 on April 8, 2015 stating the intent to collaborate with the Port and the 
County in preparing a Subarea Plan and Planned Action EIS. These two efforts have been coordinated to 
ensure a robust and transparent public planning process and evaluation of the human and physical 
environment in order to help the City identify impacts of development and specific mitigation measures in 
advance of development proposals. 

This Subarea Plan involved more detailed analysis of the natural and built environment and refinement of 
conceptual plan options. The planning process also included further public engagement opportunities: 

• Planning Commission Briefing (March 17, 2015)—Discuss planning process. 

• Planning Commission Briefing (April 21, 2015)—Review existing conditions and conceptual plan 
options. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 
	 PAGE 8 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 99 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

• Presentation to current Center tenants (May 5, 2015). 

• Community Meeting (May 6, 2015)—Review conceptual plan options, intensity of development 
scenarios. 

• Planning Commission Briefing (May 19, 2015)—Review findings of community meeting. 

• Planning Commission Briefing (June 16, 2015)—Review draft Subarea Plan and draft EIS. 

• City Council Briefing (June 24, 2015)—Review draft Subarea Plan and draft EIS. 

• Public Hearing (September 29, 2015)—Formal Review of Draft EIS. 

• Planning Commission Public Hearing (November 17, 2015)—Review draft Subarea Plan 

• City Council Public Hearing—Adopt Subarea Plan (Scheduled for December 9, 2015) 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 
	

PAGE 9 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 100 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

2 VISION FOR FUTURE USE 

2.1 REVITALIZE OLMSTED CAMPUS WITH TWENTY-FIRST CENTURY USES 

The City, County, and Port will promote development of a destination mixed use campus accommodating 
education, research and development, manufacturing, hospitality, and commercial venues, all within the 
historic character and great public spaces of the Center. Successful redevelopment will revitalize the historic 
campus and incorporate new buildings and structures that respect and complement the original Olmsted 
master plan. Public access opportunities will be introduced in appropriate areas of the Center with 
connections to the surrounding county parklands. 

This vision incorporates the opportunity of the proposed Janicki Bioenergy research and technology center, 
but is not dependent on it. The vision has the flexibility and durability to incorporate this opportunity and 
others that may follow. 

2.2 GOALS 

The following goals of the City, County, and Port Interlocal Agreement are incorporated in this Subarea 
Plan: 

A. Encourage the private sector to create and sustain jobs at the Center that will benefit all of Skagit 
County and its citizens and that are compatible with all of the other goals 

B. Continue and promote public access and recreational use of the Center 

C. Protect the environmentally sensitive areas of the Center, in particular Hansen Creek 

D. Acknowledge and protect the historic significance of the Center to the local community, the wider 
region, and the State of Washington 

E. Acknowledge and respect the neighboring Upper Skagit Indian Tribal Nation's interests in the 
Center. 

Trevennen Building-- 
former nurses' quarters 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 
	

PAGE 1 0 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 101 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

3 EXISTING CONDITIONS ASSESSMENT 

The current conditions of the Center were assessed to provide a foundation of information to support 
future use planning. The assessment included review of current land uses, condition of existing buildings, 
extent of infrastructure, and characteristics of natural resources. 

3.1 PROPERTY PROFILE 

The basic identifying information for the Center is summarized below: 

Ownership State of Washington, Department of Enterprise Services 

Parcel Numbers Four parcels: P380607 (Segments 1 and 2), P39356, P100632, P100646 

Size Approximately 225 acres 

Address 7682 Northern State Road, Sedro-Woolley, Washington 

Location Northeastern Sedro-Woolley, bordered by Fruitdale Road (west) and the Northern 
State Recreation Area (north, south, and east) 

Jurisdiction City of Sedro-Woolley 

Zoning Public (P) 

3.2 ADJACENT LAND USES 

The Center is located in the northeast corner of the city limits. Land to the immediate north, east, and west 
of the Center is in the Urban Growth Area (UGA) of the city and remains in County jurisdiction (see Figure 
4). The land is owned by Skagit County and is managed as the Northern State Recreation Area. A master 
plan was prepared for the Northern State Recreation Area in 2010. The Northern State Recreation Area is 
designated under County zoning as Urban Reserve Public Open Space and under the City zoning as Public. 

Southwest of the Center, property within the city boundary is zoned as residential (R-5). A cottage housing 
development has been constructed in this area. West of the Center, property outside the city limit is zoned 
Rural Reserve (RRv) by the County. This area is characterized by large lots and residential homes. 

Property along Fruitdale Road between the Center and State Route (SR) 20 is zoned for residential (R-5 and 
R-7), industrial (I) and mixed commercial (MC) uses. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 
	

PAGE 1 1 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 102 of 351



Source. DOA elesslim eredel obarIned Yom USGS: 
p.m*. county boring, ear math ebrsIned torn Sruge 
Cowes, cry beet, UGA. and Orly camp ebtrinod ham 
Cry or scare-Woosey. 

Wee. 
UGA • urban mourn area 

1=61P 
MAUL FOSTER ALONG! 
p.9/ I Sao 21L11 sums reauloirm.ccen 

In Parcel Bandanna 

§
Cray tune. 

Cray UGA 

Proposed AnnousSon 

SECIRO-WCOLIES ZONFliG 

R-SI Realeer0a1-5 

in-Ti R.sii.num-T 

_ _ p-i SI R esleerela sr 5 

c-.:_. IpUB] NW 

NCI Mired Commermal 

- pi INNstrial 

SKACR COUNTY ZONING 

psitsqtruarc Open Spiro of 
RebbertStaieuide Impmlanec 

prRel Rural Rower. 

19.9-NRLT Agrkuriora I 

LI Sew-Amy Forest HRL 

1111 TURP-OSI Urban Reserve ruble Ow Some 

IC ISSN Suraa-S vele &mum 

EAR] Urban Reserve Re Mr. nLe I 

Legend 

6to 	1,coo 

Feel 

Figure 
Zoning 

Sedro-Woolley, Washington 

DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

Figure 4 
Zoning 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT 
	

PAGE 12 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 103 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

3.3 CURRENT LEASES 

The Department of Enterprise Services manages the Center on behalf of Washington State and leases 
buildings and land to a number of tenants (see Table 1). The Department of Enterprise Services operates 
the central power plant facility and is responsible for maintenance of the facility. The largest tenants within 
the Center are Cascade Job Corps (under contract to the US Department of Labor), Pioneer Human 
Services, and the Washington Military Department. Cumulatively, these organizations currently occupy 
approximately 60 percent of the roughly 560,000 square feet of building space on the Center. 

Table 1 
Tenant Summary 

Tenant 

U.S. Department of Labor— 
Cascade Job Corps 

Area Occupied Uses 

Job training and education: includes 
classrooMs, workshops, dormitory for 

 
students, cafeteria, and gymnasium. 

Altai 

37.5 acres of land 
2.20,960 sq. ft. of leased building 
24,639 sq. ft. of buildings owned by 
Department of Labor 

Pioneer Human Services 90,000 sq. ft. In-patient chemical dependency services. 

Frontier Communications Approx. 800 sq. ft. TelePorn 	niCations swdeh station. 

Pacific Northwest Trail 
Association 

1,476 sq. ft. Office, administrative. 

. Department of Nati.Jral 
Resources 

1,790 sq. ft. Office, administrative. 

North Sound Mental Health 
Administration 

8,900 sq. ft. 
Short-term evaluation and treatment 
services for mental health and chemical 
dependency. 

WaShinglon State Military 
Department 

Approx. .4 acres Maintenance facility 

3.4 EXISTING BUILDINGS 

The former Northern State Hospital site has been recognized by the U.S. Department of the Interior as a 
historic resource of national significance. The landscape of the facility and most of its built features are 
listed individually on the National Register of Historic Places and are collectively listed as a historic district. 
The primary features listed on the National Register include the collection of Spanish Colonial Revival-style 
buildings and the Olmsted Brothers-designed site plan. The 
Northern State site plan is one of the largest landscape designs ever 
realized by the Olmsted Brothers firm. This plan, with its roads, 
paths, terracing, and plantings, provides an important asset in the 
adaptive reuse of the site. 

The existing "contributing" historic buildings at the Center were 
constructed from 1912 through the 1940s, with most of the 
buildings dating from before World War II. The buildings include 
variations on the Spanish Colonial Revival or Mediterranean Revival 

National Historic Register 
Designations 

• Eighty-three features are 
historic and contributing to the 
character of the National 
Register Historic District 

• Ten existing features are 
historic, but non-contributing 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT PAGE 13 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 104 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

styles. Typical elements include red the roofs, with cupolas, wood eaves, copper gutters, downspouts, and 
traditional exterior stucco walls. The structural elements include a mix of reinforced concrete and timber, 
with plastered hollow clay block walls in many of the buildings. 

Additionally, ten buildings are considered historic, but noncontributing. This means that while the structures 
are older than the required 50 years, their design, appearance, and function are not considered to be 
necessary and critical to the historic significance of the facility. 

The historic structures range in size from 200 square feet to over 112,000 square feet, with a wide variety of 
plan types and spaces. The original site plan, including the adjacent historic farm complex and support 
spaces, was designed to be a self-supporting and autonomous complex. This diversity of plan types, from 
multistory residential buildings, to large assembly spaces, to large-scale institutional spaces designed around 
courtyards, all provide for a broad range of possible activities, uses, and users in a network of 
interconnected historic structures and landscape features. 

There were several buildings constructed after the Northern State Hospital closed to meet contemporary 
needs. These structures do not match the architecture or the historic character of the district and include the 
recreation facility, the Douglas Building, the RSN Building, and the Washington Military Department 
facility. 

3.4.1 Condition of Buildings 

A preliminary building survey was conducted to examine the overall condition of the buildings and to 
evaluate their functional and historic integrity. The project team architects conducted walk-through visual 
surveys of 28 key historic buildings located on the Center in May and June of 2014. The 28 buildings 
surveyed have a combined floor area of approximately 371,654 square feet. A generalized rating system was 
developed to assess the relative overall conditions of these 28 key buildings. 

The building conditions survey concentrated on the general condition of each building's structure, roof, 
walls, and interior partition framing. Three of the buildings were selected for further analysis as 
representative building types and conditions that are repeated on the Center. These buildings are: 

• Administration Building (Denny), the largest building in the district, with a complex mix of spaces, 
constructed in 1912 

• Nurses Hall No. 2 (Trevennen), a special-purpose residential building with distinctive features, 
constructed in 1938 

• Ward M, L, Attic (Whitewater), representative of several residential buildings in the district, 
constructed in 1933 

The results of the building condition survey are presented in Figure 5 and Table 2. 

Example photographs of building conditions. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT 
	

PAGE 14 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 105 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA  PLAN  

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST SUBAREA  PLAN 2 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 106 of 351



Rating 
Number of 
Buildings 

Floor Area 
(Square Feet) 

of Total Area 

Poor 

   

600 

 

1% 

       

Par 111111111111113311111111•1111111111111111111B2111111111111111 

 

Good/Very Good 

 

17 322,359 86% 

    

0 

 

0% 

Rating 
Floor Area 

(Square Feet) 
% of Total Area Number of Buildings 

1,320 

Fdir 

3% 

1111111112111111111 
Poor 

11111•11111111311111111111111 4t1.,084 

Good/Very Good 14 78% 296,425 

' 36stiat. -  

DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

Table 2 
Survey of Condition of Contributing Buildings 

Preliminary cost forecasts for renovation of historic, contributing buildings indicate that adaptive re-use of 
the buildings presents a significant financial challenge to redevelopment. It is estimated that renovation 
costs for historic buildings are likely to be roughly twice the cost of construction of new buildings that 
would serve similar functions. The National Historic District designation creates the opportunity to obtain 
federal historic tax credits to partially offset that incremental cost. However, the magnitude of the cost of 
the "preservation margin" (the difference between cost of rehabilitation and new construction) makes 
private financing of renovation under current market lease rates in Sedro-Woolley infeasible. Successful 
renovation of the historic buildings will likely require public financial support as well as investment from a 
private owner-user that sees a unique value in the campus, rather than a typical private developer. Without 
creation of a "preservation margin fund" it is unlikely that all historic buildings will be rehabilitated and 
some may ultimately be demolished. 

3.4.2 Historic Integrity and Character 

The walk-through visual survey regarding historic integrity and character focused on the degree to which 
each building had retained its character-defining historic elements, its historic plan elements, its original 
form, and any character-defining historic spaces. The degree to which historic structures have retained their 
integrity and character is a key element in determining whether they are "contributing" to the historic 
character of the overall historic district and are therefore eligible for the federal historic tax credit program. 
The results of the historic integrity and character survey are summarized in Figure 6 and Table 3. 

Table 3 
Survey of Historic Integrity and Character of Contributing Buildings 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT 
	

PAGE 1 6 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 107 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA  PLAN 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA  PLAN  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 108 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

3.5 ARCHAEOLOGICAL RESOURCES 

The Center area is situated in the lower Skagit River Valley, an area populated by two different bands of 
Skagit peoples: the Kikiallus and Nookachamps. An archaeological assessment of the Center was conducted 
as part of the companion EIS. The findings of the archaeological study axe summarized in this section and 
the full report included in the EIS. The archaeological assessment consisted of background research, field 
investigation, and preparation of a report. Background review determined the project area to be located in 
an area of moderate probability for buried archaeology. In addition to the Cultural Resource Assessment 
conducted in 2008, 14 cultural resource studies were previously conducted within 1 mile of the Center. No 
other archaeological site has been previously recorded on, or within a 1-mile radius of the Center. Field 
investigation consisted of a pedestrian survey, monitoring of geotechnical borings, and excavating shovel 
probes. No evidence of archaeological deposits and/or materials was encountered in the assessment. 

3.6 INFRASTRUCTURE 

The Center is served by water, sewer, power, and transportation infrastructure. Utilization of these existing 
systems may represent a potential cost savings for adaptive reuse of the Center relative to construction on 
an undeveloped site. However, the age of facilities and the centralized structure of utilities, including steam 
heating from the power plant, also presents unique and potentially significant challenges to site ownership 
and operation. The characteristics of these infrastructure systems are described briefly in this section. A 
more detailed analysis of the condition and capacity of these systems will be needed when a specific 
development project is proposed in order to understand whether improvements would be needed. 

3.6.1 Access and Circulation 

The west side of the Center is accessed from Fruitdale Road north of SR 20. A traffic signal was recently 
installed at the intersection of Fruitdale Road and SR 20. Fruitdale Road currently is the primary (and only) 
vehicle entrance to the Center, Fruitdale Road is classified as a minor collector at SR 20, transitioning to a 
local access road at Thompson Drive. Fruitdale Road has been temporarily closed north of the Center 
entrance because of excessive settlement in the southbound lane According to the Skagit County 2003 
Transportation System Plan; this segment of road typically receives around 220 cars per day. Internal 
circulation within the Center is provided by internal privately owned and maintained roads consisting of the 
Northern State Road, Thompson Drive, and Hub Road. These internal loops are part of the original 
Olmsted landscape/site design. Historically, Northern State Hospital was accessed by vehicular traffic from 
Helmick Road. Present day Fruitdale Road was a railroad line at the time with a rail spur serving the hospital 
at the northwest corner of the site to a depot located behind the power plant building. 

Public transportation to the Center today is provided by Skagit Transit via bus route 300. Service runs every 
60 minutes on weekdays between 8 a.m. and 9 p.m. and weekends between 9 a.m. and 6 p.m. 

Pedestrian access to the facility is available both through trails in the adjacent Skagit County Northern State 
Recreation Area and through sidewalks adjacent to public rights of way to the west. However public access 
within the Center is currently restricted because of the security and privacy needs of existing tenants. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 
	

PAGE 18 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 109 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

3.6.2 Potable Wafer 

Potable water is provided to the Center by the Skagit Public Utility District (PUD). The PUD has over 
31 million gallons of storage volume and provides 9 million gallons of water to approximately 65,000 people 
every day. The source of potable water is the Judy Reservoir Water Treatment Plant. Based on information 
provided by the PUD, current water sources are sufficient to provide adequate supply and pressure year-
round. With annexation, the Center will no longer be charged an additional premium for potable water. The 
water main enters the site near the intersection of Fruitdale Road and Northern State Road as a 12-inch-
diameter ductile iron class 50 pipe (see Figure 7). The main is reduced to an 8-inch diameter ductile iron 
main pipe that loops through the site and provides potable water to the Center. The main lines within the 
Center are owned by the PUD. Although the water main is predominantly ductile iron pipe, there are 
isolated sections of polyvinyl chloride C-900, cast iron, and steel pipe. Water is provided to individual 
buildings through services in a variety of materials, such as polyethylene, galvanized, and copper pipe, and 
ranging in size from 5/8-inch to 2-inches in diameter. According to PUD records, there are 22 fire hydrants 
within the Center. Hydraulic modeling of systems will be required by the City for all new development to 
determine if required fire protection can be supplied, or if pipe upgrades are required. 

3.6.3 Sewer System 

Sanitary sewer service is provided by the City of Sedro-Woolley Wastewater Treatment Facility. The 
wastewater treatment facility is currently at approximately 49 percent of its capacity, with an annual average 
discharge of 1.24 million gallons per day. A City sewer main serves the Center with a pipe that runs through 
an easement across the county-owned Northern State Recreation Area (see Figure 7). The sewer line enters 
the recreation area from a location east of Fruitdale Road, just north of McGarigle Road. From there the 
line travels northeasterly. The line has a side sewer which extends northerly into the Center. In 2008, this 
side sewer line was updated with a new cured-in-place 15-inch diameter concrete sewer pipe 

Internally, gravity sewers make up much of the on-site system, although some buildings may have pumps. 
Much of the original sewer system consisted of brick and mortar manholes, concrete pipe sewer main, and 
clay tile pipe sewer service lines. Improvements to the sewer system, including replacement of infrastructure 
and lining of existing pipes, have been completed sometime within the last 15 years to address issues with 
groundwater infiltration, however as-built drawings have not been available to confirm these changes. Sewer 
service to many of the unoccupied buildings has been decommissioned, and abandoned sewer infrastructure 
remains in place. The main pipe flows to the southern end of the Center where total sewer usage was 
determined by a sewer flow meter station. This flow meter station may no longer be operating. 

3.6.4 Stormwater 

Assessment of the existing stormwater system is based largely on the Northern State Multi-Service Center 
Utilities Master Plan'. Based on the limited documentation available, it appears that the storm system has 
been pieced together with repairs, replacements, and improvements through the years. While it seems fairly 
certain that upgrades and improvements have taken place in the two decades since the utility master plan 
report was written, lack of documentation has made it difficult to determine the extent of the improvements 
actually constructed. 

2  Skagit Surveyors. 1998. Northern State multi-service center utilities master plan report. Skagit Surveyors & Engineers. December 
21 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT 
	 PAGE 19 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 110 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

Stormwater is captured by catch basins distributed across the site and conveyed through a network of high-
density polyethylene pipes (10-, 12-, 18-, 21-, and 24-inch-diameter), polyvinyl chloride pipes (8- and 32-
inch-diameter), 4- to 15-inch-diameter reinforced concrete pipe, 6- to 12-inch-diameter clay pipe, and swales 
(see Figure 8). Roof drains collect stormwater from the buildings and are piped directly underground to the 
storm-conveyance pipes. Stormwater collected from the developed area north of Northern State Road is 
conveyed through pipes to drainage pond I, located on the northeastern corner of the Center. An oil/water 
separator, along with an emergency overflow, is located at the facility which discharges to Hansen Creek. 
Stormwater collected across the western half of the Center between Northern State Road and Thompson 
Drive is drained into a quality-control pond. An outflow from this pond is provided through a gravelly sand 
berm into the unnamed stream east of the Department of Enterprise Services administrative buildings. 
Stormwater from the eastern half of the central area, which includes recreation building, Gray, Fraser, and 
RSN buildings, is conveyed to a stormwater pipe that discharges to Hansen Creek, without a detention 
facility. Stormwater runoff from the developed area around the National Guard Armory is collected by 
catch basins and conveyed via 6- to 12-inch-diameter polyvinyl chloride and corrugated metal pipes to a 
pond east of the armory. The Utilities Master Plan Report states that the pond "is pumped into an irrigation 
field to the south," but the current status of this system is unknown. Improvements to the storm system 
have been made over the past 15 years; however, they have not been well documented and a video 
inspection is needed to determine the condition and functionality of the storm pipes. 

3.6.5 Power 

Electrical power is supplied to the Center by Puget Sound Energy via a 12,470-volt underground feeder line, 
which is reduced to 2,400 volts for distribution. There appears to be sufficient electrical capacity to support 
more intensive development on the Center. 

A regional natural gas distribution line, owned by Williams NW, traverses the northwest corner of the 
Center property within a 75 foot wide easement. Local service to the Center is supplied however by Cascade 
Natural Gas via a 2 inch diameter line. 

The power plant building on the Center provides steam heating to a number of buildings on the Center. 
There are four gas-fired boilers at the plant. The central steam plant and distribution system are in good 
condition and have been well maintained. The condition of heating systems in the buildings varies. 

3.6.6 Telecommunications 

Frontier Communications currently has fiber-optic and copper lines available to the site for 
telecommunications service. A 24-fiber cable and a 300-pair copper line enter the site at the intersection of 
Fruitdale Road and Thompson Drive. It is assumed that most of the buildings that are currently occupied 
have a connection to some form of telecommunications for Internet and telephone service. While the 
copper line is best suited for residential use and digital subscriber line with internet service up to 
20 megabytes per second, the existing fiber line has capacity to serve new commercial and industrial 
buildings. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 
	

PAGE 20 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 111 of 351



Figure 7 
Utilities 

Utilities 
1::1 Center Subarea 

BUlding Footprint 

City Unite 
k—A (Post Annexation) 

,, C.uGA 

Contours 

10 foot 

50 foot 

Sedro-Woolley, Washington 

0 	259 	500 

fnl 

Legend 

Utilities 

Gas Lines 

/N../ Power lines 

/\./ Sewer Lines 

Water Pipes 

d• 	Cascade Natural Gas Pipeline 

.0%., Williams NW Pipeline 

&Wren: Gomm rs snd Ho9s5on n5o9olotro!ned born U-195: 
patois End roods stontied bon, sandit County: cry 
bogs and UGA obtained Iron Clty of Sookr2WooloY 

Heim 
UMW, meth was 

AUL FOSTER AL.ONGI 
o 97,  54,  2129 verAvrtroulloilea.corn 

DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

1HE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT 
	

PAGE 21 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 112 of 351



Same. Contact and ekvabon model canned tam USGS. 
weals and mods *oared torn Magi tau*, sty 
lays and UGA Waned hem [ay enact ...Wool sy. 

Legend 

C:. ■ Canis, Subarea 	Buikling Footprint 

..04 City Limits 	MUMPS 
■..1 Most Annesabon) 

Sloirrevater Lines 

0 City UGA 
01 DelentIOn Basin 

Contours 

foot 

50 foot 

Stormwater Management 
Notes: 
EGGS Innen grooth area 

”. MAUL I OSTER ALONG 
n. 971 Sss 213? I v, vA•metp1011e,  cart  

 

Sedro-Wooliey, Washington 

0 	 150 	 500 #04... 

Feel 

 

DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

Figure 8 
Stormwater Management 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT 
	

PAGE 22 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 113 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

3.7 NATURAL RESOURCES 

A reconnaissance study of the Center was conducted to identify the presence and approximate locations of 
regulated critical areas, including wetlands, streams, floodplains, and geologic hazards. The reconnaissance 
study included review of available maps and data from the Washington State Department of Natural 
Resources, Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife's Salmonscape Web site, National Wetland 
Inventory (NWI), Skagit County Critical Areas maps, and Natural Resource Conservation Service soil maps. 
This research was augmented by field investigation to confirm findings, approximate the boundaries of 
wetlands and prepare preliminary wetland ratings. 

3.7.1 Streams 

Three streams flow through the Center, all of which are classified as Type F, fish-bearing streams (see 
Figure 9). Hansen Creek flows along the northern and eastern Center boundaries. Brickyard Creek flows 
through the western and southwestern portion of the Center. A third stream (designated for the study as 
Stream 1) was observed in the field to flow under Thompson Drive. County Critical Area maps and 
Salmonscape depict this stream as farther to the south. Salmonscape shows documented salmonid use in all 
three streams. Hansen Creek provides documented salmonid spawning and rearing habitat. Hansen Creek 
supports two Endangered Species Act listed salmonids, Chinook and steelhead, in addition to coho, chum, 
and pink salmon.' Hansen Creek has been identified as a 303d list impaired waterbody for fish habitat, 
temperature, fecal coliform, and dissolved oxygen. Salmonscape shows fish barriers classified as unknown 
(unknown if they are a complete blockage) on Brickyard Creek below the ornamental pond and at the 
culvert beneath Northern State Road. Despite these blockages, Brickyard Creek is documented as artificial 
rearing habitat for pink, fall chum, and fall Chinook salmon. Coho presence is assumed in Brickyard Creek. 
Salmonscape shows Stream 1 as having documented coho presence. 

3.7.2 Wetlands 

The NWI maps include four wetlands on the Center. With the exception of the rock outcrop in the 
northwestern corner of the Center, the Natural Resource Conservation Service maps classify most of the 
Center soil as hydric soil types. Field reconnaissance confirmed the presence of the mapped wetlands and a 
full wetland delineation and rating was conducted in the southwest corner of the Center' (see Figure 9). The 
wetland delineation was conducted in an area anticipated for the first phase of redevelopment at the Center. 
As future phases of development are implemented, wetland delineations will be needed in other areas of the 
property. 

• Brickyard Creek Wetlands—Two areas along Brickyard Creek are mapped as NWI wetlands. Wetland 
delineation was conducted south of Thompson Drive along Brickyard Creek and the ornamental 
pond (identified as Wetland H in the delineation report). Historical documents indicate that a series 
of three dams were constructed on Brickyard Creek in the 1920s to create ornamental ponds and 
store water for irrigation of the adjacent farmland. The pond is lined with large amounts of non-
native, invasive yellow flag iris (Iris pseudacorus) and appears to have silted in and become shallow 

3  Hansen Creek Watershed Management Plan. Prepared by Miller Consulting for Skagit County Public Works Department. 2002. 

4  Wetland Investigation and Delineation Report: Northern State Campus. Prepared by Widener & Associates. September 2015 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT 
	

PAGE 23 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 114 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

• Stream 1 Wetlands--Stream 1 lies in a steep ravine and receives water from two culverts under 
Thompson Drive. Historically, a surface stream ran north of Thompson Drive, but it was buried 
underground sometime between 1937 and 1966 (based on aerial photographs). English ivy (Hedera 
helix) has overtaken the northern portions of Stream 1 which has a canopy of large trees. Reed 
canarygrass (Phalaris arundinaceae) is found in the entire channel to the south until it reaches an 
existing culvert. With no identifiable ordinary high water mark, the northern portion of this 
drainage is considered a wetland rather than a stream (identified as Wetland E in the delineation 
report). Downstream of the existing culvert a defined channel forms and is bordered by freshwater 
wetlands (identified as Wetland G in the delineation report). 

• Nonriparian Wetlands—The NWI maps also identify wetlands on flat terraces on the southern 
portion of the Center that are currently maintained as mowed fields and were likely used for 
agriculture in the past. The NWI maps also identify a unique water feature on the Center, a reservoir 
that was excavated on Goat Hill in the northwest corner of the property. Historical records indicate 
the reservoir was excavated in 1925 to provide an additional water source for the Northern State 
Hospital and adjacent farmland. Based on interviews with the Department of Enterprise Services 
maintenance staff, the reservoir is not currently used. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 
	

PAGE 24 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 115 of 351



Figure 9 
Wetlands and Streams 

Wetlands and Streams 

Sedro-Woolley. Washington 

Some: Cordova and elevetion enuiel awned from USGS, 
parcels. reeds and streams from Sksel Comb; ctly 
tanks end UGA ebbe!ed Trot CIla of Sodeo-Wastey: 
mewled stream end mama delateorsi torn Widener 
dAsms.les; NW1 weglinds Poem U S rash I made Sante 

Notes. 
URA= urban rano ere. 

Legend 
Cl Center Subarea 	Sa. DeRneated Wetland 

...as City Limits 	 8 Estimated Wetland Location 

[Post Annexation) 
Wetlands (MM) 

City UGA 
100-Year PloodpIaln 

- Building Footprint 
Contours 

	

Igo MAUL FOSIER ALONGI 	 StreamS 

	

P 971 544 2139 , 'own maps! or corn 	 10 foot 

Streams (Surveyed) 	TO toot 
o 	200 	000 

i-V- 
Ftet 

DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT 
	

PACE 25 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 116 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

3.7.3 Frequently Flooded Areas 

Frequently flooded areas are lands in the floodplain subject to a 1 percent greater chance of flooding in any 
given year. Those lands provide important flood storage, conveyance, and attenuation functions. At a 
minimum, frequently flooded areas include the 100-year floodplain designations of the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) and the National Flood Insurance Program. Based on FEMA Flood Maps, 
the Center's eastern and northern edges are located within the 100-year floodplain, running along both sides 
of Hansen Creek. 

3.7.4 Geological Hazards 

Geologically hazardous areas are designated to protect areas that are susceptible to erosion, sliding, 
earthquakes, or other geologic events that may pose a threat to health and safety. A hazard site assessment is 
required for all development activity proposed within 200 feet of an area of known or suspected risk. 

A geological hazard area is designated along the banks of Hansen Creek between Thompson Drive and 
North Cascades Highway. This area is outside, but immediately south of, parcel P100632. No geological 
hazard area is located on the Center itself. 

3.7.5 Aquifer Recharge Areas 

Aquifer recharge areas are designated to protect and maintain both groundwater quantity and quality. The 
(Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code (SWMC) classifies areas as Category I and Category II aquifer recharge 
areas (Ch. 17.65.300). 

The eastern half of the property is within the Hansen Creek flow-sensitive basin, which is a designated 
Category I aquifer recharge area. Category I areas are so designated because of the need to provide special 
protection due to a specific preexisting land use, or because they are identified by the local, state or federal 
government as areas in need of special aquifer protection where a proposed land use may pose a potential 
risk which increases aquifer vulnerability Development in these areas requires an aquifer recharge site 
assessment as part of the development permit review process. 

Limitations on groundwater withdrawal are placed on flow-sensitive basins. The Hansen Creek flow-
sensitive basin has a groundwater withdrawal limit of 38,130 gallons per day. Prohibited land uses include: 

• Landfills 
• Class V underground injection wells 
• Facilities that dispose of radioactive substances 

3.7.6 Wildlife Habitat 

The large areas of natural, undeveloped land around the Center have the potential to provide important 
wildlife habitat. Species that are likely to occur on the campus include birds, elk, and small mammals. One 
feature of particular note on the historic campus itself is the decommissioned smokestack of the power 
plant that has become a roost for Vaux's swifts. The Vaux's swift is listed as a candidate species under the 
Washington State Endangered Species Act. For several years, Skagit Audubon Society members have 
counted the swifts entering the smokestack during spring and fall migration. Skagit Audubon Society reports 
that they have counted 10,000 to 20,000 birds per night, representing approximately 3 to 7 percent of the 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 117 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

total population of the species. Based on these observations, the national Audubon Society and Birdlife 
International have listed the smokestack as an Important Bird Area. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 118 of 351



Value 

Looking Back* 

2010 Total Population 116,901 

2000-2010 Growth 13,922 

% Change 13.5% 

Annual Growth Rate 1.3% 

Looking Ahead** 

2030 Total Population 144,953 

2010-2030 Growth 28,052 

% Change 24.0% 

Rank in 

WA 

11 

13 

13 

13 

11 

13 

11 

Annual Growth Rate 1.1% 	11 
* US Census 
" OFM/Medium Series Forecasting I May 2012 

DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

4 REAL ESTATE MARKET CONDITIONS 

A Market Assessment was conducted as part of the Northern State Adaptive Re-use Study. The key findings 
of the Market Assessment are summarized in this section. A unique opportunity has developed since this 
Market Assessment was completed, the potential for Janicki Bioenergy to establish a research and 
development facility at the Center. This section also describes the Janicki Bioenergy opportunity as a 
potential anchor tenant to support revitalization of the Center. 

This section describes the current countywide population and employment trends and projections, and 
summarizes the current market fundamentals by asset type. 

4.1 MARKET CONDITIONS AND TRENDS 

Adaptive reuse of the Center will be strongly influenced by the demographic and economic trends of the 
county and the city. In general, the county has a relatively small population that has experienced modest but 
steady growth. The county's economy is driven in large part by manufacturing, with 36 percent of the 
county's gross domestic product (GDP) 5  coming from this sector. The manufacturing sector is primarily 
driven by nondurable goods such as food and petroleum. While the county's economy did not fare as well as 
others during the Great Recession, it has recovered, with the 2012 GDP only 2 percent less than it was 
when it was at its peak in 2005. This economic activity, along with moderate population growth and 
improving employment figures, indicates that the local economy 
is stabilizing. 

4.2 POPULATION AND EMPLOYMENT 

POPULATION 

Among the nine counties in Washington located along the 1-5 
Corridor between the Oregon State border (Clark County) and 
the Canadian border (Whatcom County), Skagit County has the 
third-lowest population, ahead of only Lewis County and 
Cowlitz County. The population of Skagit County in 2010 was 
116,901, which represented 2.5 percent of the total population of 
these nine counties. By comparison, Whatcom County to the 
north had a population of 201,140, while Snohomish County to 
the south had a population of 713,335. The county's total 
population underscores the rural nature of Skagit County relative 
to its neighbors. Looking ahead, the county's population growth 
patterns are not projected to change significantly between 2010 
and 2030 (see Table 4). While population during this 20-year period is projected to increase by 28,000 
people, the compound annual growth rate is projected to slow from 1.3 percent observed between 2000 and 
2010 to 1.1 percent between 2010 and 2030. 

U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis, 2012 GDP by Region. 

Table 4 
Skagit County Population 

Trends and Forecast 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT 	 PAGE 28 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 119 of 351



8 VAggiriig g 
NNNNNNN 

 N to -t N ... 

° N 	N 
gFI A 

NINNNNNNN 
gg g g 

NNNN 
fg° 
	

5Valb" 
NN,cNNNNNN 

DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

In 2013 the population estimate for the county was 118,600 and the population of the Sedro-Woolley UGA 
was estimated to total 12,386 or 10.4 percent of the county total (See Table 5). The Sedro-Woolley UGA 
comprises the city limits as well as some 
unincorporated land, including the Center. 	 Table 5 
Looking ahead, the Sedro-Woolley UGA is 	Sedro -Woolley UGA Population Forecast 
estimated to grow by 3,000 people between 
2014 and 2030 at a compound annual growth 
rate of 1.4 percent. This growth would 
represent 12.3 percent of the county 
population growth during the same period. 	

Source: OFM/Medium Series Forecasting I May 2012, Heartland 

Figure 10 summarizes the growth trends and forecast for Skagit County and the Sedro-Woolley UGA. This 
illustrates the measured population growth that is anticipated for the county. The moderate growth rate is 
positive for the future of the county and the city; however, barring any major shift in the local economy or 
migration patterns, there is not expected to be a population boom in either the county or the UGA. 

Figure 10 
Skagit County and Sedro-Woolley Population Growth Trends and Forecast 

180,000 

160,000 

140,000 

c  120,000 
a 

mow 

80,000 

60,000 

40,000 

20,000 

Area 2014 2030 Change CAGR 
Skagit County 120,112 144,953 24,841 1.2% 

Sedro Woolley UGA 12,448 15,511 3,063 1.4% 

Sedro Woolley Share 10.4% 10.7% 12.3% 

FUTURE ESTIMATES 

10,000 

3,000 

8,000 

7,000 

6,000 

5,000 

4,000 

3,000 

7,000 

1,000 

 

10
-Y

ear C
liM

n
iU

la
tive P

o
p
 u
 IO

W
  rl G

row
th

  

• Sedro Woolley UGA 	■ Skagit Remainder 	•Srdro Woolley UGA 10-yr Commutative Growth 

Source: US Census, OFM/Medium Series Forecasting I May 2012, Heartland 

EMPLOYMENT 

Two broad industry sectors, manufacturing and the public sector, anchor the Skagit County employment 
base. Together, these two sectors comprise 47 percent of the county's total estimate of 47,273 jobs in 2013. 
Manufacturing accounts for 12 percent of the total jobs, but it accounts for roughly 35 percent of the 
county's GDP, underscoring the importance of these jobs to the county's economic health. The other major 
employment sector in the county is government, which accounts for 23 percent of the jobs and 15 percent 
of the county GDP. Figure 11 shows a chart of employment distribution by sector as well as a table noting 
the major private employers in the county. 

Skagit County's employment base peaked in 2008 at 55,210 jobs. From peak to trough, Skagit County shed 
4,570 jobs, or over 8.3 percent. Relative to Washington State, Skagit County entered the recession early and 
experienced a greater decline, and its labor market took longer to recover. Washington State and the U.S. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT 
	

PAGE 29 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 120 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

both began to recover in 2010; Skagit County's recovery has lagged by a year.' As of mid-year 2014, Skagit 
County was still lagging the state and the nation in its recovery. Based on recent employment projections, 
the county will not approach peak employment until after 2018, which would equal a ten-year period to 
recover the jobs lost during the Great Recession (See Figure 12). 

Figure 11 
Skagit County Employment Distribution and Major Private Employers 

50,000 

45,000 

40,000 

35,000 

30,000 

25,000 

20,000 

15,000 

10,000 

5,000 

0 

 

s Agriculture/Natural Resources (635) 

Manufacturing (12%) 

a Other Goods Producing (6%) 

k Gcaremment (23%) 

• Reta I and Trade (19%) 

a FIRE. Information, & Professional Service, (10%) 

■ Entertainment, Lodging & Food Services (10%) 

■ Education & Health Services (10%) 

a Other Services (496) 

  

2013 Estimated Employment 

Source: Employment Security Department, Quarterly Census of Employment tic Wages 

Company Name 

Janicki Industries 
Regence BlueShield 
Skagit Valley Casino Resort 
Shell Puget Sound Refinery 
Tesoro Anacortes Refinery 
Dakota Creek Industries 
Trident Seafoods Corporation 
Draper Valley Farms 
PACCAR 
Dunlap Towing Co.  

Industry 	 City 

Manufacturing 	 Sedro Woolley 
Education & Health Services 	 Burlington 
Entertainment, Lodging, & Food Services Bow 
Manufacturing 
	 Anacortes 

Manufacturing 
	

Anacortes 

Manufacturing 
	

Anacortes 

Manufacturing 
	

Anacoxtes 

Manufacturing 
	 Mount Vernon 

Manufacturing 
	 Burlington 

Retail and Trade 
	 La Conner 

Source: Economic Development Association of Skagit County, 2011 

Anneliese Vance-Sherman, PhD, regional labor economist, Employment Security Department. Skagit County Profile. August 2013. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT 
	

PAGE 30 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 121 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

As the labor market has slowly improved, the unemployment rate has declined steadily since the peak of 
10.7 percent in 2010 (See Figure 12). The current rate is 7.1 percent and is now below the 25-year average of 
7.7 percent. 

Figure 12 
Skagit County Employment and Unemployment Rate Trends 

60,000 

55,000 

50,000 

45,000 

40,000 

35,000 . 

T
ot

al
 E

m
pl

o
y m

en
t 

sssgsssss NN NN 
 NN 

 

11.0% 

10.0% 

9.0% 

8.0% 

7.0% 

6.0% 

5.0% 

       

       

7.7% 

8 

      

         

O 	N 	fl 	F, 	!R: 	rqi 	 E Pi P. 
-- Unemployment Rate   25-Yr Avg 

Source: Employment Security Department/LMEA; U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, Local Area Unemployment Statistics 

4.2.1 Use Type 

This section assesses current market conditions of potential uses that could potentially be accommodated on 
the Center. 

OFFICE 

The market for office space in Skagit County has seen significant growth since 2000, with over 290,000 
square feet delivered during that period representing roughly one-third of the entire county's 883,614 square 
feet of total office building space. Nearly 95 percent of this relatively new supply has been concentrated 
around the 1-5 corridor in the cities of Burlington and Mount Vernon. The city has just over 50,000 square 
feet of office square footage, representing 5.7 percent of the county's total supply. Of the 90 buildings 
surveyed in Skagit County, the average office building size is less than 10,000 square feet, while Sedro-
Woolley's eight buildings average 6,300 square feet. There are no office buildings in the county with more 
than 100,000 square feet. To contextualize the scale of the Skagit County office market, Whatcom County's 
office market comprises 2.8 million square feet in 220 buildings and Snohomish County totals 16.0 million 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT PAGE 31 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 122 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

square feet in 1,137 buildings. Skagit County's office supply is one-third and one-twentieth of the Whatcom 
and Snohomish county markets, respectively.' Figure 13 illustrates countywide office delivery trends by 
decade, while Figure 14 depicts the concentration of the county's office buildings. 

 

300K 

250K 

Figure 13 
Skagit County Office Delivery Trend 

Year Built (Decade) Type 
0 Industrial 

ID ()Mee 

City 

Sedro Woolley 

• Anacortes 

El Burlington 

al Mount Vernon 

11111 Concrete 

R
en

la
bl

e  
B

u i
ld

in
g  

A
re

a  

200K 

150K 

100K 

50K 

OK 

Source: CoStar. 

111 	111 ii I I 
C> 	w=r 	Ca 

430 	 03,  
03 	 0) 	a 	e, 	m 

▪ 	

rn

• 

	o, 	Cra 

7  Data referenced from CoStar. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT 
	

PAGE 32 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 123 of 351



0
. 

a
 

0
 

.0
 

° 
t
i
 

 a
h

 
V

 
E
 

0
 

z
 
0
 

(
.
)
 

vs 

DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

C
O

 

-0._ 

THE CENTER FOR  INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY  SUBAREA  PLAN-DRAFT 

1
5
- 

N
 	

up 
o
-  
t
n

 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 124 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

The county's current average gross asking rental rate for office space is $14.15 per square foot per year. This 
asking rate is 6.2 percent below the five-year average rate of $15.03. At $12.00 per square foot, the limited 
office supply found in Sedro-Woolley has an average asking rate that is $2.15, or 15 percent, less than the 
countywide average rate. The current office vacancy rates for the county and the city are 13.8 percent and 
13.3 percent, respectively. The current rates are approximately 5 percent higher than the five-year average. 
Figure 15 summarizes the Skagit County/Sedro-Woolley office market. 

Figure 15 
Skagit County/Sedro-Woolley Office Market Fundamentals 

Coun 	 Sedro Woolle 	Corn s arison 
Value 	Note 

Buildings 
Rentable Area 
Average Age 

Gross Rent Per SF 
Vacancy Rate 

Vacant SF 
Months on Market 
Source: CoStar. 

90 	 8 

883,614 	 50,060 

48.8 	 43.5 

$14.15 	$15.03 	+ 	$12.00 	$11.68 	t 
13.8% 	9.2% 	4' 	13.3% 	7.6% 	4.4  

121,869 	78,009 	Jr 	6,639 	3,781 	40  

17.3 	17.5 	t 	45.6 	18.6 	44 

8.9% 
5.7% 

($2.15) 
-0.5% 
5.4% 
28.3 

SW % of County 
SW % of County 

SW < County 
SW < County 
SW % of County 
SW > County 

As of 2015, there is only one office building in the development pipeline: the Kulshan Creek Professional 
Office, located in Mount Vernon, east of 1-5. This lack of proposed development is not unexpected, given 
the current office market fundamentals and slow job growth. Any new office development in the county 
and the city in the coining years likely will be necessitated by an owner/user rather than speculatively built. 

INDUSTRIAL 

The industrial market in the county experienced significant growth in the 1990s and 2000s, with over 
1.3 million square feet delivered during that period, representing roughly 40 percent of the entire county's 
3.3 million square feet of total industrial inventory. Approximately 90 percent of this 1990s/2000s supply 
has been concentrated around the 1-5 corridor in the cities of Burlington and Mount Vernon. The area 
surrounding the Skagit Regional Airport, known as Bayview Ridge, has also been one of the County's focus 
areas for industrial land uses. During the 1990s and 2000s this area captured nearly 40 percent of the 
development. Going forward, the Bayview Ridge area is primed to accommodate more industrial facilities as 
demand warrants because of its location outside the floodplain. The city has just over 77,000 square feet of 
industrial square.  footage, representing 2.7 percent of the county's total supply. To contextualize how small 
the Skagit County industrial market is, Whatcom County's industrial market comprises 5.1 million square 
feet in 246 buildings and Snohomish County totals 34.6 million square feet in 1,050 buildings. Skagit 
County's industrial supply is 66 percent of the Whatcom County market and only 9 percent of Snohomish 
County's market.' Figure 16 illustrates Skagit County-wide industrial delivery trends by decade, while Figure 
17 depicts the concentration of the county's industrial supply. 

8  Data referenced from CoStar. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT PAGE 34 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 125 of 351



Sedro  Woolley  

f
l
 

DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

co 
co 

Q
 

1
 

i r c  - 	
11111111111111 

• ' '- 	
-F

G
ru 	

C
 

Z' 
O

 
1.1110m

, 	
0 

U
 	

U
 • 

4- 	
I
N

 oiu  
tn 

0) 	
W

M
 

O
 

'
 
	

a 
..V  
ve 	

"
"
 Le 	

en 
11.11.  

U

P  
g  

i
 

S 	
P 
	

0 	
i 

, 	
5 	

'
 	

il 
eery tnH

16,
9

 • :M
.+

,  
to 

C
 

▪
 . 11 	

r E
 

1 
C

 	
5.1B

itim
m

t, 
112 F—

 
1

1
1

..M
.M

1
1

1
0

.1
1

"
 "

 
46

 
• 

iiiiiM
11.11111111t6" 

N
. 7

3
 

M
N

- 
-
 
0
 

E
 

M
O

O"' 
° 

1— 
111.111111111111111." 

T_ .k 
111111 c)  6' 

W
O

 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA  PLAN-DRAFT 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 126 of 351



7 

457,374 

63.3 

	

1.6% 
	

0.9% 

	

7,100 
	

710 

104 
3,275,567 
38.6 

$6.25 	$6.44 
16.0% 	6.2% 
523,244 	179,082 
44.4 	22.7 

DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

The county's current average gross asking rental rate for industrial space is $6.25 per square foot per year 
(see Figure 18). This asking rate is 3.0 percent below the five-year average rate of $6.44. There are currently 
no listed asking rents in Sedro-Woolley. The current industrial vacancy rates for the county and the city are 
16.0 percent and 1.6 percent, respectively. The county's current vacancy rate is approximately 10 percent 
higher than the five-year average, while Sedro-Woolley's industrial space is well utilized. The county-wide 
vacancy rate is more indicative of the scale of market demand, while the low city vacancy rate illustrates 
both the strength of local businesses and the limited supply of real estate in the relatively small community. 

Figure 18 
Skagit County/Sedro-Woolley Industrial Market Fundamentals 

Cowl 	 Sedro Woolle 	Corns orison 
Value 	Note 

Buildings 
Rentable Area 
Average Age 

Gross Rent Per SF 
Vacancy Rate 
Vacant SF 
Months on Market 

While there is ample land for industrial development in Skagit County, there is only one industrial project 
noted in the development pipeline: a 13,000-square-foot warehouse development opportunity located in 
Mount Vernon, west of 1-5. Much like the office market, this lack of proposed development is not 
unexpected, given the current market fundamentals and slow job growth. 

6.7% 
	

SW % of County 
14.0% 
	

SW % of County 

N/A 
	

SW County 
-14.4% 
	

SW < County 
1.4% 
	

SW % of County 
N/A 
	

SW > County 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT PAGE 36 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 127 of 351



• 

- 

IV • 
r.16i 	 * , 	- 

Figure 19 
Aerial Image of McMenamin's Edgefield Resort 

Source: http://www.mcmenarnins.com/ 

DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

HOSPITALITY 

Hospitality owners and/or managers 
may be attracted to the Center because 
of its picturesque setting and the rare 
concentration of historic buildings. 
The on-site amenities that currently 
exist as well as those that could be 
developed over time present an 
opportunity to create a destination 
resort that can occupy multiple 
buildings and provide a place to stay as 
well as explore. A hospitality program 
could include guest rooms, a 
restaurant(s) that may source some of 
its food from area farms, a conference 
center, and recreation opportunities on 
the Center as well as on the adjoining 
County-owned parkland that surrounds 
the Center. The Trevennen Building was originally designed as nurses' quarters and has the character and 
floor plan to make an attractive boutique hotel. Any of the existing seven ward buildings could support 
guest rooms or other supporting functions, while the remaining stock could house any of the elements that 
support the resort's regional draw. A destination hospitality program at the Center could draw inspiration 
from regionally renowned resorts such as McMenamin's Edge&Id Resort (see Figure 19). This roughly 100-
acre property, which is located approximately 20 miles east of Portland, Oregon, features 114 hotel rooms, 
ten restaurants and bars, a brewery and winery, a working farm that supports the restaurants, a ballroom, a 
movie theater, a spa, a golf course, a concert stage, and many other on-site attractions that help drive 
demand. 

EDUCATION/RESEARCH 

Another user group that may be a good fit for the Center is educational and research organizations. These 
educational organizations could be either extensions of the five four-year universities in the state, a 
community college campus location, or a private school. Educational institutions would be a natural fit for 
the campus layout at the Center; the existing buildings could support classrooms, boarding, and other 
support functions such as administrative, recreation, and dining. The concept for a research campus is one 
where a technology, biotechnology, other laboratory-based or even outdoor recreation equipment 
development entity utilizes the Center to establish a creative environment that offers researchers a place to 
focus on their pursuits while promoting innovation for their organization. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT 	 PAGE 37 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 128 of 351



Northern 
State • 

4.3 JANICKI BIOENERGY 

Higher Education Institution Key 

▪ Western Washington University 

II Western Washington University Extended Education 

▪ WSU Mt Vernon Research & Extension 

▪ Skagit Valley College 

▪ North Cascades Environmental Learning Canter 

1111 North Cascades Institute 

III Northwest Indian College 

DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

The locations of higher education facilities in Skagit County and Whatcom County are illustrated in Figure 
20. The seven institutions with a presence in this area include Western Washington University's main 
campus in Bellingham and extension programs for Western Washington University and Washington State, 
with a focus in marine sciences and agriculture/food science, respectively. There is also the Skagit Valley 
College, which offers two-year degrees and limited four-year degrees; the Northwest Indian College branch 
campus in La Conner; and the private North Cascades Institute that offers a master's in education. 

Figure 20 
Higher Education Locator Map 

A unique proposal has been put forward by Janicki Bioenergy to potentially utilize the Center as a 
technology innovation center focused on public health and sanitation issues in developing countries. The 
Janicki Bioenergy proposal is a research and development facility rather than solely a manufacturing center. 
While the facility is expected to include some manufacturing operations, these will be limited to developing, 
testing, and smaller-scale production. The facility is expected to employ a larger number of engineers, 
designers, and managers than a typical manufacturing facility. This may create opportunities for renovation 
of some historic buildings to support office space. 

The proposed Janicki Bioenergy research and development center could also support complementary 
hospitality facilities for foreign dignitaries, visiting project partners, and technicians who would come to the 
Center to be trained to operate and maintain the innovative equipment. 

The Janicki Bioenergy proposal for a research and development center includes education and training 
components that fit into the "education/research" market sector. Janicki Bioenergy envisions bringing 
people in from around the world to train and learn to operate innovative sanitation technologies, which 
complements the potential for hospitality uses. There are also potential opportunities for synergistic 
academic research to be conducted alongside the commercial operation. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT 	 PAGE 38 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 129 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

5 LAND USE REGULATORY FRAMEWORK 

The Center was annexed into Sedro-Woolley on September 19th, 2015; transferring the regulatory authority 
to the City. The key elements of the pre-annexation land use regulatory framework for the city are 
summarized in this section. 

5.1 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

Under the Washington State Growth Management Act, local Comprehensive Plans establish the policies 
and framework for the physical development of a community. The Comprehensive Plan designates general 
types of land uses. Zoning ordinance and development regulations providing finer-detail requirements must 
comply with the Comprehensive Plan policies and land use designations. 

CITY OF SEDRO -WOOLLEY 

The Center was included in the UGA as part of the City's Comprehensive Plan amendments in 1998. As 
this is an area outside the city's boundary but in its UGA, the City has established a land use designation for 
the Center in anticipation of potential future annexation. The City Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map 
designates the Center as Public. This designation allows for a range of potential uses in the public interest, 
and is not restricted to only open-space use (see Section 5.2). 

The City's Comprehensive Plan includes a number of goals and policies that support redevelopment of the 
Center, including the following: 

Economic Development Element Goal El: To develop a sound fiscal base. 

Policy E1.1: Create employment opportunities within the Sedro-Woolley economy, particularly for residents who now 
commute to distant employment areas. 

Policy E1.2: Participate with other public agencies and private interests in labor force training programs that take 
advantage of traditional resources. 

Policy E1.3: Identify and promote sites that can be developed for a variety of local employment projects. Promote 
development of business and industrial parks, office and professional centers, and specialized commercial and 
entertainment centers. 

Policy E1.4: Work with property owners to determine the effective development capacity of sites having employment 
center possibilities. 

Economic Development Goal E2: To increase economic opportunities. 

Policy E2.1: Encourage local business development opportunities and utilization by the private and public sector, 
particularly for small start-up businesses owned by or employing Sedro-Woolley residents. Promote local use of 
special small business financing and management assistance programs. 

Policy E2.2: Identify facilities that may be used for small businesses. Assist efforts to reuse older buildings, redevelop 
vacant property, and revitalize the existing central business district. 

Policy E2.4: Participate in special public/private ventures that provide public benefits and that are appropriate to 
Sedro-Woolley's long-range goals. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 	 PAGE 39 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 130 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

Policy E2.5: Reserve certain capable lands and sites for employment-related developments. Provide a suitable supply 
of commercial, retail, business, office, and industrial lands in Sedro-Woolley to reduce commuting requirements to 
outside areas for employment opportunities. 

5.2 ZONING 

With annexation the default zoning designation of the property will continue to be Public (P). Currently the 
"P" zone permits outright public uses, institutional uses, agriculture, and recreational uses and following 
conditional use permit approval, any other use, including commercial and industrial uses (SWMC) 17.32). 
The "P" zone has limited development restrictions. Building height is restricted to 60 feet but there are no 
minimum setback requirements. 

These limited-use and regulatory restrictions currently in the "P" zone may not be sufficient for either this 
unique property or protection of the surrounding neighborhood from potentially adverse construction 
impacts. Therefore, the City intends to augment the "P" zone by requiring that all future development on 
the Center be consistent with the goals, policies, and development guidelines contained in an approved 
Subarea Plan and additional mitigating conditions within the Planned Action Ordinance. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 
	

PAGE 40 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 131 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

6 SUBAREA LAND USE MAP AND POLICIES 

The subarea land use map and policies provide a long-term coordinated framework for achieving the vision 
for the Center and are intended to reinforce design concepts and encourage redevelopment activities 
consistent with the vision. They comprise a companion document to the Center Planned Action EIS and 
Planned Action Ordinance. The Subarea Plan will provide certainty to potential investors, tenants, and 
occupants, as well as area residents. 

During the process of revitalizing the Center, local impacts both expected and unexpected may occur. The 
governmental partnership should continue to work together not only to ensure success of the project but 
also to take steps through planned capital improvements to ensure compatibility with the immediate 
neighborhoods. 

The Center is intended to promote area economic development and community benefit by transformation 
of the existing uses to a new synergistic mix of education, training, and research and development, 
manufacturing, hospitality, and commercial uses. Successful redevelopment will integrate public sector 
activities, including education and job training, with private sector enterprises. In the transformation, the 
design concepts of the original Olmsted Plan would be respected through thoughtful redevelopment and 
adaptive reuse of the viable architecturally significant buildings. New buildings would be incorporated as the 
market demand dictates in locations that respect, complement, and ultimately restore elements of the 
original master plan concepts. Public access opportunities will be reintroduced in appropriate areas of the 
Center and connect to surrounding County parklands. 

Key Design Features of the Original Campus 

The subarea land use map and policies are designed to protect and restore the key elements of the 
Olmsted master plan including: 

• An orderly and predictable orientation of buildings and streets 

• Building orientation to central campus and outward views 

• Buildings set among expansive lawns 

• Utilization of the terraced topography of the site 

• Consistent architectural character, especially among the primary building in the central campus 
area 

• Appropriately scaled street widths that respect pedestrian movements while invoking a slower 
lifestyle, quiet, and tranquility 

• Welcoming public access features and pedestrian, pathways 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 
	

PAGE 41 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 132 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

6.1 SUBAREA LAND USE MAP 

The Subarea land use map organizes the 225 acre Center into three defined development areas, referred to 
as the "Core," "Influence," and "Open Space" Areas (See Figure 21 and Table 6). Development activities, 
with the exception of infrastructure, recreational and public activities, should be restricted to locations 
within the designated Core or Influence Areas (See Table 7). 

Table 6 
Land Use Areas 

1. Core Area. 

This is the primary and architecturally most significant area of the Center. Synergistic and complementary 
uses would be clustered within the boundaries of the Core Area. Appropriate uses in the Core Area include 
education, office, research and development, hospitality, specialty residential uses, tourism, commercial and 
public uses. 

In the Core, when economically viable, rehabilitation of existing historically contributing buildings for 
adaptive reuse should be encouraged. New construction should be situated in general proximity to former 
building locations that are consistent with the original design' concepts. As existing leases expire, 
noncontributing buildings should be removed. Pedestrian movement between uses is encouraged in this 
area, with parking areas limited in number and scale. 

2. Influence Area. 

In the designated Influence Area, most of the same uses as in the Core would be appropriate, along with 
industrial operations, including assembly and manufacturing. The uses in the Influence Area align with the 
original Olmsted master plan, which included industrial types of support uses such as the power plant and 
maintenance shops to the north of the Core Area. Siting these uses south of Thompson Drive capitalizes on 
sloping topography and vegetation screening to minimize visual and operational impacts to the Core Area. 
Industrial buildings could be built into the slope so that the northern end facing the Core has reduced 
apparent height and mass. Construction of an additional loop road through the southern Influence Area 
would minimize and partially separate truck traffic from the Core. 

Other appropriate uses in the Influence Area include training facilities and campus support facilities such as 
the power plant, utilities, security, commissary needs, general storage, and potentially a helipad. 

3. Open Space Area. 

The Open Space Area is intended for protection of natural resources and systems; infrastructure (such as 
roads, parking, and utilities needed for development in the Core and Influence Areas); and public access 
activities (such as trails, public parking, and exhibits) and other compatible uses. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATtON AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 
	

PAGE 42 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 133 of 351



o i50 xa •so eao 114  
Fttl 

&dip 
IP. MAUL FOSTER ALONGi 

,,./1 Y. VW' 1 woeve..2.0,cos 

Open Space 

Influence 
Area 

Emergency 
Access 

Primary Access 

• . 0;407.  

Figure 
Subarea Land Use Map 

Sedro-Woolley, Washington 

DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

Figure 21 
Subarea Land Use Map 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT 
	

PAGE 43 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 134 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

Table 7 
Siting of Uses 

• 

Public Uses (such as a museum, 
library, interpretive center or 
other governmental uses) 

Allowed Allowed Limited recreational 
uses and public 
parking allowed 

Education & Workforce Training Allowed Allowed Prohibited 

Research & Development Allowed Allowed Prohibited 

Assembly & Fabrication Prohibited Allowed Prohibited 

Office Allowed Allowed Prohibited 

Restaurant & Retail Allowed Allowed Prohibited 

Hospitality Allowed Allowed Prohibited 

Specialty Residential Allowed Allowed Prohibited 

Trails Allowed Allowed Allowed 

Surface Parking Allowed Allowed Allowed 

Structured Parking Prohibited Allowed Prohibited 

Recreation Connections 

In alignment with the goal of increasing public access to the Center, a conceptual plan of pedestrian and 
bicycle connections to the Northern State Recreation Area and regional trail systems has been prepared (see 
Figure 22). The trail connections map is based on existing pathways that historically connected the Northern 
State Hospital to the adjacent farm areas. Connections could also be developed to the Cascade Trail that 
runs approximately 22.5 miles parallel to State Route 20 between Sedro-Woolley and Concrete. A trails plan 
should be developed in coordination with Skagit County to refine this conceptual plan and support 
implementation of pedestrian and bicycle improvements. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT 
	

PAGE 44 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 135 of 351



....-1:10n CIPOIVer,Y1 

Cernecron 10 h7161 C. 1,0,602 
foolPles 

,FirisecSon lo promprop hovel 
a as 

"Car?, 	istic4roilIZO• 
-14.75,ibloi Area 

• 

5n 4Y 	Cri■nt.,•n 

Contieelbo,r1ollkerr+PY 2CP 
• Loiloto4+neclOO to Corea& Hot 
• CP.-ilk' 65Olb kirobKOR. 
neighboi,Kocoi 

' C0meelGri Pi Northern ;MI 
Ric-real*Areo 

Figure 
Legend 	 Potential Recreational Access 
Property SCoodery 	

Port of Skagit 
Ref:bred FisMrie Traa 	 Sedro-Woolley, Washington 

■■•■ps 

 

Restored His-fork Covered Pathways 

ow Proposed TN& Ceneet10116 

MI Cascade Trai 

600 	1,000 

FMK 

kome:Aele chow*,  *booed horn Evi Heal s 
mre; peek ab taarhablifinitd ordo sups over, 

IV MAUI. FOSTER ALONGI 
p 97' 347139 ......rwuPolleffsar 

DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

Figure 22 
Potential Recreation Access Map 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN—DRAFT 
	

PAGE 45 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 136 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

6.2 POLICIES 

Economic 

E-1: Encourage private investment and capital for redevelopment activities and uses consistent with 
the overall intent of campus redevelopment. 

E-2: Encourage private investment financing by supporting use of federal tax programs and 
property tax relief for rehabilitation of historic structures; recognize that tax benefits may accrue 
only with private ownership or long-term lease of buildings. 

E-3: Promote revitalization of the Center that provides opportunities for research and development, 
manufacturing, education and job training, office, commercial, hospitality, and complementary 
retail uses such as museums, gift shops, and restaurants/cafes. 

E-4: Provide opportunities and space for startup incubator space. 

E-5: Promote tourism activities that capitalize on the intrinsic values of the Olmsted historic 
campus, Sedro-Woolley's character, regional agriculture, natural resources, and the proximity to 
the North Cascades Highway and national forest and park systems. 

Land Use  

LU-1: Allow for an appropriate mix of uses in a framework that reinforces and promotes synergy 
and interaction between uses while supporting compatibility with the historic character of the 
Center. Uses that do not support the vision should not be permitted. 

LU-2: Within the Core Area, construction of new buildings should be sited in generally the same 
location as historic buildings from the National Historic Districts "Period of Significance" (1909-
1959). 

LU-3: Buildings in the Core Area that do not contribute to the architectural significance of the 
National Register Historic District should be renovated or removed over time. 

LU-4: Recognize that historically contributing buildings may be demolished if found to be 
economically infeasible to renovate. 

LU-5: Provide for dearly defined areas that limit new construction outside the Core Area. This 
"Influence Area" should be restricted to locations that respect the design concepts of the historic 
district, the natural environment, and nearby residential neighborhoods. 

LU- 6: An appropriate level of building and site design guidelines should be established to ensure 
that new construction and renovation are compatible with the historic character of the Center. 

LU-7: Adopt a Planned Action Ordinance and amend the municipal zoning and subdivision code as 
needed to support the vision, goals, and policies of this Subarea Plan. 

Open Space and Recreation  

OS-1: Allow public access within the Center except in areas with safety or security concerns. 

OS-2: Explore possible connections between the Center and the adjacent Northern State Recreation 
Area, adjacent neighborhoods, and regional trail systems. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 
	

PAGE 46 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 137 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

OS-3: The ornamental pond on Brickyard Creek should be maintained to allow continued 
recreational fishing use. 

Natural Resources  

NR-1: Development should conform to the City of Sedro-Woolley Critical Areas Ordinance 
(SWMC 17.65). 

NR-2: Protect and enhance, to the extent feasible, the streams, wetlands, and forests within the 
Center. 

NR-3: Protect, to the extent feasible, the unique and regionally significant Vaux's swift use of the 
former smokestack at the power plant building. 

Public Facilities and Services  

PFS-1: Ensure that public facilities and services necessary for supporting development are provided 
commensurate with the level of development intensity. 

PFS-2: Provide capital improvements to correct existing deficiencies, to replace worn-out or 
obsolete facilities, and to accommodate desired future growth. 

Parking, Transportation. and Utilities  

PTU-1: Parking should be located to serve the Center as whole rather than individual buildings and 
uses. 

PTU-2: Shared parking areas should be managed by a single authority and should be located 
primarily in the Influence Area. 

PTU-3: Recognizing the campus concept, flexible (shared) parking standards should be considered, 
rather than by individual building or use. 

PTU-4: To maintain the original design concept, internal streets should remain in similar layout and 
cross section. Improvements should be made to internal streets where necessary to improve 
accessibility for emergency vehicles and for stormwater management. An emergency access route 
to the Center should be provided. 

PTU-5: Since the internal street design may conflict with current City code; streets should remain in 
private ownership and be privately maintained. City development standards (including 
subdivision and binding site plan requirements) should recognize that street widths may be less 
than required by code and should not be automatically required to be placed within publicly 
dedicated rights of way. 

PTU-6: Previously dedicated but unimproved rights of way deemed unnecessary for development or 
area circulation should be vacated. 

PTU-7: In anticipation of forecasted growth and increased activity at the Center, Fruitdale Road 
should be re-classified as a designated arterial street. The City should coordinate with the County 
to extend the arterial designation from State Route 20 to Kalloch Road. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 
	

PAGE 47 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 138 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

PTU-8: Fruitdale Road currently serves as the primary entrance to the Center and this is expected to 
continue in the future. Over time, additional access points should be considered to facilitate 
emergency response, to separate truck traffic, and to distribute vehicle trips. 

PTU-8: The Fruitdale Road entrance should be reconfigured to improve safety and enhance the 
experience of arrival at the Center. 

6.3 DESIGN STANDARDS 

The Center is part of a designated National Register Historic District, whereby alterations and additions to 
contributing historic buildings would be reviewed by the Washington State Department of Archaeology and 
Historic Preservation (DAHP) and the National Park Service if the project proponent seeks to utilize federal 
Historic Preservation Tax Credits. The state and federal agency review would be based on design principles 
set forth in the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Treatment of Historic Properties and supporting 
Preservation Briefs produced by the National Park Service. 

Design review guidelines and an administrative review process should be established by a local government 
entity as part of the building permit review process for proposed new construction within the Center. The 
local governmental entity should evaluate permit applications for renovation and new construction of 
buildings based on the following general design guidelines. Building permits that affect exterior design 
features should not be issued by the City without confirmation that the design guidelines have been 
followed. 

The intent of the guidelines is to protect the historic character of the historic district designation. Major 
design principles are: 

1. Construction of new buildings and rehabilitation of existing buildings in the Core Area should be 
limited to the general area of former footprints or now-demolished historic structures from the 
Historic District's "Period of Significance" (1909-1959); together with allowance for some building 
expansion. 

2. New buildings (and their front entries) located in the Core Area and Influence Area should be 
positioned along the existing narrow east-west roads that define the site. Lawns and plantings should 
surround each distinctly-defined building in the landscape. 

3. The roadway system remaining from the Period of Significance should guide the placement, size, 
and design feeling of any new or replacement roadways. The roads system on the Center dating 
from the Period of Significance should remain in place. The character of the roads, pathways and 
related improvements, for both new and existing, shall retain a rural campus character defined by 
lawns and plantings growing to the edge of the road surfaces without curbs. 

In addition to the design standards listed above, more detailed design guidelines for the siting and design of 
new buildings, rehabilitation of existing architecturally significant existing buildings, or the installation of 
street furniture and other important external features should be developed. The design guidelines should 
differentiate between the Core and Influence Areas, with more stringent standards in the Core. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 
	

PAGE 48 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 139 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

7 IMPLEMENTATION ACTIONS 

A meaningful public presence is an important ingredient in the ultimate success of the plan. A continuing 
partnership should be formed between local government entities and appropriate regional and state agencies 
to support redevelopment and capital improvements, and to explore the educational and training aspects of 
the vision. Synergies between private uses locating on the property and training and education should be 
explored and cultivated. 

7.1 LAND USE POLICY AND REGULATION 

The City should implement a set of interrelated land use policy and development regulation changes to 
support the vison of the Subarea Plan, including the following: 

1. Adoption of Planned Action Ordinance—the purpose of the Planned Action Ordinance is to 
authorize the City to use the Planned Action EIS to comply with SEPA review requirements for 
development projects within the Center consistent with the purpose and intent of the EIS. 

2. Amend Public (P) zone (SWMC Chapter 17.32)—Expand possible permitted uses within the Center 
to include those identified in the Subarea Plan. 

3. Amend development regulations to align with the Subarea Plan, including the following: 

a. Consolidated Planning Procedures (SWMC Chapter 2.90)—Include procedures for review of a 
project under the Planned Action Ordinance. 

b. Binding Site Plan (SWMC Chapter 16.28)—Change review process from Type III to Type II to 
allow for administrative review. 

c. Off-Street Parking and Loading (SWMC Chapter 17.3)—Allow for shared parking between 
complementary uses and for minimum parking requirements to be met across the Center rather 
than adjacent to each building. Parking standards could refer to the Planned Action Ordinance 
for requirements specific to the Center. 

d. Signs (SWMC Chapter 17.40)—Signage visible from Fruitdale Road and /or surrounding 
properties should be regulated by the City. Standards or guidelines for other (internally oriented) 
signage should be addressed in the Center Design Guidelines. 

e. Landscaping (SWMC Chapter 17.50) — Standards for landscaping along Fruitdale Road and the 
main entry should be regulated by the City. Standards or guidelines for internal landscaping 
should be addressed in the Center Design Guidelines. 

7.2 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

Detailed assessment of the condition of the existing utility services, including sewer, water, storm-water 
management, and power is encouraged. The need for specific improvements to those utility systems will be 
determined as applications for building renovation or construction are processed and will be the 
responsibility of the property owner. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 
	

PAGE 49 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 140 of 351



DRAFT SUBAREA PLAN 

To ensure that roads and infrastructure systems are in place to support the redevelopment of the Center, the 
following capital improvements have been identified. 

Short Term Capital Improvements (1-5 Years) 

1. Design and construct improvement of the existing entrance to the Center within the Fruitdale Road 
right of way to enhance traffic safety and create a prominent entry feature. 

2. Reclassify Fruitdale Road as a secondary arterial street from SR 20 to Kalloch Road. 

3. Improve Fruitdale Road between the existing campus entrance and Kalloch Road, including repair 
of the current sunken section of roadway. 

4. Maintain and/or improve existing gravel road connection between Fruitdale Road and northwest 
corner of the Center as secondary access for emergency response. 

Mid-Term (6-10 Years) 

1. Improve Fruitdale Road between SR 20 and the existing the Center entrance. 

2. Implement the design and construction of the Portobello Avenue connection (identified in the 
Transportation element of the City's Comprehensive Plan) between Fruitdale Road and SR 9. 

3. In coordination with the County, develop a Trails Plan for the Northern State Recreation Area, 
including planning for potential trail connections between the Center and the park. 

THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY SUBAREA PLAN-DRAFT 
	

PAGE 50 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 141 of 351



Attachment 3 

Memo addressing comments on the Center Subarea Plan 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 142 of 351



MAUL 
FOSTER 
ALONGI MEMORANDUM 

  

To: 	John Coleman 	 Date: 	November 11, 2015 

From: 	Bill Hager and Michael Stringer, AICP 	Project: 	0624.04.08 

RE: 	the Cente or Innovation and Technology Subarea Plan (Revisions and Suggestions) 

Attached please find a final Draft Subarea Plan for the Center for Innovation and Technology. This 
is scheduled for a public hearing and Planning Commission review on November 17, 2015. 

Following is a list of changes made to the previous draft plan. 

1 The name of the project area was revised by eliminating "in the Pacific Northwest." 

2 Table 6 on page 42 was revised based on the new land use area computations consistent with 
latest land use map. 

3 Table 7 "Siting of Uses" (page 46) was revised by adding under Public Uses ...or  other 
governmental uses;  as a permitted use. 

This action will make any use by a governmental entity a permitted use within the Core and 
Influence Land Use Areas. 

4 Same Table 7; "with Special Conditions" was eliminated after Assembly and Fabrication, Specialty 
Residential and Structured Parking within the Influence Area. 

(Originally this clause was intended to require a financial commitment to the Core Area 
prior to a use being permitted in the Influence Area. This language was later modified in the 
text but not in the matrix.) 

5. Same Table 7: Added new language clarifying that public uses in the Open Space Area is 
limited to low impact recreational uses and public parking. 

In addition, during the Draft Environmental Impact Statement review process, two respondents 
suggested new language and new policies to the Subarea Plan for consideration by the City. These 
suggestions are more appropriately addressed by the City rather than within the FEIS and are 
contained within the attached matrix. The first suggestion was made by the Audubon Society; the 
other were made by Washington State Department of Archeology and Historic Preservation. While 
well-meaning our recommendation is that most of these suggestions are reflected in current 
language. 

1329 North State Street, Suite 301 I Bellingham, Woshingion 98225 I p, 360 594 6262 I www.maulfoster.com  

R: \ 0624.04 Port of Skagit \ Correspondence \ 08_2015 11.11 Coleman Memo re Subarea Plan \ Coleman Memo Subarea Plan Changes and 
Suggestions.docx 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 143 of 351



Section/Page -Cierrent Language Requested Change or Comment 	 _. 'Citinnient_, 
2.2 / Page 10 C. Protect the environmentally sensitive areas 

of the Center, in particular Hansen Creek. 
Protect the environmentally sensitive areas of the 
Center, in particular Hansen Creek and theyoux 

The goal as stated presently was 
port of the original interlocal 
agreement. Swift roostin_a site/. 	 (Audubon Society) 

Page 4 See Informational Insert: implications of Listing 
on National Register of Historic Places 

Comment: We recommend that a note be 
added to these paragraphs fo note that other 
federal and slate laws and regulations 
pertaining to cultural resource management 
and protection exist and may pertain to the 
proposals on the campus in certain 
circumstances. 	 (DAHP) 

Without any specifics this seems 
excessive and beyond the 
general intent of the insert. 

No need for revision. 

3.4 / Page 13 The former Northern State Hospital site has 
been recognized by the U.S. Department of 
the Interior as a historic resource of national 
significance. The landscape of the facility 
and most of its built features ore fisted 
individually on the National Register of Historic 
Places and ore collectively fisted as a historic 
district. The primary features listed on the 
National Register include the collection of 
Spanish Colonial Revival-style buildings and 
the Olmsted Brothers - designed site plan. 

The former Northern State Hospital site has been 
recognized by the U.S. Department of the Interior 
as o historic resource of notional significance. 
The landscape of the facility and most of its built 
resources are fisted in the National Register of 

Ok to incorporate the underlined 
changes in Draft 

Historic Places as confributina elements to o 
historic district. The primary resources listed in the 
National Register include a collection of Spanish 
Colonial Revival-style puildings designed by a 
number of notable architects and on intact 
landscape designed by the notionally prominent 
landscape architecture firm of the Olmsted 
Brothers. 	 (DAHP) 

3.4 / page I 4 Additionally, ten buildings are considered 
historic, but noncontributing. This means that 
while the structures are older than the 
required 50 years, their design, appearance, 
and function are not considered to be 
necessary and critical to the historic 
significance of the facility. 

Additionally, ten buildings within The historic Existing language sufficiently 
describes this situation. 

No need for revision. 

district boundaries ore considered to be "non- 

contributing" resources. The "non-contributina" 
status means that while these resources ore 
within the district boundary. for various reosons 
lusualiv more recent in aae or alterations] do riof 
Contribute to the historic character of the Historic 
District. 	 {DAHP) 

R:\0524.04  Port of Skagin,Corresponclence\ 08_2015.11.11 Coleman Memo re Subarea Plan\ Matrix of requests.clocx 
	

Page 1 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 144 of 351



Section:Mtge ' Owen! Longuabe Requeited:Chalige.ciiCertilteient Coirtinent 
3.4.1 1 page 16 Preliminary cost forecasts for renovation of 

historic, contributing buildings Indicate that 
adaptive re-use of the buildings presents a 
significant financial challenge to 
redevelopment. It is estimated that 
renovation costs for historic buildings ore likely 
to be roughly twice the cost of construction 
of new buildings that would serve similar 
functions. The Notional Historic District 
designation creates the opportunity to obtain 
federal historic tax credits to partially offset 
that incremental cost. However, the 
magnitude of the cost of the "preservation 
margin" (the difference between cost of 
rehabilitotion and new construction) makes 
private financing of renovation under current 
market lease rates in Sedro-Woolley 
infeasible. Successful renovation of the 
historic buildings will likely require pubic 
financial support as well as investment from a 
private owner-user that sees o unique value in 
the campus, rather than o typical private 
developer. Without creation of a 
"preservation margin fund" it is unlikely that oil 
historic buildings will be rehabilitated and 
some may ultimately be demoished. 

Add: The "preservation =rain" consists of the Current language is sufficient. 

No need for revision. 
difference between rehabilitatina a historic 
building and replacing the buildina comoletelv 
From a strict construction cost standpoint 
rehabilitation oftentimes needs to be offset by 
financial incentives for preservation such os the 
historic tax credit. Also, the ocotillo that a 
replacement structure has is a key factor in 
determining economic feasibility. Looking at the 
life cvcre cost of reolocement buidinas is key in 
determining whether or not a redocement 
structure would be able to stand for decades or 
even centuries. Environmentally, the embodied 
energy contained within existing buklinas is 
often overlooked when considering reotocement 
buildinas. Thus the true environmental impact of 
recvcfina existina buildings versus complete 
replacement needs to be further exolored. 

(DAHP) 

6.2 / page 46 E-5: Promote tourism activities that capitalize 
on the intrinsic values of the Olmsted historic 
campus, Sedro-Wooltey's character, regional 
agricutture, natural resources, and the 
proximity to the North Cascades Highway 
and national forest and park systems. 

Add: Promote appropriate tourism activities that 
capitalize on the historic and aesthetic 
character of the Northem State Hospital Historic 
District: local and regional character, Native 
American heritage and culture: regional 
agriculture; natural resources; and the proximity 
to recreational opportunities in national forest 
and park systems, and along the North 
Cascades Scenic Highway. 	 pAHP) 

The goal os stated captures these 
ideas, but with brooder 
applicability. 

No need for revision. 

R:\0624.04  Pori of SkaglACorresponclence \08_2015.11.11 Coleman memo re Subarea Plan\ Matrix of requests.docx 	 Page 2 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 145 of 351



Section/Page Current language Requested Change or Comment Comment 
6.2 / page 46 LU- 6: An oppropriate level of building and 

site design guidelines should be established to 
ensure that new construction and renovation 
ore compatible with the historic character of 
the Center. 

Add new goat CHR-I : The U.S. Secretary of the 
Interior's Standards for the Treatment of Historic 
Properties are adopted as foundational 
guidance for the ongoing management. 
preservation, and rehabilitation of cultural and 
historic resources at the Center. 	(DAHP) 

Port is adopting Design Guidelines, 
City is not. 

No need for revision. 

6.2 / page 46 LU- 6: An appropriate level of building and 
site design guidelines should be established to 
ensure Mot new construction and renovation 
are compatible with the historic character of 
the Center. 

Add new goal: CHR-2: An appropriate level of 
building and site design guidelines should be 
adopted and followed to ensure that new 
construction and historic property rehabilitation 
work ore compatible and the Notional Register 
designation status of the Historic District is 
protected. 	 (DAHP) 

Port is adopting Design Guidelines, 
City is not. 

No need for revision, 

6.2 / page 46 LU-3: Buildings in the Core Area that do not 
contribute to the architectural significonce of 
the National Register Historic District should be 
renovated or removed over time. 

Add new goal: CHR-3: Buildings in the Care Area 
that ore considered to be "non-contributing" to 
the historic character of the district may be re- 
purposed or removed over the course of the 
Center's development. In the decision-moking 
process or on o periodic basis, "non- 
contributing" status should be reviewed and 
updated. 	 (DAHP) 

First port aligns well with LU-3, 
Second statement is part of 
review process os DES or State 
consult with DAHP and Notional 
Pork Service on rehabilitation 
projects. 

No need for revision. 

6.2 / page 46 LU-3: Buildings in the Core Area that do not 
contribute to the architectural significance of 
the National Register Historic District should be 
renovated or removed over time. 

Add new goat CHR-4: "Contributing" resources 
to the Historic District may be demoEshed if 
preservation/rehabilitation is not feasible. Before 
the decision to demolish is made, oll 
preservation aHematives shall be explored. If 
demolition proceeds, a commensurate level of 
mitigation should be provided. 	(DAHP) 

First pad aligns with LU-3. Second 
statement is covered in Mitigation 
Measures. 

No need for revision. 

6.2 / page 46 LU-5: Provide for clearly defined areas that 
Emit new construction outside the Core Area. 
This "Influence Area" should be restricted to 
locations Mot respect the design concepts of 
the historic district, the natural environment, 
and nearby residential neighborhoods. 

Add new goat CHR-5: Provide for clearly defined 
areas that limit new construction outside the 
Core Area. This "Influence Area" should be 
restricted to locations that respect the design 
concepts of the historic district, the natural 
environment, and nearby residential 
neighborhoods. 	 (DAHP) 

Some as LU-5. 

No need for revision. 

R:\0624.04  Port of Skagit \Correspondence \GB 2015.11.11 Coleman Memo re Subarea Plan \Matrix of requesb.cloox 
	

Page 3 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 146 of 351



Seetion/Rage Current Language Requested Change or ComMen, Comment 
None Add new goal: CI-1R-6: Archaeological and 

cultural resources may exist at the Center and 
shot be protected when identified. Any ground 
disturbing activities shall planned to avoid 
adversely affecting these resources. In the event 
impacts to archaeological and cultural 
resources cannot be avoided, the 
interested/affected Tribes and the Department 
of Archaeology and Historic Preservation (DAHP) 
shall be consulted. 	 (DAHP) 

Covered in the EIS, and in 
compliance with stole and 
federal cultural / historic 
preservation lows. 

No need for revision. 

6.2 / page 46 Add new goal: CHR-7: The heritage of use and 
occupation at the Center is a valued and 
tangible resource. Opportunities shall be 
identified and implemented to shore this 
heritage as appropriate with the public. 	(DAHP) 

Similar to E-5 in tourism goals. 

No need for revision. 

6.2 / poge 46 OS-2: Explore possible connections between 
the Center and the adjacent Northern State 
Recreation Area. adjacent neighborhoods, 
and regional trail systems. 

Add new goal: 0S-2: Explore possible 
connections, including programmatically 

The City, County, and Port are 
collaborating on recreation and 
open space planning between 

the Center and the NRSA. 

No need for revision. 

between the Center and the adjacent North 
State Recreation Area. 	 (DAHP) 

6.3 / page 48 Add new goal: In regard to section 6.3 Design 
Standards, we recommend that a note be 
added to direct readers to the design guidelines 
(once adopted) for questions or more 
information. 	 (DAHP) 

City application forms will include 
reference information to the Port. 

No need for revision. 

7.1 / page 48 Add: We support the recommendations in 
section 7.1 Land Use Policy and Regulation. We 
recommend that changes or amendments to 
policies and regulations support and do not 
contfict with guidelines and policies for the 
Center that pertain to cultural and historic 
resource protection. 	 (DAHP) 

Acknowledged, 

No need for revision. 
 

R:',0624.04 Port of Skagit\ Correspondence \ 08_2015.11.11 Coleman Memo re Subarea Plan\ Matrix of reovesh.docx 
	

Page 4 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 147 of 351



Attachment 4 

Planning Commission Findings and Recommendation 

Procedural Items 
Notice of Public Hearing and Department of Commerce Materials 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 148 of 351



FROM: 

an, Planning Director 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
325 Metcalf Street 

Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 
Phone (360) 855-0771 

Fax (360) 855-0733 

TRANSMITTAL & REPORT MEMORANDUM 

DATE: 	November 17, 2015 

TO: 	 Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission 

REGARDING 
	

Subarea Plan for The Center for Technology and Innovation in 
the Pacific Northwest - Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
CPA # 2-15 

The following Subarea Plan and ordinance are submitted by the Planning Department. This 
report serves as the staff report for the proposed amendment to the City's Comprehensive 
Plan, adopting The Center for Innovation and Technology in the Pacific Northwest Subarea 
Plan and was submitted in accordance with Chapter 2.90 SWMC and RCW 36.70A.130. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

PROPOSAL 

The City of Sedro-Woolley, Skagit County and the Port of Skagit have worked in 
cooperation to develop a subarea plan for the revitalization of the Northern State Campus, 
now named the Center for Innovation and Technology (Center). A Planned Action 
Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) has also been prepared. 

The following documents are referenced and/or attached to this report: 
• The Center for Innovation and Technology Subarea Plan- Exhibit A 
• Ordinance amending the Comprehensive Plan and adopting the Center Subarea Plan 

- Exhibit C 
• Memo addressing comments received on the Center Subarea Plan during the 

comment period. These comments and responses should be considered together 
with the Subarea Plan - Exhibit B 

• Public Participation Plan - Exhibit D 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 149 of 351



The consultant team, Maul Foster & Alongi will present the planning processes for the 
Center that have occurred to date and discuss the proposed Center Subarea Plan that was 
evaluated through the Planned Action EIS process. 

BACKGROUND 

Below are the planning processes that have been conducted for the Center: 

• Annexation of the Property into the City of Sedro-Woolley — the Property was 
annexed into the City on September 9, 2015 bringing the Property within the 
municipal boundary and the land use regulatory authority of the City. 

• Subarea Plan — This plan will articulate a framework for development of the 
property over the next 20 years. It will be based on the goals of the local 
governments and public and will provide direction for potential investors seeking to 
develop and or locate within the Center. The plan will be adopted as part of the 
City's Comprehensive Plan. The Subarea Plan, once finalized, will be adopted into 
the City's Comprehensive Plan. As the Planning Commission is aware, the Growth 
Management Act allows updates to comprehensive plans once every year. The 
Sedro-Woolley City Council has approved, by resolution, the City's 2015 
Comprehensive Plan docket which lists the proposed amendments to the City's 
comprehensive plan that will be considered this year. While it was anticipated that 
a comprehensive plan amendment would be necessary to address the Northern State 
property and this is reflected in the 2015 docket, the Subarea Plan will be reviewed 
through an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) process, independent of the any 
other comprehensive plan amendments. Therefore, staff is utilizing RCW 
36.70A.130 (2) (a) (i) and (v) which recognizes exceptions to the consideration of 
amendments more frequently than once a year. The cited RCW sections recognize 
subarea plans and comprehensive plan amendments necessary to enact a planned 
action under RCW 43.21C.031 as exceptions, allowing a jurisdiction to amend its 
comprehensive plan more frequently than once a year. 

• Planned Action Environmental Review — The Washington state legislature 
adopted the planned action process for SEPA to emphasize quality environmental 
review of early planning efforts and early public input to shape decisions. The 
intent is to provide cumulative impact analyses for the entire subarea, rather than 
piecemeal analysis on a project-by-project basis. A planned action designation by a 
jurisdiction reflects a decision that adequate environmental review has been 
completed and that future environmental review under SEPA, for each specific 
development proposal or phase, will not be necessary if it is determined that each 
proposal or phase is consistent with the development levels specified in the adopted 
Planned Action Ordinance and supporting environmental analysis. 

Subarea Plan — Comp Plan — The Center 
City of Sedro-Woolley 

Page 2 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 150 of 351



Chapter 2.90 SWMC was amended in 2015 to include a process for adopting Planned 
Action ordinances. The process requires Planning Commission review and consideration, 
with a recommendation to the City Council which is charged with making a final decision. 
In addition to the process for designating and adopting a Planned Action ordinance, 
Chapter 2.90 SWMC outlines a process for reviewing planned action projects. 

Basic steps in designating and implementing planned actions are as follows: 
➢ Prepare and adopt a Subarea Plan to create a vision and policy framework 

for future development; 
➢ Prepare an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS); 
➢ Designate the planned action improvement area by ordinance, where future 

projects would develop consistent with the EIS analysis; and 
➢ Review development permit applications for consistency with the 

designated planned action. 

PROPOSAL REVIEW PROCESS 

• Environmental Review has been satisfied with a Planned Action Final EIS issued 
on November 16, 2015. 

• Public Notice of the Planning Commission Hearing was published in the Skagit 
Valley Herald on November 6, 2015. 

• The State Department of Commerce (COMM) was notified of the proposed 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment on September 21, 2015; an acknowledgment 
letter of the receipt of that notice was received September 22, 2015 (COMM 
material ID #21656). The 60-day review and comment period will end on 
November 20, 2015. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission review the proposed Center Subarea Plan 
(Exhibit A), including the attached memo (Exhibit B) addressing comments received 
during the comment period; review the attached Ordinance (Exhibit C); hold a public 
hearing and make a recommendation to the City Council to adopt the Center Subarea Plan, 
thereby amending the City's Comprehensive Plan with the attached ordinance (with 
Planning Commission recommended amendments if applicable). 

EXHIBITS: 

A. The Center Subarea Plan 
B. Memo addressing comments on the Center Subarea Plan. 
C. Ordinance amending the Comprehensive Plan and adopting the Center Subarea Plan 
D. Updated Public Participation Plan 
E. Procedural Items: Notice of Public Hearing and Commerce correspondence 

Subarea Plan — Comp Plan The Center 
City of Sedro-Woolley 

Page 3 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 151 of 351



The City of Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission herebyrecommends to the City Connell 
APPROVAL of Subarea Plan - The Center for Innovation and Technology at a REGULAR 
meeting of the City of Sedro-Woolley Planning ConnnisSion held on Tuesday Noveiiiber  
2015, at which time a quorum was present and the decision was for aPproval'hY a vOte.o.f._ 
FOR, AGAINST, and  6 ABSTENTIONS. 

CONCLUSIONS 

The Planning Commission, having reviewed the Planning Department Transmittal and 
Report Memorandum and hearing public testimony, makes the following conclusions: 

1. Adoption of the proposed Subarea Plan complies with the State GMA, has been 
approved by the State Department of Commerce, and have been adequately vetted 
through the public review process; and 

2. Adoption of the proposed Subarea Plan is in conformance with the goals and 
policies of the Sedro-Woolley; and 

3. An extensive level of public review and opportunities for the public to participate in 
the process involved with the development of the Center Subarea Plan has been 
provided. The Updated Participation Plan (Exhibit D) outlines the public process 
involved with the annexation of the subject property, subarea planning process and 
EIS process. 

DECISION 

Based upon the foregoing, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the Subarea 
Plan — The Center for Innovation and Technology and any amendments recommended by 
the Planning Commission. 

CERTIFICATION 

- 1g - i4 
Patrick Huggins, Planning C mission Chair 	Date 

Subarea Plan — Comp Plan — The Center 
City of Sedro-Woolley 

Page 4 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 152 of 351



Planning Department 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

Public Participation Opportunities — 
Northern State Hospital Annexation / Adaptive Re-use 

The City of Sedro-Woolley, Port of Skagit and Skagit County have entered into a collaborative 
process to assess potential redevelopment opportunities at the former Northern State Hospital, now 
known as the North Cascades Gateway Center. The collaboration — formally referred to as the 
Adaptive Re-Use Study — began in 2014. The first community meeting was held June 5, 2014. A 
second community meeting was held September 25, 2014. 

As a result of this planning process, potential redevelopment plans for the site have emerged. The 
visions for reuse of the property includes the adaptive reuse of the existing historically significant 
buildings (and appropriate new construction) within the main, historically significant campus core 
area. Potential uses within the defined core include facilities for research and development offices, 
training, education, hospitality and uses open to the general public such as museums, retail, 
restaurants, cafes and open space. 

The following regulatory steps are necessary prior to redeveloping the property: 
• Annexation of the subject property into the City of Sedro-Woolley; 
• Subarea planning process; 
• Preparation of a Planned Action Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) in conjunction with a 

subarea plan; 
• Adoption of a subarea plan into the City Comprehensive Plan; and 
• Adoption of a Planned Action ordinance. 

Below is an outline of the public participation opportunities that are forthcoming: 

Annexation:  
• Public Meeting before the City Council to determine if the City should move forward with the 

annexation petition. April 8, 2015 
o Notice of meeting sent to all property owners within 500 feet of subject property, 

parties of record, agencies and tribe; published in local paper. 
• Boundary Review Board review 45 days. Public comment opportunity. 
• Public Hearing on Annexation before City Council to decide on annexation. 

o Notice of hearing sent to all property owners within 500 feet of subject property, 
parties of record, agencies and tribe; published in local paper. September 9, 2015 

• Concurrent with approval of annexation, a resolution detailing the planned action process for 
the subarea plan will be introduced to the City Council for consideration. 

Subarea Plan and Planned Action EIS:  
• Public Meeting with Planning Commission 3/17 to discuss subarea plan, planned action and 

EIS processes. 
• Determination of Significance I Notice of Public Hearing on Scope of EIS. April 10, 2015 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 153 of 351



o Notice of hearing sent to all property owners within 500 feet of subject property, 
parties of record, agencies and tribe; published in local paper. 45 day public comment 
period and public hearing. 

• DEIS Notice of Availability — 45 day comment period with a Public Meeting (included 
Subarea Plan) during the 45 day comment period. September 29, 2015 

o Notice of hearing sent to all property owners within 500 feet of subject property, 
parties of record, agencies and tribe; published in local paper. 

• Issuance of FEIS. November 16, 2015 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment — Adoption of Subarea Plan and Planned Action Ordinance:  
• Monthly updates at City Planning Commission meetings monthly to discuss updates to the 

EIS and subarea planning processes. 

• Public Meetings: May 6, May 19, June 16, June 24 and November 3, 2015. 

• Upon completion of SEPA process, a public hearing(s) will be held before the Planning 
Commission for recommendation to the City Council. November 17, 2015 

• City Council will hold a public meeting and make a final decision on the Subarea Plan/Comp 
Plan amendment and will take action on the Planned Action Ordinance. Date to be 
determined 

The project at Northern State and the planning processes, including reports and maps, involved with 
the annexation, EIS and subarea plan process have been made available on the City's website and 
copies of information will be available at City Hall. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 154 of 351



Department of Commerce 
Innovation is in our nature. 

Notice of Proposed Amendment 
60-Day Review Prior to Adoption 

Indicate one (or both, if applicable): 

Ej Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
❑ Development Regulation Amendment 

Pursuant to RCW 36.70A.106, the following jurisdiction provides notice of a proposed 
comprehensive plan amendment and/or development regulation amendment under the 
Growth Management Act. 

(If needed, you may expand this form and the fields below, but please try to keep the 
entire form under two pages in length.) 

Jurisdiction: City of Sedro-Woolley 

Mailing Address: 325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Date: 

Contact Name: John Coleman 

Title/Position: Senior Planner 

Phone Number: 360-855-0771 

E-mail Address: jcoleman@ci.sedro-woolley.wa.us  

Brief Description of the 
Proposed/Draft Amendment: 
(40 words or less) 

If this draft amendment is provided 
to supplement an existing 60-day 
notice already submitted, then 
please provide the date the original 
notice was submitted and the 
Commerce Material ID number 
(located in your Commerce 
acknowledgement letter.) 

Example: Proposed amendment to 

Draft Subarea Plan - The Center for Innovation 
and Technology in the Pacific Northwest. 
The above referenced subarea plan will be 
adopted into the City's comprehensive plan. The 
subarea plan will establish a long-term framework 
for the redevelopment of the Center that will 
promote development of a destination mixed-use 
campus accommodating education, research, 
hospitality, manufacturing and commercial uses. 

Rev 09/2011 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 155 of 351



STATE OF WASHINGTON 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
1011 Plum &reel SE • PO Box 42525 • Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 • (360) 725-4000 

www.commerce.wa.gov  

September 22, 2015 

John Coleman 
Planning Director 
City of Sedro Wolley 
325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, Washington 98284 

Dear Mr. Coleman: 

Thank you for sending the Washington State Department of Commerce (Commerce) the following materials as 
required under RCW 36.70A.106. Please keep this letter as documentation that you have met this procedural 
requirement. 

City of Sedro-Woolley - Draft Subarea Plan for The Center for Innovation and Technology in the Pacific 
Northwest. The subarea plan will be adopted into the City's plan and will establish a long-term 
framework for the redevelopment of the Center that will promote development of a destination mixed-
use campus accommodating education, research, hospitality, manufacturing and commercial uses. 
These materials were received on September 21, 2015 and processed with the Material ID # 21656. 

We have forwarded a copy of this notice to other state agencies. 

If this submitted material is an adopted amendment, then please keep this letter as documentation that you 
have met the procedural requirement under RCW 36.70A.106. 

If you have submitted this material as a draft amendment, then final adoption may occur no earlier than 
November 20, 2015. Please remember to submit the final adopted amendment to Commerce within ten 
(10) days of adoption. 

If you have any questions, please contact Growth Management Services at 
reviewteam@commerce.wa.gov, or call Dave Andersen (509) 434-4491. 

Sincerely, 

Review Team 
Growth Management Services 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 156 of 351



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

The Center for Innovation and Technology — Subarea Plan, Planned 
Action Ordinance and Amendments to Chapter 17.32 (Public Zone) of 

the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code 

The City of Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on 
November 17, 2015 at 6:30 PM, at the Sedro-Woolley Council Chambers located at 325 
Metcalf Street, to hear testimony regarding the Subarea Plan (amendment to the City's 
Comprehensive Plan) and Planned Action Ordinance for the Center for Innovation and 
Technology (formally known as the Northern State Campus). Additionally, the Planning 
Commission will hold a public hearing on proposed amendments to Sedro-Woolley 
Municipal Code Chapter 17.32 Public Zone. 

Interested parties can comment on the proposed changes in writing or at the hearing. 
Written comments must be received by 4:30 PM November 17, 2015 to be considered 
at this public hearing. 

Following the public hearing the Planning Commission's recommendation will be 
forwarded to the City Council for consideration and action at a future Council meeting. 

Send written comments to: Sedro-Woolley Planning Department, 325 Metcalf Street, 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284. Complete project files are available for review at the 
Planning Department between the hours of 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM, Monday through 
Friday. 

Published in the Skagit Valley Herald: November 6, 2015 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 157 of 351



SKAGIT PUBLISHING 
C/O ISJ PAYMENT PROCESSING CENTER 

PO BOX 1570 
POCATELLO ID 83204-1570 

(360)424-3251 

ORDER CONFIRMATION 

Salesperson: Jeanette Kales 	 Printed at 11/03/15 09:01 by jka30 

Acct #: 228136 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY PUBLIC WORKS 
325 METCALF ST 
SEDRO WOOLLEY WA 98284 

Ad #: 1374040 	Status: N 

Start: 11/06/2015 	Stop: 11/06/2015 
Times Ord: 1 	Times Run: *** 
STDS 1.00 X 8.05 Words: 206 
Total STDS 8.50 
Class: 0001 LEGAL NOTICES 
Rate: LACR 	 Cost: 89.68 
# Affidavits: 1 

Contact: 	 Ad Descrpt: SVH-1374040 
Phone: 	(360)855-0771 	 Given by: * 
Fax#: 	 Created: 	jka30 11/03/15 08:53 
Email: 	jcoleman@ci.sedro-woolley.wa Last Changed: jka30 11/03/15 09:01 
Agency: 

PUB ZONE ED TP START INS STOP SMTWTFS 
SVH A 	97 S 11/06 
WEB A 	97 S 11/06 

AUTHORIZATION 

Under this agreement rates are subject to change with 30 days notice. In the 
event of a cancellation before schedule completion, I understand that the 
rate charged will be based upon the rate for the number of insertions used. 

Name (print or type) 	 Name (signature) 

(CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE) 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 158 of 351



SKAGIT PUBLISHING 
C/O ISJ PAYMENT PROCESSING CENTER 

PO BOX 1570 
POCATELLO ID 83204-1570 

(360)424-3251 

ORDER CONFIRMATION (CONTINUED) 

Salesperson: Jeanette Kales 	 Printed at 11/03/15 09:01 by jka30 

Acct #: 228136 

NOTICE OF 
PUBLIC HEARING 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
The Center for Innovation 
and Technology Subarea 

Plan, Planned Action 
Ordinance and 

Amendments to 
Chapter 17.32 (Public Zone) 

of the Sedro-Woolley 
Municipal Code 

The City of Sedro-Woolley 
Planning Commission will 
hold a public hearing on 
November 17, 2015 at 6:30 
PM, at the Sedro-Woolley 
Council Chambers located at 
325 Metcalf Street, to hear 
testimony regarding the Sub-
area Plan (amendment to the 
City's Comprehensive Plan) 
and Planned Action Ordi-
nance for the Center for Inno-
vation and Technology (for-
mally known as the Northern 
State Campus). Additionally, 
the Planning Commission will 
hold a public hearing on pro-
posed amendments to Se-
dro-Woolley Municipal Code 
Chapter 17.32 Public Zone. 

Interested parties can com-
ment on the proposed 
changes in writing or at the 
hearing. Written comments 
must be received by 4:30 
PM November 17, 2015 to 
be considered at this public 
hearing. 

Following the public hearing 
the Planning Commission's 
recommendation will be for-
warded to the City Council 
for consideration and action 
at a future Council meeting. 

Send written comments to: 
Sedro-Woolley Planning De-
partment, 325 Metcalf Street, 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284. 
Complete project files are 
available for review at the 
Planning Department be-
tween the hours of 8:00 AM 
to 5:00 PM, Monday through 
Friday. 

Published 
November 6, 2015 

SVH-1374040 

Ad #: 1374040 	• Status: N 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 159 of 351



AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING 

STATE OF WASHINGTON) 

COUNTY OF SKAGIT ) 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

I, JoAnn Lazaron, of the Sedro-Woolley Planning Department in Sedro-Woolley, Washington, 
do hereby swear that on 11-5-15, I mailed a true and correct copy of the attached "Notice of 
Public Hearing-City of Sedro-Woolley The Center for Innovation and Technology-Subarea Plan, 
Planned Action Ordinance and Amendments to Chapter 17.32 (Public Zone) of the Sedro-
Woolley Municipal Code" to the following names and addresses: 

SEE ATTACHED SHEET/S: 

Said notices were enclosed in sealed envelopes, addressed as above with postage fully affixed 
and deposited in the United States Post Office at Sedro-Woolley, Washington on said date. 
Said notices were mailed, on the said date to the attached address list. 

Said notices were e-mailed, on the said date to the attached e-mail address list. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 160 of 351



STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 
) SS. 

COUNTY OF SKAGIT 	) 

On this date personally appeared before me 	INK/N. Lti. 2_6.. 17).4 ,  to me known 
to be the individual described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged 
that she signed the same as her free and voluntary act and deed, for the uses and purposes therein 
mentioned. 

GIVEN Under My Hand and Official Seal this  C  day of  001)0.6ryliapi---,-2015.  

Notary Public in and for the StAe of Washington, 
residing at  	-k-- L!-0 1.61,1.4- 
My Commissio xpi s: 
Print Name: 	t trt e 	Q&z,  r-r-e-D 

JULIE L. ROSARIO 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

NOTARY --.-- PUBLIC 
My Conimbelos Expires 7-22-2017 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 161 of 351



MEMO: 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

City Council 
Mayor Anderson 

Jana Hanson 
Planning Consultant 

December 9, 2015 

2/4/D READING 
OLD BUSINESS 

Subject: Planned Action Ordinance and Mitigation Decision Document, Attachment A - Second 
Read 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

DEC 0 9 2015 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CrIBERS 

Building and Planning Departments 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 AGENDA NO. 	  

ISSUE 

The City of Sedro-Woolley, Skagit County and the Port of Skagit have worked in cooperation to 
develop a subarea plan for the revitalization of the Northern State Campus, now named the Center 
for Innovation and Technology (the Center). A Planned Action Environmental Impact Statement 
(EIS) was completed to study the impacts of future development at the Centre and set the stage 
for planned action activities. The next step in the Planned Action process is the adoption of a 
Planned Action Ordinance which will describe the Planned Action Area, process to determine 
whether a project qualifies as a planned action and the conditions that will apply. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION I HISTORY 

The City of Sedro-Woolley, Skagit County and the Port of Skagit have worked in cooperation to 
develop a subarea plan for the revitalization of the Northern State Campus, now named The Center 
for Innovation and Technology (Center). A Planned Action Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) 
was prepared to satisfy the requirement for environmental review. The next step in the process is 
the adoption of a Planned Action Ordinance, designating those projects that will qualify as planned 
actions and the geographic area that will be defined as the Planned Action Area. The Planned 
Action Ordinance is intended to be as specific as possible, indicating what mitigation measures will 
be required for a project to qualify as a planned action. The required mitigation measures and 
conditions that will apply to development actions at the Center will be specified in Mitigation Decision 
Document, Attachment A (Attachment A), attached to the Planned Action Ordinance. 

The Council will notice that Attachment A references a Design Guideline Manual that will be used to 
protect the character and integrity of the historic district which is defined as the Center core. New 
building design and renovation of existing buildings will be subject to the Design Guideline Manual 
which will be administered by the Port of Skagit. Attachment 3 to this report is a copy of the Port 
adopted Design Guideline Manual. 

The Planned Action EIS and Attachment A will also identify those actions that will not qualify as 
planned actions. Due to the size and complexity of the property, as well as the timing of future 
development, a thorough analysis of conditions and impacts has not been conducted in some areas 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 162 of 351



of the site. Non-qualifying planned action projects may require additional environmental analysis; 
however the scope of review will focus only on environmental impacts not adequately addressed in 
the Planned Action EIS. 

At the beginning of the planning process, City Council passed Resolution 913-15 expressing its 
intent to prepare a Subarea Plan and Planned Action EIS for the Center. To ensure an extensive 
level of public review, a Public Participation Plan was included as an attachment to Resolution 913-
15. The Public Participation Plan outlines the opportunities for public involvement for the 
Annexation, Subarea Plan, and Planned Action Environmental Impact Statement processes. 

Attached to this memo is a proposed Planned Action Ordinance and Mitigation Decision Document, 
Attachment A. 

Council reviewed the attached materials at their meeting on December 2, 2015. 
Staff recommends approving the Planned Action Ordinance and Mitigation Decision Document, 
Attachment A. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment 1  — Proposed Ordinance No. 	and Mitigation Decision Document, Attachment 
A 
Attachment 2  — Planning Commission Findings and Recommendation; Procedural Items 
Attachment 3  - Design Guideline Manual 

REQUESTED ACTION 

Council is requested to make the following motion: 
Motion to approve Ordinance No. 	adopting the Planned Action Ordinance and Mitigation 
Decision Document, Attachment A for the Center for Innovation and Technology. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 163 of 351



Attachment 1 
Proposed Planed Action Ordinance and Mitigation Decision Document, 

Attachment A 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 164 of 351



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON 
APPROVING A PLANNED ACTION FOR THE CENTER FOR INNOVATION 
AND TECHNOLOGY (FORMERLY KNOWN AS THE NORTHERN STATE 
CAMPUS). 

WHEREAS, the City of Sedro-Woolley (City), in partnership with the Port of Skagit and 
Skagit County initiated the preparation of a subarea plan for the redevelopment of The 
Center for Innovation and Technology (Center) consistent with the comprehensive plan; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City passed Resolution No. 913-15 on April 8, 2015 declaring its intent 
to initiate a Planned Action Environmental Impact Statement in accordance with RCW 
43.21C.440 and WAC 197-11-164 the purpose of which is to emphasize quality 
environmental review of early planning efforts and early public input to shape decisions 
concurrent with the preparation of the subarea plan. The basic steps in designating 
planned action projects are to prepare an environmental impact statement (EIS), designate 
the planned action projects by ordinance, and review permit applications for consistency 
with the designated planned action. The intent is to provide more detailed environmental 
analysis during formulation of planning proposals, rather than at the project permit 
review stage; and 

WHEREAS, the designation of a Planned Action expedites the permitting process for 
subsequent implementing projects whose impacts have been previously addressed in a 
Planned Action environmental impact statement (EIS) and thereby encourages desired 
growth and economic development; and 

WHEREAS, to ensure a robust and transparent public process, a Public Participation 
Plan which outlines opportunities for public involvement at the various stages of the 
Annexation, Subarea Plan and the Planned Action EIS processes was prepared and added 
as an exhibit to Resolution No. 913-15; and 

WHEREAS, the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) and implementing rules 
provide for the integration of environmental review and land use planning and project 
review through the designation of "Planned Actions" by jurisdictions planning under the 
Growth Management Act (GMA); and 

WHEREAS, a Draft Environmental Impact Statement (DEIS) was issued on September 
18, 2015 with a 45-day public comment period. A public hearing on the DEIS was held 
on September 29, 2015; and 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 165 of 351



WHEREAS, the City received comments during the 45-day public comment period and 
those comments are addressed in the Final Environmental Impact Statement (FEIS) 
issued November 16, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the City adopted a Subarea Plan to help guide development within the 
Planned Action Area; and 

WHEREAS, the Center Planned Action EIS identifies impacts and mitigation measures 
associated with planned development in the Center; and 

WHEREAS, the City, with approval of this Planned Action Ordinance, will adopt 
development regulations and conditions which will help protect the environment and are 
specific to the Center, which will guide the location, form, and quality of desired 
development; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that adopting this ordinance is in the interest of the 
public and will advance public health, safety, and welfare; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON 
DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION ONE:  The City Council does hereby adopt the above listed recitals as set 
forth fully herein. 

SECTION TWO:  PURPOSE 

The City Council declares that the purpose of this ordinance is to: 

A. Combine analysis of environmental impacts with the City's development of plans and 
regulations; 

B. Designate The Center as a Planned Action area and the land uses and activities 
described in the Center's Subarea Plan and EIS as planned actions for purposes of 
environmental review of subsequent implementing projects pursuant to the State 
Environmental Policy Act (SEPA), RCW 43.21C.440; 

C. Establish criteria and procedures, consistent with state law, that will determine 
whether subsequent projects will qualify as Planned Actions; 

D. Provide the public with information about Planned Actions and how the city will 
process implementing projects; 

E. Streamline and expedite the land use review and approval process by relying on the 
environmental impact statement (EIS) completed for the planned action; and 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 166 of 351



F. Apply the City's development regulations together with the mitigation measures and 
conditions described in the EIS and this ordinance (Mitigation Decision Document, 
Attachment A) to address the impacts of future development contemplated by the 
Planned Action. 

SECTION THREE: FINDINGS 

The City Council finds that: 

A. The Center Subarea Plan and Planned Action Environmental Impact Statement have 
addressed all anticipated significant environmental impacts associated with the land uses 
and activities allowed and described in the plan except where stated that additional 
review may be required; 

B. The thresholds described in the EIS are adequate to identify significant adverse 
impacts analyzed in The Center Subarea Plan and EIS; 

C. The mitigation measures and conditions contained in Mitigation Decision 
Document, Attachment A of this ordinance, together with the City's development 
standards, are adequate to mitigate significant adverse environmental impacts, except 
where stated that additional review may be required; 

D. The expedited permit review procedure for Planned Action projects described in the 
City's Consolidated Planning Procedures, Chapter 2.90 SWMC, will be a benefit to the 
public, provide protection to the environment and enhance economic development; 

E. It is in the public interest to adopt the Planned Action ordinance; 

F. Public involvement and review of the Center Subarea Plan and Planned Action EIS 
have been thorough, robust and adequate to ensure that the plan bears a substantial 
relationship to the public interest, health, safety and welfare; and 

G. The uses and conditions described in Mitigation Decision Document, Attachment 
A, together with city development regulations, will implement the Subarea Plan. 

SECTION 4: PROCEDURE AND CRITERIA FOR EVALUATING AND 
DETERMINING PROJECTS AS PLANNED ACTIONS 

A. This Planned Action Ordinance will apply to project proposals within the 
approximately 225-acre area depicted in Mitigation Decision Document, Attachment 
A.  

B. Land uses and activities described in The Center Subarea Plan and EIS, subject to the 
thresholds described therein and the mitigation measures and conditions described in 
Mitigation Decision Document, Attachment A, are Planned Actions pursuant to RCW 
43.21C.440, except where stated that additional review under SEPA may be required. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 167 of 351



C. A land use permit application for a site-specific project shall be designated as a 
planned action if it meets the criteria set forth in Sections 3, 4 and 7 of this ordinance and 
is otherwise consistent with the provisions of this ordinance and applicable laws, codes, 
and standards of the state and city. 

D. Planned action projects will not require a SEPA threshold determination or the 
preparation of an environmental impact statement, but shall be conditioned on the basis 
of the Mitigation Decision Document, Attachment A to this ordinance and framework 
described in Sections 3, 4 and 7 of this ordinance and other applicable City development 
regulations. 

E. The Director of the City of Sedro-Woolley Department of Building and Planning 
(Director), or the Director's designee, is hereby authorized to designate a project 
described in and proposed by a land use permit application as a planned action pursuant 
to RCW 4321C.440 if the project application meets the following conditions: 

(1) The project is located within the boundaries of the Center Subarea Plan and as 
adopted by the City Council on December 9, 2015, or as thereafter amended; 

(2) The use described in and proposed by the project application is among or 
consistent with the uses and intensities of uses described as permitted within the Center 
Subarea Plan and by the table of uses, conditions and mitigation measures listed in 
Mitigation Decision Document, Attachment A; 

(3) The project's significant environmental impacts are among or consistent with 
those that have been adequately addressed in The Center Planned Action EIS and the 
Center Subarea Plan (except where stated that additional review under SEPA may be 
required), and the project is determined by the Director to be a use that implements the 
Subarea Plan and the Comprehensive Plan; 

(4) The Director has determined that the project's significant environmental 
impacts, if any, have been mitigated through the application of the Mitigation Decision 
Document, Attachment A, and the framework described in this ordinance, and that 
mitigation measures as well as other city requirements and conditions constitute 
sufficient mitigation for any significant environmental impacts associated with the 
proposed project unless otherwise stated in the Planned Action EIS and the Mitigation 
Decision Document, Attachment A; 

(5) The proposed project is in compliance with all applicable local, state and 
federal regulations and development standards; and 

(6) The proposed project is not an essential public facility as defined in RCW 
36.70A.200, unless an essential public facility is accessory to or part of a residential, 
office, school, commercial, recreational, service, or industrial development that is 
designated a planned action under this subsection; and 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 168 of 351



F. Upon designation by the Director that the project qualifies as a planned action, the 
project shall not be subject to a SEPA threshold determination, an environmental impact 
statement, or any additional review under SEPA. 

G. All uses listed in Mitigation Decision Document, Attachment A to this Ordinance 
shall be considered as planned actions. In addition to the uses listed in Mitigation 
Decision Document, Attachment A, all land subdivisions, short plats, long plats and 
binding site plans shall considered as planned actions. Future development, as described 
in the Subarea Plan and Planned Action EIS shall be considered planned actions unless 
otherwise stated in the Planned Action EIS and Mitigation Decision Document, 
Attachment A. If future development is not considered a planned action, then additional 
review under SEPA may be required to evaluate impacts that were not considered in the 
Planned Action EIS. A determination that a project qualifies as a planned action shall be 
defined as a Review Process II decision, per Chapter 2.90 SWMC, Consolidated Planning 
Procedures. No appeal of a Director's determination that a project listed in Mitigation 
Decision Document, Attachment A qualifies as a planned action is provided. 

H. The determinations and notice for land use applications shall be provided in Chapter 
2.90 SWMC or other applicable land use permit or regulatory requirements under City 
ordinances, unless explicitly modified by this ordinance, and state or federal laws. 
However, projects which qualify as planned actions will not be subject to further 
procedural review under SEPA. 

I. The planned actions authorized and designated by this ordinance shall be limited to 
those land uses which are located within the Center Subarea Plan and addressed in the 
EIS. 

J. Being designated a planned action means that a proposed project has been reviewed in 
accordance with this ordinance and procedures and found to be consistent with the 
Subarea Plan and environmental analysis. The significant environmental impacts have 
been analyzed as a part of the plan, and mitigation measures have been identified, 
including but not limited to compliance with existing City ordinances and codes except as 
specifically modified for the Center Subarea Plan in this planned action ordinance and 
contained within Mitigation Decision Document, Attachment A. 

K. Planned actions will not be subject to further procedural review under SEPA. 
However, projects will be subject to conditions designed to mitigate significant adverse 
environmental impacts which are likely to result from the project proposal, and projects 
will be subject to permit requirements as appropriate under state and City laws and 
ordinances. The planned action designation shall not excuse a project from meeting the 
City's applicable land use permit requirements apart from the SEPA process. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 169 of 351



SECTION FIVE: DISQUALIFIED PROJECTS 

Projects which are not consistent with the subarea plan and the environmental analysis of 
the Planned Action EIS shall not be considered as planned actions, but may continue 
through another permit process, and may use or incorporate relevant elements of the 
environmental review analysis completed for the Center Subarea Plan. 

SECTION SIX: ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS 

A planned action for a site-specific land use permit application shall be based on the 
environmental analysis contained in the Center Planned Action EIS, or as hereafter 
amended. This Planned Action EIS, including potential mitigation measures, is hereby 
incorporated in this ordinance and adopted by reference. The Mitigation Decision 
Document, Attachment A to this ordinance, is based upon the analysis in the EIS. 
Mitigation Decision Document, Attachment A, together with the existing City codes, 
ordinances, and standards, shall provide the framework for the decision by the City to 
impose conditions on a planned action project. Other environmental documents and 
studies listed in the EIS and the Center Subarea Plan may also be used to assist in 
analyzing impacts and determining appropriate mitigation measures in accordance with 
Section 4 of this ordinance. 

SECTION SEVEN: PLANNED ACTION AND PROCESS 

Applications for planned actions shall be reviewed pursuant to the following process: 

A. Development applications shall meet the application requirements of the City's 
planned action review procedure, Chapter 2.90 SWMC. Applications shall be made on 
forms provided by the City and shall include a SEPA Checklist or revised SEPA 
Checklist or such other environmental review forms provided by the City. The Checklist 
may be incorporated into the form of the application; 

B. The Director shall determine whether the application is complete as provided for in 
Chapter 2.90 SWMC. 

C. If the project application is within the area designated for planned actions in this 
ordinance, the application shall be reviewed to determine whether the proposed 
development is consistent with and meets all of the qualifications specified in Section 4E 
of this ordinance. 

D. Upon review of a complete application by the City, the Director shall determine 
whether the project qualifies as a planned action. If the project does qualify, the Director 
shall notify the applicant, and the project should proceed in accordance with the 
appropriate permit procedure. No additional SEPA review, threshold determination or 
EIS shall be required. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 170 of 351



E. A proposal that qualifies as a planned action shall not require public notice unless the 
underlying project permit requires that the City notify the public of a pending application. 
If notice is required, the notice shall state that the project has qualified as a planned 
action. 

F. If the project is determined not to be a planned action, the Department shall notify the 
applicant and prescribe a SEPA review procedure consistent with the City of Sedro-
Woolley's SEPA procedures and state laws. The notice shall describe the elements of the 
application that result in disqualification as a planned action. The Department may 
choose to limit the scope of the SEPA review to those issues and environmental impacts 
not previously addressed in the EIS and Subarea Plan. Furthermore, the Department and 
the applicant shall have access to the EIS and Subarea Plan, as well as other 
environmental documents, to assist in meeting SEPA requirements. 

SECTION EIGHT:  PROMULAGATION AND RULES 

The Director is authorized to promulgate rules and procedures necessary for the 
implementation of this ordinance. 

SECTION NINE:  MONITORING AND REVIEW 

A. The City shall monitor the progress of development in the designated Planned Action 
area to ensure that it is consistent with this ordinance and the Planned Action EIS 
regarding the type and amount of development and associated impacts, and with the 
mitigation measures and improvements planned for the Center. 

B. This Planned Action ordinance shall be reviewed no later than December 31, 2020 by 
the Director to determine continuing relevance of its assumptions and findings with 
respect to environmental conditions in the Planned Action area, the impacts of 
development, and required mitigation measures. Based upon this review the City may 
propose amendments to this ordinance and/or may supplement or revise the Planned 
Action EIS. 

SECTION TEN:  CONFLICT 

In the event of a conflict between the ordinance or any mitigation measures imposed 
pursuant thereto and any ordinance or regulation of the City, the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall control. 

SECTION ELEVEN:  EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance, being an exercise of a power specifically delegated to the City legislative 
body shall be deemed annexed to the City (5) five days after its passage, approval and 
publication as provided by law. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 171 of 351



SECTION TWELVE.  SEVERABILITY 

Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance, or its 
application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or otherwise 
invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this Ordinance be pre-empted by state or 
federal law or regulation, such decision or pre-emption shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances 

SECTION THIRTEEN:  CORRECTIONS 

The City Clerk and the codifiers of this ordinance are authorized to make necessary 
corrections to this ordinance including, but not limited to, the correction of scrivener's or 
clerical errors, references, ordinance numbering, section and subsection numbers and any 
references thereto. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this th day of 	 , 2015. 

SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS 	day of 	 , 2015 

MIKE ANDERSON, Mayor 

PATSY NELSON, Finance Director 

Approved as to form: 

ERON BERG, City Attorney 

Published 	  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 172 of 351



Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 173 of 351



ATTACHMENT A 

MITIGATION DECISION DOCUMENT 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 174 of 351



CONTENTS 
TABLES AND ILLUSTRATIONS 	 IV 

ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 	 V 

1 	INTRODUCTION 	 1 
1.1 	INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE 	 1 
1.2 	LOCATION 	 1 
1.3 	GENERAL INTERPRETATION 	 1 

2 	PROPOSAL AND PLANNED ACTIONS 	 3 
2.1 	PROPOSAL 	 3 
2.2 SUMMARY OF SUBAREA PLAN 	 3 
2.3 	PREFERRED ALTERNATIVE 	 5 
2.4 DEVELOPMENT THRESHOLDS 	 6 

3 	DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 	 7 
3.1 	GENERAL BUILDING LOCATION AND ORIENTATION 	 7 
3.2 	INTERNAL STREETS IN CORE AREA 	 7 
3.3 PARKING 	 7 
3.4 SIGNAGE, LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING 	 8 

4 	MITIGATION MEASURES 	 9 
4.1 	ADDITIONAL PERMITS AND APPROVALS 	 15 

PAGE Iii 

Planned Action Ordinance Attachment A - Mitigation Decision Document 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 175 of 351



TABLES AND ILLUSTRATIONS 

TABLES 

TABLE A-1. PERMITTED USES AND THEIR LOCATIONS 

TABLE A-2. DEVELOPMENT THRESHOLDS 

TABLE A-3. MITIGATION MEASURES 

FIGURES 

A-1 	THE CENTER PLANNED ACTION AREA 

A-2 	CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN 

A-3 SUBAREA LAND USE MAP 

A-4 	HISTORIC DISTRICT BOUNDARY AND CONTRIBUTING BUILDINGS 

PAGE IV 

Planned Action Ordinance Attachment A - Mitigation Decision Document 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 176 of 351



ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS 

Center 	 The Center for Innovation and Technology 
CFR 	 Code of Federal Regulations 
City 	 City of Sedro-Woolley 
County 	 Skagit County 
DES 	 State of Washington Department of Enterprise Services 
DEIS 	 Draft Environmental Impact Statement 
Ecology 	 Washington State Department of Ecology 
EIS 	 Environmental Impact Statement 
FEIS 	 Final Environmental Impact Statement 
JARPA 	 Joint Aquatic Resources Permit Application 
Port 	 Port of Skagit 
RCW 	 Revised Code of Washington 
SEPA 	 State Environmental Policy Act 
UGA 	 Urban Growth Area 
WAC 	 Washington Administrative Code 

PAGE V 

Planned Action Ordinance Attachment A - Mitigation Decision Document 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 177 of 351



al INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Introduction and Purpose 

The State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) requires environmental review for project and non-
project proposals that are likely to have adverse impacts upon the environment. In order to meet 
SEPA requirements for review of a Subarea Plan for the Center for Innovation and Technology (the 
Center, formerly referred to as the Northern State Property), the City of Sedro-Woolley (City), in 
partnership with Skagit County (County) and the Port of Skagit County (Port), conducted a Planned 
Action Environmental Impact Statement in accordance with RCW 43.21.C.031(2) and WAC 197-11-
164. The purpose of utiii7ing the planned action review process was to emphasize quality 
environmental review of early planning efforts and early public input to shape decisions. 

The City issued the Draft Environmental Impact Statement (DEIS) for the Center for Innovation 
and Technology (the Center) Subarea Plan on September 18, 2015 and the Final Environmental 
Impact Statement (FEIS) on November 16, 2015. The DEIS together with the FEIS is referenced 
herein as the "EIS". The EIS has identified significant beneficial and adverse impacts that are 
anticipated to occur with the future development of the Center, together with a number of possible 
measures to mitigate those significant adverse impacts. 

The purpose of this Mitigation Document is to establish specific mitigation measures, based upon 
significant adverse impacts identified in the EIS. The mitigation measures shall apply to future 
development proposals which are located within the Center Planned Action Area (see Figure A-1), 
and which are consistent with the Preferred Concept Plan reviewed in the EIS (see Figure A-2). 

1.2 Location 

The Center property is located in the northeast corner of the City of Sedro-Woolley (see Figure A-
1). The Center has been in the Sedro-Woolley Urban Growth Area (UGA) since 1997. Annexation 
of the property into the City was approved by City Council on September 9, 2015. The annexation 
became effective on September 19, 2015. The Center is located north of State Route (SR) 20 and 
east of Fruitdale Road. The approximately 225-acre property consists of four large tax parcels 
(P380607, P39356, P100646, and P100632). The Center is bordered on the north, east, and south by 
the Skagit County Northern State Recreation Area. Residential and rural uses of varying densities 
border the west side of the Center. 

1.3 General Interpretation 

Where a mitigation measure includes the words "shall" or "will," inclusion of that measure in project 
plans is mandatory in order to qualify a project as a Planned Action. Where "should" or "would" 
appear, the mitigation measure may be considered by the project applicant as a source of additional 
mitigation, as feasible or necessary, to ensure that a project qualifies as a Planned Action. 

PAGE 1 

Planned Action Ordinance Attachment A - Mitigation Decision Document 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 178 of 351



Unless stated specifically otherwise, the mitigation measures that require preparation of plans, 
conduct of studies, construction of improvements, conduct of maintenance activities, etc., are the 
responsibility of the applicant or designee to fund and/or perform. 

PAGE 2 
Planned Action Ordinance Aitochment A - Mitigation Decision Document 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 179 of 351



2 PROPOSAL AND PLANNED ACTIONS 

2.1 Proposal 

The proposal is to promote development of a destination mixed-use campus accommodating 
education, research and development, hospitality, manufacturing and commercial venues, all within 
the historic character and great public spaces of the Center. It is envisioned that redevelopment 
within the Center will include the renovation and adaptive reuse of existing historically contributing 
buildings (and appropriate new construction) within the Core Area of the Center (see Figure A-3). 
Adjacent to the historic core area, additional uses would be allowed in the Influence Area including 
manufacturing and fabrication. 

The Proposed Action consists of several related decisions by the City of Sedro-Woolley (with 
involvement, as appropriate by the County and the Port) regarding The Center Subarea Plan, 
including: 

• Approval of the FEIS as a document that is adequate for SEPA compliance, decision 
making, and implementation of the upfront SEPA process; 

• Adoption and implementation of the associated Planned Action Ordinance for the 
project; and 

• Adoption of The Center Subarea Plan and approval of amendments to the Sedro-
Woolley Municipal Code (Titles 2, 14, 15, 16, and 17) that are necessary to carry out the 
intent of the Subarea Plan. 

2.2 Summary of Subarea Plan 

The Subarea Plan establishes a set of goals and policies along with a land use plan that promoted 
redevelopment and respects the character of the historic district. The land use plan organizes and 
directs future uses to three defined development spaces called the "Core," the "Influence" and the 
"Open Space" Areas (see Table 1 and Figure A-3). The land use plan is a major mitigating measure, 
directing appropriate uses to specific areas within the Center. 

• The Core includes the historic central section of the Center, where the primary 
functions of the Northern State Hospital once existed, and includes the Administration 
Building, Hub Building, and Wards. 

• The Influence Areas include the support facilities of the former hospital (the 
Powerhouse, Maintenance Buildings, and shops) and the largely undeveloped property 
south of Thompson Drive. 

• The surrounding Open Space area is intended to preserve natural systems and open 
spaces while providing a buffer between adjacent land uses. Infrastructure and parking is 
also allowed within this area. 

The following table specifies the appropriate uses allowable within the Center and directs those uses 
to specific areas within the Center (see Table A-1). Development activities, with the exception of 

PAGE 3 
Planned Action Ordinance Attachment A - Mitigation Decision Document 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 180 of 351



infrastructure and recreational and public activities, would be restricted to locations in the designated 
Core or Influence Areas. 

Table A-1. Permitted Uses and Their Locations 

Public Uses (such as a museum, 
library, interpretive center, and 
government uses) 

.c7 i7-19 .;.\(V 

Allowed 

ii1"111) 

Allowed 

. open Space 

Limited recreational 
use and public 
parking allowed 

Education and Workforce 
Training 

Allowed Allowed Prohibited 

Research and Development Allowed Allowed Prohibited 

Assembly and Fabrication Prohibited Allowed Prohibited 

Office Allowed Allowed Prohibited 

Restaurant and Retail Allowed Allowed Prohibited 

Hospitality Allowed Allowed Prohibited 

Specialty Residential Allowed Allowed Prohibited 

Trails Allowed Allowed Allowed 

Surface Parking Allowed Allowed Allowed 

Structured Parking .:PrOJ-;111:iited' Allowed 

	

3'77 T; 	Vigh,TOft-  -, 

	

---• 	_ 	.-r:-. ,q-r:',,,  

PAGE 4 
Planned Action Ordinance Attachment A - Mitigation Decision Document 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 181 of 351



2.3 Preferred Alternative 

The preferred alternative assumes that the Subarea Plan and related development regulation 
amendments, including an update to the Public zone, are approved. Future development is guided 
by the goals and policies of the Subarea Plan. Permitted uses are defined, and siting of those uses is 
directed toward appropriate locations within the Center. 

Preferred Alternative 

The preferred development alternative is based on Alternative 3: High Intensity Site Development, 
with some modification (See Figure A-2). The Preferred Alternative does not include a new building 
in the open lawn southeast of the Denny/Administrative Building. A building in that location was 
identified in the DEIS as creating an impact to historic resources that could not be mitigated. 

The preferred alternative assumes that uses and locations of development comply with the Subarea 
Plan goals and policies and generally conform to the Concept Plan (see Figure A-2). In this 
alternative: 

• Total development is constrained to a total of 950,000 square feet of building space 
(exclusive of parking structures). 
- The defined Core Area, consisting of approximately 400,000 square feet of existing 

historically contributing buildings and facilities, would be renovated in phases for 
appropriate adaptive reuse. 
Architecturally inappropriate buildings in the Core Area would be demolished. 
Demolition of two cottages in the designated Influence Area that are identified as 
"contributing" on the National Register of Historic Places application, but that have 
lost historic integrity through extensive alterations. 
Demolition of former apartment buildings in the Influence Area that are currently 
used as office space which are not identified as contributing to the historic district. 

- Assumes construction of new buildings in the Core Area totaling approximately 
130,000 square feet. These buildings would be situated approximate to the former 
locations of historical buildings that have been demolished. 

- Approximately 400,000 square feet of additional building space would be 
constructed in the designated Influence Areas. 

- Additional new loop roads would be constructed south of Thompson Drive and 
north of the Northern State Road to serve new development. 

- A parking garage would be constructed. 

• Existing long-term leases would be honored (or revised with mutual agreement). 
• Public access opportunities would be enhanced through development of parking, trails, 

recreational opportunities, and buildings open to the public. 

PAGE 5 
Planned Action Ordinance Attachment A - Mitigation Decision Document 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 182 of 351



2.4 Development Thresholds 

The EIS analysis and mitigation measures are based on the following development thresholds (see 
Table A-2). Proposed projects that exceed these thresholds should not be designated as Planned 
Actions and should require additional environmental review. 

Table A-2. Development Thresholds 

rbgreWitierft Mcixinitnn threshoid ---1R7  

Building Space (not including parking) 

Core Area 530,000 square feet 

Influence Areas 400,000 square feet 

Total 950,000 square feet 

Traffic triloS 

Total Daily Trips 6,213 trips 

Evening Peak 666 trips 

. 	..... 	. 	,„ 	... 	,-  
IMpOrvicius Surface 	 . 

„ 	. 	. 	, 	.., 
Buildings (assumed non-pollution generating surfaces) 24.1 acres 

Roads and Parking (assumed pollution generating surfaces) 19.7 acres 

Total Impervious Surface 43.8 acres 

I •'- 
PlifiNKO6iiiaict ' 	- 	' 

_. 	 - N. 

■ 

Potable Water / Sewer Demand 48,830 gallons per day 

,. 
Wetldinds (Bas-ed on aii-OfWs:of first pha.S0 of deSlelOprt0ht),, 

,.._ 
Wetland Impacts 0.139 acres 

Wetland Buffer Impacts 0.329 acres 

PAGE 6 
Planned Action Ordinance Attachment A Mitigation Decision Document 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 183 of 351



3 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

Based on the Center Subarea Plan goals, policies, and land use map; the following standards will 
apply to proposed developments within the Planned Action Area (Figure A-1). These requirements 
will be applied in addition to City development regulations including, but not limited to Sedro-
Woolley Municipal Code (SWMC) Titles 2, 14, 15, 16, and 17). 

3.1 General Building Location and Orientation 

1. Construction of new buildings and rehabilitation of existing buildings in the Core Area 
should be limited to the general area of former footprints or now-demolished historic 
structures from the Historic District's "Period of Significance" (1909.1959); together with 
allowance for some building expansion. The locations of historic buildings identified in the 
National Register of Historic Places are shown in Figure A-4. Buildings are categorized as 
"contributing" to the historic character of the district, or "non-contributing" as defined in 
the nomination form for the National Register of Historic Places. 

2. New buildings (and their front entries) located in the Core Area and Influence Area should 
be positioned along the existing narrow east-west roads consistent with the original Olmsted 
Concept that defined the site. Lawns and plantings should surround each distinctly-defined 
building in the landscape. 

3.2 Internal Streets in Core Area 

To protect the historic character of the facility, the roadway system remaining from the Period of 
Significance should guide the placement, size, and design feeling of any new or replacement 
roadways. The road system within the Center dating from the Period of Significance should remain 
in place. Ownership and maintenance of the roadway should not be the responsibility of the City. 
The character of the roads, pathways and related improvements, for both new and existing, shall 
retain a rural campus character defined by lawns and plantings growing to the edge of the road 
surfaces without curbs. 

3.3 Parking 

To maintain the campus character and promote interactions between uses, required parking for 
existing and proposed uses may be distributed through the Center. Parking requirements will be 
based on types of use and ratios defined in SWMC 17.36, but the Director of the Planning 
Department will have discretion to adjust these numbers based on opportunities for shared parking 
between uses. 

Parking should be restricted on streets that are less than 24 feet in width to maintain access for 
emergency vehicles. Required parking for existing and proposed uses may be distributed throughout 
the site to satisfy building/use parking requirements. However large parking in the Influence Area is 
preferred over large parking lot construction in the Core. 

PAGE 7 
Planned Action Ordinance Attachment A - Mitigation Decision Document 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 184 of 351



3.4 Signage, Landscaping and Lighting 

Internal signage, landscaping and lighting shall be consistent with the design guidelines and 
approved by the Port. Signage, landscaping and lighting visible from Fruitdale Road shall be 
consistent with City Codes and approved by the City (SWMC 17.40 and 17.50). 

PAGE 8 
Planned Action Ordinance Attachment A - Mitigation Decision Document 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 185 of 351



4 MITIGATION MEASURES 

Based on the EIS, this Mitigation Measures section identifies significant adverse environmental 
impacts that are anticipated to occur as a result of development of planned action projects. The EIS 
mitigation measures are intended to minimize impacts that are not sufficiently addressed in existing 
local, state, and federal laws and regulations. Mitigation measures identified in the EIS are reiterated 
here for inclusion in proposed projects to mitigate related impacts and to qualify as Planned Action 
projects. 

Consistency review under the Planned Action, development plan review, and other permit approvals 
will be required for specific development actions under the Proposed Action pursuant to WAC 197-
11-172. Additional project conditions may be imposed on planned action projects based upon the 
analysis of the proposal in relationship to independent requirements of the City, state or federal 
requirements or review criteria. 

Any applicant for a project within the Planned Action area may propose alternative mitigation 
measures, if appropriate and/or as a result of changed circumstances, in order to allow equivalent 
substitute mitigation for identified impacts. Such modifications shall be evaluated by the City's 
SEPA Responsible Official prior to any project approvals by the City. 

In combination, regulations applicable to each element of the environment and mitigation measures 
identified in the EIS and documented in this Mitigation Document that are applied to any planned 
action proposal will adequately mitigate all significant environmental impacts associated with 
planned action proposals, except for those impacts that are identified as "significant unavoidable 
adverse impacts." 

Table A-3 identifies for each element of the environment analyzed in the EIS for the proposed 
action: 

• Summary of significant environmental impacts and unavoidable adverse impacts 
• Mitigation measures established by this Mitigation Document for the Planned Action 

study area. 
• Phasing for implementation of mitigation measures 

PAGE 9 
Planned Action Ordinance Attachment A - Mitigation Decision Document 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 186 of 351



CD 
C
 

-c 
44. 

3
 
3
 

w 
0
 
A
 

5
 
5
 
3
:
 

2
 
2
 
2
 

 
-a 

'0
 

0
 - 0

 
C

 
C

 
C

 
 

O
 

0
 
0
 

 

cS 
g

 C
 
i3  

O
 
t
 

15 
o
 
o
 
2
 

a
 
a

a
 

a
 
a
 
 
0
 

a
 

0
 
 
=
 

E
 
g
 

c
 

 
t
 
a
 
a
 

t
 

0
 

a
 
 

"
a
 
1
5
 
5
 

t
 
t
 
t
 

O
 
0
 
a
 
0
 
a
 

a
 
 

6
 

0
 
0

 
C

I 	
13 	

.1") 
g
g
 .OfF3 

, g .- gg. 
12 6., g a

C
k

a
 

.. 	
t'.4 	

''i 
c
•i 

4) 

.0 
.E 
'
0
 

C
O

I 

>. 
3
 

1
3
0
=
 

s
u
ad.t 

 
279,g1 

i, 
g
6
l
a
t
 

g
0

0
 

 
c
i
`
“
g
t
 

E
0
I1.

2
-
 

W
b

r
i
'
la

u
2
E
 

.
4
2
6
0
0
.
8
4
7
43P
 

re
5
Z
.
E
i
V
(2
$
 

O
.
2
t
r
;
"
6
"
-
 

E
4
2
.
7
:
g
0
E
a

l
g
;
t
 

t
;
3
8
-
E
 
,
E
t
a
0
o
o
 
 

"
g
,
t
,
o
5
E
2
g
g
D
7
5
1
E
-
g
 

E
E
a
8
8.
2
1
2

.716
g
0
 

 
t
n
3
U
0
-
"
g
t

iT2
c
l
o
a
"
 

4
E
0
2
2
<
-
 

N
 

• 1 	
4.6 

E
 

I
)
 
0

 
 

g
 	

0- 
0

 

▪  

0
-
 
°
T,
 

 
u 	

0
 
 

8
 
8
 
8 2 
 
-
c
 cp 

- 	
C

C  .€
 	

4,C 
2
 	

g 	
41 

v
15 -ti 	

E x, 
 

o 
a 	

'
C
o
 

0
;
S
E
c
g
!
 
0
.
 

61
.0
2
2
2

...E
-8
 

E
-
-
0
a
B
a

tii'ag 
,
c
c
.-
a

c
=
 

o
0
0
=
°

g
0

16 
17"
E
p
t
=
E
m
o
t
 

 
.
2
,
7
,
3
0
+
=
2
.
0
m
 

 
■13 

U
t

-eic
r) 
 

A
'
t
p

E

• 

E
g
 

0
R
4
0
0
-
2
.0
8
 

v
0

E
-E
m
m

a
 

 
2
g
a

-.
0
4
E
 

t
2
f
g
1
D
-
0
t
6
-
 

8
,
7
2
2
.
m
 

 
s
2
2
 

-0 	
c
 
0
 

ig
;
M
D
 

f
 
c
c
p
z
i
.
 

E
 

s
 
2
 	

oat 
t
§
 
E
4
 

15g
g
h
 

g
 
0 2.461.s 
,
 
	

•
=
u
 
E
0
-
-
 

u
 
 
D
g
c
„
E
;
 

0
0
0
 	

a
.
.
0
t
 

M
E
 
6
6
g
Z
E
 

s
E
p
,
t
i
R
.
?
=
-
 
°
)
 

.2 
o
 
c
 
,
.
.
8
2
1
3
,
_13-2 

c
o
s
2
=
0
-
 
u
,
 
a
 

t
i
n
t
g
fo
.
1
,'
 

:T-12
,3,6-

2
h
a

E, 
 

”
L
g
f
f
i
g

u-
t
 

E
.
0
3
.
2
0
2
=
t
117,2

 
E
k
S
2
6
-
2

5t4
S
E
 

4
3

7
5

c
2

0
0

-
51.1

3
0
 

ts
.
7..

5
5
3
7„
)
.
2
0
o
0
•
0
 

 
U
 

 
•
 
•
 

V] 

15 
.2

 
.2

 	̀
45 c l 

D
 

	

, .° 	
co 	

2
 	

C
-0

 
(0

›-  
:12

 	
ig

. 

	

-DE, 	
15 

 
.
 C

 

	

.
2
7
6
°
 
	
2
 

 
a
i
n
 

	

2
5
k
 	
0 -5 	

c';'' 
exE> 

-0 
E
l
g
 
t
q
l
 
g
 

0
8
 
T
i
„
.
g
..1 -g-E 

-0
 •E

 L
 . 

.0
-
E

 s
t 

t
o
.
 
.
.
.
 

2
 
0
 
2
-
1
3
 
.
0
-
0
 

6
1
8
 
0
0
s
 
2
2
 

.
E
0
.
=
 

a
 

	

p6),?; 	
c.c'd; 	

E
-
 

0
0
 

.
1
3
E
 
_
1
1
,
E
m
 
,
 
_
c
 

 
c
E
0
 
1
;
'
g
'
 
2
1
3
 

-
 

,
7
.
1
:
 
.
-
T
A
-
 
0
v
 

a
w
z
o
c
g
e
,
t
1
 
I
l
g
 

I
R
T
-
2
0
 
8
 

„
E
E
.
a
 
G
.
0
 

.
.
.
0
0
-
o
x
 	

,T,,,- 
C
O
M
.
-
-
.
3
]
 

41-3
-g

?
g

f
f
t

0
P

3
R

U
 

la_
E

J
O

g
..9

.4
2

 
E

m
ilb..m

:
C

O
R

g
E
,-  

'E
tI•6

 =
 0

0
 .- 

-
0
1
1
1
7
E
 
E
n
.
_
'
-
a
-
 
0
 

c
0
0
,..u-, 
 
-
 
-
 

0
 

U 
E
•
 	

• 	
• 	

• 
O

f 

4D
E
 	

cu 
>

 
U

 	
ID 

0
 

32 
a
 
I
 

,
 

E
 

c
"
0
 
1
.
 

0
c
 	

'ai 	
5 

n
o
 

0
 

2
3
 
a
 

o
i:1 oo 

E
 

B
is 	

01c 
-
8
t
 
0
a
 
t
 

4
 

17, 	
5.6) 

c
 

.,._ 0
 	

E
 ,,, 

 
4 u • - 

tE
 1

1
 

t
 
t

e  
.
 

0
 

g. 	
D

 
3
-
 

-0
 

t
I
E
 
Vg. 

fi 
0
-
 
.
-
-
 

0
 
 

6' _ - 	
• o 

3);
 
3
0
i
 
I
 

U
 
O
M

,..). 0.-.E 
.... 	

......-- 
O
 
t
i
n
!
 

I
t
I
V
A
a

ll"1
 

a
8
.t
2
.
;
t
7D
S 

L
r
8
6
.
2
,,t-,< 

 
-,E

0-0..2
0
-
0
2
 

V 
• 

• 

GeotechnIcal 

Planned Action  Ordinance  Attocivnen1 A  —  Mlfgotion  Decision  Document 

Unavoidable  Adverse  impacts  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 187 of 351



1.  Required  as  part  of permit application  and review  
process,  per  City  and  State  stormwater  permit  
requirements.  

1. 

Required  as  pad of City  permit application  review  
process.  

2. 

Required as  part of City  permit application  review  
process.  

3. 

Mitigation  plan  would be  reviewed  and  approved by  

1.  Prior  to  issuance  of building  certificates  of occupancy  
In  areas  with confirmed  soil  or  groundwater  Impacts.  

1.  Prior  to  issuance  of building  certificates  of occupancy  
or  in  coordination  with  demolition  permit for  each 
respective  building  suspected of containing  asbestos  
and lead paint 

1.  Implement Institutional and  engineered controls  to  
limit exposure  to  contaminants  in  areas  with  
confirmed  soil or  groundwater  impacts.  

1.  Abatement  of asbestos  and lead  paint in  structures  as  
they  are  renovated or  demolished.  

, ., ' 

.
- 

a
 

E
 

—
 •
o
t
 

.•
•
6
3
 

.1
1

.0
 

0
.
 

2 o 
--E 	

2 
t
 	

°
 

0 	
13) .2 Z3 

o.._ 	
E

B
.42 

E
.12 

_
_
 	

-CjE
D

  
Ig,3 	

c
s
.,  

p
lI
E

 
ii 7' - 

3
-b

 	
•t
i

2
 

a
t
:
,
 

u
 
	3 

(1)  g
 
	

'0
 g

?
 

5.42 	
-6 69 ---2

  
a) 	

0
28 

I2
 	

■!. .- a
 

l
)
 

 
,
.
 	

,., 	
a
is

E
  

.c2 	
15 	

€
n
o
 

2
2 	

a 
.6

0
E

 
Y2%4' 	

E
 o

1
-8

 
c,.., 	

,
 	2

,
0
 

—
3
 	

c
i
i
m
o
.
.
.
:
 

.4
3--- 	

j L
-1

-8
 

.-- 	
:2, 	

a
w

m
lla

a
s,  

I
F
 	

2
 	

°-115
iT

)
L

7
1

3
.7

jV
IE

z
 

lat, 	
..s.12

°
t
—
c
l
-
1
3
,
2
.
 

.5 
 

• 

S
 

l
i
;
.
S
a
g
o
-
.
2
z
a
D
E
 

.
 	

i
 

_0 	
t.9

 
 c 

z-v. 	
N

0
E

 
5

,3
 	

0 u .:12 	
C

.,27) 
-E
2
5
s
.
 	

3
 D

 8
 

0 L■ , 	ia,.. 	
..) 	

a
 

b.,f, 	ƒ° 	
U

|( 
222

2 
"
 	

—
g

E
-̀' 	

u
.o

a" 
u 	

r I '` t 	
.5 	

C 	
cp 

E
R

 	
1

5
c
.g

0 	
:11-.G 

0
  z
- 	

—
 —

 n v 	
r. 	

—
 

c
.
 	

0
.2_

L
o 	

-0
E

0
 

z
ii 	

6'hk
o
'd

 	
o 	

>, 

	

E 0 	
u
m

c
 

'.
f
 	

'',3
4

- E 	
1

0
E

° 

L
k
' 	

-0' 
0
1

.
 	

'TA
 12:5  

E
a
 	

-e
l'g

 	
2

°
  

-c
-c

 	
0
5
.t 

01 	
.L

 2
1
:1

 
a
t
 
 
ai 3 0 0 '0 	

,
 
...:12 -2, 

 
c
o
 

tw
i,E

,-e
i 	

-,3
2
,. 

0
.9-E

2
c

E 	
a

-0
4

 
O

-n-,--E
8

-8
;V

g
 	

•E
C

2
t 

•z
z
a

T
,

E
lo

u
 	
;
2

0
 

c
o
°
?
0
"
5
"
E
 	
o
t
Z
2
.
 

	

W
7,3

6
^=

4:1q
' 	

(
1
' , 9 F , , , 8 

...5
.0
-
9
-
7
4
a
-
5
2
 

-
,
3
.
2
T
i
g
a
o
,
,
,
,
 

z
 

.7
.• 	

• 	
• 	

,,•
 

co 	
c
 

7
, 	

=
 

V
-a_Fer.A

g
E

g
E

 
2
a
2
.5
E
E
B
g
i
t, 
 

-0 	
Y

 
•—

o 
•?)-4

1
:1- 

1 :2 - E -6 
0

)0
3

 
V

.) o
 

u
°'
`
 

c "S. 7. 
—

"--2
 

Z 
	o 

0
0
1
E

 
E

 '...7. z 
a
 	

u
 

2
-

-0 
a) 	.-, 

75
-
0
 

g. E 
 

p
r
io

  
:0

--=
 

E
--

e) 
1

78'4301 
O

E
D

 
E
m
,
m
 

..,.S.,t' 8 . 9 § 

c
 

co 
rn

 

' 

ti 	
1: i 

"6
-o 	

o 
c

o
w

-8
 

0
 0

 
a
  

t
T

i-
g

 
2
-.E

...g
 

 2
 . 5 12 0

 
0 th.o._ 

o
0

 
.0 0 -0 
c
tz

ii.3
 

0
  9

, › 
g
E

S
3
 

E
5
 

e
z
n
i
i
 

.
.
.
E
 

.o 	
-
E
-
 

1
7

,c
g

 
'6

7)
.7

7
0
 

a
-u
1
IS

 
E",5-0 az 
w

c
c
c
o

 
C

_Q
Q

.2
a
 

?
t

42,30 
-M

°
}4

  
2
0
-
0
8
 

z
4
5

u
Tcla

  
Jeji,

o
k
 

a
 

c
 

Significant  Impacts  

• 

Redevelopment would  drive  proactive  remedlatIon  of soil 
and groundwater  Impacts  

Unavoidable  Adverse  impacts  

• 

With  adherence  to  environmental health-related  codes  
and regulations,  no  significant unavoidable  environmental 
health impacts  are  anticipated.  

Significant  Impacts  

• 

Asbestos  and  lead paint  in  historic  buildings  likely  to  be  
addressed over  time  as  structures  are  renovated.  

Unavoidable  Adverse  Impacts   

'E 0
 

E 
1

 

'13 
.- 
0
 

€ .1r 
0 D

 
ir) ce 

" 

75 

 
3

 ,_
 

iv 

 -o 
c
 

L
 

c 

1
S 

v co 
su 
>

 

Environmental Hearth  

• 

Sot and 
Groundwater  
impacts  

Planned Action  Ordinance  Attachment A  -Milktation  Decision  Document  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 188 of 351



	

6
 	

m
  
.
 

	

E
 	

m
 

E
a
 =

c
.;33,441 

U
 4

2
0

 
o
y
r
n
 

8
.1

7
9
2
B

8
 

u
a

)-o
—

c
 

c
5

4
o >.. 

c 
.9-2

 
1

3
7

),S
E

?
 

C
 

O
g

g
."

0
 

	

cr 
.- e

• 	

'5
 

a
t
2
 

o
4
g
0
2
 

•
 
8
 
s
 

—
1
5.2
 

o
5
o
1
5

-E
S
 

0
4
0
2
1
3
 

43 
 c
'-§

7
)13

.& 
1

4
2

o
 5

g
2

 
2

°6 C  .7
9
 E

 

-
.
-
.
z
.
 

i
-
0
 

E
-
 
0
k
 

g., 

	

C
 • 	

• 
0
) 

"Z 	
c) 

a) 
E 	

-a t" 
c
 

0.  
13 

10. 	
0

  
riE 

a
v
 0 
8
E
 

131
2
 

C
 

T1 
i
n
 

G 	
....

o
r, 

a
 	

E
.-2

=
 

2
 	

6
1
;6

 
a
 

t 	
i 2

 2
 

o
z
u
 

e
 	

2
 t iii 

o 	
ii c' 

2
  U

.̀-  
▪
 

o
 E

g
 9

, 

-
0

 
f
f
r
-T

2
 

2
 o 1q219 

..o
. 

f• , T
, 0

 0
 a

 a
 

p
c
 
4
1
5
1
 

a
u
 
‹
a
=
.
 

K
 '1

, .. i  O
D

D
  

-..-- c 3 .c 
• 

8
 

c o
t
 

-%
...91

 
U

 
z
 

-2
 • 	

8
 • 

as a) 	
c 
=

 

Cultural Resources  

O
 

E
 

Land Use  Compatibility  

Planned AclIon  Ordinance  Allochmeni A  -Mitigation  DeCigan  Oocumnt 

Recreation  

Historic  Resources  

Unavoidable  Adverse  impacts  

Unavoidable  Adverse  Impacts  

• 
• 

4
 "

E
4

' 
c 
,5

2
 5

7
) P

r' 

	

u. 	
40 •-g 	

a
  

.
3
 

0
 .0

 

	

E
 	

0
 

	-0
 

O
 

7
)
0
 M

c
  

'0
 Z

IE
 

2
 

	

co -c 	
15

• 	

c.)6
 	

-..2 
C

Ix
 	

1.
 

C
E

 
T

 
 

'o
 

• 

-o 	
8 
.
 

	

.0
 	

g
 

a) 
-' u

 
›.. 

6
. 

E  =
 

c 
g

 .0
 +

2
  

;
1

 - 8 4" 
,
 
.
i
.
i
 

o
 

.o..9. 

	

u 	
—

 
t 

-- .., 	
2

 --= 

: :., : .c°
  _ 0:

 E
 

	

D
 

a
' T3 	

E 

	

LI 	
.>., 
	—

 
	'4' 

0
1
  a

z
 
 
a

  
2
 

13
2
0
c
E
 

.
2
=
-
C
 3(311,3 

...E
n

-0
0

3
0

E
 

2 47, 
0

 -5,  c
 E

 „ 
o
- o

.-  2
0
1

-a
 

• 
ri 4

 

g .) 	
1
) 	

=
 	

C
 

 

o
  

2
 	

o
o
 	
,
 

E
C

 
• 

a) 13 w 
L

 	
CO .E, 	

a
 0

 15 
,
 

c
B

c
t2

 
E 	

0 	
g
.2

.3
 

›
5

 
t

3
=

0
g

 
c
2

L
7

3
213 

g
3
V
 
2
2
 ?

E
1
. 

4,..g
2
1
 

0
  0

 -C
 E

 	
0

 
	

_ 
tics

 
0
 E

  
1,3-12

-
E
a
 

	

L--f, 	
a 

c
 	

.g
 	

g
 

4: 70
0

m
=

2
g

c
 2

R
2
2
 

Irm
c
<

0  

	

.c
E

 	
a
).) 

Eld
T

i8
g

;
 	

-
 

E
2
2
1
.2

0
 

E
 	

2
, 	

a
)tS

..c1
)c 

.
)
 
a
.
 
o
 
1
5
 

E
2
 

1
 

 

c
g
a0

g
rE

t  B
 

 u2 .1a7 ..m
a
r3

E
Z

 
a

a
 >

1
- c- a

0
2

 
o

0
E

 
<

a
 

<
 

=
a

Iw
 

 

 P
.o

 
N

 	
r
i 

1.  Prior  io  issuance  of  first building  permit 

0) 

/0
 

O
 

yf 

-0
 

5 a 
-o

 
0
4
, 

0
0
 

-2 
a 
E

 0
 

E
 

°
 

c.)13 
a
 C

 
0
 C

 
D

O
 

<
c
7

 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 189 of 351



0. 

0 

0 

DJ 

5
 

2'5 
O 

Issuance  of any  building  or  demolition  

U
 

 
 

• =
 

Sol 

U o. 

C
 

E
 

O
 

U
 

=
 

Unavoidable  Adverse  Impacts  

0 	
13 

 

=
r; 

C
 

D
 

 0
 	

'
§
=
 

	

C
O

.
-0 	

L
aw

 
E
 	

2
0
 
 
-
g
 

1
3
°
 	

(3 	
tS-111 
 

c 	
0
)
5
 
o
.3
 

 
2
 
-
8
 
a
0
 

 
1

5
 R

E
 
E
l
i
 
m
m
 

c
e
t
 
m
u
 
X
5
 

E
 
E
S
5
.
0
-
 	

5t1 
8
 
4
0
2
T
 
m
;
 

U
 	

52 4-- 0 c 
C
 
 
E
g
3
2
P
 

❑22 
„.m 

..2 
(5
 

-
-
k
 

0
4
g
-
g
o
.
.
2
 
c
u
 

E
 	

--` a 0
'
 
7
 
•
 

l
a
.
a
2
,
3
4
 

1:1 4
 
o
 
0
 

0
0

.
0
3
,
T
,
 

a
n
=
-
0
,
0
-
m

o
 

 
E15
,

8
2
0
-
c
l
?
R
'
 

CV 	
R
I
 

.

▪ 	

1.)
1.
 

.E0
0
-
E
 
.
c
c
 

o
o
 
0
0-
6
 
2
2
 

❑
 
6
 

1
1
"
 

 
a
c
a
:

❑

d
1
2
 	

t
 

2
,
 

.
2
0
t
 
 
c
 

	

t-qgrg,t-P, 	
1
t
:
 
 

❑
 

0
-6

13.
=
"
2
4
=
-
E
N
 
=
 

0
-
1
3
4

)
2
e
.
.
o
 	
a
 

E
 
a
u
 

	

g
e
=
2
;
S
2
,
z
.,
E
,0,
,-5 	

2
 
-
 

-L"
>
-
*
E0
2
E
W
-

13 
0
.
,
•
m
t
u
 

E
Z
0
E
2
S)
4
1
5
7
)
:
.
t
t
g
 

.6.
0
0
0

33
(.1
0
0

■'
'
'
C
O
O
 

A
g

I
i

-15C
°
W

5  
W

i
r
g
t
i
L
i
c
-a
c
°
-E.
 

 
F
e
L
g
o
o

-o
-E
1
1
.
0
.0
 

 
o_
E
T
•
3
1
2
5
°
E
4
3
°
i
T
a
g
a
 

•0
0
0
-
0
-
0
 

w
,=
c
0
0
 

§
'4
t
t
 

	

"
8
1
 
2
 
	

n
i
t
g
 

:
g
:
 
!
 
t

. 
 

m
m
o
o
L
 

.
-
E
E
.
2
 

.'22 w
 
:
2

 
'0

 
S

.
g

c
b

 
,
 

'5' 0
 'a

 
T
i
>
2
.
,
7
;
 

n
i

2 
 I.00. V221,1A 

	

1
1
E
3
 
:
43-La 	

(1.--7411-.- 

	

..- 	
2
.
L
E
.
 

	

g
q
"
 
1
T
4
 	

°
l] 

.0 
“

w
c
p
 

 

	

2
1i
l
g
t
o
 
M
o
2
 	

c),5.0a- 

	

8.0-1. 	
.G.,-- 

	

t,0,. 	
,,c. 

H
P
 11

;
 
4
2
 
i'g
P
 

riig !FE a nil-le 
.-EW tjA i t!*Wa 

	

Igi:'
'5 

e 	
B
a
l
i
 

g 

;,-1
1
 tou

 c
 ..a

r
  

E
m

u
 t Ir

n
h

, 
0
....„.....„ 

v  . 
1

. 	
. 	

... 	
. 

.
 

,
 

C
 

2
 

Unavoidable  Adverse  Impacts  

Manned Acrid,  Ordnance  Atterehmen1 A — Mrligation  Decision  Docisrneni 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 190 of 351



	

6- 	
6.
 

 
u
o
 
„
o
 

=
2
 	

=
a
 

2
1
3
0
c
E
 
t
 

.1=e, 
c,c_ 

ei 6.Y -t-4: 
n
E

.
0

:5
  D

 
0
0
 
_
0
 

 
«
a
]
©
d
 

a
 

.
1
S
2
 

O
r
a
 
(e3 it13 
0 

-a
t
 
v
t
 

0
'
2
z
 
o
 
	
;
8
 

-
00,..6 
 
.1. 	

8..
 

o
 

 
e
-
0
0
.
0
E
 	

0
 
 
,0 
 

-2g5
1
,5)m.,Y,=

 
n
.
 
v
.
 

u
J
e
0
3

-,(23..
0
0 

r42.DEf
 
r
E
R
;
§
 lif3: 

3
 

o
,,.
0
c
o
7
3
.1
3
.
.
c
o
,2
=
 

c
o
n
.
_
s
e
.

:a
x
.
,
7
,
0
=
5
 

 
E
;S
-
O
g
a
g
.0

T
-2
-3
7
2
 

=
.

1)
=

0
-

k
m

o
k

.C
1

 
r
in

Z
E

U
E

n
I.A

's6
=

 
a

t
T

iE
W

O
Z

g
a

:
"
.:

 
C

IM
E

O
V

Z
 

'1
'4

3
1

5
.V

.E
Z

Z
 

o
o
l
i
g
r
n
n
7
z
a
l
z
-

-
c
0
=
a
u
z
L
E
a
u
t
z
U
t
 

a) 7) 
13 

8
 	

1.1 
,2 

-E
l 

>
34
 

 
Z
S
 
t
 

|
k
 

.
L
 

12 	
o
a
 0

 

318 
m 	

> 
g
m
g
8
?
 
0
.
8
.
6
E
.
g
 

2
-2

0
2

 .2
,  

2
-a
u
s
-
E,TI

-
lag=N-6

 
 

.
0
0
.
0
'
5
2
2
"
"
.
4
2

'
 

2
t

a
75

11
>-
2
2
n
 

F
o
t
W
o
g
.
g
g
V
2
2
<
,1 

-0
-
g
E
-
0
1
2
E
0
;
,
7
,
g
4
?
 

.
5
2
00.c*U2c,527, 

re E
t
g
A

h
r
io

a
t
iz

o
L
 

ri 	
4
 	

.6 

2
 

-o
 

c
 

 
0
 

12
 
0
 

 
T
l
i
 
o
 
	

a
 

O
>
 
u
g
 
o
 
 

..,, 
w
>
.
 
.-

a
 	

o
 

0
2
 3

E
 E

 
9,- 

O
0

 
=

0
 

2
 2

 
2
E
4 
 
m
u
 
.
. -
 

,
E
E
 
'
5
-
2
 
$
 

0
 

0
 

6
 

.2
.- 	

b.,ET, 
	

2
 

4
u

 
0
 
0
 

1
0

,2
 	

a
 
E
 

'
"
 
g
:11 
 
g
g
:
 

.flo 	
.2e4 

8
7) 	

:
=
T
)
E
 

8.5 "el 	
5
z
"-
 

 
z
2

0.. 	
t
i
q
d
 

8
1
 
>
t
 
a
u
c
°
 

 
.
1
2
2
0
 

O
 

c
t
 
-
0
0
1
3
"
E
 

02"6 
	

i
B

' 
V

g gE
gE

 
E- 

_ 0  g
 
E
i
i
 

11,-
-
o
 
o
—
 
2
2
8
 

a
u
.
8
E
 
E
&
E
-
2
 

a
-0
=
n
—
o
 
o
c
o
r
,
 

F
A
L'
V
F

-2
 
2

-17,
2
6
 

.- E
 
0
D
 
0
0
0
 
.
0
,
0
4
=
 

0
.
,
u
o
z
u
r
.
U
n
U
I
 

u
 
E
 
 
•
 
	

•
 
•
 	
•
 	
•
 

=
 

m
 

Korner,  Action  Ordinance  Allachment A -  Miligolion  Decision  Document 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 191 of 351



4.1 Additional Permits and Approvals 

The EIS identified potentially applicable federal, state, and local laws and rules that apply to Planned 
Actions and that can serve to mitigate adverse environmental impacts. It is assumed that all 
applicable federal, state, and local regulations would be applied. The following list identifies the 
primary set of applicable laws regulations, but other laws and regulations may apply depending on 
the proposed action. 

Depending on the scope of development and the site, the following approvals could be required: 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 

• Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit (for any impacts to jurisdictional wetlands) 

- Endangered Species Act Section 7 Consultation 
- National Historic Act Section 106 Consultation' 

Washington State Department of Ecology 

• Clean Water Act Section 401 Water Quality Certification (for projects affecting wetlands 
or waterways) 

Washington State Department of Fish and Wildlife 

• Hydraulic Project Approval (for any project with physical impacts to a waterway) 

Northwest Clean Air Agency 

• Asbestos surveys (associated with building renovation/demolition) 
• Air permits associated with existing or future operations 

City of Sedro-Woolley 

• Grading, excavation and erosion-control permits 
• Building permit 
• Demolition permits 
• Mechanical permits 
• Plumbing permits 
• Concurrency authorization 
• Certificates of occupancy 
• Street use permits (temporary—construction related) 

Other historical and cultural resources regulations may apply, the Washington State Department of Archaeology and 
Historic Preservation maintains a list of federal and state laws related to historic and cultural resources at 
http://www.dahp.wa.govilearn-and-research/preservation-laws  

PAGE 15 
Planned Action Ordinance Attachment A — Mitigation Decision Document 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 192 of 351



• Street improvements (e.g., sidewalks, curb cuts) 
• Lot line adjustment, binding site plan and/or subdivision approvals 
• Stormwater management permits 
• Sewer utility permits 
• Water utility permits (coordinated with Skagit Public Utility District) 
• Street right-of-way vacation 

PAGE 16 
Planned Action Ordinance Attachment A - Mitigation Decision Document 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 193 of 351



FIGURES 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 194 of 351



ti 

1111=1111110=11■1,11,'" 

A 
I 

Source' Aerial photograph obtained tom Esri ArcGLS 
Online; parcels, roads and streams dalasets 
obtained from Skagit County; city limits [Salami 
attained from City of Sedro-Woolley. 

Legend Figure A-1 
The Center Planned Action Area 

Property address' 
2A950 Hub Drive 
Sedro-Wbotley, Whshinglon 

Sedro-Woolley, Washington 

Center Subarea 

Northern State 
Recreational Area 

Parcel Boundary 

City Limits 
(Post Annexation) 

Stream 
0 	500 	1.500 

1. 

lS MAUL FOSTER ALONG! 
p.971 544 2139 I vevvvernouVosler.com  

4,••••■•■• 	 Uwe 
*b. 0.• uuliaor slwellacues 

LJ 
/\/ 

Feel 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 195 of 351



Source. Aerial photograph obtained from EsriketGIS 
Online; parcels and reads obtained from Skagit County.  

6# MAUL FOSTER ALONG! 
p. 971 544 2139 i woow rnourosier.corn 

Legend 
	 Contributing Buildings to Historic District 

I 	.1  Non-Historic Buildings to be Retained 

C= 	New Building Locations 

	

First Phase of Development 	

 Property Boundary 

View Indicator 

Note: 1575 Proposed Parking Spaces 

n 	rota 	.700.  ear 

Exhibit A-2 
Conceptual Site Plan 

Port of Skagit 
Sedro-Woolley, Washington 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 196 of 351



Exhibit A-3 
Subarea Land Use Map 

Sedro-Woolley, Washington 

leg MAUL FOSTER ALONG1 

p.971 544 2139 1 swow.mov110,161.corn 
0 	150 300 	450 	600 

1"6.r.1■16m.m. 
Feat ▪ A.. • 	 mum+ rnel...1,14,11i, ,7.14 ..• 

▪ upt 	 en. tl 	 • T. 	 1.411..., 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 197 of 351



Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 198 of 351



Attachment 2 

Planning Commission Findings and Recommendation 

Procedural Items 
Notice of Public Hearing and Department of Commerce Materials 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 199 of 351



CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
325 Metcalf Street 

Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 
Phone (360) 855-0771 

Fax (360) 855-0733 

TRANSMITTAL & REPORT MEMORANDUM 

DATE: 
	

November 17, 2015 

TO: 
	

Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission 

REGARDING 
	

Planned Action Ordinance - The Center for Innovation and Technology 

FROM: 

  

   

   

Joh eleman, Planning Director 

The following ordinance and attachment is submitted by the Planning Department. This 
report serves as the staff report for the proposed ordinance and was submitted in 
accordance with Chapter 2.90 SWMC. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

PROPOSAL 

The City of Sedro-Woolley, Skagit County and the Port of Skagit have worked in 
cooperation to develop a subarea plan for the revitalization of the Northern State Campus, 
now named The Center for Innovation and Technology (Center). A Planned Action 
Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) was prepared to satisfy the requirement for 
environmental review. The next step in the process is the adoption of a Planned Action 
Ordinance, designating those projects that will qualify as planned actions and the 
geographic area that will be defined as the Planned Action Area. The Planned Action 
Ordinance is intended to be as specific as possible, indicating what mitigation measures 
will be required for a project to qualify as a planned action. The required mitigation 
measures and conditions that will apply to development actions at the Center will be 
specified in Mitigation Decision Document, Attachment A (Attachment A), attached to the 
Planned Action Ordinance. 

The Planned Action EIS and Attachment A will also identify those actions that will not 
qualify as planned actions. Due to the size and complexity of the property, as well as the 
timing of future development, a thorough analysis of conditions and impacts has not been 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 200 of 351



conducted in some areas of the site. Non-qualifying planned action projects may require 
additional environmental analysis; however the scope of review will focus only on 
environmental impacts not adequately addressed in the Planned Action EIS. 

At the beginning of the planning process, City Council passed Resolution 913-15 
expressing its intent to prepare a Subarea Plan and Planned Action EIS for the Center. To 
ensure an extensive level of public review, a Public Participation Plan was included as an 
attachment to Resolution 913-15. This plan outlined the processes described below and the 
opportunities for public involvement. Attached to this report is The Center Subarea Plan & 
Planned Action EIS Milestone Dates which was created subsequent to the Public 
Participation Plan, listing public meetings and comment periods associated with each of the 
processes (Annexation, Subarea Plan and Planned Action EIS) 

Attached to this memo is a proposed Planned Action Ordinance and Mitigation Decision 
Document, Attachment A. 

BACKGROUND 

Below are the planning processes that have been involved with the Center: 

• Annexation of the Property into the City of Sedro-Woolley — the Property was 
annexed into the City on September 9, 2015 bringing the Property within the 
municipal boundary and the land use regulatory authority of the City. 

• Subarea Plan — This plan will articulate a framework for development of the 
property over the next 20 years. It will be based on the goals of the local 
governments and public and will provide direction for potential investors seeking to 
develop and or locate within The Center. The Subarea Plan, once finalized, will be 
adopted into the City's Comprehensive Plan. As the Planning Commission is 
aware, the Growth Management Act allows updates to comprehensive plans once 
every year. The Sedro-Woolley City Council has approved, by resolution, the 
City's 2015 Comprehensive Plan docket which lists the proposed amendments to 
the City's comprehensive plan that will be considered this year. While it was 
anticipated that a comprehensive plan amendment would be necessary to address 
the Northern State property and this is reflected in the 2015 docket, the Subarea 
Plan has been reviewed through an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) process, 
independent of the any other comprehensive plan amendments. Therefore, staff is 
utilizing RCW 36.70A.130 (2) (a) (i) and (v) which recognizes exceptions to the 
consideration of amendments more frequently than once a year. The cited RCW 
sections recognize subarea plans and comprehensive plan amendments necessary to 
enact a planned action under RCW 43.21C.031 as exceptions, allowing a 
jurisdiction to amend its comprehensive plan more frequently than once a year. 

• Planned Action Environmental Review — The Washington state legislature 
adopted the planned action process for SEPA to emphasize quality environmental 

Planned Action Ordinance — The Center 
City of Sedro-Woolley 

Page 2 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 201 of 351



review of early planning efforts and early public input to shape decisions. The 
intent is to provide cumulative impact analyses for the entire subarea, rather than 
piecemeal analysis on a project-by-project basis. A planned action designation by a 
jurisdiction reflects a decision that adequate environmental review has been 
completed and that future environmental review under SEPA, for each specific 
development proposal or phase, will not be necessary if it is determined that each 
proposal or phase is consistent with the development levels specified in the adopted 
Planned Action Ordinance and supporting environmental analysis. 

Chapter 2.90 SWMC was amended in 2015 to include a process for adopting planned 
action ordinances. The process requires Planning Commission review and consideration, 
with a recommendation to the City Council which is charged with making a final decision. 
In addition to the process for designating and adopting a planned action ordinance, Chapter 
2.90 outlines a process for reviewing planned action projects. 

Basic steps in designating and implementing planned actions are to: 
D Draft a Subarea Plan to create a vision and policy framework for future 

development; 
➢ Prepare an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS); 
➢ Designate the planned action improvement area by ordinance, where future 

projects would develop consistent with the EIS analysis; and 
➢ Review development permit applications for consistency with the 

designated planned action. 

The proposed ordinance is supported by and implements the Sedro-Woolley 
Comprehensive Plan, Economic Element: 

Goal El: To develop a sound fiscal base. 

Policy E1.1:  Create employment opportunities within the Sedro-Woolley economy, 
particularly for residents who now commute to other distant employment areas. 

Policy E1.2:  Participate with other public agencies and private interests in labor force 
training programs that take advantage of traditional resources. 

Policy E1.3:  Identify and promote sites which can be developed for a variety of local 
employment projects. Promote development of business and industrial parks, office and 
professional centers, and specialized commercial and entertainment centers. 

The proposed ordinance will also support and implement the Sedro-Woolley 
Comprehensive Plan, Land Use Element as amended with the adoption of The Center for 
Innovation and Technology Subarea Plan. 

Planned Action Ordinance — The Center 
City of Sedro-Woolley 

Page 3 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 202 of 351



PROPOSAL REVIEW PROCESS 

• A SEPA threshold Determination of Significance was issued on April 10, 2015 
initiating the Planned Action Environmental Impact Statement process to study the 
environmental impacts associated with a subarea plan. A Draft Environmental 
Impact Statement was issued September 18, 2015 and a Final Environmental 
Impact Statement was issued on November 16, 2015. 

• Public Notice of the Planning Commission Hearing was published in the Skagit 
Valley Herald on November 6, 2015. 

• The State Department of Commerce (COMM) was provided an opportunity to 
review and comment on the DEIS on September 17, 2015. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff Recommends that the Planning Commission review the proposed Planned Action 
Ordinance, hold a public hearing and make a recommendation to the City Council to adopt 
the Ordinance and Mitigation Decision Document, Attachment A (with PC recommended 
amendments if applicable). 

EXHIBITS: 

A. Planned Action Ordinance and Mitigation Decision Document, Attachment A 
B. The Center Subarea Plan & Planned Action EIS Milestone Dates 
C. Procedural Items: Notice of Public Hearing 

CONCLUSIONS 

The Planning Commission, having reviewed the Planning Department Transmittal and 
Report Memorandum and hearing public testimony, makes the following conclusions: 

1. Adoption of the proposed Planned Action Ordinance complies with the State 
Growth Management Act, has been reviewed by the State Department of 
Commerce, and has been adequately vetted through the public review process; and 

2. The Department of Ecology was provided a copy of the Draft Environmental 
Impact Statement to review and comment on. Comments from the Department are 
addressed in the Final Environmental Impact Statement which has also been 
submitted to the Department of Ecology. 

3. Adoption of the proposed Planned Action Ordinance is in conformance with the 
goals and policies of the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan. 

Planned Action Ordinance — The Center 
City of Sedro-Woolley 

Page 4 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 203 of 351



RECOMMENDATION 

Based upon the foregoing, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the Planned Action 
Ordinance and Mitigation Decision Document, Attachment A found herein as Exhibit A. 

CERTIFICATION 

The City of Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
APPROVAL of the Planned Action Ordinance for The Center for Innovation and Technology at 
a REGULAR  meeting of the City of Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission held on Tuesdays  
November 17, 2015,  at which time a quorum was present and the decision was for approval by a 
vote of .6 FOR, 0 AGAINST, and 0 ABSTENTIONS. 

iatvit Cl (611  
Patrick Huggins, Planning ommission Chair Date 

Planned Action Ordinance — The Center 
City of Sedro-Woolley 

Page 5 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 204 of 351



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

The Center for Innovation and Technology — Subarea Plan, Planned 
Action Ordinance and Amendments to Chapter 17.32 (Public Zone) of 

the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code 

The City of Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on 
November 17, 2015 at 6:30 PM, at the Sedro-Woolley Council Chambers located at 325 
Metcalf Street, to hear testimony regarding the Subarea Plan (amendment to the City's 
Comprehensive Plan) and Planned Action Ordinance for the Center for Innovation and 
Technology (formally known as the Northern State Campus). Additionally, the Planning 
Commission will hold a public hearing on proposed amendments to Sedro-Woolley 
Municipal Code Chapter 17.32 Public Zone. 

Interested parties can comment on the proposed changes in writing or at the hearing. 
Written comments must be received by 4:30 PM November 17, 2015 to be considered 
at this public hearing. 

Following the public hearing the Planning Commission's recommendation will be 
forwarded to the City Council for consideration and action at a future Council meeting. 

Send written comments to: Sedro-Woolley Planning Department, 325 Metcalf Street, 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284. Complete project files are available for review at the 
Planning Department between the hours of 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM, Monday through 
Friday. 

Published in the Skagit Valley Herald: November 6, 2015 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 205 of 351



SKAGIT PUBLISHING 
C/O ISJ PAYMENT PROCESSING CENTER 

PO BOX 1570 
POCATELLO ID 83204-1570 

(360) 424-3251 

ORDER CONFIRMATION 

Salesperson: Jeanette Kales 	 Printed at 11/03/15 09:01 by jka30 

Acct #: 228136 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY PUBLIC WORKS 
325 METCALF ST 
SEDRO WOOLLEY WA 98284 

Ad #: 1374040 	Status: N 

Start: 11/06/2015 	Stop: 11/06/2015 
Times Ord: 1 	Times Run: *** 
STDS 1.00 X 8.05 Words: 206 
Total STDS 8.50 
Class: 0001 LEGAL NOTICES 
Rate: LACR 	 Cost: 89.68 
# Affidavits: 1 

Contact: 	 Ad Descrpt: SVH-1374040 
Phone: 	(360)855-0771 	 Given by: * 
Fax#: 	 Created: 	jka30 11/03/15 08:53 
Email: 	jcoleman@ci.sedro-woolley.wa Last Changed: jka30 11/03/15 09:01 
Agency: 

PUB ZONE ED TP START INS STOP SMTWTFS 
SVH A 	97 S 11/06 
WEB A 	97 S 11/06 

AUTHORIZATION 

Under this agreement rates are subject to change with 30 days notice. In the 
event of a cancellation before schedule completion, I understand that the 
rate charged will be based upon the rate for the number of insertions used. 

Name (signature) Name (print or type) 

(CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE) 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 206 of 351



SKAGIT PUBLISHING 
C/O ISJ PAYMENT PROCESSING CENTER 

PO BOX 1570 
POCATELLO ID 83204-1570 

(360) 424-3251 

ORDER CONFIRMATION (CONTINUED) 

Salesperson: Jeanette Kales 	 Printed at 11/03/15 09:01 by jka30 

Acct #: 228136 

NOTICE OF 
PUBLIC HEARING 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
The Center for Innovation 
and Technology Subarea 

Plan, Planned Action 
Ordinance and 

Amendments to 
Chapter 17.32 (Public Zone) 

of the Sedro-Woolley 
Municipal Code 

The City of Sedro-Woolley 
Planning Commission will 
hold a public hearing on 
November 17, 2015 at 6:30 
PM, at the Sedro-Woolley 
Council Chambers located at 
325 Metcalf Street, to hear 
testimony regarding the Sub-
area Plan (amendment to the 
City's Comprehensive Plan) 
and Planned Action Ordi-
nance for the Center for Inno-
vation and Technology (for-
mally known as the Northern 
State Campus). Additionally, 
the Planning Commission will 
hold a public hearing on pro-
posed amendments to Se-
dro-Woolley Municipal Code 
Chapter 17.32 Public Zone. 

Interested parties can com-
ment on the proposed 
changes in writing or at the 
hearing. Written comments 
must be received by 4:30 
PM November 17, 2015 to 
be considered at this public 
hearing. 

Following the public hearing 
the Planning Commission's 
recommendation will be for-
warded to the City Council 
for consideration and action 
at a future Council meeting. 

Send written comments to: 
Sedro-Woolley Planning De-
partment, 325 Metcalf Street, 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284. 
Complete project files are 
available for review at the 
Planning Department be-
tween the hours of 8:00 AM 
to 5:00 PM, Monday through 
Friday. 

Published 
November 6, 2015 

SVH-1374040 

Ad #: 1374040 	Status: N 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 207 of 351



AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING 

STATE OF WASHINGTON) 

COUNTY OF SKAGIT ) 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

I, JoAnn Lazaron, of the Sedro-Woolley Planning Department in Sedro-Woolley, Washington, 
do hereby swear that on 11-5-15, I mailed a true and correct copy of the attached "Notice of 
Public Hearing-City of Sedro-Woolley The Center for Innovation and Technology-Subarea Plan, 
Planned Action Ordinance and Amendments to Chapter 17.32 (Public Zone) of the Sedro-
Woolley Municipal Code" to the following names and addresses: 

SEE ATTACHED SHEET/S: 

Said notices were enclosed in sealed envelopes, addressed as above with postage fully affixed 
and deposited in the United States Post Office at Sedro-Woolley, Washington on said date. 
Said notices were mailed, on the said date to the attached address list. 

Said notices were e-mailed, on the said date to the attached e-mail address list 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 208 of 351



STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 
SS. 

COUNTY OF SKAGIT 	) 

On this date personally appeared before me  jp IN-Kr% Le,zarry,,  to me known 
to be the individual described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged 
that she signed the same as her free and voluntary act and deed, for the uses and purposes therein 
mentioned. 

GIVEN Under My Hand and Official Seal this  '  day of  kh 0.e,ryther72015. 

Notary Public in and for the StXe of Washington, 
residing at  gNi , 	Q.410  
My Commissio 
Print Name: 	1-; e 	to Kb 

JULIE L. ROSARIO 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

NOTARY 	PUBLIC 
My Commission Wires 7-22-2017 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 209 of 351



Attachment 3 

Design Guidelines Manual 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 210 of 351



PORT OF SKAGIT COUNTY 

RESOLUTION NO. 15- as  

A RESOLUTION Of The Port Commission Of The Port Of Skagit County Adopting the Design 
Guidelines Manual For The Center For Innovation And Technology Northern State Hospital 

National Register Historic District. 

WHEREAS, the Port of Skagit County ("the Port") is a Washington public port district 
which, among other things, is authorized by state law to manage and acquire property and 
facilities for the purpose of facilitating economic development; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Washington owns, and the Department of Enterprise Services 
("DES") manages, The Center for Innovation and Technology ("the Center"), the former 
Northern State Hospital Property, also known as the North Cascades Gateway Center, an 
approximately 225 acre property located in Skagit County; and 

WHEREAS, DES, in late 2013 invited local community leaders to enter into discussions to 
explore community interests in future opportunities for The Center and in January 2014 the 
City of Sedro-Wool ley ("City"), Skagit County ("County") the Port entered into an interlocal 
agreement to jointly investigate the reuse potential of the site and establish a long-range 
vision for the property that would meet the needs of the community served by the three 
parties, which interlocal agreement was amended in February 2015 and October 2015; 
and 

WHEREAS, a significant portion of The Center is listed on the United States National 
Register of Historic Places as the Northern State Hospital National Register Historic District 
("District") which designation was established in 2010; and 

WHEREAS, the Port, on July 31, 2015 as the lead local agency submitted a proposal to 
DES for the transfer of control of the Center to the Port for increased economic 
development and to continue the historic importance of the property to the community; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Center has been annexed into the city limits of the City of Sedro-Woolley, 
which annexation was effective September 19, 2015, therefore the Center is now subject 
to the comprehensive plan and development regulations adopted by Sedro-Woolley 
pursuant to Chapter 36.70A RCW. The City has commenced a Planned Action 
Environmental Impact Statement and Subarea Plan for the Center, as well as municipal 
code amendments which are expected to be complete and adopted December 2015; and 

WHEREAS, one of the goals in the interlocal agreement between the City, County and Port 
is the parties desire to protect the historic character of the Center; and 

WHEREAS, the designation as an historic district on the National Register of Historic 
Places provides opportunity for potential renovation of the historic structures in the District 

RESOLUTION NO. (5 - 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 211 of 351



to qualify for incentives such as the federal historic rehabilitation tax credit program, which 
incentives will be necessary to make rehabilitation of historic structures financially 
feasible; and 

WHEREAS, any significant loss of character or integrity to the designated historic District 
due to incompatible alterations could endanger the District's continuing eligibility as a 
National Register historic district; and 

WHEREAS, review and approval of any proposed development or alterations within the 
District to ensure compatibility is necessary to protect the District's continued eligibility; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Port has contracted with experts to develop The Center for Innovation and 
Technology Northern State Hospital National Register Historic District Design Guidelines 
Manual ("Design Guidelines Manual") which summarizes the design considerations and 
design approval process for physical changes to the District; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission finds that the cost to rehabilitate structures on the Property in 
a manner that preserves the historic nature of the District will necessitate expenditures 
over and above the commercially reasonable cost of building or remodeling comparable 
structures for private sector uses, said difference in cost understood as the "Preservation 
Margin;" and _ 

WHEREAS, the Commission finds that renovation of structures that contribute to the 
historic nature of the District in compliance with the Design Guidelines Manual will 
necessitate the identification and utilization of funding to meet the Preservation Margin; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Port, as the entity poised to take control of the Center property, is in the 
best position to administer review of any proposed development and or alterations in the 
District in accordance with the Design Guidelines Manual provided in Exhibit A attached 
hereto, and the procedures provided in Exhibit B attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission recognizes that the Design Guidelines Manual, as a 
component of its leasing policies related to the Center should be periodically reviewed in 
light of economic and regulatory factors affecting development; and 

WHEREAS, separate agreements among DES, the Port, City and County will memorialize 
the parties' understanding that the Port will have authority to review and approve any and 
all proposed development and or alterations in the District pursuant to the Design 
Guidelines Manual; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BASED ON THE FOREGOING RECITALS AND FINDINGS, THE 
COMMISSION OF THE PORT OF SKAGIT COUNTY, HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

2 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 212 of 351



Commissioner 

1. The Center for Innovation and Technology Northern State Hospital National 
Register Historic District Design Guidelines Manual is hereby adopted by the 
Port in full, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

2. The Commission of the Port of Skagit County is hereby designated as the 
Architectural Review Committee responsible for review and approval of 
proposed development or alterations within the District which review shall be 
conducted in accordance with the Design Guidelines Manual and the 
procedures outlined in Exhibit B attached. The Commission may delegate 
responsibilities related to review under the Design Guidelines Manual to the 
Executive Director who is hereby authorized to contract for third party review of 
projects subject to the Design Guidelines Manual as required in the discretion of 
the Executive Director. 

3. The Port Commission shall review this resolution and the Design Guidelines 
Manual at regular intervals of not more than five (5) years. 

4. The Executive Director and Port staffs are hereby authorized to take all actions 
reasonably required to carry out this resolution. 

5. Both this resolution and the Design Guidelines Manual are adopted as 
components of the Port's leasing policies and are not "development regulations" 
as defined by RCW 36.70A.030 (7). By submitting an application for review 
pursuant to the review described herein and in the Design Guidelines Manual 
the applicant acknowledges that: (a) the review and the decision by the 
Architectural Review Committee do not constitute a "land use decision" as 
defined by RCW 36.70C.020(2); and (b) the Architectural Review Committee's 
decisions are not subject to review by any court by any means, or on any basis, 
whatsoever, including but not limited to writ of review, writ of certiorari or writ 
of mandamus. 

ADOPTED IN OPEN SESSION this  10 	day of  '100°._o_rv11C15017  , 2015, 
and duly authenticated by the signatures affixed hereto. 

PORT OF SKAGIT COUNTY 

Commissioner 

Commissio er 

3 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 213 of 351



EXHIBIT A 

DESIGN GUIDELINES MANUAL 
The Center for Innovation and Technology 

Northern State Hospital Nation Register Historic District 

Approved by the Commission by Resolution No.  15-a,  November 10, 2015 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 214 of 351



NOVEMBER 10,  2015  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 215 of 351



C
O

'4
-
 	

C
D

 	
m

 
l" 	

I.0
 

N
i 	

COI-N
 	

rry
 

)4- 	
■c) 

1. 

Table  of Contents  

2. 

Overview  of the  Design  Guidelines  Manual 

C
 

ro
 

C
. 

a) 
a

 
ro

 
L
) 

U
I 

C
 

ro
 

—
I 

in
 

'15
 

-C
 

-IP
: 

co 
"C

) 
a
t 

4
-,  

Eul  
O

 
a) 

..c 
1—

 

C
 

(1) 
4

-,  
4
-,  

0_ ro
  

a
) 

-C
 

4--,  

C
) 

C
 

IP
 

46
 

V
I 

7
f 

7. 

Additional Design  Considerations:  New  Construction  

8. 

Architectura l Review  Committee  and Process  

9. 

Summary  of Select  Reference  Documents  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 216 of 351



y -  ort  ern  tate  Campus  Desi•  n  Guidelines  Manua  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 217 of 351



a) 
u

i 
-0

 
C

 
=

 	
Co 

4--,  
u
 	

(..) 
4

--r 

a..1 	
=

 
,.., 	

.... 
L.. 
C
 

-c
 

 
®
 

o
 

1̀)  
4
- L

e
i 4

- 
E

 
0_ 

-o
 z

. 	
0

 

2
  = 
0

 
o

 
-cr, ‘-1

  
rel -•-• 

c
 	

CLe-, 
(Li
>

  
.2
 

_
 

Co 1„' 
c
n
 0

1
 0

 
cu 	

0
1

 '...-7 
0

1
 z

 	
c
 ..,:', 

=
 tr

r
 

ra
 

▪
 

CU 
1-.1  

v
r _

0
 

ra  
• 

-fT7 
46

 2
:2

 
4=,  c

 
=

 
	

Y
i 

0
 

.1., .:
3

J
 

t
3
 

(13
 	

4
, 

'-P
.  

O
 

ra 
	

c
 

CD 
4
- v

i 
rU

 
a

 -.."7
: w

 0
.1

 -0
 

4-,  

C
 	

G
U

 _0
-  -

 
1.11 	

ro
  

cu 	
7

.7
, 1

6
 ,, 

-o
 

..c
 c

 
5
 4

—̀
1)  

co 	
_c ,a, 
I—

 „ 
fa

 
-Q

 2
 

Lel 
a) 	

c
 	

c
 

Cii 	
'c

 	
3

 	
0) 

c
 

cu 
03 	

0
 	

—
 v) 	

tr) 
-0

 m
s
 	

cu
 L

- 
	

cu 
152  

a
, a

s
 c

 c
 	

-=
 .L4

  0
 4

....cu
 _

c 
L11 	

c
ij ..0

 
4
-. 

3
0

 
1J

-
1

 n
 o

 	
C

O
 

:-. 	
ii, 

48
 c

u
 

44" 
0
 '4

7
, a

) ra
 

_
c
 a

)
 0

 a
)
 ‘

4
-
 

0
 u

 
_
0
 ra

 -c
 

L5g
 i

 _
ccu  —

Z
 
 
E
 ra61) -(30! 

:3: 'X:
 'i.1

1>  4
_

;
'-   EL'  

-
 

CO.
 

2
 
t
 

4-,  IT
I 

_
 ,_

 	
.4

_
, r 

n
 c

 4
-
. c

 
ra

 4
-, a

) 
-4.,
  

L
i,  
0
 C
£
 
0
 
C

 
.
.
=

,
 
c
 	

U
S

 
C

I)  
z
 •_E

 9-  r
•
I
 

Co  -L
-' 	

0
 "

 1
0

 t
i
 -_-E- 

a.) 
0

  -0
  ,-. o

 .,_
, 	

E
 ''' fo  2

 -c.- u
, 

.3., 	
‘_ 

I
 

.1-2 
co 

8
 
.
 z

  4
_
, 
>
 	

Co  
-- 	

-
 ▪  v

i c
 

-c
 c

 -0
  co

 .,...." -c
 	

,..) 
rt) V

S
 

c
  
E

 
°
 

0
 
-
0
 

a) 
rcs  

4--. 	
V

) 
4
-j  

. --. 	
. kr)  

C
I_

 --C
 
-0

 
,
C

i.' 
	

D
 a

) T
i; 

-1-' E
 

ro
 

tj-1
 C

I r
z
 I-

-
 

.Ln 	
0
 ...E

 
C

 
.1-,

  .•
-
%

 L
J

 	
U

 
 E

 d
_

 _
c
 "6

 (1
3

 
U

 .4
-• 

U
 
	

0
 
E
 

',7:. 	
..4

- 
a
./ u

 _
 .._

 	

▪  ▪  

1:12 
a)  >

.
 
0

 
• 

o
 a

)
 c

o
 

_
0
 ..=

 c
o
 

n I 
-C

 ..1
-d

 
ai 

E
 

E
. 	

--...

▪ 	

.27  C
D

 4
-' 

1:2  Q
)  

D
 

4
-
■

 
i'_". 	

. -
 	

t
l
i
 
i
n

 
I
D

 
-
0

 
LA

 	
a
i o

 v
, 	

a) 
Lr, 

ra 
0"
 M

 	
, 

..I-,  
l
•-•• 

a) 	
L/3_' 

c
  

,_
 4

9
 

ra
 •—

 	
E

 
0.) 

ro
  D

 
'.1'  Z

 
'
-
.
 1-' 

C
U

 i..) 
U)  -a

  
-- 4

-■
 

u
 	

L_ 
E

 0
 

Co 
D

 
C

L
 a

.) 	
CU 

a) 	
ru 

c
 E

 _
c
 	

'ci-, 
=

 
C

l) 	
-I-. 	

Lel 	
,- .. c4_, 	

,_ 	
a
) .= '-' 

0
1
 .v

1
 	

C
l) 

4i.;
 
,G) 

its 	
c
 4

_a)
 -2 .V

1
 

-
.
 

ILI 1.,_ 
cac;

 
0

 
0

 i_w
  L

D
 C

I "(7
, 

-0
 C

 
L

.) 0
 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 218 of 351



Buildings  C,orilribubng  to  Historic  District 

Northern  State  Campus  Design  Guidelines  Manua l 

Pioneer  Human  Services  

istr ict  Boundary  

Ri 

National Regis ter  Historic  

%
 Cf- 
0
 

YA. 

0
 

S
 i• ", ''.- 

............... 
............ .•

 

m
asa 

/
Q

om°

)
4

#
'  

	
a 
	

10.11i01010 
49 A 

1 01111111--  A
V
-
 

In
NO

IN
IC

 
1111111111M

- 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 219 of 351



1.1 

24. 

a 
U
 Us 

-0 

E
 4

 
4" 3

  
E

  

c
 

o
 

z
 • ..o 

rvi
rn 

0.+ 

„
 

O
 

-o
 

-a
 

2
 

a, 
a
 

-a
 

C
 

Ca 

a) 
O

 

-C
 

4
-,  

C
 

C
 

0
 

-C
 

V
I 

(1:3
V

I  

aI 
U

 
ea 
a
 

c
 

0
 

4./s 

a) 

0
 

E
 

C
 

0
 

a, 

ro
 

-o
 

a) 

aJ 

C
 

0
1
 

1.71 
a) 

`a-) 

r), 

U
I 

0
 

-o
 

cr% 
f
V
 

a) 

4- 
ro 
O

i 

a) 

cr, 
C

 

O
 

Va 

gla 
-C

 

2 
C) 

rITS 
a

 

LL 

C
 

0.1 

a
 

U
) 
C
 

0
 

0
 

U
 

0
)
 

C
 

0) 

0.) 
-C

 

C
 

0
 

:92 
7

 

4-4 

rU 
U
 

C
 1
 a

J
 

as 
a,
 

t..) 
O 

U
 

Z
 

C
 

 4'33 
-C

 

0
 

ar 
_c 
0-1 
C

 

U
 
C
 

V
I 

U) 
0
1
 

0
 

0
 

8
 

a
 

C
 

-o
 

Ca 

0
1
 

L
- 

113 

a) 
E  

ro
 
a
  

'6; U
 

O
 

4-. 

_C 

L
E'r'  

4
-
 

0
 

C
 

0
 

0
 

113 

45
('  

a) 
_c 
4

-,  

0
 

a) 
C

 
0

 

U
 
z
 

a
 

r1:1 
U

 

CD 

Site  Plan  and Landscape  Resources  

C
 

C
 

Ca 
C
.
 

C
 

a
 

0
 

a) 

vi 0
1
 

ra 

,s-r; 
C

D
 

f7.1 

0
)
 

rn 

-0
 

U
 

C
 

0
 

0
 

a
 

a.) 
_c 
F

- 

0
 

tri 

ro
 

aJ 
°-' 

ro 

E
 

a
 

U
 

C
 

ra 

O
 

C
 

-o
 

1=2 0 U 
113 

-0
 

C
 

_a 

_c 
O

 
4.4 

(1) 

(1.) 
4

-,  

-0
 

CC 

a.) 
_C

 
4-4 

-o
 

C) 
vi 
0
 

CV= 
-o

 
a, 
C
 

0
 

C
 

0
)
 

-4
-,  

_
0
 

a) 
-o

 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 220 of 351



0 15 -  Northern  State  Campus  Design  Guiderines  Manual 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 221 of 351



v
s

,_ 
CIJ 	

a) 	
..c 

47, 
LA

 
4
 	

0
 

4
- 

..,) 
	

Lari 
-0

 -C
 C

 
rla 	

1_,J 
-8

 o
 

	

-ID
 

-rs
 ,—

 	
CU

 
•• 

E
 

	
0" 	

=
 

u
 	

a) 

	

—
 
	

4-. 
	

cuc +
 t - 

mc
 
	
f,  

co 
fl3 

G
I 1

2
 

0
1

  r
I
3
 	

>
, 

c
  

tr
i =

 
al 	

E
 	

,-. a
 2

2
 

it i.---  
03 4-. 

	
0
 .0

 
0
 
D

 	
i.-J 

-SD 
u

 
c
  a

l 2
 	

u 

	

a) 
a., c

 .4
._

 	
C

r) 
L

ti C
li 

4-
' 

CV
 
r
i 

a, 
4-, 	

..T.: 
	

a
) c

r) "3
 

0) 
E

 a
 

	

cu  '1
5

 o
l 	

42
 :E

  .,-_- a_ 
E

 
—

 
'n

 
4-, •Zu

  z
ii- 

7
-5 C

 	
G

S
 '1

:1
 
	

0
 
-
0
 

v
l 1

- 	
.4

7
, 	

i" 
.-

 r
T

3
 v

i -
 3

-  -
C

 
_C

 
C

U
 f1:1 

3
 -0

 M
S

 
E

 
o  u

"
 o
  u

 —
 ,i 

c
 

4- 	
-0

 	
E

 c :E
 L

T
, 

ct3 E
 	
0
 
 
>
 
	

0
 2

 -
 	

,__. 
G

 
m

 
0
.. c

 0
 ®

 T i, 
+

, 	
,, 	

-0
 	

-
 
,
 

a,
 
.:4-1, 

76 
2

 c
 ,.._

 
aj  o

 

	

.- a
) a

, E
n

 ,,,-; 	
-.7._

 tt 
4-' 
a, te

, ra
 

 

	

E
 _

a
 
'
 03 

C
 	

G
J
 =

 1
- 

22
(1:1 	

.ci)
,7, 
 3... 1 

E>s 
	.1

 

,
 	

ts  ro
 —

 'I' 
::: 

+..
.4-.2

 
C

 -C
 

'i 	
8
1 "

 C
D

 >
 

t.,-; 
ON 

ct 	
EL 

',-.. ,—
 	

n
..5 ;,-' 

C
 

0
 

	
CI ..t   

V
I 	

V
1
 .., 

	

-C
 	

C
 	

-C
 
1
:5  
0

 LA
 

a
) a

j  
a

) G
J ±

4
3

 	
E

 4
, 	

o
 

4Ej 4
-
' C

  V
I
 

_C) 
I.-_, -0

 
_

C
 >

 	
0

3
 (1

) _
c
 	

ro 
vi' 

0
 
Q

)
 
Z

 
"

 
o., 

4-,  a
) ID

 	
u
 
n
 0

. 
L

e
l ,._

 
R

I 
ia

l 
t:f. 0

  g
, 0

>
 
ncr) 	

121  E
.-=

 o
. id

; 
rs

 ..c „.„ 
o

 
L

... -,c 
E
 2

  -
o
 
	

o 
c  

E
 

-,7, a
, 

E
 —

 	
c
o
 c

 E
 	

a_ - 
u

  
..., 	

cu 

	

D
 1

5
_
 ii.-7. 

--o
 E

 ' 	
E

T
 

C
 .7-1 

'3 	
c
U

 c
 v

 m
s
 

_
 	

a
l C

IS
 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 222 of 351



C
 

-c 

C
 

'Es 
C
 

z
 

crn 
C
 

C
 

fa 
a
 

-
C

  

C
 

ro 

C
 

C
 

a
 

X
 

IL
I 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 223 of 351



14.1 

_c 
V
 

=̀4  E 
V
 

Oi 

,#) 
z 0. 
E
 

eri C 

O
 

cu 
4
-
.
 

cn 
O
 

C
 

O
 
C
 

6" 
cc 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 224 of 351



Distant  views  to  the  mountains:  

20 )5  -  Northern  State  Campus  Desig n  Guidelines  Manual 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 225 of 351



Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 226 of 351



ooking  west.  Photograph 

201 -  Northern  State  Campus  Design  Guidelines  Manual 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 227 of 351



a) 
nz 

ti
 

:a
l 	

u
 

cc; 
'.5 	

0
_
 
' 
•
 
-
 
-0

 	
C

Y) 	
0
 

a) 
4
-' 	

.., 
C

r+
 '•-• C

U
 	

C
 	

_
C

 
LA

 
b... 

0
 	

-
 
c
 
0

 
-a

 ._
 4

_
, a

 .t...)
 .-

 
<

 
-ID

 u
'' =

 L
--
 5

 	
LA 

aL  
<

 
U

 	
C

r "E
 

rl:s 
U

 a
l 

(1)  c
 v

l •
-
:,- 

.-
E

 0
 .2 _i-.)  cY

1 6 o 
lz

_ 	
_, a, .- 
	.— 

O
 

--c 
1
-
 
°
 
0
 
_
0
 
u
.5  
1
:3)

 
•
-
 
"
 
'47

, 
 9

2
 c

u
 

4
-

. 	
. 	

I
-P,, N

 	
- a

.) 
cu 	

+E
' =

 =
 -0i-s  

L
., a

) 	
• 	

-0
 _

c
 

..E
 

-0._ 
-c
; Z

 a
)
 

C
U

 4
-. rti 

tr,  
_

C
 =

 ..1.- 	
C

r) U
 

4
-
•
 =

 r
e
l 

CLJ 
444 	

1/1
 

a) Y 9-F ,  LT
. . 

O
 1..7 

c
 

_c 	
m

 o
 c

rC
r--  c

 C
 -1

--,  Q
}
 

c
 

c
  7

 
4
-, -0

 
t
r
j U

 1
 C

 
I  D

 
0
 
0

 a
l _

c
 

o
 

c
s
) c

- 4
,-. c

 - 0
  
c
 

(cs 	
0
 
:6

 (
?
)
)
 z

 V
 c

 -
. 

.47, --,z,  r
-
-
 
c
 	

C
 c

ri 
-0

 
L

I 
a
i  c

r
, C

O
 C

 -
0

 
c45.

  .5
 t'S

5
 "

 U
 0

 Q
. 

t.,9 
Q

J
 a

 ‘-- 
E

 °
 	

. 
ja

  U
 
E

-
1-- 
	

c
u

 
,
 

—
 	

.4
7
4
 —

 r
- 

O
 

(1) 
E

 	
m

  
u

 u
 a

) 
D

. 
tr; .L

t „
7

., 
a

s 
u
 
-
c
 0

 
Lan)
 
c
 
c
 
u
l 

v
i C

 -
 -

 
C

 
C

U
 '..,- 1

 ;.-
-,
 

E
  >

, -0
  _

c
 s

 , 
a., 4

-. - 
V

I 	
c
u
 .- 

>
 

4
-  'n

 
%

.7
, -- a

)  <
 
0

 7
3, u

s
 I-  
°
 g 

-L-4  
15

  
i

l-
c
 L

.7
 1

+
5

 o
z
.c

.c
 v

i0
-47

-
,I 

.4_,
a-1  2

 -0
 w

 
,._ i,e) :-.0

  (
1
)
 4-0-..,  

=
 
t
 

C
 

vi _
0

 
u
 

0
) u

 
x
 n

 >
, s

_
 c

u
 

cli  
	
_

 =
 4

-, w
 =

 
-E 
- _

c
 

71:1 0  =
 

• 
vi 	

=
 ..-• . . 

	
--,. 

L
I "•-• 

4
-4

 ..- 
-0

 
• 

n
 0

)
 

•
 .6") 	

-r
 
=

 0
 
	

--0
 =

 
._

c
 ,_

 ,_
. 

4
, 

ro  r) c
u

 a
) >

... 
c
c
 c

c
 ix

 
-
a

 c
 4

-
•
 0

 c
  

4-,  
c
 

I-
 v

s
 _

 	
v
) . - U

 
c
o
 2

£
 

v
i a

l 
, c

u
 c

 
._

c a
) ,i_

v, -0
 -.,7

,. 
-o

 
-
0

 -
c
 m

 =
 c

o
 c

 
4

-0  
 

a) 	
Li-) 
4
-. 

_
 ,-- 

	
U

 
c
l In

  
•,+

-. 0
 

c
 4

c
 L

!"1
 Q

-,  
a
) is

 
.5

 
c
 
t
)
 

46
 ,L

2
 c

 
a
d
 0

 _
F._

 •-c 
D

 
-.°

 .4
7
-■

 
	

®
 
0
 

co 
8
 .4

 ...-, 
,.,-, 
fro

 c
 z

 
6

 
a
i _

o
 

,
 

._
 

a) 
E

 	
w

 '..7.-; 
,.,, 

u
 

2
  -
CH

  .
4

•
,,,

-  
C ▪  

=
 

C
 

'1-=1-j
rC

I 1
1

-2  
P

.1
1
 C

Cci  i
l M

  
I
 
ck  - - )c-)  c

i
 

i 
E

 in
 
0,
 

..... 	
-,--.. 

2
 t=

s
) - c

o
 c

 -cs
 

t- A
 C

L
I 6

,  
C

 
0

 
4
- C

C
 

	

C
) 
	

..L
., 0

 +
- 

O
 

-47 	
9T 

	

rc) 
C

r, 	
rts

 rr) 
-0

 C
 s

- Z
 C

O
 

U
. 

ai  
O

 
0

 
fy

 	
4
-
 

V
I
 
a

 
-.0

 
4

-4
 T

C
 0

 "- 
-C

 	
, bccs 

a)  I
T

 
t
i
 
:
+

-
' 
7

.
-13  4

-
 
.
.
.
.
 

0
- Z

 
-a

' a
_
 

a
l 

 
(1) 

til v
l 

46
 

E
 -:'13  

_c 	
o

 	
0

 c
 

I-- 4
_

, a
 =

 
n

o
 0 4_

, rt) 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 228 of 351



Northern  State  Campus  Design  Guidelines  Manual 

__,.. 	
kr) 

1.2 	
ra 
a) 	

a) 
a
) L

- m
 _

c
 

-c
 

nu 
c
 4

- ,  

C3 
..r.,
7
1
 I---  F

2
 1 6

 3
1
 

-
c
 c

 ir
i o

 =
 —

 
a
, a

) o
n
 u

 7
3
 ( 1:3  

i_, .. 
7
1
 

 
=

 
4-4 
I-- 	

5.7 

0
 
E

j  
=

 
—

 
,-F

- 	
=

 
a
)
 0

1
 0

 
>

 
c
 
-
-
-
 

-0
 	

' 
-13  
0
 

 
-
 
-
 - 0

 

a
) 	

-IA
 -0

 
7
2
 C

 
CU 

ra
 
.5

 
r ,
 

=
 'c

 
,1 

o
 ‘=

, 
- c

s
 _

o
 „.; 

>
, :4

-, ' c
i.' 4

-, 
Q

. 

	

ra  
- 0

 C
 -

I-
' 
-
 

ra 	
0
 

'0
 

U
 

0
  _

c
 

.
■ 7
-
 ' 13  C

 
0
 a

- L
., 

to
 E

-  "
a

 —
 

a
 4

._
,t ,  
•
 

4-F 	
1/1 

-
0
 =

 c
 4

3
 

Vs 
0

 
1E 

.4--:
 1:75  
c
 
'
 ra

 :4 74  
0
3
 '.-4

 
n

3
 a

) —
 

in
 i_

 (K
I ..o

 _
c
 a

 - 0
. 

ID
) 4

- 
kn 	

if f, E
 ro 

c
 ._

 
_ 	

s
4
- 

C
 --C

 
-(T) 

.E
  

 
 
2
 

. 
	

a
 
c
 
F

>L
- ,
 

 
i
n

 
-
0

 
 8

 
8 C

 
a
j  
c
 

..o
 	

a
 
c
 
	
,
 
D

 
4

_
, m

 

a
i  

4C4D' 

in
 
"
  

7
  
 C

 
V

 
	

c
i 
	

r
 
0

 
E

 -
 
	

±
 

 

 
C

 
C

 

_ 7 a
J
 -

5
 

7
ti 

-
1

0
 >

 0
 
	

.--- 
-0

 
- 0

 

	

.411 
4-• 

.,$), 	
® 

=
 
=

 

	

ra 
a

 a
)
 r

t, 	
.4

=
' D

 
-0

 

u
 r

a
 v

)
 	

v
i In

 
c
  

	

,.), 
- t)

 i»
 

E
 	

a
)
 i-

 -
-
 

	

M
t 

M
I C

D
 -0

 	
-
C

 .0
 >

e
 

	

1
7
3
 -0

 . E
 

a
) 	

' 
i.
ii 

a
)
 

	

a
.) c

 —
6
 

LJ
 	

0
 
E

 a
 

c4= riz 
-0

 

	

c
 •—

 
fR 	

C
 

cu
 E

 

	

 
a
,
 
	

.
0

 
-
=

 
0

 

	

C
O2

 c
” .t, 	

4-z, ..-- 
U

 

- 0
 

M
S

 a
) 

iL'. 
.
•- -

 	

L
.?

 tri 
a
j 

a
)
 E

 

	

L
 
. ..5

 
- 0

 	
kn 

—
 

...0 

C
 	

ra
 

-4-' 

	

E
 :6

  o
n
 5 	

ro
 4

-' -0
 

a
; r

a
 C

 	
k
_
 C

 
a
) 

4
-, 0

 
,_ 

	

-Q
 _

c
 •3

: 
r a

 	
C

 
k
j 
f
 

a) 
E

 >
 D

 
>

 	
o
 

c
 	

e ) , :.•—
 „, a) 

n
o
 ..- 
	

ca 
.
z
 
0

 
0

 	
ad 

	

4
- 4

- 
E

 	
_c 

0
 r

a
 

I -
 

 U
 -

4
5
 

f.l) 	
ti, 
cr, 

ru 
	

8
 E

 	
c
 

-r ... ti, 
L

a
- 0

 	
la

 
- 	

4-4. 
-C

 k
J

 C
I, -^

' 
4

-0
 , ?

-- a
. 7

.:_
_

 

4
-. n

3
 a

) rn
 , c)  _

cl  
.4

 .,_
 u

 c a
 

cri 
41 :1  
x
 

C
 -C

 
1- 1-

i ( +15 
E

 
c
  

1:1 
._ 

L..,
u
   

 

U
   

W
  
_

 
 

0
 

D
  0

 
-
 
=

 0
 

in
 in

 
r0

 1
E

 0
 

0
 

 
-C

 
 

C
 c

u
 

L_ 
4-4 

0
 
_

C
 
V

 
C

 
0

 
L

I
 

4
- ,  r

c
,
 

 
i
n
 
U

 
.4

1
,, 4

-, 	
Lei 
.—

 	
'C

- 
m

 
0

 
0

-f
 
u
 
- C

3
 0

 
C

 4
--, 	

r1
3

 w
 

> 
..., 4

-, 

E
 'cm

 cc —
 ro -' 

4
7

, u
 m

 
c
 E

 2
  
( 1) 

t- 
	

o
 ..A

 
‘,1

 in
 

1
3
) -0

 '—
 	

0
 

1:14 

4- ,  '-
-
 
	

0
 tj-, _

c
 

''' 
4'7' m

 	
Cr% 

4
-. 

c
 z

 +
-. -- 

a
l 

a) 
	

-c
 

ai  
0 >

  

f:  =
-' - -F, -,E 	

17- 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 229 of 351



-0
 

0
3

 

4
—

 0
1
 

(
1

)
 
0

 
C

 
-0

 
7
 
N

 
 

4
-.

7.-c r
,  

7
 

• 0  
 

v
-s

 4
-,  

>
L. 

4-.  
c
 

-
0

 
C

 
0

 
7
 W

 
LJ 

4
-, E

 
v
) 	

.L
, 

a) C
C

) 
8 

., 
• 

S
A

 
. 

a
) n

s
 X

 
c
c
 0

1
 

a
) c

 
.C-' 

>
 

)-,-7. 	
as 

‘...) 
-
-
 =

 u
 

=
 'F

.  
ra 

..ca 
 0

1
 

c
 

1
0

 
,.- • 

IA
 

cr) 
C

 
ro 

4
-, 

.—
 

 
C

D
 F

 
‘n

 
0

 
:=

 C
 

0
4

 
a) 
_

c
 2

 
w

a
_c 

I—
 	
,
 Figure  5.4.  Agricultural buildings,  dairy  barn  interior,  east of the  Historic  Core.  Photograph 2015 

Historic  Architectural Resources:  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 230 of 351



?t11 5 -  Northern  State  Campus  Design  Guidelines  Manual 

assessments.  

U
 

a) 	
E

 
 

,/, 
o

 o
 

L_ 

:1--; 	
rCI 	

vl 	
cr-r 4_, 

L.) 
26

 _
ccli  <

i; a
t 

rri 
c
 

>
, 

-
0
 C

U
 , 

O
 

ro 	
_C

 
C

 
4-
' h

 
w

 
E

 .=
 

L
A

 c
 —

 .=
 

N
 
t
r
i 
0

1
 

4--,  

•- z
..7

.-.' 
-0

 	
2
 .=

 L
i,  a

i
 

i
 	

0
 

 o
 a

, 4
-,  

re, 
C

 	r., ,.... ,,, t,,,, .0
 

0., 	
ci., 	

=
 

_c :c.z  
0
 

4
-. 	

4
-
 

D
 V

I 
C

ij (1
3
 -0

 
4
-• - - 

CO 
L

i 
c
 

_
 

C
 i

l
i
 L

o
 U

 
16

 
,-

-
, C

 n
o
 

.0
 
	

.1
-. O

J 
	

.-
 

-
C

 
C

 
0

 
■._ 
-
4

-
•
 t'l '-

 
-47-, 	

CD 
• 

a) ;.T., 	
,.,-. 

	
,.., 4

-,  
M

 
3
 -

0
 u

 
..2

 
-0

 a
)
 w

 
v., „k r

  2
 

C
: c

 

	

...c
 >

, 
,-.., 	

n
u
 

-0
 	

0
 

.--7 
4
-■

 
w

  
u
 
 

a) 	
u
 

4_, 
ra 	

C
 .. 0

  • '4-  >
 c

r) u
 

0
 

,_
 c

 
t.)  

u
 	

o
 z

"- 
cp 	

4
-,
  V

I
 
6

.,1
 

-o
 ,-

 
_
 	

0
) c

 re
 	

o
 

• 
c
 o

 	
>

, =
 

4_, 
a

t ,... M
 , 

-; L
.?

 >
"' n

3  ID
 L

E
 

Z
 	

'1:7) • - 
u

 
a, C

 —
 

._
 

ri3  ,
.
.
,
 

U
 	

E
 L

 0-
  T

 
i E
'
 (1‘j. 

4
-t 

=
 	

1
-
 4

-
. 

E
 

-,17. , c
 -

0
 

.._ 	
,.•-■

 
,-, 	

0
 -

-
 0

 1
-
 a

J
 c

 
,
 	

4
-, I k

J
 

sp_ o) res 

..-,. 
 

,... 	
j.,- ..c 

▪  

0
. 

'rTa 	
v
i -,,--• -.' 	

0
 

'.‘'" 	
.1

) C
 

4,7
 T

i 
a
i L

n
 ""'„ . .C

. ',..
-
 
0

)
 
0
 
 
>

 
E 

c
 u

., 	
0

 C
D

 >
-.. C

 
o
 

0
 -c

 
-c

i 
u
 —

 4
- c

 a
l 4

-• C
 c

u
 

C
 

0.1 ___ 
P

O
 i, 

CD 
:1

'^' 	
C

 n
i 4

.-
I 	

11) 
..0

 
1
:5  L

 
c
n
 

M:I  7
3

 
	

4-, 
4
-,  C

 
i
j
i
 

a., U
 
C
 

4
., =

 
4

-
 
0

 
(
0

 
.
r..  '-"

I 	
ra 

as 
0
 

-0
 	

-C
 

0
 L

I 
a) 

0
 	

+-; 
,..,.., o C

u-  4
-
 -o

 c
 

>
"
 1

1
3
 4

-,  L
.."

 
o

 4
.,
  4

-,
  C

 
ro

 
7
2
 U

 ft a
/ 	

U
 
V

 
f
t
 
u

 
4-,  0

1
 n
a

 r
a

 U
 
F

-
0
 _

_,, a
) n

z
5

 >
, ..-- 

4
-  

.-
-
, 

.."
 ,,C

) tj 	
M

 (
1
)
 ....=

 C
 

'13  _
c

 
E

 o
 
2

 ip
 a

)
 _

c
 _

c
 E

/ 
 
 

.....> 	
u ...., 	

E
'  

4
-
I t

n
 7

3
 

0
  -
0
 .L

.) c
c
) v

i L
e
l 

"0
  C

F
I
 
a
y
 
°
 
0
 
r
-
 
c
 
0
 
r
a
 

le
i =

 C
 C

n
o

 0
=

 L
I 

rs1 :15 
- E

 ,>
: 

r) 
V

I 
LE
'
 
-
0
 ''''. 

C
U

 ..=
. ',.. IL

- Q
., 	

.--E
 
r
a

 
fL

3
 s

i6
.  

c
u

 >
 	

4
-•

 •
C

 _
C

 
4-' -.0

 4
1

, L
.-"

, 
6

- 	
01 ...., 	

v., 

	

.L., 
a..1 

6
  t ,,.... c --s 	

cm
 a

) 
7

,6
 ,7

:_
- -o

 o
 

.r1  
°
 	

E
  7

1
 

 
" 0

 C
O

 	
..- ;x-i 	

"f3 to 
ii)

 4
-
. 1

-
 ..0

)
 

>
 
I
n

 
a
., - 	

G
i 

0
1
 4

-' —
 - 

E
 

-E
. 11-)  E

 .2
 -crS' 

o
 :E

 	
o

 

ealth,  Gove  &  Bell 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 231 of 351



L
. .) 

L.,-) ---.. 	
c
 

Z
 fa

 	
©

 
G

£
 

cu 	
-0

 	
._

 
c
u

 'E
 

L
n

 0
 -C

 7
5

 	
0) 

4F
. 

a
) 	

--..' 
C

 
C

 
0:3  

Cl/

-
 	

-C.—
 

E
 45

  
.
 

n
.
:_ 	

4
-
■

 
u

., 8
 vi 

a
 

L
L
 

ra 
 4-,  

.
.
=

 
C ▪  
0
 
	

V
I 

4
-
,
 
0

 L.) 
,.,; 

ra
 o

r 
a., o

 
U 	

eu" .--' 
a

 71  
4

.-1 
4
-, 	

4.0
 

4
- 	

CU
 

4
-j  
U

 
	

1.-.41  
O

 
v
i _

C
 

12
' 	

-0
 

L
I  t-

J
 tiC

 
4
-
 

0
 

5
' 	

•:-/-: 
ln

 
9
.1  V

I
 
n
 , 0

.1
 a

l 
(13  
p

 
>

, L
., -E

 
-
 
,
-
 
u
  1

-
-
., o

.'=
. c

y
le

 c
Z

 
1._ 
Rs 

,_ 
ru

s E
 

4-4 
Z

 
a
)  

_
c
 u

-, 0
 

,._ 
ro. 

Lir 
_

C
 r- 
0) 

a,
 

n
 

0
 a

 a
)
 
u
  7

:$
 u

 -o
 

w
  
t
 

rt3
 v

-)
 C

 _
C

 
4-,  

_
0

 LCD 
L

i-, 7
.1

 a
) 

▪  

0
 

.v
, a

) 
>

-, —
 
	

:-7. :1-'7,  a
/
 -6

  C
r9

 ,,,a)  
c
 

,..su 
u
  -
0

 
'13  
"C

 	
-a

  t
j
 
7

,
 

nu 

	

E
 	

0
 

>
 U

 
4, C

 0
 r

a
 r

a
 D

 
a
) a

) 
VS 

V
' 

•
 ;"...,

 
T

y
 
•
:
,
 	

u
n

 re
 U

 	
U

 C
D

 is
s
 

>
 

r1L1 	
1 	

U
 C

 	
-1-• 	

0
) 

k_ 	
GU 

0
 0

) c
li 	

C
 u

i 	
C

 
T

4
-,  N

 
	

C
 

4=
 L

..>' 
-_E'  T

S
 

8
 	

=
 
_
 

a
 

u-1  
-
 
	

CG
 

C
 	

ra
 C

L
i 

n
 

0
)  a

)
 
	

-o  ..-. -o
 

_7, :E
 a

) c
 u

 _
c
 4

-' .- ._
 --:- 

	

L- 	
C

 V
- 

C
 

1
1

3
 
0

 
=

 
t
j
 
0
)
 
t
 

(DM
 
-
c
u
=

  4
-
'
 
	

.4
-
-
 
 
I
A

'  0
 
'
.
'
 

=
 

4
-4  

4-4 
CD 

c
 2

 c
 

E
  .
c
 
u
 0

  m
 

 4
-7"r  . , , ;_17,1  .  --' -r < 

...c 
, 1

g
 
	

2
 <

 4
-.. _

c
  ,
,
,

a
) ..._

 .., 
C

 
4̂

. 
 

a) 
2

_
0

 u
 

a.)  =
 c

u
 c

u
 	

a) 	
0_ 	
,
 

n
a

 ;.-_
 v

■
 
	

-,T
, IP

 c
u
 .0

 
E

 ir
)
 ' 0

 -
-
 

G
 

4.-,  .
-
 ,E

) 
	

>
 c

 _
c
 ., 	

C
L 	

-L
I -C

 
0

)
 c

 	
a, n

u
 

_c 
i-
 
0

 
u
 

-,.7-, 	
17; 

4-,  
G

)  a
)
 -5

' 
CU 

a
i 4

-'  
E
/
£
 

,
 _a 

.- 	
, x

 
4-,  (1) 

C  Loa
  
I
 
	

_c 
8

 	
.c

 a
)  

Historic  Architectural Vocabulary:  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 232 of 351



L
- 

0
 

O
 

>
., 	

tZ
 

-4-.
,.  

V
I 

132 
t
 	

c
 

rci 
6

 	
cu'` 

.,-. 	
._

 
›.-. a3 

-CJ 
C

 (1
.) 

I-
 

4
-
•
 V

I 	
'n

?
 	

C
Z

 L
.)  

..-
 

V
I V

I 
F
-

• 	
• 

C
.) 	

a, 	
a, 	

m 
	

b', 
	

...-, 
_

c
 ..c

 -0
 

a
 

Q
., C

 rG
 C

u
  

4
-4

 +
4

 
a, 

E
 ..; 	

,-c
 '5

 
'
 E
@
 

 
,... 

4
1

- -_
.._

 '4
5
 

O
 

0
 
C

I
 

03
 1

3
.1

 
co 

E
 

c
 c

o
 

...c
 u

 u
 

	

ct:s 	
a

 	
i, 

4
-- _

a
 	

--I nil 

	

0
 -4

-, 
	
a
 	

E
 

• -47, 
a

, ' --' ''' 	
a
, 0

1
 	

a, -o
 

..... 
c
o
 c

 
I
f
t
 
U

 
U

 	
,_

7
:) .0

  C
I
-
 

© C
 	

c
 
 E

 a
t 	

-.-.,-, 4-- (T.J ‹z '13  
.,... 

.  
+

-, 4
-, rts c 	

c
 
	

_c 
x url ...c a., 

3
 	
k
ƒ
 
 

4
4

4
 >

 
C

.) 
C

 
C

 a
.)

 V
I 

 
 

E
 o

 ›... 
o

 
	

7
 

4>
  

.-, 
u

 	

• 	

a, 	
tO

u'
o .c 

a) 	
Ho

 
ro 

 
E Lel 

 
_

o
 

- 

(,-, c
-' 4

--, 
o

 
4
-
•
 
4
-
4
 

 
.
-
 

O
 

C
I; 	

V
I C

 

	

C
 rt3

 	
L
I c

 
CU 	

C
) c

l) r1
/ 	

• 

	

+
.• '1

"
r1:1 	

1
 
	

IrL13 
D

 
0

 v
l 

0
 in

 

	

4
- ›, ..,:,- 0

3 	
-_E--.  x

 
c
r
i 	

-1-, 
u
 

u
 a

) 
V
.—

 
 
E

-  
i
i
 ro 

	

R
3
 L

i C
 	

i
 
0

 
0

3
 

.0
 

'0- co 
3

 2
 if, 

o
 •-' 	

(0
 (I) —

 

	

_c 	
4-§' Ea-  9

, 
-a 

E-  _., 
,- 

,- 	
c
 

-
5

 	
a) 

4
-• 

cn ro ‘.::' _...„.`m 
D

 
L
i M

  
0
 
	

_
C

 4
- t-- 

O
 

(ID
 ...._

 u
 -0

 	
I—

 0
 -_

_
... _

_
I --, --4

_
 

	

,5!, 	
CU 

7
3

  
„2

4
-, u

l C
 

V
' V

I L
,-

, 
-o

 
2-2 	

_
o
 fr, ,,, c

 

	

4
-• 	

a) 
0

 o
 _

c
 

ru
 

V
I 4

-
■

 
a

k
 c

 >
-, 2

 
ru

 
C

U
 7

, 
u
 c

ld
 	

a) 
H

 -3  u
 -o

n
 	

>
 

	

-M
I  -
§

-
 	

a
 161

 
	

4-- 
ru

 . - 
r„- ._

_
y
' 0

 
v
s
 >

6  
0

 
1

 ,,,,E 	
06 "--5  

D
 ... V

 	
D

 C
 ''' —

 u
 

a
 c

o
 u

 ,..- L
.' ii, ' .E

 

	

-.3 	
n
3
 0

3
 E

: 61" 
C

I 

	

=
 0

 ,V
 	

E
D

 
a) L_- 

-0
  -
-
-
 
C

 

	

vs 	
_CI 	

CU 
;II  

E
  

	

Le ▪  t ,- ._-_ 
a
l 	

L
n

 C
 

rI3  T
S

 	
C

 u
 	

C
ll rts

 =
 tI5

 
u

 
a„ 

-o
 
w 	

E
 
5

  
'
 

4
-- I—

 a
u

 
'6:-  

CU 
3-  c

 ...., .v
-1 

o
 1

5
 —

 

• 

G
J
 4

- 	
u
 

_
f] C

L
 .(1.1-.3  -

d
 

_C
 ..._(1) 	

111 	
'''' _

C
 ..c

 

	

>
, 	

>
, 

I-- 
T

s C
i'l 

.
'
 
'
 

•
 -

0
 

,n
 
c
 

	

V.-2 	
.--. 	
'
 

c
 

u
  
0

 
	

® 
,i, 	

0
 
"
 	

C
 

0
 • 

° _
E

 
4

 .e
 ._

 c
u

 4
_

 
0

 
E

 
7,--,

  
(1) • 

0
1

 ̀1.- 	
ru

 
I—

  C
 -0

 >
 

.c 
61) 2

 
CI)  

0
1
 *; 

, C
D

 M
 .=

 
's

_
 in

 

	

>
,. 	

4
-- in

 
C

 >
• 

c
 

	

.- k
r, 

-0
 	

R
 C

 

	

r9 	
C

 _
C

 
fi 

-2 4--' 
4'-  
0
 E

jj  C
 

	

I..) 	
---• 
.-.., • 

0
 
6

 
0

 
l..1 

5
 

..Y
 

'5
 

2
 a

) —
 c.) _

,e
 	

c
 

T
o

 '5
 E

 
a, 

_ra  
,c

 
-0

 
cU

 C
L

 2
2

.' -C
:

+
4  M

I 	
G

.1
 -0

 
L

. —
 ,n

- 
 

-444  
>

,
 D

  8
 • 

Tu.- 
 

,
 

c
 4

8
 -a

 
0

 >
, 

E./.  
46

 
4
-
 
 

CU 
• -
.
 
-
 	

>
, 

C
  

O
 

clI
Q

J
 'a_ 

-0
 

ru
 0

3
 

0
 ru

 rg
 a

, 
E
\
 

 
E

 .e
 ''''u u

 	
:4-  in

 a
.; T

.5
 3

 _
c
 

_c ,7, 	
D

 
>

 C
 
	

4-.  7
.
)
 

a
) . 0

1
 0

 -0
  k

r
ig

 
U

 	
a) ._ 

	

,. 	
a, 

0
 

2
 
C

 
.., . -

 
5-.• 	

7.,- 
1•-•4  
0
 
t 't
 
P

._)  
=

 ra 
-0

 u
 '.2

 la
 

0I 5 •  Northern  State  Campus  Design  Guidelines  Manual 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 233 of 351



.  Health & Grove  Archite  

C
O

 -C
 	

C
 

c
 	

CS 	
>

-, 

	

-
 1

7
/

E
 	

0
  

▪  

a
s
 , 4

7i. 0
 C

U
 

La
... N

 
z
  
c
 
	

-0
 

Q
. 1

1
 

a
) _

1
0
 c

o
 	

.c.-.  
O

 
ro 	

•_
 

b 
c  

.1T,  0._ 
k-) 

E
 , -0

 

	

u
-, o

_
 
7
.- -C

 -0
 	

—
 
C
 

	

A.,
 	

4-,  
C

 E
 

 
a j  0

 _
0

 ._ C
 	

.._ 
O

 

• 

Le, 	
(i) 

E
 

L.) 
.i.-) 

-o
 
-C

 v) 
C

 .4..., 

• 
:

▪ 	

1,3°  

	

.,,,t 
	

c
 

a_ 
(13 _c 

t.) 
rt, 

..f, 	
E

 
,-,1

 -c 
iv ...c 	

a
)
 c

 
	

2
 u

 

	

—
 ., a

.. -0
 0

 	
•_._. 

u
 

O
 

v
i
 
5

 
i
d

,
 

:C
. .0

-
5

  1
7

1
 1

7
- 

	

0
 0

"
)
 4

-
 

4-'
c
 
cri3 	

-0
 
0

 

	

C
 

o
 	

"22  
-o

 
 

—
 	

•
-
 	

n
 ,..-=

 
,.. w

 
f.) 

C
 '5

 'C
I w

 0
 .L 2r1  c

 a
) "c

, 
e

c
s
 ..c

 e
a

 (L
. 	

4-, 

V
 

'cli, 
L
., a

)c y
'  v

i
a.7 -c

  
pc:
 

s:  
0

 -
c
 _

c
 c

 IA
 a

)
 0

 a
)
 

-0
 
0

 
u

 
0

 	
_c 

C
  4

-
, 	

• 
4
-, 5

1
 
4

-,  V
S

 
-
.
 -C

  
y
l 

a
l 

LI1 	
0
 -,-' 

a., 
_C

 
-5

 ..2
 L

L
' 0

 _
c
 

 
4

.4
 --. 

C
L

 0
 

4—
• 

	

 
4

)
 
	

C
o
 

o
f 

	

C
D

 	
a
) 	

ciC
 'e4T1 	

ra 

	

C
 
' 
c
 
c
 	

c
 

c-, 
ea 

▪
 

c
 _c6

  7
3

 : 0
 E

 	
7.:1-  
, a  ) E

 

	

E
 	

a_ 
	,
 

Q
. 

Lrt 	
1 

1,75  
cid Z

 

	

0
 	

d
 

kr. 
v
l 

C
 	

4-.. 

V
I 

no 
15 
	

G
I ,... 

	

a
 c

ii 	
...c 
+-• 
c
u
 ra

. 
,.., 
a

, 

	

a
 	

,,L  
,, 

.._
. , 

o
 (r

) t=
,' =

 
it, 

c  '5
 
c
 

o
 

co 

	

IA
 	

C
 0

"
)
 

	

......, 	
D

 	
'9.32 L... a) 

+
7, 1

7
)
  a
.) 

	

C
E 	

.4.-. 
3 

-C
 

fa
 

v
l

-  
e

i
 

c
 
.
 	

.4
,9

 -0.„
 

› [43 	
,
 

• 
n

 
u
  .1

"
 r

z
 	

V
I .0

 
C

L
) 0

1
 710 

v,
 	

C
 	

a) 
CU 

	

E
 	

..c 4-„, 
f
 
	

-a 
E

  1E,  
O

 
c
 

c
 0

 
C

 
0

 
C

 
0..) 

eu 	
..., 

0
-.1

 >
 

-0
 

	

0
 ir  113 	

=
 
	(.,, 

c  
u

,
 

U
 

r
a
 U

 (
1
)
 °

 .0
 	

co 

u
 

.z. 
a.) 

	

1
.-0

0
' 	

.S
 	

'—
 E

 
-o ...... 	

u
 

Le.) 

	

C
1

) 	
ri., r.., .1

r) a
l 

4-4 
• 

ea 
	

c
C

 
O

 	
to 

 
>

, c
 

cl) 

Z
 C

U
 
-4

F
-1

 t rri 	

>
, .—

 
C

 =
 

-0
 

	

C
ll -4—

, 	
u

 -0
 

L.., 
c  a

i -C
 4

- 
kJ 

a)   

	

z
rk3 	

<
l..7

 

	

—
0

 
(
f
)
 	

6-1, 
‘,..? 

2
 F1

, 
O

 4
-4rUU

  
,4=

'
''' 

 
C

' 
 
=

 
C

 
1

. O
 

0
 =

 C
 C

 
 

1
.
.
.
.
 

..... 
-W

 
0

 

	

r
tV

V
 

	
- 7

 
C

 1= 

	

(
1
)
 	

=
 	

C
 

2
 

L.,(1
)
 a

l i2
 -

c
 u

 

	

,..-. 	
—

 

n3 
fa

 
fa

 
- 

LO1 ▪  

UP 
D

 
C

  .
.
0

 
.
.
0

 

CU 

.0
-  

O
 

Z
 

- 
1-n

 ,v
,  
t
i
 
v
i
 

4
-• z

 -a
.,
  
aa

j :c-. 
E

 

..z.t. 
O

 
.. .I, 

>.% 

n3 

Q
. 

E
 :,-.' 

a
; ._

 
...., 
o
 

u
-, o

) c
 

c
 

0
1

 0
 

U
1 

L
I- M

 
VI 

1
:)

4--'  
(
1:5

 

 

	

°
 	

L
i 4

')
 1

 
-0

 
a

 j  
0

 
>

Z
 

IL
I 

	

C
 	

4- 

P
I  •

Loj  (1
)2
 
j  
l

l .7Jtj ,A' 

	

a) 	
4_, 

v
s
 re

f -C
 T

D
 

,.1? 
, 

4
,  

C
I)

 C
D

 .+
C

 

	

4
, 	

.

• 

.E
 

	

i

• 	

i., 	
co

 	
v
 

1
3

 
a
)
 e

l 2
 

a,
 
r ▪  0

  

	

c
 	

_
c 

4
.... C

U
 C

C
 

E
 C

O
 -0

 k
i-

C1)  
:,-' 

.1•4 	
U

 -C
i 

	

Q
) 

4
'
j
 	

5.. 
A

 
	

47: 
4

2
  .
.
.
 

L
P

 L
P

 
c
u

 4
... 

Z
 
0

)
 

CM  

. 
O

 
C

 
to

l 0
3

 
LA 

▪
 

01 _Y 
4

, If),
.a.,  

-

• 

A
 

_.c 
,q 

L
L

. 
 
r
 
	

'FL 
4+,  
le1 

F
- iL

..)  
• 

U
 
Z

 
v i

i 
E

 
 
'
)
 7
 

 
rI3 

trs
 0

 
1.- ro -C

 
_VI 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 234 of 351



01 
C

 
-071 
7g. a rn 
4' 
 o o_ 
E
 

0
 

al 

trs* ZrTs 

N
 

N
 	

a
t 	

ro 
a, 	

c
 	

Lr■
 
	

>
. 	

-2
 

-o
 	

C
 	

_a 	
=

 	
6,1 	

(a
 	

5
 	

5
 

ro 	
8

 	
-47,- 

 
0
 	

W
  

4... 
4.4 	

-T
O

 0
./ 

-,a
  'a

 
C

 	
C

 
a

 	
..v, 

1,.) 	
Ln 

tpi ▪  l 

	

co 	
C

 
C

L
 0

 
V

O
 C

O
 	

a
] 	

-47, 	
0
 

...c
 
,
 	

C
 
C

 	
-0

 
,-

 
V

I 	
V

I 
v
s
 _

c
 0

 
_SD 	

ro
 	

it3
 >

 C
O

 
Y

 
0
 
.7

. 2
  

	

0
 ',.7

.. 	
E

 	
m

 	
>

 	
r̀ifi 	

as 
• 

T
I 	

0
- 	

4-, 
5

 
la

 ru
 	

a/ 
.. -„-z

 
 ,_
 r

u
 +

-
. 	

..7 	
0

 
-0

 	
s_si 

0., 	
.I, 	

-0
 	

-0
 

.1
7
 C

 U
 

ro
 	

R
S

 ,,,,, 	
0
 	

c
 	

c
 

a , s
n
 

..._
 0

 

	

.1--. 	
2

 
	

a
i 

	
3
 =

 a
, 	

c
 

112 47-7 
0
_
 

O
 	

-C
S

 V
 

4
-
 

tri 
2
 o

 
a
d
 a

) 
._

 	
M

. k-,
4---,  a

, 0
 _

c
 	

c
 

Ili 	
cr} 

..., 	
C

 Q
. 	

c
i
f
 
U

 
>

 
E

 c
 ,T

 
(1) 	

.0
_

 .5
 .0

 1
-- 	

4-* 	
4-4  

C
 

T
S

 	
C

 	
a

s
 c h, 	

pa 
1- 	

22 U
 

(1)  C
 

,_ 
a, 

03 	
V

I 	
IA

 
.
-
 

0
1

 	
a.,
 	

un 	
,_

 C
C

 1
.-. C

U
 0

 
P

 

	

-
 	

+9
, ; 

c7)  
U

 
0
1
 

L
., a

, 
c
  
0
 

).- 	
t/1

 0
_
 	

0
 
L

' 
a

 	
0

 _
c
 -1

--• '4
7

-, 	
T

s
 	

1.
-
i
 
a
-
 
t
i
'l
 
V

;
 	

11> 	
,.t.,) . 

	

'474 	
4
-

,  
C

 
	

0
_
 U

 	
0
 0

1
 

T
--  

• 
s....

▪  m
s
 	

,101 
q

j 	
- 	

fp
 U

 	
CU 	

CU 	
'El-ij  
'
 

u
 	

8
 	

8
 

0
 	

0
 v

, - a
) '8

 0
, E

 ..., 

	

t.0 	
-0

 
C

 
1.
-
 
v

i
 	

0
 
C

 
8

 E
 	

2
 

7
.- -. . -

 D
 1

.. 	
e

 2
 

U
 	

C
I- 7

.1
 

.7
) 1

-15 	
-C

. 	
T

-- 
tr

i tt

▪  s
 0

.1
 . - 	

4,
 	

C
 
0

 	
.., W

 

	

0
 
?

. .2 401.; 
4
-
 
5
 	

a.) 

	

.4
-, 	

4.,
 	

a
)
 .1._1 	

=
 	

.2.-,' 	
a) 

E
 

	

0
 	

.r. o
 

,•-• a
 m

 =
 

, :,- 
4

... 1
..) 

4-• 	
0

 
ca. 	

c
 	

c
 

• 
cu 	

rE3 
a, -

o
 

,7
 	

C -  C
U

 C
O

 
Lri 	

CU 	
___. 

 
'C

D
 4

-, 

	

,E1.. a
l u

l 	
.
_

 
>

 
C

 
.
.
.
.
 	

C
 in

 
-0

 -
0
 

'5 
Lc

▪  ; 

	

a
, 'd

i Z
 	

,_
, .- 

-a- =
 	

a
l -

0
 c

 :
E

 
4-..  W

 	
V

1
 V

) 
O

 
1-2 

It."
  
ta.) 

..cW
 

.G.3
5
 .-- 	

a,  a
"
, .2

 1-.) 	
2
 

O
J

 —
 

u
 	

as 	
sa.s 

• ---, ._
. 

4
-, 	

C
 C

Z
 

(.13 
,
-
 

=
 ‘..7

 C
C

 	
..-
 

4
-
 	

V
I
 
4
-,  _

C
 	

-C
 	

.0
 

C
 
4
-
,
 

	

m
 2

 z
 	

a
l 0

 	
0
1
 -ri,

 
• ./7-• 

4
.,  
C

 
	

k
J
 
<

 
=

 
.... L

/1
 4

-
' 	

1
- 	

1... 

	

ro 	
itl 
v
, a

, m
 

4
-• 

	

Z
 -

C
I 	

r°
 5

1.  "
Z

-7
 .:(:3—  

1,_-s 	
.1-• 	

4-,  
4

-- 
c
  

sis 
a
l f

O
 a

)
 

	

...0
 _

C
 	

4
.•  

-§
- 	

.. =
 ia

, 
>

 
a

i  I
.
.
 

,._ 	
.... 	

v, 

	

co Q
:a 	

-0
 c

L
. 

ii-_ 
-o

 7
o
 (1

)

▪
  
c
 

	
2
  
co

 a
.,C .,,-, 

-613  m
a

  
:

a) :op 	

`,5 
C

 
F)  
o

 
>

 
o
 

6
 

U
  

....) 4-  
0
 

c
 	

a
) 0

 
4.,  
V

I 4
' 	

(1
1
 "C

  '
'
'
'
 

4
-• 	

L
ii C

 
	

a
.)

 U
 m

 	
1... 

,c -,..: 
4=

' 
.0

 
L

 	
v
i 

W
 ,C

 4
3/
1
 
0
 
0
 	

in
 	

ro '47-; 	
s
o

 m
 

4
-. 	

orbs 
-4:-.• 	

e
s• 
'-
 	

..a)57
 "fa

 
c0

 	
c
 	

4-• 

	

In
C

I V
I

- 

IP
- 	

M
 

.6
7

  2
 
8

 	
ar 	

a
) >

 	
c
u

 =
 

V
1 

•
 
7

0
 

cu  
C

 	
fa

 
43 	

1._ 	
... ta_i)  C

n
 	

4-,  C
O

 I.-
 

co 	
-1

-.• c
 0

_
 I._

 	
4
-s

 C
 

cc, 	
' 
_
0
 

	

sn 
U

  a
s
 	

C
 

E
 L 	

t
 

lig 
..... 	

4
■. C

U
 	

fi.) 7
3
 	

U
 

a
l 

it
 	

C

▪  :
:
-
1

 
 

	

=
 	

t-r 	
1:3  (

1
)
 

	
0
 	

a
 	

cr, 
3

- 	
a

l t.n
 	

E
 o

 
c
 

 
W

  E
 as 

▪
 

.,-, ty 	
c
 2

 -0
 	

4
- m

 o
 c

u
 	

,r, -y
, .,,1

 	
kJ 	

V
I 

a) 	
L
P

) -C
 

2,7 
 

cc 	
a
l m

 	
c
 	

0
 C

U
.=

 	
_C

 

•
 

a, 
0
  E

 
c
 

_c 

	

IA ▪  ▪  

a_ 	
I-- ,(1

) _
c ,1

' 	
i-- o

 4
-, 	

,—
 	

rs, 
C

C
 

tfl 
4,
 	

a
-
 

riD 
C

O
 U

 L
e
l 	

4,
  

• 
ro 	

V
I 4

... 

Overall Guidelines  and Considerations  

5411)_ 

4
-,  

4...,..  
.C:E)  

...- 

0
1

 	
.Ln  
.U

1  
CU 	

4-4 
U

 0
1

 ..?
.. .; L

i) 

t.  
	

a
) :-.. (2..) 	

u
 

E
 -c

  
.,--. cc_

 
	
o
 o

 
0
  

a
) v

, 	
4-,  
„.., 	

...,__ 	
4-,  

8
  .
0
 ❑

 
c
 	

D
 

4-, 
1
..-) (-- 

'at, .4.7 ' a
 ) 0

 a
) ,._

 
4

--. 4
-: 

:.E
 m

 
4-,  0

3
 ...c

 7--,

- 	
in

 
aJ 

u
 0

_
 4

-,  r
o

 
ro

 	
C

 c
o
 

s
._

 d
i 

2
 E

 'z
 

..., z
 _

c
 
;._

, a
) a

, 
2
 

4
- :,-.. 

_0 
C

O
 0

 	
..4:_ 	

M
I 0

_
 

0
1
 fa

 4
-. 	

4
-,  

-
C

 U
 	

a
l 

D
 L

Y
) 

o
 	

:,-.. 
U

 c
C

u
, 

C
O

 ra
 	

'.-- 
c
 a

, 
-a

 
_a_ 

•-
 

' 	
0

 
5 

0
  -a

 >
, _

c
 	

_
c
 a

i 
c
 
;4_, 4-,  c

u
 -0

 
 

U
  

a)  e
a

 =
 ..*- -C

 
*
4
-
 
7
 
v
l
 

0
 m

 
x
 

ro
 

#
, 

-0
 	

a
 4

..: 0
 z

 
..._ 	

u.,,....1 	 ..... 
= 

c ...., 	
._

 u
 	

....... › 
C

 
.
 
u

 
8
 
-a

 3
 T

. _
. C

 u
 

4- 	
-.

0
 	

-.„7:. 0 

F--

▪  

a
, m

 
4-,  
,..., 	

LC.1 	
C

 .L,, 
u

 
a
)
 

N

c
 b--  o

 
.
5
 	

4
, 

_
 E

.4
-' 

,., C
 •

 UL
 	

C
 7

.=
 

.. 
	

a
, -- J

o
 

_c 
>

'  4
-
, 	

'L
. •- •-r1

 
	

r
t
i -

C
 ..=

 II3
 

a
) c

 	
_c 

4-,  u
 ..c

 
- 

8
 -1

 2
 

c
  =

 a
)
 

c
 

<
 4

-, 0
3

 	
._

 
V

I 

4E' 	
‘ii- 

m
 

u
 	

a, 	
a, 

a=
 

4,-,, -c
 	

>
 

4.,
 	

W
 	

a) 
C

 ..c
 ,.,_

 	
_c 	

L
A

' o
. 

a
, 
	

0
 	

.
,
 

a, c
a
) r

-:,. 
3

 
-7, 4

 ›, 
—

 c
 ...... 	

u
 c

 3
 

L
n

 
1
- 

C
V

 a
)  '

.
-
 
	

0
 
la

 
-
C

 
0

 
CV 

E
 a

) 	
c
 

aJ 4-, 	
' 

d̀ >i T
u

 c
 

. 
	

,LT..., 
5

 
-
0

 "
. -o

 
,1

3
 a

) .0
 	

la
 

c
  
-a

l
iv  m

 
,_

 c
 k

, M
 	

c
 

IV
 0

 u
-
;
' 

0
_

 --e
- 0

 (1
.1

 	
ro

 
'C

S
 ti..--. 	

vs __‘.7- 
--s.. 	

+-s 
u

 a
s
 s

-
-
 0

1
 

a
 

ra
, c

 
c
 a

) a-  
a
l
 
a
s
 

 
fa

 -0
 

a) 
.‘43c  1

5
 %

; 
-a

 
m

 
, 

Elj_
 ''' --c

 
4-s 

•
s_-_- 

-CS 
0
 

0
 

tij  
c

.3
  
-6.; 	

0
-
 C

 7
.3 

Q
. 

4
-,  L

I
 

V
I 	

4
-,  
-a

 
di 22 

C
 
›; 

-5 
..- 

_f

• 	

p, 
rcil- 

 
U

 .0
 c

 	
0 • 

2
u

 
tr.., 

2
 

T
O

 
-'7-7

•
 
°
)
 
U

 
a

t
 
2
 o

 
a

d
 =

 
,.,, c

 T
A

 	
a
' c

u
 

1
3
 a

  
cc 

. 
0
 
' 

cc  
8

 -C
 
0

  
• 

>
 
U

 
❑

 	
•
 
•
 
-
 
U

 
4

- ,  

To 
4_ 
a, 	

U
 

, 
.c.n - 	

c
 a

 
cu 

au 	
v
, -

 

	

_c 
	

-as 	
) 

c
 0

 o
 

	

C
 

-C
 4

-
 	

4
-, 

tr, 
ro

7
7
1
 0

 
(0

 4
-.
._

_j 
5

 (
i 

	

,0
 3

 >
,, 	

ro
 .... 

) 
2

 _
c
 2

2
 

0
 	

4-, 	
4

- 
4
-,  

	

C
 W

 7
4
 	

7
' 
V

I
 

0
_
 t:•

) M
 

I.- 
la

 
0 

,,,c 
' 	

03 
-5,..  a

.) m
 

VI  
ro

 

	

Cs 	
I4

- C
O

 
	

4..,  
 

=
 +

-4
 

=
 1

0
 	

U
 

_
C

 ..0
 C

 
_
a
 0

- 	
m

i ..7... 4-, 

	

E
 

613 	
4

7,
 	

c
 
	

'C
 

C
 

-u
 1 

C
 
0

 
_

 
e

a
 
0

)
 
0

 
(3) 

8
  • 

,.., 0
 _

c 	
.4._, 

C
 
.
 

cu 	
...., -0 

	

5
 	

:
i 

2
  0

3
 

t5  
	

4
'-. 	

V
I 0

1
 

	

4
-,  -

,
/
 • 	

0
. 2 - ..-.• 

 
0 

u
 
	

ro 	
crl 

a
) u

 
	

a, 
0
/ 

o
 	

v., 1-1-., 	
...c 
4

., 
ro -  '47-,-  _

o
 ..c

 
-a

 t 4
-
, 

	

u
 	

0
 a

l ro
 	

4- 
-cs 

c
 >

 .-5
  c

 
c
 

c
 c

u
 

0
3

 E
 

s._ ro 

	

ro
 	

a
s • sm

 co
 

E
 

u
 	

=
 

ro
L

  
ii a

)
 x

 
Q

. u
 

v
i 

4
-, 	

O
J

 a
/ 

	

C
 

a
) _

c 	
. 	

0
.1

 0
3
 

0
1

 
>

 
U

 
4

-' 

	

U
 	

g c  i
n

 
u

 
'7

1
 0

 
co-  T

...- 	
Z

 8 a)  g
 ,- 8 

0
C

 -c
 
-5

 a
' 

	

3
 	

is) 

	

E
 	

.--11' 	
c° 

	

o
 	

.
 	

a
) 3

 ‘,... 
- ca

 il.! 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 235 of 351



be  found on line  at:  

4
- 0  

ra 
V

 
C

 

a
 

O
 

cr) 
a

 
C

 

3
 

-C 4
-

▪  
,
 

 

means  possible.  

8.  Sign ificant  archaeologica l  resources  

environment.  

 

-
 	

C
U

 C
U

 	
0.7 
N

 	
a) 

ar  
 

c
u

 L
n ▪  m

 	
1.,1

 c
 u

 _
0

 	
L
I 

• 

4•
■• 

13
 

4
-
' 	

0
 

0
 	

C
 	

03 	
M

 

• 

v
i 

O
 

'474 	
_c 

•
 .f

i
 

.L
il
6

  
t

i2  
>

,..
r°

  
(1

) C
U

 
16 	

1
7

2
0

u
0

 
L
o
 5

- 
4,
 

 
_

ID
 U

 9
2

 	
c
U

 -C
 

4--, 
 

V
I 	

•
 

C
 C

i
i
 
a
 

ci,j
 

a-, 	
to

 in
 

-0
 	

=
 	

C
 _

C
 
	

r
a
 C

  
O

 a
 

0 
'aril 	

03 
1
-
 0

 4
-
, 8 ▪  V

  
7
1
 
in

 
2

 
O

 
w

 c
li 	

o
 -4

=
 0

 
-
c
 -

 E
 	

-
,:. u

 r
c
r
 3

 °
 '

• 

(ci 2
2

  
u^  
C

 
	

a" 
u

 
D

 
0

 	
X

 

▪  

4--i 

C
 

	
„ ,
ra 

CV 
v
,
 
l-- 	

a) 
c
  r
u
 
c
 

• 

E
 _

c
 

,,E
 4

- 
E-', L

.- 0
3

 	
0

.-  o
 
E

 
w

 
	

o
 

-
 
0

., 	
u
 

 
c
 	

_
c L

_
 

-6
 
	

o
 3

 'r
--  I--• 

4... 

• 

4.,  
'
•
 :1-. 

D
 
C

 
C

I3
 W

 --- 	
, 	

-
4

7
 C

l/ 0
 ,:-

 
l
i
  

.--, 
	

4 
	

17)  

	

 
-6

 ,. 
	

-0
 p

 _
0

  '6
7

) 
It' _

,5
 ±

--- E
 

-o
 

a, 
N

Y
 

 
r
a

 r
a

 a
, 	

a
 711  —

 
a)  L

.
 _

D
 4

-, 	
,
 
4
-,  
5

,
 
0

 
C

-
 
u

 -
-li
 

a
 '-

-
-
 '-

 	
5
 r

t3
 0

 5
.,. C

U
 is

 ,_
 .._

 
i-J 

	
a-) 	

a
, 	

-
 o

_
 	

0_ 
ra

 
,._,
,-- 

a) 
-
.
 	

CU 
1..) 

-0
 -

i-
•
 -

0
 	

Z
 I-

 ,,, a
)
 ,,_4-

 
E

 
-a

 4
.̀---1

  
c
 -K

1  
C

 
	

, ,_
 0

.) 
ru

 
r13 

-0
 
7

 
O

N
 
0

 
-0

 
-C

  1
6

 
0

 
C

 
-
_

-
'n

  
..1.--, 	

U
 	

(C
5
 -E

  

C
 

-
0

c
 	

0
 
c
 

.4
_

 4
-. 	

(6
 

U
 

a
)  

4
 ■•• 	

Q., 	
a
,  

--
-z

  :t... 
E

 
11.2 

ra  4
-
.
 	

c
 

 
ra 

t
 
C

  °
' 
0

 
8 is) -0—

 ,41.4C  ... 	
c
 

ro 
4
-, 	

,-
 	

a,
• 

.p, 
C

 
,
-
 
>

 
•-
 
c
 	

v) 
(1) 	

e
-
 

0
 
-o

 
a) 

u
 

c., 
	

u., 
pa _so  c

 „
,„

 ,, 	
a) 

00 	
14_ 	

f.12 
L

., c
 

DC
  o

 
-
,
-
 
0
  n

3  -
t
j 	

1../1 
(1

3
 ‘i-- 	

... 
is

 
-C,„

, .0
 —

  ,--.7., 
a, 	

e
L
 

Z
 

c
 
n

oc  a
t
 	

0
_

 0
_

 
-4---,
c
  er, • 1

7
6

 
E

' 
0
 
-
 	

a, 	
rt 

4
-'  U

 
C

 
1

/
'
 
°
 E

 	
›. 

'5
 

D
 
I
s
 
ijn,i °

-
 .E

"
 	

a) 
-0

  '=
-, 

E
 w

 •Y
. z

 	
P._) 

ra 
	

0
 

 
C

 	
4-' 4

_
, -0

 
0-1  

_
C

  
U

 
U

 
a
 

Z
 

	
'-' 

 
D

 	
,4 

6
 
w

 
' 

4-' 
a) 

-E
 	

0
 

0
 	

=
 

	

U
>

, 	
W

 5
- 	

tr. .0
 

	

4
-, 	

_
0

 
0
  

fCS 
'5

 
a
) 	

4
- 

	

4
-
 a-, 	

CU 	
S

i 	
„,.; 

-0
 

—,7;
 	

_
C

 4
-,  
U

 
	

In
 

2 
_o 	

o
 

eL 	
-0

 .-
, 	

_
C

 	
U

 ..1
 

CO 	
131 

	

0
 	

—
 

ru
 

4
, 	

-
-o
 ,a

3
.--  

.4._ 
1
:
 	

V
4  

	

c
li ,... 	

..0
 IA

 	
y
_
 0

 (
A

 
C

 
Z

 	
LA 

	
a
l c

 
. 

-0
 o

 
	
z
i c

t. 
c
 	

o
 ›. w

 0
6

 
_

c
 .. .._

 , •
-
 0

 w
 _

c
 ›

, 
=

 -o
 '5

 	
v
, _

c
 	

U
' 

4
-0  "

 
4

-
.
 

ra 
CLI 

'--; 
	

ra
 

E
 a

; 	
0
 	

• 
-o

 	
ri3

 0
 
a
 	

c
 

a
) a

-,  -c
. c

r) 
-
 	

,.... 
. 

	
a
) 

c
u

 5
 4

_
, 	

E
s 

'4
3
 a

) 
41  t

t
l 
°
 
Z

i,
 E

 E
y
 	

,-. 	
a) 
	

C
L

 a.)  
>

 
I  'I'  X

 .N
*1  

CLI 
	

u
 
	

CL; 
4

- a
) _

c
 • 

6
 

■-
 	

r- 
mi, 

l- 
c

 	
■ 2
 ...c

 
4.4  

• 
u

 c
s
i 	

_c 	
a
) 

_
a
 

 
ra

 (a
 

a
) 

ft3
 %

.7
 	

u
i 

-
-
 
0
 
u
 	

(0
 
a
  0

 
>

 
(
-
-
 	

a
, c

 	
a

_
 c

 
o

t 
a,
 
c
 	

c
 	

a
J
 a

) . - 
-.6

 7
_
, 

-o
 

4  71
  4

-
 
a

l 	
?) 

-to
 v

' 
N 
	

5
_
. 4

--. 	
D

 M
O

 ',)," 
C

 
>

 	
-6

 c
l=

 a
)
 "

 	
na 	

a
 

E
 	

4- 
a) 	

?."' 
ft3

 ry
 	

G.1 	
LA. 	

2
 	

,.., c
 ,_

 	
..., ..., ,

• v, 
,
 
0

3
 M

I 
0
 	

tA
 

CD
 

' C
. r

S
 0

 	
C

L
 .0

 
 

.C13  rta
 
	

WC
  

_
c
 _

c
 0

 >
 

	

I  t 
-6

 	
0
 _

c
 

.c
 -+

-:' 
	

(33' 
../1 	

L
A

 U
 

C
 

C/J 

	

C
 4

-• 
cu 	

4
- -. a

, 1
.-.z

 -0
 

n
 	

.0
 0

 
u

 	
.5....., 	

u
 o

 ,_
 _

.. 
v
i ts

 
ry
, 

-
 

CU 

- 	

7
 	

...,1
 

- g
  

6
- 

v
.,  

,) 
	

>
 

V
.,  
'
I

f  
4
,
 
 
E

l
 	

(Cs 

•
 

u
 -

C
 
■i3

 	
-- 	

M
I 	

,i, _
C

 	
5

, U
 	

-C
 r

tt 	
4.-,  4

-
.
 

4
- 	

v
l 
-
0

 	
•
,•

 0
  

	

a
 	

4
-
-
 0

 _
C

 4
-, 	

.IW
 

	

a.) 

• 	

'',-..: 	
6

- 
„ , 

-0
 	

a
)
 c

 z
 
P

2
 .2

 T
 o

 	
v,
  .L

.: -.4
- 

..., 4
,
 
 
-0

 
-0

 
u
 
c
h
 
0
 
-
I
-
,
 
C

 
0

 
c
 

u
  C

 
5

 
0

 
i
n

 
0
-
 
t
t
l 

5
-
 7

0
 >

. C
 S

i 0
 	

C
 C

U
 

.0
 	

a.) 
''''' 	

5
 	

tri 
=

 
,_

 	
ra 	

-4-. 	
4-,  a

r
 	

no 
Q

 
''''' 

C
 	

u
 

7-1
 
 
c
 a  - / 	

0
 	

•
t: 12

 ' : -• . 	
M

 0
 e

s
 E

 ',4
2

 
a

i 	
u
 :6

 
u

  
o
 
a
,
 

.. , -c
 ra

 -0
 	

c
  ;
-
,
 
c
0
 -0

 '.5
7
_
 =

 
w

 E
 4

-, c
_
, 0

 	
-
 
0
 

V
.,  

7.,., U
 
u

 	
D

  
	

a
i c

u
 c

 7
5
 	

E
 rti 7.0 

0
' -°

 
47) 
	

ad 
iti tp

 i4
=

 
'Z'j 	

„
 
.
,
 
	

—
 

4
-,  0

-
 
a

)
 
u

 a
)
 c

 
•F

, 
U

 ri3
 

,c
 

-- 
c
n

 	
W

 ,4
0
 %

-: .0
 -

0
  

C
U

 L
o
 0

:1
 	

(
0

 
4

,
 
0

 	
-C

 "
0

 
..3.2 

--C.
  

C
 f

p-
.  

0
 
	

E
 c

 4
-
-
 0

 
0
 

.- 

	

1t3 	
a
) 0

_
 	

'4
7

, ru
 a l' 4... 

	

a
) Q

J
 6

 a
) 

D
  .
'-
' 	

t--/  
c

 
 ril rts

 0
 

- _
c

 - 	
. 0

 ,... _
c
 	

. 
W

 
U

 
U

 
t,"3 

VD 
-0

 
-C4-, C

U
  
C

 -10
 

c
r c

c
 v

,  
`1-  4

 	
7
 

E
 	

L
n
 

0
- 

r
<

 5
31
 

E
 	

...c 

	

L.I 	
Lei 

>,. 2
  :i:5.. 

__1"57  

5
 	

U
' 
 a) 

ro
 	

0
1

 	
ifi 	

u
 

+.5.- 	
C

 5
, 	

5_ 	
. E

 
4
-(7

 
27. 

'1
 

__ T
il 

-OW
 'U

  
-o

 a
)
 	

c
u
 c

 
-c
. 

O
 

a
) .>

 
(1,  c

6
 
o

 
4-, 

4
- 	

cu 
cs.) 

.4-
 

c
 ,7

-, 
7:1 

t
iruc ‘1

3
  °

"
 
	

C
 

c
o

 >
 

..,. 	
..) 

8
 o

 _
c
 9

2
 

1
E

 2
 

C
 

0
 	

f.‘2
 t, 	

cu 	
a

)
 c

 
-0

 	
E

 	
4-, 	

- 	

4-. 
1.._ 

C1J 
'4

 	
v
l 	

4
-,  it

=
 
	

N
 

a
; v

-1
 —

 	
6

 
c
 a

)
 0

 >
 -

-
5

 -
c
 o

 _
c
 

r,
 	

,,, 	
aJ 	

tfi ..,.4
 

4.4(1)  4
-J

 	
. 
	
u

 
c
 

0
  

-
 	

c
 

ra
 a

, 7
6

 1
.13_ 

ra
 -c

 	
4_ 

 
-
'
C

O
 

0
 	

4
- 

	

d
) :'-' 	

:t.' cyi  
,

• 

-
 
in

 
r
0
 
D

 
-
°
 

Let 	
.0

1
 5

 	
Lis.  _

C
 	

2
 	

0
 	

c
il 4

'0
 	

0
 	

M
 5
-n1 	

LA 
O

 
"
 q

2
)
 V

I 
4t.) 

 
0

 	
C

 
L

L
 4

M
.  4

-
, 	

4
-
 
"
,
 	

1... 	
tZ

 
CS3 

,tn
 	

tr) 
	

-0
 

v
, 	

5
 -

C
 	

S.J 
.
-
 	

. 	
1 	

0
_

 8
 j-  ,-

, _
C

 	
c
il In

 
(Si 

	

C
 	

-, 	
CU 	

CU  
o ▪  rl 

awl 
4

- tr) a
) 	

0-0
 -o

 	
-c/ a

-) 	
c
 	

v
t u

l 
L

I 	
• 	

y_ 
E

 
ro

 .Z
 

rs
 	

1
0

 	
.
 
4
-
 
u

 	
c 

	

.i.:8
 6

 
0

 
..2

 
>a) 

E
 
-
 
u
 

1... 	
CI)  
C

 
0
 

	

L
A

 ra
 

0:5 	
(1) 	

1,
 
1
6

 	
4

-
 W

 
1

- .4
0

 
4."' 

a, 	
a) 	

_
c
 -- 

a
) 

E
 

a)  4
-,  :;_

-_
, o

u
 ,.. 	

6
 ro

 c
u
 -5

 	
no 

0
  a

 ,.:-- c
 7

 
_E) 

 
v
, 

a , v
, 

4E
' 0

 _
c
 

-
,-

, v
, c

 , L--.. 
03  
a
 1:3  

	

ate) 
a)  
g

 
	

a
) c

 • o
-i 

.5 
-0

 
	

:"' 
 

	

4
-0

 c
 (1

3
 V

I 
	

LI-
 n

:r  C
 
8

 _o 
a

) >
, .-c  m

u
  u

 
c
r
 0

-
 
°11- 

	
-C

3 w
 r

a
 

a1 	
U

 c
c
s
 

E
 

CU  r
1
/ 	

o
 E

.. w
 

_
c
 1

5
_
 _

c
 . 	

c
 (ii fu

 _
s
a
 	

_
c _c

  
▪
 

D
 u

 u
 ...., 	

. 	
U

r 
	

u
 	

0
 	

'cr.: 
,..., 	

,-
. -

0
 u

 c
a
 a

)
 =

 -
0
 u

 
E

 
1,L.,  

	

=
 ,,,, 	

_c 
2  —

0
.

7
 

ri3  4
-

0
  4

E
' 

.z
  

(0
 c

u
 . c

 
a
 _

o
 	

Li) 
8

 , c,_ 
m

 
-0

 	
a.J

_
_
 ru

 
4

- 
0
- 

5
 

e
l-  
=

 1-d
 7

6
 

O
 

iS
 
,
 

C
D

 M
 _

C
 -C

 	

▪  

.
0
 
0
 
‘4

 -0
 
>

s
 
u
 	

0
 	

+0-.  
—

 
a,
 	

,
 
	

-
,
 
4

,
 	

4
-, 	

4
-,  

v
i 	

E
 	

(15 	
7
 5

 	
,.... 2

 
-c4

-, , 
cu 

>
-
, C

 "
 

cc, ,._
 7:7

 0
 k

r, 
	

CO 	
u
 
E

 .0
 	

,, 
a.) 	

E
 g 

..._ 
0 	

,.., 	
›, _. -E „__ 	

,,, 
t 1

E
 roc

  
0

 
	

0
 >

 
(1) 

L, 	
E

.  4
.-°

 	
4
-
 

	

:: 
	

4
, 	

0
- 

ro
 Q

J
 

cu 	
2
 -d

 
ra 

• 
	

L
-
t 0

 x
 0

. y
i —

 	
.
-
 

	

=
 	

0
 	

_c ▪  

2
 u

 
 

- ICU'  
t
i
i
 
	

4
-,  r

u
 

4
,  
'
 
	

tfi 
no 	

'tl-i
 

'5 
E

 -,`+
'_
 2

 	
4

.-. , 
45

 0
 

,,, 
 

t
i  :

€
 
.F

 -
0
5C

 4
-"

'
L

l i3(1
)
 7

5
 3

 
-Crill 	

(5
 

V
i  b

•
 
i' "u

  g
 ..-, ...0

 	
t >

, 
0

- '.', e
S

 7
6

 =
 4

' 
eL,'.-  ▪ 	

A
, 

w
 _

o
 

1
/1

 ro
 	

is
 • c

 
r
o
 
0
 
b
 	

0
 	

5-. 	
=

 
-C

 
_c 
L
.
 

.0
  t
i
 

• 
' 
	

ro
 a

d
 	

c
l) -C

i  
0>M

5
 -1

'.4
 II') 	

U
 
a

 
t
.
.)  '

-
.
 a

) 
C

 
-0

  
a

) _
c
 

-1 
	

c
 
,-2' 	

a
  
°
 

,,a) V
I x

 c
u

 ra
 o

 <
 	

c
r
 "5  1

:5
 _

c
 c

 	
a
, o

_
 

ra
 

 
_
C

 C
U

 c
 

	

C
C

 4
--i <

 ._
E

 is
 

-C
 ..j.t. 

	
I-

-
 0

 E
 ‘4

-
 o

 	
L
u
 E

a
 a

) ,, 
oc
 

cuE 
cuD 	

ri,4
 

iv
y
 

fa
' r

s
i L

ts
 2

)-
 1

3
 6

-
 r

r
; r

t3
 	

-
C

 U
 	

J
D

 	
(N

 
-
 

4
-,  4

-
-, 	

c
a
. ,- 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 236 of 351



201)  -  Northern  State  Campus  Design  Guidelines  Manual 

Figure  6.4.  Land use  areas  

Preservation  and Development  Zones  

>
. _C

 
(Li 
0
) 

(
I)

 0
 

C
 

O
 

115 
U

 
▪
 
<

 
• O

"
 0

 

E
 

ra 

• 
c
 

c
o

 
c
o
 w

 
V

 re
 

C
 

• 
0

 
C

 
turf 

Z 0
 
0

 

_
c
 o

 

• 

E
 

0
 

CO 

CU 
U

) 

U
 
C
 

CU 

C
 

 _c 
8
 

(0 

_
 

U
 

R
 
a
 

C
 

a
 

O
 

C
 

U
 

to  

ro 
to

 

U
 
C
 

O
 

ra 
0
 

C
 

4--,  

0
 

7:3 

to
 

C
 

U) 

C
 

0
 

_C
 

Co 

al 

4,
 

 
ro 
U
 

0
 

X
 

CU 

O
 

U
 

E
 ro 

U
 

0
 

ra 
U 

0
 

U
 

to  s 

O
 

L
i 

13) 

LE 

Co 
C
 

O
 

V
I 
C
 

O
 

U
 

ITS 

ro 

z
 

...0
 

C
 

0
 

U
)
 

ra 

U
)
 

U
 

0
 

U
 

ra 
U
)
 

0.1 
0
 

a) 
_c 

0
 
C
 

0
 

'47) 
Co 

0
 

(CS 
_c 
El? 

C
 

ro 
U) 

Li!
 

a
 

03 

CO 

co 
-o

 
C

 

O
 

-17 

C
 

O
 

_
C

 

O
 

L's 

U) 
_C

 
4

-,  

N PS Preservation  Briefs  and related NPS 

publicat ions  for  gu idance.  

_c 
C
 

-c 

O
 

U
 
O
 

U
, 

C
 

O
 

U
 

z
 

_o 

rn 
C
 

-15 

0
 

C
 

0
 

C
 

0
 

U
 

U
 

O
 

LE 
Co 
Zr) 
0
 

0
 

0
 

C
 

td) 

C
 

ro 

a
 

O
 

C
 

a) 
0
 

E 'LC! 

U
 

= 

U) 

• -0 
_c 

O
 

ro 

0
 

a
 
a
 

ro 
-D

 
C
 

42 

O
 

a
 

0
 

C
 

ro 

E
 

O
 

U
 

O
 

cc -
 

U
 

a) 

,L2 a) 

-0
 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 237 of 351



kci 
	
0
 
,
 
x
 

43., .c
 
‹t 	

a, 
a

) c
n

 (4
 

o_ 
LA 

-c
 c

 
(1) 

4
-
.
 
.
.
.
-
 

0
1
 	

' 
ro

 
• 

c
 v

 1
 
-0

 
it
' 

44-_--
 0

 m
 

co 
4
-' '4

- 
1.13 	

-5
 a

' 
ra 	

_
c
 

u
 _

0
 

<
 
t
n

 
C

 
c

 
C

 
.
D

 
 

ra
 a

) 
to

l 
ro

 
■A

 E
 v

l 
1

 
C

  
a, 

c
 

c
i c

n
 y

 
-÷-9

 
4
-1  0

 
0

 
C

 
Z

 
0

 
6,1

 4
-, 	

lt-5
 

_
 

CU 
Q

) 
M

  
>

 
=

 -o
 

E
 

u
 

0
.1

 0
 C

 Q
J

 
t.f1

 —
° 

-0
 -

0
 f

l3
 
-0

 
North Influence  Area  and New  Work 

4-,
  U

 
	

in
 Q

J
 	

C
. 	

-C
 	

}
,
 

--

• 

c
 

r
a

 it _
c
 u

-
i 

	
no 	

4-,  a
,
 7

 	
0

 
_In 

o
 2

 -0
 

4-.  g
-
 

ill 	
Lri 
4"

'"
 ru

 Q
.) 

0
1

 u
 	

_
C

i m
 

.- i.-.. 
,A

.  _
C

 _
0

 ,,_
 

Lc 	
IF

-. .:C
' 

cli (T
a

 
4

-  
C

 	
>

 
	

C
 	

C
 

C
  

	
,c, 

-:1-2 	
[1.1 	

L
. 

 
7
:3

 , _
C

 C
L
) 

-0
 

4
-, 	

C
U

 0
 

V
i 	

U
a

)
(1)

0
 

CU 
C

 1
-
 

1"
 
0
 
=

 	
0

 
U

 
-4-7,  
0
 cr.1 

}
-, V

/ 
((r2 

.-C,  
l...) 

C
o

 •
 >

-
•
 
T

.5
 A

 	
C

 C
V

 	
(I3 

0
1

 _
c

 C
U

 
1
-  

O
 
z
 
g

 7
:
5

 .c
 a

 	
.0

 
a

) a
t 	

c
 u

 _
c
 

c
 	

ci_ co 
E

 	
0

 
z..-  m

 4
_

. 	
-- 4

-,  i_
n
 _

o
 

4
-,  C

 
<

 1
4

7
' 1

5
  
<

 
03 	

0
1

 0
-
 =

 
rs3 

-0
 C

 .1
-2

 „ 7
 ,,-; _

. 	
0
 
=

 
1
:u

 =
 :6

 6
 'L

' o
_
 If_-• 	

v. _
 
	 -
 

"5
" a

, c
Z

 o
.. 

C
M

 0
 

	
',^, 

.,_

- , cr i. 
..t j
-=

 
-C

I  4-S
 

. LT' ,-, i.  t
r
)
 

(1)  C
 _

C
D

 :E
 >

, v
i —

 
u
 	

4E'  8
 	

tv 
o

'  >
,
 
	

-0
 C

L
 

c
 

-.7-,  c
c
)
 v

)
 :0-' 

-0
 

E
 

(1) 
	

0
 
	

u
 

r13  
Z

 ca
 -F

p
 7

-7C
 -c

l  c
iq

 S
1  7

:5Z
  

"
 	

3 4'
 

m
 
-
0
 
-
-
 
=

 
4
- ,  
3

 
8 ,_ 

+_, 
c
=

 C
u

 —
 	

.1
-, c

 
11 

;'-' 	
-
0

 
I)  
'
-
 

C
I=

 .1--, 
0

 C
U

 	
c

  -
C

 
C

 
4.4 	

'a
 =

 3
 

E
 

2
 

ro
 

C
 -

0
 'a

-) 
-2 

4
. 

7
3

 	
0
) 	

3  0
 
	

E
 

L2
 2

 
4-,c 2

  
..c

 o
 T

, _
c
 

ro  C
 
c
 
	

.
-
 
C

 
E

  
O

 —
 	

4
-,  

-F
-•

 U
 	

0
 0

 0
 o

 
-
 
c

-o
 a

) 
ni  m

l 	
cu  v

i 
a

) 
1
,1

 . . 
sr 

4
-,  
 

U
 

•C
 

16
 . U

 0
 c

l; L
 J

 
C

L
 >

, 	
_

c 
cn 

''' C
 	

C
 
u

 
-
=

 U
 	

4-.
C

j r
il 

CO  
4
, C

 0
 0

 S
..)

 .1
- ,  

Z
 E

l Y
 -g

 -,5:-  E
 8

 	
‘1

-- "-Es- 	
':'=. 

0
 
 ._

,cu cu c 
td, 

CO 
a
j4

-,
C

 	
c

u
r
l:5

C
 	

0
 

-C
 

I-
  =

 
Z

 .g 
n

u
 1

7
4
 M

 
.K

1
0
1
 U

 IA
 O

J
D

 
<

 C
l-3

 E
n

 
ro

 
-
Z

 lll 

=0
 

1:3
-0

  •
=4-'
,/, -

0=
 c

c-ct,
5
 _
5(IJ 

am. ca)  7
30
)

.3
 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 238 of 351



c
 	

a) 
0

 ,_
 	

(1.1 "0 
•.,7

, 0
 	

.—
 ca

 
(473 '-i-.. 	

>
 	

U
,
  

?
-
 
V

I
 
V

I
 

C
 

* —
 

2
 
,1-- 

as 
0

.1
 0

 C
 0

 
vi 	

0
 	

11.1 
4'3.  

0.1 47- , 	
-=

 
03 

.47-,  
C

 
al.:
 

 
U

 
U

 
...... 0

-) 
=

 D
 C

U
 (

L
.)

 
l
n

 
0

 
2-0

  
2
 
-
C

 
C

l- 
til 

5
 

C
ri 

Z
 0

_
 C

 D
I ..0

 
L

e; 
v
)
 
0

 
-0

 0
_

 
u
 c

 
-0

 
,_

 	
•—05)  

r1:1
 

fa
 Z

 a
i 

u
n
 0

1
 

"0
 
-0

 
c
  a

)
 w

  
c
 a

) 	
-0

 
,- 

0
3

 -I-. _
c 
U

 
0
 

4
-, 	

ra
 	

6./  
V

I
 
a
)
 	

4...,  
C

 
-1,-. 	

0
 

4,
 	

U
.) 

0
 	

U
 

1
7
, 

u
a

 a
) 

fa 

	

-0
 	

....'; 
'11_- 	

•—
+

 .- 
a
)
 C

 L
. 

JD
 

a
)  

ra 
 

C
 	

C
 

	

v-I 	
fla  
 
 
 
0

 

C
 —

 7
 0

 

7
 

o
  0

1
 ra

 
40 

1  5 Northern  State  Campus  Design  Guidelines  Manual 

>
, 

_
0

 
-0

 
(
0

 C
 

C
 	

>
 r

o
 

0
 0

1
 	

2
 w

 
-47. C

 
0.1 

u
 	

_C1 
a
. 

(1)  
o

 
7.13

 =
 o

.. Z
 

4
-
-
 

 m
 -§

 
(13 -E

 
u

-i 	
-o

 
c
 --a

 
 

o
 c

u
 L

in
 

c
 

L
.) _

c
 k

ti ra
 o

 
to

.) o
 
'
 

2
 c

L
) 

c
 	

L33
 

4
-.. D

. -5
  
a
,
 

ii o
) In

 c
u

 
-5

 
.5

 
c
  c.....-z 

u
-_

 tv 
_0 

E
 c

 o
 c

c
 

.—
 

4-0 

C
 c

 t 2
 

a
) 4

- 
_ 	

a
i 0

 
a
 --- 0

 IT
 4

6
 

E 
_c 

c... 	
k-) 	

L.r. 	
o
 	

,a) 

'P
 

o
 
	

,...-, 
c
 1

6
 

..-E
 

-5
 

3  0
 a

)
 L

-1_ 
-o

 
t1- 1

 4
7
. 	

<
 

fla 
 

C
 C

U
 

C
A

 

C
 rE

3
 

7
,-- 0
 i

l
t
 

u
 

 
_
 	

°
 
	
-F-• 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 239 of 351



South influence  Area  and View  Corridor  

s
r)  

5
 	

ro
 

Q., 
c
 

1E' f
 
.
;
 

E
 

.= -5 
—

 
0
 

a., 	
1
- 

_c 
_

ID
 ,), 

4
-  

.4
-,  4

.-
 6

_
 V

)
 

CD 
W

  
C

 
>

 
. —

 
0.) 

-0
 
M

 
ro 

a) 
C

U
 

'`E' 
a) 	

_ 
-0

 
D

 
n3 	

0
 

C
li  
(73  0

 
E

 
...c 
r—

 E
 	

ci., 

Lr 	
2
 ra

 4
-,  

4—
 _c 

ko
 

-0
 -

c
 o

 
,F

., 	
4
,4

  
a

)
 3

 V
I u

., 

-c  C
D

 
rcs
>

, 
I' z

 	
.D. ...,c

  u
 

	

=
 m

 ry
. L

c. a.,  a
i
 	

- 
4
-,  
4
-,  

3
 

.‘,1
 
 E

 a
l „

,
,
n

 
®

 
,
-
 
.
.
0

 
›
 

a
i 

0
 
i 
_

E
  t
i=

 
,-. 4

-,
 
0
  
0
 4

-
. '-

 
V

)
 
.
 	

c
 

-
0
  r
a
 7

5
 ,._

 c
 <

 
u
 

c
u
 C

 .—
 0

 
0

  
c
 E

 c
u

 .2
 c

u
 

_c
  o

_
c
 u

 u
 4

,3 
o

_
c .,.„, 6

 
1
-- z

 	
2
 .S

 a
_
 L

I 0
 T

s
 l..1  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 240 of 351



and the  Core  Area  at  northwes  

sci 

LL of the  Northern  State  Campus  .  Open  space  area  a  

201  -  Northern  State  Campus  Design  Guidelines  Manual 

a, 

O
 
O
 

C
 

O
 

C
 

0
 

U
 

C
 

_c 

-Es 

C
o

s. a) 
C

 
a, 

0., 
_c 

O
 

U
 

C
 

ra 

O
 

C
 

0
 

-- 
-o

 

0) 
 

U
 

..0
 

"
0

 
7

 
0

 
-C

 

0
 

U
 

•••VZ 

0
 

CU 
C
 

U
 

ra 
U

, 

O
 

-0
 

C
 

4-• 

4
-,  

0
 

U
 

CU 

-0
 

0
 

-C
 

C
 

ra 

sim i lar  materia ls.  

Open  Space  Areas  

a) 
irs 

-o
 

rn 
a

 a
) 

C
 C

 
0

 C
a

 

c
u
 E

 
 (C
3
 cu

 
0

_
 

4J") 
-0

 
C

 
(11 
C

_
 _

C
 

0
 
"1

 
 

t T
r.  

0
 c

n
 

ru 
C

 
2

 (0
 

<
 

C
 

o
 

C
 

0.1 
E

 
a

 
o

 
'a

 d
i 

(u> 
1

1
3

 -0
 

ro 
ro
o
 

rn 
_c 
—

 
IP

  
a
 

a) 
>

 
o
 

>
- 0

 

rip 
E

 

"n"1"  

4
-,  

C
 

O.1 

a
 

0
 

(1) 

(I) 
a
 

CD 
U
 

C
 

ro 

C
 

-0
 

Co 
OJ 

1.71 

-C
 

4-15 

C
 

ra
 

a) 
tr, 
_c 

O
 

C
 

Li) 

0
 

O
 
a
 

C
 

co 

C
 

U
 

O
 

E
 

C
 

rD 

0
 

0
, 

LA- 
rn 
L

- 

C
D

 

O
J 
U
 

C
a 
a
 

C
 

a
 

0
 

CD 
rO

 

a, 

ra 
U
 

a
 

a
 

CD 

0
 

C
 

ra 

O
 

CV 

0
)
 a, 
-C

 
4

-,  

>
 

2 
E

 
E

 
ra 

c
 

ra 
d

J 

Q
/
 

a)  
3

 
cc  

;12 
0
 

4-, 
a., U 
 <
 

a
 
o
 
e

 
0
 

e 47,V
 

.4
=

 

L7_, 
-C

1 
C

 
°
 

0
 

E
 

-0 cu  

C
U

 rt1
 

5
 %

).. 
2

 
-0

 
CU 

C
  

C
 to

 

T
i; _

C
 

-0
 

0
1

 
 

_ 
5

 
ij 
-C

 
C

 
C

 

-
0

 r
ti 

0
 F

L
J
 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 241 of 351



.4
 

 

a) 
_c 
>

, 

0
 

412 
C

 
E

 
o

 
E

 

a) 

• 

a) 

O
 

a) 

75 
O

 
„5 

 
M

 

C
 

' 
aJ 

E
 

C
 _

c 
• 

u
 

Q
¢
 

 

a) 
c
i. a

) 
Tsi 	

fa ...=
 

c
 	

u
 

.1
.

,  
.
■

 

Cr) 	
45' a

)  
C

 .1:1  
0

 	
r1:1 

5
 

..4
- 	

..., 
2
 

o
 

'ED 
a

 
cri 	

_c 
a

.,_, 
o+-. 

h
r
lo

 
v
,
 

.5
 	

c
o

 w
 

D
 

-0
 

-0
 to

l 
C

L
P

 IL' 	
Lij  E

 
C

C
  
a
l
i--1  
0

 
m

ic  E
 
c
 
u
 

o
 

a
 	

'
—

 
ea  

O
N

 
(73 

C
  7

.1
 

 

Z
.+ 

C
I' 

OS 	
a j
c
 

C
O

,. 	
,..) 	

in
 	

0
 

u
l ,-- 

2 
3
 	

a
, 

4
--  

v
)
 
c
 	

a
) 

ccw  _
II '1.- Z 

(sr; 
C

 
0

 

r3
 

t7) 

1‘. 

C
 

C
o

 0
 

.71 U
 

0
 2

 

(z5 
c
 c

 
V

 u 0
 

p
 

<
 

»ts,  
•er 

t
i 

-0 

D
l 

C
 

x N
  

C
 

U
  

O
 

-1= 

8 

S
.
 

E
 

U
 

C
 

C
 

a2 cr, 
LT_ 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 242 of 351



1)1 5 -  Northern  State  Campus  Design  Guidelines  Manual 

nO 
0
 

0
- 

E
 

cn 

-c 

Landscape  Building  Relationships  

c
 

ra 
in 
c
  

1/3
 

.SD 

-0
 

_c 

.! 	
in

 
.-.- 

a) 
L

. 
-

`
"
 	

Z
 

4-. 
U

 
ra 

C
 

1... 
4

-. 
U

 
U41 

.Lft 

0
 

4-,  
4.1

 

§- 
 

2
 

ad 
-0

 
.F.. 
X

 	
1
)  

a) 	
0
 

__C 	
6

' 
 

C
 	

C.)  
ei) 	

U
 

0
_

 D
 

,-, 4
`-'
,..,„

 
••-or 

c
 	

cn 
CO 

.-... 	
11) 

a
 >

 .7
- 

—
 

El)_ 
73. 

a) 
rcs  u

 
_
c
 ,_

 o
 c

 
a

 	
r0

 
-1.--.  f

a
 

03 	
h._ 

,
„

 

C
.) 

4
-' 	

a) 
.e

  - 	
'il 

c
 

Lo"
 

- , 
	

a
 ) >

  w
 
 
c
 

_
 • 

E
 

 
c
 
n
 
E

--' 

a) 
u

 
cu

 .- _
c —

 
-=

 	
c)., 	

.1... 	
Q

) 
O

 
2 

E
 c

 
-L-.
,,, 

cn 
o

 
-.0

 0
 

6
 

..=
 

4
-, 

t.) 
I:r. 

4
-' —

 
u

)
 C

 4
-,  

cu 
• 

4
- >

 
CU 

C
 

4
-,  

It'  
m  , U

 la
 0

-
 ir

Z
 

1.- 
W

 
C

O
 >

-, 
(1)  _

_L
) 2

 T
IJ>

  
_En 

.c
 

u.„
4-• 	

fi, 	
kr. 

8
 

cu  -
o
 _

c
  

-
 
4

-
 

L',  
-C

 
C

 	
-0

 
Co 	

°
 

U
 

-0
 C

I) R
I C

o
 

C
C

 
-0

 
C

L
1
 0

 
0

1
 V

-, 
—

 c
l7

 
cu 

-o
 

tu 
c 7

3,
 
	

-a 
.... 	

47--. 
v, 	

c
 L

ii 
aJ 
	

0.1 
2
 -0

 
.3. 	

c
  a

J
 c

 
cu 	

c
 
	'4'7-,
 is
 0>

 
113 

i 	
CO 

.'-: 
I.'  V

) .1
:7

1
 (7

) 
V1 	

=
 
U

 
17;  

,,,,
a
i  (

0
 
C

 
U

 
	

0
 

CU 	
C

 
E

  2
 _

c
)
›
.
  0

 
E

 
ro --.7; =it' c

u
 	

vi 
4
-
 

—
I 
	

1
..) 	

o 
..1.a.) 
 • 2 6  '1

:5
 

ai  4
.-. 

cu
 _

c 
) 	

4
4

 :' 
2

 

	

t
o- 	

a.)
.c

 §
 

c
 

cr'' :1-7, -6
 

_ca.) 
2
 Q

./ n
o
 	

—
 

(Co 	
TO

 	
1

) 
1
:30., 

7
-3

  
V

I
C

-) 4
'

8
 

>
. 

03'.-
  

4
.-' 4

--' t' 	
li r'' 

2
 c

n
 c

u
 c

 m
 	

c
 --L.-, 

=
 

r
3

 C
 C

 
	

ft) 4
--,
"
 
-0

 
0
 
0
 tca, 2

 a
.) T

. c, cu
 v, 

... _c 
°.' ra

 -.0
 =

 i-,  .c
 ..k-  g

 2
   

.c 
--o

 
4

-,  '
'
'
'
 
C

 
c
i'l  2

 U
£

 
 

l.."1, 
 

-0
 O

.) C
O

 ie
l *

—
 . -2-7. 

C
r) 

60
 

L
i
°
  r
a
 
 
,
 

'5
 g

 
-51--. ccr' c

 
_o 
	

4
 7

,--, LE
, 	

a) 	
0

  
>

 
a) 'L-5  m̀

-' ,c
 —

 o
 -c

 	
u
  

.- 
-F- 

a , . . 9 a. . 
i  
2
/
 Po 7c I t-2, 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 243 of 351



r■
 

Building  Entrances  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 244 of 351



GU 	
C

 
4
-, 4

.- 
0

 
4
- 

-C
 	

°
 

14  
 

O./ 
®
2
 	

3-,
 	

.4":4-
  a

,
 c

  
,_ 	

c
 © 	

nu_ T,, 
>

 
e

n
 ._

 
,._

 c
 .,.. v

■
 :E

 
 4

7
-.. L

i) 
z
 3

.
 
-
 

a, 
0.F 

4=  v
l
 r

o
 	

C
U

 --- u
 

rip
 C

U
 ,.,, :'-' C

 
1;0

  
,
■

 
'
n

 
 
f
j
.
)

'"
  -
0
 

V
I 

>
, -0

 
.0

 
a

l 	
c
u

 a ▪  s
 'C

, W
 4

-4
 rO

 
_
 

—
 	

._ 	
_CS 
	

0
1
 

(13  
C

 
0

 a
) 

0_ 
	

4... 	
a
) 

▪
  
-0

 to
 	

-=
 

,_rc5  E
 
	

c
 -0

 
C

rl ID
 

c
 
	

w
 

C
 C

 0
)
 a

)
 

a) 	
a

) c
 ._

 
'..7_ ' -. li 4

LD
  E

 t3
 
>

 a
,  "3  
'

,A-  =
 

0
 

a
 

L., 	
a

) c
u

 	
w

 1
7
 

-0
 

4t,'  
L
A

 u
 ‘...) 

cL  >
 
	

-rs
 a

, _
 in

 
ci) 

rc
s
 0

3
 . 0

  r
o
 
r
o
 

4-' 
=

 
-o

 u
 k

i.- _
c
 v

i 
u

 0
_

 c
 

	
2

 0
 4

-, =
 

L'-' ,3
 c

 v
, 	

a' 
C

 a
l a

s
 

a
) a

) 
a

 
'a

,
u

c
a

E
Z

.
E

1
5
E

c
c
 

to 
-o

 	
L
I 

tc:n 
v) 	

w
 a

 ra
 ;5

 c
n
 z

 0
3
 ra

 
c
 n

 >
. r

a
 v

-1
 0

 
a

j  —
 

c
  _

 ...c
 	

0.) 
	

,.c
 C

r 
---.Y-

 -0
 

.C
70

 rC
3
 (1

) 4
- ,  
z
 

 
>

 
 

>
 C

 
ai 

Parking  Lot  Canopy  

ro 
rt, 	

0
_
 1

 
4
-,

tn
  .
0
 
p

 ,a, 
4

-,  
=

 "
1-.' 

C
 	

a
l -C

 
0

. 	
V:1'  
'75  

C
 ›C

 

	

-o
 a

, 
	

..-J 
o
 c

 _
c_6 _, 

0
  4

-
 

1._ 	
0
 

4
.0

 'R
i 

ru
 	

C
 

0
1

 —
 u

 a
 W

 
1
3
  E

 (0
 v

i .  a
) a

.) t.., 

	

4.7
. _

c
 a

) 
4-,

 	
. 	

>
 ...c,  

=
 -0

 ro
 )_

_
 0

 
ro 

 
O

 
0
1
 a

s
 	

a
  W

 
	

a)  
_

c
 C

 	
=

 ._  C
I, 	

_C
 

... , 7, -,-- 
I._

 L
F

 • z
 

ro 	
4-I 
	

Z
-  C

 -C
I 4

-, 
4,1 

	

>
". rt,  

	
C

 Q
) 

ru
 

a
 T

5
 	

a
 _

o
 u

 u
 

E
 (0

 (0
 

20 15 -  Northern  State  Campus  Design  Guidelines  Manual 

0
 	

Os 
_ 

V
I
 
C

 	
c
 

o
 

uw
 

._rt3
 -7,-,-
. 	

I.,_-; 	
-0

 	
-0

 	
-0

 
O

 
u

 
	

2
.) 	

a) 

	

4--,  c
 •

 —
 	

a
) 2

) 
-0

 r
O

 0
 

0)  
x
 
	

as 	
`,5 

,
 
	

v., 03 

	

a)  4
-,  a

)
 	

>
 M

I C
 	

0
 

a
j  

=
 

—
 

-0
 

a
: o

i 	
o

 	
a

 	
-.-. >

 
o

 
o

 
a) 	

0
 
0

 

	

E
 _

c 	
L' 	

7731  2
 a

l (1
., u

 
(1) E

 
0-

 , 	
1

4
, 0

 "C
 C

L
 L

-r 
0

 	
c-  C

r
)
 0

 
W

 
.7

1
 1

3
) 	

E
 	

o
 c

 0
, ./i <

 ' 
6-  
 C
o

 
_c

  ,_
 -o

 0
3
 o

 	
.... 11

5
 _

c .- (i) 
,-- (0

 o
 o

_
 Lt..- 	

vl 	
4,
  a
s
 L

.- 
0Z1

 -0
 

0
) 

C
)
 r

  
k
J
 C

 
-0

 
>

 	
:=

 3
®
 
s
i °

 (3) I5
 

u
 4

- 
_

_
c
 ,_

 -- c
 8

 	
0.1 .0 	

-o 	
(0

 o
 

(Li 	
4--,  ---- 

cuL-
 0

 V
, 

u
,

rtl 
	
L
i 	

_C
 
	
-(1) w

 	
tr, 

4
-,  

=
 „

..., _
C

 d
., 0

 V
I 	

4-:_:, ..f_e
 	

1
-'
,4

  -
C., ._

_C
 

00
 

4
-' 'L7 

4-.  C
 -C

r  
Z

 
CO 	

0
, 	

-0
 

; , -,- E
 0

 ,' c:  ' —E
  : Ec

  
'
 

T-  c
 

 
-o _ok-,  ..... 
o

, c
 6

,' L
E

 6
 

4,45 	
0
 

o
 

c
  „
,
 
	

ro  
0

)  4
-
 
 
0

 :4
-3

 -a
-. .-- 

C
 	

f
f

-  
-5

 
2

 	
c
u
 c

 c
 .3

., 	
4E

' 
00 
,
 
	

5
 	

E
 w

 	
-o .12 

tm
  -c

 
a

) c
 
''TI, 

4
.-

-H
 -6

-.
0
 
t
 
)-n3  

0
 _

0
  

-
 

3
4
-, {,0 

	

V
Z

 °
 
a

 	
c
 
=

.. -0
  
0

 1
) (L

) 0
 

0
 '"

 
	

0
 

V
I 	

4
- 

Cp 
	

T
o

 	
V

I 4
4,
  
I-44 

E
 "1-.1-,  a

 
..r... 	

›.-, ,._, 	
a) 	

-
 	

ru  
 

,,.., 
a, c 

3̀13  c
 
t
 
op

- -o
 -a)  

u
 

cif, 
ai ''g

 8 -67,-  
-4_--, ,  

E
 

V
 4

.-. 
ro

 =
 c

u
 4

-4
 

4
., 	

E
 
_

v
. v

i ,_
 rti 	

v, 
r0 	

E
 
	

p 	
zc, 

T
o  :i5

 
 

o
 

	

c
.,, +

.. . 	

• 

ru
 

 
-1--,1- 	

0
 

1

-
 1

1
 
.
I
J
 

connections.  

ad 
.._. 	

>
, 

0
) 	

-0
 

ro 	
ro

 .c
 _

c
 c

 
-0

 	
0
 

8
  b

-
 
0

  u
 
-
 0

  :E
 

_
 4

-
 	

o
 a

) 	
u
 0

)  a
l 
c
 

•--
E

o
E

 
a
 	

_c 
r1

 
5
 

4-ej(1
) t)

 C
  

ic,,  
;

Cr) 
	

12  
8̀.1 E 172 	

,n
 o

 
u
 	

-0
 	

45  
0

 

0
 -

-
 

O
 

c
  E

 8
 0°) 	

ta, 	
C

O
 4

-,  --5
 

a.-; a
, 

T
ri o

 
L.,'J 

.ro 
IP

 
Q

i 
CI) 	

C
 C

L
 	

r0 
4-, 	

-0
 _

c
 
-
0

 U
 

-0
 

-I-, 	
e
t 

U
l 	

4
5
  ro

 ra
 4

-,
  0

)
 
ar3

  c
LaJ  

.
.
 

V
 	

ro 	
Lrr 

t_
e
l 0

 tr,  v
)
 g

 v
)
 -0

 	
=

 
..c 

1:1J 
0

  _
C

 0
 

Z
 T

.: _
C

U
 W

r .'-' 
a) C 	

0
 4

-, c
., C

r) 4
-4

 	
0

1
 

4-,
  Q

i }
,,
'7

  
-Ow

  
n'i

 	
a) 

T-_, 
U

 C
O

 	
C

 C
 

ra
 4

;', 
E

  
C

t. >
 0

_
 

E
n 

ro 	
a
., cu'cij 

uq_ ,_
.„ 0

 
C

L
 iv

 
C

 4
- 

,f,  C
U

 W
 

4
_
 0

) 0
 .._

 	
=

 
c
 

a, 	
c
 	

0
 

-a
 

u
 c

 a
) o

 c
 0

., ',1
7

, 	
4
-
 1

2
 r

a
 Z

 0
1
 
L

e
l 0

 

_
C

 	

0

▪  ▪  

g
 -a

 --7,  
C

 	
4

.-
 a

f
 

a
 '-

-
 

C
 
"
 

v' 
_
C

 0
 -

. 
a

) m
 c

f; ,, 
e
u
 2

 
a-1  

4-'
"
 
4
-  I—

 E
 -0

  -1
-,  m

 	
4e

" a
)47;

 
0

 -0
 E

 ,..,2  
vi vi —

 
c
 c

 
a
, 0

 
o
 

)4-  

>
 

—
 

C
1) no 	

ck
 
0c-jg

 
4
-
 
=

 
L
I
 
01-) 

N
-- 1

0
 h

- 
3

-
 , 4

..,  r
o

 
 

—
 c

o
 

ro 

- 
C

 

•
 	

>
 4

-z
 

Q.)
0

 0
 v.  

+
19

 4
-,c3  
:

8
  
a
 cy , , , ,c >

 , 
.5 4_, T_ 	

7L7):
 
;
 

C
 r

a
 

O
 

'4
- U

 	
C

 LE 
ro 

4
-,  

4
,
  k

J
 7

1
7

) 

Cil
>

  C
U

 Z
i.-) 	

5
 u

 .—
 M

S
 

-0
 7

1
:1

 	
6
 	

'4  
5
 -0

 -
0
 
	

E
 

'-
 

ro 
-2

  C
T=
  

C
 	

,. 
	

C
i ) —

 C
 U 

a
 j o

 j 
-0

 0
)
 

1.) •
 

_
C

 ._
 

0
 	

. _ 
D

I 
.4
-
,  r

z
i 
,
r
,
 
"
I-
 
_
C

. U
 C

 _
C

 _
C

 c
 

-
0
  

I—
 >

 	
0
 (c

) 
-0

 
=

 
)c12

 /-- . C
  ro

 4
.-,  4

-. 
ro

 ra
 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 245 of 351



,E
 

c
u

 _
- 

....  
ru 

2
 

c
  J
D

 e
l3

 W
 
-0

 
4
- . n

i 
-0

 "
C

y
 

>
 
C

 
0

) 
c
  E

 =
 o

 
4,
 

 
Z 5

 
ro 

no 
	

a
, 0

 4
- 

)- _
c
 

,n
 	

u
l 

ri3 
t.J 	

0:3 	
0

 
-0

 
u

l  'T
c
 

.)... 2
 

t.rt 	
- 
	

a) 
	

no 
LA  

4
- 

,A
 	

u
 
0

 
C

 
C

 	
-=

 
_c

  w
 
r
t1

 r
a
 0

1
 

tri 
a
- 	

4
-, 	

_
C

 ill C
 W

 
e

l 	
V
 

1-^  E
 4

-
 '01 E

2
 

b
j  

4
,
 	

....-Z
:
 a

' a
.)

 V
I 	

,
 

re 
4,
 	

L
a
 

U
 >

 	
u
 

(a 
w

  €
1

3
 

eg 	
c
i)
 C

 0
 2

1
 c

 a
 >

-
, 

Ci. 	
,, ,_

 	
U

 
_

C
 '. 	

1:7:1 
C

 
tri 	

4
, 

u
 0

_
 tu

 
a, 

E
 
	

c
u

 c
 c

u
 

E
 	

m
 o

, 
3
  to 	

-
 

c
- 

-
-
 

E
 s--  0

)
 8

 
 

E
 

CFI 
-0

 r
a
 

41J 

6
1

 - 0
 .E

 E
 

R
I. 	

W
 

V
I

—
 r3

  
.4--,  
v
l 

4
- 
2
°
 

._
 _

c 
a
 

1
3
  a

)
 

°
 
5
 +

, -
C

 

	

4-• 	
0

 
1

3
 
t
 
	

-0
 

	

a
, C

 	
_

0
 
®
 

0
 

C
 4

-
. 

-0
 0

 -
-
, 

.-
 e

-
 	

-, 
-0

 
tO

 u
 	

a
l ,,. 

0
 a

t 	
- 

-0
  4

,
 
	

(1) 
1
3
 

'T
_
 - 

0_ 
Q , a

) a
 

	

4... 	
c
 4

5
 

fa
 e

a
 	

a, 	
u
 

ra
 W

 
0
 

 
C

C
 V

  C
W

ia
 y

 u
c
l)
 C

 

1
E

 -C
 _

C
 

4,
  
4
,
  

t; -a 
g

 1
-  -0

 O
 

U r r E ) 	
..i1), ; ,- = 	

,...: .§
 '- 

ro
 .`"

 	
0
) 

_
C

 Iv
 X

 
■-
-
 (

1
)
 3 :53  -

.
.C"'  

(a 
T

S
 	

2
 -

 §
 

.0
 

a
i 

-0
. 	

,.._ 
0
  

..c
 c

 c
 ...c

 D
 .._

 
1

- n
o

 n
o

 u
 u

 to
) 

lf 1 

cr) a) 
v, cu

 
c
 

c
 E

 4
-  .47. Lg 

›., _C
 

 
r
e
. 4

_
, U

 C
 

n
o
 R

 
73 ..a.  a

 
_

c
 -0

  u
.- 	

-o
 

4
- ,.. =

 r°
 
-o

 
r
 

4- 
m

 
0
  '.-

 .c
  C

O
 

a
 ®

 
41:1 	

n
o

 '- 
no 

-6 g 
.fl:r 

	
c
 
 _

c
 

Lai 
W

 

(0
 a

i 
4
, 	

,4
t 

(C) 
r
O

 0
 

L
.. -0

 

C CU 
0-)  
-0

 7
 _

C
 W

 
>

 
,
1
-
 
0
1
 

®
 

0
 D

 '-
)
 •

 -
 
-0

 
4
-
-
 
-
'
-
 
0
 
C

 
a
)
 

W
 

-C
 - —

 
V

1
 tii 

1
._

 c
 v

l 

cu 

0
 

7
 

0
 

r: If) 

M
S
/
 

0
 
L

i  

V
I 

CO 

a, 
-
 
	

a; 
c
 

c
 

v-■
 4

-  
a
 

o
 

0 0  -
 
>

.
 

-0
  T

o
 

L.) 

E
 

C)  
0

 C
  

a
) 

2.1  
o

 	
w

 
E

 
E

 
---- 

d.0
 

E
 —

 
o
 =

 4-
 

L
n

 3
 2

 

Figure  7.5,  raft  view  along  Hub Drive.  Photograph 2015 on  top.  Photograph c.  1920 on  bottom.  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 246 of 351



20 15 .  Northern  State  Campus  Design  Guidelines  Manual 

y  to  campus,  with gate  house.  Photograph 2  Figure  7.6.  Road at  e  

Campus  Gateways  

• 
o

 
8

 	
E

l 
Q

; 
4

-,  
-0

 	
+

, 	
_C

 	
vs 	

=
 

Cr) 
Q

 
ru 	

, a
)
 	

4
- 

a) 
vs 	

a) 
0
 	

z
 	

c
 	

4
. 

C
O

 	
a
i 

,._ 
LA 

'+-• _c 	
_

c
 '''' 	

73 	
c
 
	
c
h
a
ir
:Ito

 	
u

 C
 	

u
 

	

E
 o

 o
 o

 
L
_
 ,,, 

®
 

a
i 

a) 	
>

 c
 _

c
 	

m
 

101  -
-
 

IP
 a

, 	
c
 

(1) 
.4

..  a
_

 c
 

,--ra 	
>

 

	

c
t) ,_

 
..in 	

c
 -0

 0
 c

 
._

 
+-.' ,7

1
 

a) 
p2 

÷-. 	
.-;; 

0_
8

  (1
5
 ,a,u _

c, v, 
cu 

,5
 
E

 0
 c

 '" .tn
 a

.) 2
 

ru
 v

.,  =
 
r
o

 	
7

3
 C

 '+
`-,
u

  f—
 

-cia i  a
 _

c
  

c
o

 a
) u

4
 c

 u
m

 	
-- 

7_-, 
	
-0

 
>

 
a

)
 . 

ricl 	
4

- 

	

E
 13  
'

4
  0

 
	

=
 ," u

, >
, cu 

v
, =

 
m

 .2
 L4  ro

 ,.- 
c
 
	

+
4
- 

a
., 

E
n 

L
I 

L
n

 
co 

2
  
	
t
 
E
  
'
n
 
l
i
 
1
1
 
 
!
!
 

E
L

:' 
 .+

; 
ir
 

 1 11 ! rla:j  
!
 

.u
l 	

+
, 

	
-0

 	
-0

 
co

 a, ai 
 

4
- •,..:

 
C

...) U
 e

ll _
C

 
0
1

-  ro
 C

 	
ad 	

vs 
-47, 

v
.)
 
„
,-
 
c
 

4
. 

	

2
®
  ' - La  ' . 4 • i '" = 

i  .- -_ -
r c3  E

 
	

4,,  U
 
-
-
 
+

4  
C

 
	

CU 
0

  
Z

 
>

,
 

0
)
  V

I
 	

c
 a

) 	
ra 	

® 
2
 

4
-, 

	
(1

) 0
. 

v
)  L

4
 

a
j  .,- -0

 
	

L
A

 ...s.  a
)
 ..,,,,E1 -' 2

 "0
 u

 -4
- --,  

	
En

 .c
 

L
n
 	

O
D

 D
 	

(0
 

rx:5  
ro

 c
_
 

rc
s
 C

 	
C

 C
 	

a
 

6
 ro

 	
0
 c

 
• 

c
 4

7
  T

V
 C

T
_

 4
7311)  m

te
l w

 
0:5 	

I_
 	

-0
 	

4
-,  r

a
 c

 
,._

 c
 

CL)

▪  
a
,
 	
E
%
 a

  s
il 0

J
 

vi 	
0
- .+

-a
 C

 0
 C

U
 c

 0
 v

-
i 7

=
 	

—
 v

s
 —

 _
0
 a

 r
c
i 

0
.. 

_
a

 0
 ,c

 
m

 +
-,

czl- 
cL

) _
y 

-0
 +

.7
 

2
 

.-s
 c

 v
, 

-0
 .Irs

 	
0

 	
0
 

D
 

v
s
 C

 v
s
 

M
s
 ill 	

5
 
	

a
 E

 
,_ _c, 

D
 	

U
 

(1)  7
3

 
—

 
0

 
C

 
w

 
O

 
1
1
2
 0

 	
cu '0- 	

c z 	
= 

0
.1

 IA
 

0
 	

rcS
 C

r_ 	
+

, 	
C

L
 - —

 r1
3

 0
 

Li  r
o
 r

Q
. C

 
4-
' 7

3
 >

s
 0

 v
s
 >

. 	
W

 _
C

 
-C

 
0
 	

C
 Q

J
  

	ro
 . c4,

 

	

u
 

rt
 
.
;
 

E
 	

cu 

• 

ca 
- 

L
i 

U
 

4-r
c
  w

 r
a

 a
)
 e

c
s
 	

c
 >

 ..0
 

W
 0

_
 	

7
a

, o
 a

' 
LA  g

 
0

)  ro
 -c

 -c
 

+-, 	
a) 	

I-- 
4
. 	

ro 	
u, 

ra 
	

a, 	
-c

 U
 c

 	
'a

 
	

T
3
 

IA
 

a' E 
-0 	

U
 	

QJ 
ro

 a
, E

 
0

1
 

as 	
u
 4

-1  0
 03  
:1- 	

a, 	
M

Y 	
a
) >

 u
 :10  c

 .c
rs

 C
 

	

>
"
' c

 c
 c

 
4- c

 §
 2

 -,-, a
/ 	

a
, 5

 
c
-0

 •= 	
a) 

_
 .a

l 
a, ,t, 
	

o
 
'-">'s 13c 

4-'
11:i  -

0
 
4
- , 1

4
 
0
 

U
 V

I r
1

0
 fti 

aJ =,,i, ,0
 	

.-- =
 

.C
. 

4,-.  

	

in
  4

-
-.
'-

 
 
E

 rtl  
4
5
 
la

 
*

-'
10  C

 4
-
-
' 	

IS
 8

 ,,-, › - c
 

a, c
 ro

 
	

e, ...c
 - 

4-' 	
3  •E

 
ci) 	

s_ 	
, s

e
 

413 
vi-  a

)
 

o
 

c
 
	

ro 
",4- 	

0
_

 	
C

u
 0

 	
°
 
>

 
a

)  r
o

 
_

C
 
-
0

 
"
 
70

  c
u
 s

-
 C

U
 

4-,
  r
S

, 	
C

 
a
 	

4-, 	
0

 	
-7 

v
s
 u

 
CI)  e

j
 

1.- 	
0
 0

1
 :

I
-
' r

iZ1  
>

,
 t a

i 	
2
 e

a
 
1:' o

_'"
 ;) E

 a
-"

t-D  
-3

 cy
l -ED  a

i
 	

:a  _
.,o

 b
 

-0
 

:E
 F

--  o
l
 c
  —

 4
- 1

 • u-
 
	

a
 	

=
 	

2
\
 

1
.7

; .`-' 
vi 

a
, c

 c
 

0
  

._
 	

a, 
	

,- 
>

 0
 .=

 o
 7

, 3  ®
 

Cr)  

	

no 	
cu  
0

 
	
E

 a
 >

, , c
u
 u

 
.- E

 	
s
 	

L
E

2
o

r
S

6
c
E

-
0

 
_
c
 a

l 	
v, 

	

a
. C

U
 -- 

4
_
 v

i =
 0

 5
 	

-C
 L

A
 

, (1
) 

a
, ra

 
s-r C

V
  
U
m

  W
 _

C
 -

a
 
E

 ti 3
 °

 
c
  

	

z
 "o

 J
r o

 m
 c

r _
In

 " 	
i-
 

-c
 c

 _
o
 u

 
0
.)

 Z
 V

)
 >

 
4

.,
  1

.n
 	

ll a
S

 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 247 of 351



V
I 

8
 

O
 

U
 

-C3 

a.) 

a) 
0
 

 8
- 
0
 

cri 
C
 
0
 

C
 

2
 

C
 

rO 

a
 

U
 

-0
 

Lel 
-0

 
C

 
r
B
 

-0
 

U
 

10 
a
 

VI 

10 

4E
'  

a) 

a
 

0
 

-0
 

a) 
10'  
a

 

a
 

C
 

Q
J 

a) 
c
 

v
, 

• 

'15
 

0
 

>
.

.
-
 

>
 

Cu 
a, 

a, 

4-,  L
A

 

Cu 

• 
u
 

E
 	

o
 

a) 
_C

 

4E. 
C

 
0

 

Cu 
C

 
a) 

a
 

E
 

4-
 

a) 

LO
' 

a
. 

C
 

Cu 

0
 

ZU- 

ML
'  

rD 

O
 

-C
 

470U
 

a
 

E
 

C
 

Cu 
t
 

0
 
a
 

_ 

E
' 

L
)
 

_c 

C
 

4-4 

1E-

+Tr 

C
 

ro 
a) 

a
 

a) 

C
 

O
 

C
J 

rp 

to
l 

(13 

U
 

(0
 

a
 

C
 

a) 
a

 
O

 

0
 

-C
 

0
 

-0
 

a) 

-a 
C
 

-o
 

cu 

a) 

a, 
0
 

z
 

0
 

C
 

(L) 
4

-,  

a
 

a) 
U
 

ca 
Cu 

_c 

Cu 
1/1 

a
 

E
 

ro 

a) 
_
C

 

C
 

a) 
ra 

-C
 

Le) 

CO 
a

 

O
 

Ln 

0
 

-0
 

0
 

C
 

a) 
a
 

O
 

a) 
U) 
_c 

-0
 
C
 

ro 

a= 

U
 

a) 
'5

 

Cu 

a
) 

O
 

Cu  
E

 

ru
 

O
 

-cs 
a) 
C
 

rO 

C
 

aJ 
-o

 
C
 

ra 
-0

 

a) 

a
l 

a
 

O
 

U
I 

a) 
E
 

O
 

L
I 

0
 

O
 

3
 

C
 

a) 

0
_
 

7) 
(1.0 

0
1
 

C
 

O
 

04 

C
 

a; 

a
 

ro 

—
 0

 
tr

i C
 

C
 

(11 
a
 >

 
-to

 47; 
a) 

ro  
C

 

C
 

0
 
:ES 

_c 

O
 
C
 

4 a
),  -

C
 

C
 

(o
 

5
 -a

 
0
 r

ts
 

U
 

a
 

U
 

0
 

0
 

_0 

^:1 

7
0

 
C

 
4—

+ 

C
 

,f ,1
 -0

 

a) 
M

 	
C

 
V1 	

,• 
(1) 
_

c E
 1

1
5

 
H

-
 a

 a
 

0
  o

n
 

C
 a

)
 C

 
>

 
.47.; 

-o
 

-a
 

-
0

  w
 

4
-0

 a
) a

) 

E
 
°
 

0
 0

 -
1

-
-
•
 

ro
 —

 C
 

0
 

C
 

w
 

-E
n
 -c 

O
 
-0

 

9
- 

Q.1 

0
 

laa
  

0
 

a) 

U
y
 

V
i 

a
) 

U
 

a
 

a
) 

O
. 

I
M
 

C
 

O
. 

0
 

a
 

Cu U 

0
 

_c 

rya'  

-a 
a
) 
a
 

a) 
a) 

C
 

rU 

o-r) 

0
 

Cu 

4-,  
O

 
_
C

 
C

 
C

u 

113 

v
i
 

a) 

Cu 
U

 

0
 

O
 

O
 

0
) 
C
 

tri 

-0
 

4-,  

ro 
C
 

0
 

roro 

Cu U
 

 V
I
 

  a
 

L.) 
ro 
ice-. 

a
 

VI 

-0
 
C
 

ro 

U
 

0
 

a
 

Cu 

a
) 

Q.1 

fcs 
a

 
U

I 

a) 
a

 
0
 

V
I 

a) 

C
 
0
 

U
 

ut 

1-) 

U
I
 

 C
 

a) 
cu 
-o

 
C

 
rB 

C
 

a
 

a
 

0
 C
 

VI 
a) 
2. 

C
 

tri 

C
u 

0
 

V
I 

a) 
rn 
CD_ 

C
 

Lro 

a
 

0
 

a) 
_C

 

0
 

1.11 
(0 

.79J
 

a
 

C
 

a
) 
a

 
0

 

O
 

170 

-ts 
C
 4-3 

C
 

E
 
a
 

0
 

 a) 

-0
 

ro 
a) 
ro 
-0

 

O
 

a
 

0
 

a
 

a) 
_c 

C
r) C

u 
C

 
Vi 

cu 
a

 
a, 

O
 

• 
4-' 

IP
 

• 
0
 

4-7 
-E

D
 E

 

(Es 
4

--  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 248 of 351



2C 15 •  Northern  State  Campus  Resign  Guidelines  Manual 

Landscape  Lighting  

Architectural Lighting  

in
 	

in
 

D
 

fa
 	

v, 
›.. 
	
a

 
E

 	
EL2 

Z
, 	

tI5  n
3
 

ro 	
0

 	
0

 
4
-,  

u
 

m
 
t
il 

4
 ..=X

 
4

-C
 

.=E-
  a

j
 

 
0

 
r
o

 
U

 

	

C
 -

-
 .._

 	
_

 
v
l 
_

 
co 	

fti 	
_C

 
1

_
 0

 	
0
1
 4-• 0

_
 
4

-
.
 
C

 
"
 

[7_ 
D

 4
7
. 

-0
 .-5

5
 C

 
8

 	
m 42

 
I_

 	
ro

 	
4
1
.1

 -0
 	

._ 
G

., g
 	

. 4
,. Q

. _
c
 . 

ro 
-0

 
0
 . 	

-C
 	

ro 
4-,  a

j o
.) 

_c. 	
nu 	

0
 

4
-,  a

) ..=
 	

ca .E
 

	

4
-, 	

4
--,  1

2
)
 r

o
 
®
 

..=
 

_
C

 u
l v

, •
 -_

, a
., 	
•
 C

U
 0

 ,-
 

e
l 

4
-'  
0

.)
 
0
 	

-0
 

in
 -0

 
rr -.. 

a
.) c

 c
 

v
, 

5
, r'Fi 

(1)  
. _ 	

4-. 	
In

 L
i 

-0
 

2.2 - 
4—

 	
IP

 
C

 
0

 	
].... 4_... 

-0
 _

C
 0

 *
4

.-Eli -0tri 	
L

rl  
a
) 0

1
 Z.,-  r

u
 
,
.
.
.
 
a

.
,
 
Z

 
0

 
=

 
c
 

-0
 ..0

 .--, 

	

_
1
 F

_
 
	

m
 

_a 
a
s
 _

c
 

fa 431 
...n

 
'5

 	
w  
-0

 10  C
 -c

 k
f,  E

 
r
,
 

O
 ..0 -,-; 

u
 
:
a

 
C

 
C

 
r
o
 r

ti fo
 

1..) ‘4
.- C

n
 
 "a-  ',.7, 

_
C

 ro
 	

1.71 	
4-,

 	
a

 
:
 

-
-
 
C

 
U

l +
4
 
'L

. 
 

in
 

4.-• 
c
 d

i ' 
	
E

 0
 

0
1

 a
l v

s
 

0
  u

 
0
1
 
=

 
4

-■
 
-

▪  

C
 

in
 
U

 
C

 
in

 
.
-
 

U
 C

 C
 4

-
■

 

-
 

CS) 
0

3
 • - 

 
'47 

41:1 
-4

7
, v

l 0
_
 -

-
I 

 
-C

 .4
.--"j C

UL
- 4

9
  C

 
.
=

 

	

in
 	

(1
) • —

 
4

j
 
>

 
a

) C
li 

4
-
, 

C
 
a
)
 
4
:3)  a

, m
 L

.) 
w

  
-4=_, 

=
 _

c
 ix

) -- '`E
' 	

.. 
-,:-. —

. —
 

	

a.■
 
	

E
 

0
  

.—
 

4
-,  

• 
i.n

:, 
-0

 	
tifi 	

-0
 

11) 	
C-J 

iT
1

 ra
 C

C
 

m
' E

 r 1)  ra—  E
 2
 2 

	

4-• 	
C

U
 >

  

D
I 

	

-0
 	

C
 	

a/ 

	

C
 	

C
 

	

W ▪  
u
 0
 a

3
 	

L-
 

	

0
 -

C
 ''.' 	

-17:5 
._

 	
a., 	

ru
 -c

 
g
 ''-- 

	
4-:,. 

	

cv 
4̂

.  
0
)
 (D

 	
t/3.  a

l _
:- 

...a
 c

 a
s
 y

u
c
-13  

_
o

 "' 
c
 .- 	

' 
+E'' 	

t.A,  a
)
 
C

 
.
>

 
P

I
 ""a

 

	

C
D

 a
i 	

C
 V

I 
-
-
 
0

.1 
ZPI 

71 
a

) a
; 

its 
4E-' 

--, 
D

 ru
 

cr)  

	

0
) ‘.9

 731
 g
 	

-7̀
  E

 
	

_ti cu 
.. V

I 
.4

-,  
4-,
  

0
1

 w
 v

,  %
.- -0

 	
0.) 

0
 

C
 - 

.1='. 
—

 

a
l 

ra 
C

 
.0

1
 

17,1
 

C
 

7E
' 

c
 

-0
 

CC3  

E
 

E
  

0
 

U
 

>
,‘ _

 —
 

	

•
 
-

0
 

	

ra
 	

r
n

 t"
 `

-
' 	

..?
 

car 
r
i)
 

.,, E
 0

 'r- 

	

,A
 u

 	
g, FD

 13 u-1 	
—

 
u
 

a, 	
a

) -c
i 

r., 
a) _c 

-C
 C

L
 	

-0
 ..-,

-- 
c̀a

 (1.-  -
C

 
W

 
r
i 

4-• 
	

E
 

4_, 	
.—

 	
,,, c 0

-) -;-(' 
....) 0

 7€ 
0

 D
.. 

u
 c

 
,. 	

4-, 	
-o 2

. '7' w
 
	
,, =

 
ru

 .0
) 

L
ir a

3
 	

c
 rt7

 
a

) a
)  0

1
 
>

 
-a

 _
c
 

g 1?) co" 	
a
) 0

 
.0

  r
o

 
-I-' 

_
0
 
c
 
a
)
 
u
 

C
O

 	
;_

-, !+
-.- ,-,,,, 

-0
 •

-- 
-0

 
a' 

(u rs, .—
 

4-'
 
'
-
 	

ra 
:■-• .—

 
-0

 L
./ D

 	
C

 	
c
i) C

 C
L
 ,-' 

 
,_, 	

..., 	
...., --_, 

E
 _c 

7= E
U.  1

 r:
 

 
CFI 	

. ..-- 4
.) ,-," 

0
 	

E' 
"
 

0
 

D
  

..:_
l 4

.- _
s
0
 
la

 
a
)
 	

1
7
1
 0

 70
  0

 3
 3

 3
 4

 

c
 5

: >
 i5

 	
0
, rIs 

-Z,-,-, 
'4-.7

'  C
 
W

 
7
7
,
 	

C
 C

 ‘_
_
 

•c
 0

, 	
D

 	
L
a
 -a

 a
.) 

. 	
Ln 

0
1

 
 —

 	
_

0
 	

c
 

n
j  _

c
 

.6.,  

	

4
-
, 0

 4
,. 	

'4"—;-  2
 0

  
—

 
03 

6-,  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 249 of 351



if) 0
 2

 	
. 	

-0
 

a
) c

 v
, 

 

	

..c 	
_c 	

z
 	

ecs 
a) 

.,:-- a
) c

r) „. 
I,: 

-a 4_, 
.-. a

 	
vi. 	

0
 

in
 

 

ets 
c9 

IL5
  

	

_
 -

,-
 	

C
 

	

c
i) ru

. 	
e

l 
nz,  

0
 	

a
; c

 c
 	

0
 

w
  _

c
 
-
 

0_ 
c
 
	

c) 	
L
7
0
 vl :74  

cs) 
E

 5
 

—
 

	
-io 

73  
-a

 
u
 r-- 	

4
- 	

!a
 a

, =
 

c
 

o
 -0

 
151  r

<C
r' -0

 a 
	

-
5
 
 
.
,
,
,
 
7

 
	

a) 
0

 
N: 

+_. 	
u
 
a
 
a
) E

 
',71 

u
 a

, 
0
 	

0
 O

. 
0
 ...0 

0
 r,
 	

Ln 
ra 

a) 
0., 	

a, 
o_ 

cu 

	

p
 _

C
 C

U
 v

i 	
.E

 C
D

 	
(13  IT

U
 L

i--  
'
"
 
	

tit 

	

tit c
 

4-
' -

C
 

2
 	

c
 ( 1-,  t

r
i 

N
 

-
C

 "
-
 0

 	
o

 
E

 
:6

 

	

ria
 0

 	
N

. 

a-) 	
c
 

	

 
n3 	

, .ra -C
 

2:
1
 

	
_y 

a,
 

.5
 E

  

	

%.J 	
cu 	

n
 v

i 	
...., 

0
 	

4-
' 

cll 
v, ,,-, 	

0 -i-w
, 

0
 a

, 
. 

o
 	

u-) 	
,... 

c
  o

 
	

v
i 

83  0
 c

u
 -0

 	
0
 0

 -p
-- 	

ai 
P

 0
 c

l) 	
••C

  C
 e

t , 

	

>
 -C

 —
 L

e
; 	

-C
I 1:i  4

=
 	

E
 

-=
 o

 --, 	
E.  2

 
-
 

c
 

c
  

C
D

 1.4
 

mvi 	
w

 .. 	
-
 	

(I) 
cv  2

-
 	

f■
 

C
A -0

 '''' 
riz

i 0
1

 

	

C
L

 C
 	

C
 C

L
 (1

) 
'13 	

2
1

 	
Z

i
 
U

 
a
)
 

1.-) 	
0
1
 ;

1
-
 0

 0
 

1
3

 
Z

s
 2

 	
c
 o

 v
., 	

-0
 -c

 
a

i 	
c
 
-0

 
ea 

(1
) C

  
4--, 	

"•`- 

	

5
 

E
 
	

5
 -0

 
9_ lu  g

 
	

a
. 

c
  4

-• .."
 	

C
 

u
 	

e
n
 a

; 	
C

 1
5
- 	

fl3 

	

(1
)  a

/
 
°
 
0
 
.
—

 	
0

 
f
t
 
0

 
-
C

 	
U

 
0
 

V
I  e

a
 r

e
l 

	

L6,  , -
0

 ...., •D
 	

,
 

‘.._
 L

., 
4

-,  .
2

 

	

C
 -.Y

 
0
.1

 -0
 

	
'5 	

D
 

4
--' V

I 	
5

 ' .c
 2

2
 

ro 
a

) ru
 	

o
n
 o

 t,' 
0

  c
 a

n
 	

_o 
t'
 

-0
 c

u
 -0

 c
 

w
  c

u
 i-

 a
, c

 u
 ...x

 	
0
 

E
 8

 w m
  0 ." -z u

  

	

O
 

a, 2
-ra  E

 
0
 	

5
 -0

 a
" 1

5
 	

..._. 

	

_
c
 a-  a

)
 >

 :a
 7-- 	

L
 

a, 
a
 la-) ft, 

...., =
 

c_ 

... 	
(-:.)

 ,::_
 : 

wE
  

L.) 

	

..c 	
-1:1613  _

0-5
  

	

4'c' 
0

 _
DaY 

-..v41. 	
.1:

,  
3

 
	

.I.-. L
., 	

'45
 "--5 4,,,.. 	

2n:t  _
 w

  
. —

 .1
-... 	

0
 1

-- 

	

44 
to

 
.
 

2
 _

o
 a

 	
c
 

7
 

u
 

.-c 
o
 

0
 

a, -6-. 
C
  
 

0
 
o

 
-
c
 

.i
 
	

c
  o

 4-'  
■C

 
4.4  C

 
,
I
I
I
 

0
)
 
c
 
0
 
I
I
,
 

_
 

0
 	

Ld i j' ' 
0
1
 -0

 
.#-_, 

75
 	

-0
 

tit a
l tit 

crt 	
a
) v

i 
CU 

C
 

T
 

 
0
 

	

td
 	

a
) (1) 

c̀i.3 	
>

, 
C

 
a
l _

c
 0

 
Q

1 	
o
n
 4

_
, _

 
-a

 
,_ 	

0
 a

) 

	

v
i 	

a
) a

 	
_c 

4-- 

	

a) 	

c
ti o

 v
i 

0
 _

c
 

L
n  

"6 

	

Ta 
	

x
 

	

C
 	

>
. 	

7-,  ,-
.

cu  
c
 <

 1
5
5_ 

a:,  
0.1 

a
j  C

 
-4

7
 

4..1
 

,,-, 	
tr. 	

c
 

C
 .—

 

	

7
3

 	
,
 
c
u
 
c
 

a
) cri 

e
C

 p
 
-0

 0
 1

0
 

C
 

5
  a

) t..) 

	

a) 	
u
 	

Ld  
-0

 

	

E
 	

0
 c

u
 
-0

 
a, =

-' 
c
r. c

 
	

7
 

	

Lel
0

 	
0
_
 0

- c
a
 0

, .0
 

t 
lit 

C
C
 

C
 
c
 

	

a) 	
al --,=. -c 

	

-a
 	

4
-,  

	

ti) 	
-u-1 	

a) 

	

u
 	

a) 
0
  a
t" 

	

1.1! 	
0
 

,7
, >

 
''' 

	

o_ 	
c
 a

) c
 ,-, 

_c
  0

 .-'-‘ c
L
. 

	

u
 	

4_. 
t.J 

f0
 

0
  

--,_ 
0
 
a
l 

c
 c

 o
 -0

 
or '13 

	

vi 	
'5

 
i.r

1
 c

 V
)
 L

i  

	

W
I W

.... 	
r1.1 
t 

1
 
.
5
 
 u

 ._ 0
  

,, _
c
 

4
, 

1
..- 4

o
 
-
 

.13
-
0
 

3̂  
la
 
*
-14  
=

 

	

C
 	

+-• 
13  

	

as 	
c
 	

4°
 
0

 
cli 

a
) ru

 
1'3 aJ 

0
 

C
 c

 E
 .c

 
wc
 b

 

	

47. 	
C

D
 C

L
 

rzi 
E

 u
 

u
 
a
 
o
 

-- ,T., _9-1  a
,
 13J 

 
..... 

	

 
ti 	

-- w
 v

, 	
12  

t 

	

c
 	

Lal 	
C

 
 

1
:3

 a
l 

c 

	

0
 
-
0
 	

C
 	

la 
'-
 

tit u
 

A
 

L
i 

C
 

a
l  T

U
 C

U
 

,.,_ 

	

a, 	
-0

 
-0

 0
 

N
■

 
	

a
) _

c
 

	

Z
 	

a
 -_

- 
—

 
-
... 

 

713
 0

 4
-
,(1) 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 250 of 351



I 5 Northern  State  Campus  Design  Guidelines  Manual 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 251 of 351



 
 

 
 

 

r•I 

a
 

a
 

a_ 
cci 
rn 
cr, 

4, 
Li 

a
.
 

E 

-
-c"" 
C
 

C
 

1
t2  

z
 
0
 

C
 

C
 

 C
 

es1 

2
 

C
 

Ca 

od 

C
 

ro 

LE
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 252 of 351



m
 -F

 
9„, 

6  _
C

I 
.1.E. -0

 
 

a
 

U
 

0
) 

0
 

V
) 

©
 

_
c
 4

..: 

ti.
,
 	

.V
5

 '5
.1 
 C

L
 

it
 
v
i 

n
s
 Z

 _
0
 n

a
 

14  
_
le

 :'- 
(1

,  f
 
0

 
0

)
 
(
0

 
C

I 0
) _

C
 4

- ,  IA
 _

c
 

c
 ,.- +

4
 

 
a

) 
ro 
	

>
-, 	

0
 -

 
_

c L
rl _a 

a
) 

u
 0

.1
 	

a
) ''' 

4
-,
  
0
 

c
u

 . 0
 
I
t
i
 
4
-
,  
(
1.  
0
 

.L
.
)
 
c

u
 
>

 
.
 

a
)
 
C

 
Ifl 

L
q

 -0
 

2
 

E
 

E 
-c

 o
 

0
_

 	
4
.,
  
u

 
_C

 
0
 

0
 
0
 >

, 
r
, 

a
. C

.9
 

ro
 V

 -0
 4

---:
 

a.) 
aJ 

E E 0 

5
 

9
) 

a
) 

C
C

 

ns 

4C.j 
z
 

aJ 

LE 

_c 

wi ll use  these  NSC Historic  District  

proposed changes  to  the  NSC  site.  

a
) 

-0
 

c
 

a
, C

 	
a
) 	

ra 	
C

 
.
0

 
0

 	
>

 
,44 	

-Y
 	

.G.; 	
(13 

	

.-1
 -Y

 
0

 
4

,
 	

L
il 

e
n

 	
...... 

4
-,  

L
: 	

E
 

	

(
1
3
 >

 (
0
 >

 :5
-
-
 	

O
 
=

 
	

-o 
-47--, 	

,, , 	
n

, 

3 Z
I3 

a
- .—

 ,-- 
C

 (3
) 

	

'4" 	
17_-  

	

u
 	

4
-. 
t.._

 ti 	
c
o

 _
C

 

	

h
n

, ra
 4

4 ,
 	

L., 

.5
 ,. 4._' 
	
c
 x

 
0

 
4

,
 

a
) 

	
'-

' 
0
 
V

I
 
X

 

	

E 
ro

 	
115 

2
2
 a

. 
0
 	

4
-- 	

(1,
 
:E

 
C

 
/
-
 

R
I 

4,
  

	

11.7,  E
 
	

u
 
0

 a
 _

c
 

property  tax  special valuation.  
4,-,  

	

0
 
•
g

 
Z rtl 

C
L

0
 

0C 	
-C

 
4
-o

 ‘s
t- .4

1
 

a
z
y
 ft)

 =
 0

 
C

L
 u

 C
 

t-) 

4-• 	
••■

• 	
.4-) 
u

 0
)
 k

..)
 

- 0
 L

A
 

.47
,  

u
 	

a
) a

) ra
 	

.—
 

	

ID
 

C
S

 	
0
 
=

 
	
:5

 

v
t

9
  O

C
 -C

p
  ©

 
M

I  

	

_
C

 	
1
-.) 

0
 a

)
 a

)
 c

 a
s
 

	

4.-• 
- 0

 ..0
 	

- 0
 -

0
 a

)
 
'5

 a
i -c

 

	

a
 
c
 

+
4

 (2_ 	
ro

 4
- ,  a

i
 

 
L

I
 
a

)
 

L
- 

0
1

 
4
0
 

C
 

ro
 $

-- 	
0

 	
4
-, 

4
.... C

 

	

U
 	

C
 —

 
>

s
 - =

 	
0
 	

t., 

	

ea  .s
_
 ,_

, 1.7...; 
.
.
 	

-C
 
0

 E
 0

-  :=
 -.7

_
 

E
 
	

L.,) 
fp

 C
L

 
C

L
 4
,
  

	

0
 	

(A
  1

r3
 E

 
.■-• 

ru 
-47..,- +

-, 
0
 

M
 
z
ƒ v

, L
rs

 r- 0
 (1

., c
 v

i 
_

c
 E

 =
 I-

1
 E

 
1.12 .  :E

 
E

L! 0 
a) 

rt) 
 3

 2
 0

 

	

ct, .0 
to

 	
.t.) ,-,- 

	

0
 a

)
 u

 
5
 it 	

c
 

..... 
a

) -- 
C

L 
.4,
  4

.
.
,
 	

0
_

 -- 	
Z

 	
0

) 
rrs

 a
s
 
E

 	
-a

 	
>

 
C

r -0
 -0

 

	

CLJ 	
C

I. t. ' 
tu 

	

4
-cu  c

na-  0
 v

-) 41
) 	

<
 L

' 
c
c
 2

 g
 

t,-
 

a) 

2015 -  Northern  State  Campus  Design  Guidelines  Manual 

ro 
_c 

>
 	

C
L. 

C
  

4-- 	
:=

 	
a
 

(13  
>a

j  

— ›...  
	

0
 

C
 
L

 

0
 
a
 
0
 
0
 

7
 

ra  
 

>o
   E- 

0
  

c
  

C
 

8
- E

 U 	
`-) 

o
 E

 
o..  z

 
 0
 

e
L
 0

 
tts

 u
 
	
0
 4-  

 
0
 
 
 

0

0
 _

 p
 >

 

0 
>

 i 
3

 
Ct , 

a
) >

 
„,
›
 
	

a
)
 c

 
ct) 

'CI 
c(3  -

C
 

 
=

 
4
-  

0
 4

-,  
0

 C
 4

-
, 

4
-
.
 
u
 
4
-

,  0
3

 
C

 
,—

 
C

 W
 v

l 
0
 :'-

' 
c
 v

s
 v

s
 

.—
 

F,
 

 -g
 o

 E
P

_
 

a-. 
-0

 
1- fti 

 
 
2

 
1

 
D

 a
 

c
 _

c
 c

o
 tr) 

4-, 
_

 4
-,  
 

vs 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 253 of 351



a) 
a
 

ra 

-o
 

C
 

ro 

0
 

C
 

ro 

4
-,  

4
-,  

U.) 

0
 

:E
 

..c 

4
- 

ro 

-0
 

LI 
C
 

a) 

O
 

O
 

-o
 

4
-,  
C
 

cv 

T.) 

-C
 

O
 

8
 

Ui 
_c• -C

 
4
-,  

Z
-7  

7:} 

O
 
C
 

0
 

U
 

tn 
C

 
(1) 

a, 

V
1 

03 

_c 

C
 

O
 

ro 

_0 

1.12  
ro a

 

a
 

ro 
C
 

a)  

_c 
O
 

C
 

C
 

Zri 

7:3 

0
 

U
 

-C
 

4-,  
on 
C
 

C
 

 1C1-.1 

C
 

0
 

C
 

0
 

CD 
E 8
 

.c
 

.›
 

C
 

O
 

U
) 
C
 

 

.0
 

C
 

O
 

a) 
a) 

C
 

ro
 

a
)
 

O
 

O
 

cc 
ID

 

-C
 

C
 

C
 

O
 

ro 

8
 

4
- 

C
 

a) 
_c 

a, 
CC 
ra 
C

 
O
 

ro a
) 

-C
 

F
-
 

a-7 
C
 

U
1 

Lr1 
a) 

CO  C
 

0
 

a, 

ro 

_c 
4

-,  

-o
 

Q
J 

a) 
C
 

a)  

0
 

ID
 
C
 

O
 

4
-,  

ro 
C
 

O
 
z
 

4-, 
C

 
cv 
E

 
lJ 
0
 

-o
 

-o
 
C
 

O
 

0
) 

r
a
 

.0
 

>
, 

C
) 

O
 

3+- 

_c 

0
 

CC 

U
 

4-,
  

w
 

a
) _

c 

tr) 
▪
 

c
 

0
 

C
 

O
 

CD 
U
)
 

4_, 
u

l 
C

 -E
 

LE
 

• 
E

 

<
 

-C
 

2
 

-0
 

2
 

.c
 

E
 

rT
s o

 
-
 

O
 

a) 	
a.) 

.s:} 
C

 
ro

 c
c
 

u
 

C
 

aJ 
u

 
E

 

u
 

o
 

o
 <

 

0
 

0
  

_c 
c
u

 ro
 	

-0
 

-- 

z
-
0

 	
_C

 
0
 
>

.
 
0
 

CO 

-a
 

U
 U

i 	
4 E

, 3
1

2
r L

I
 

LI 

- 
f.  

C
 

0
 

aJ

• 

.__. 
r
o
 
r
o
 

C
 

0
 • 

O
 

40 
es4 

ro 	
a

., 
4
-,  

<
 

0
 

E
 

8
 

8
 

4
-,  

4
-,  

'1.11 
C
 
'
4
-
 0

 
0
 

a
C

M
  

"5-  
4
-,  
•
 

Z
 

0
) 

0
 

• 
Z

 
cm 

cc 

a) 
O
 

C
 
C
 

0
 

47-3 
373 
C
 

E
 

O
 

-0
 	

t..)
F

, 
6
3
 a

) 
a) 	

.c
 	

,_
. c- 

v
i 

 
r o

 	
o
 	

z
 
•
 - D

 
4
-,  

I

• 	

li W
 

-0
 

7
:3  C

 

>
. 1

  
C

Z
 4 ' )'  4

- ,
a)  

	
C

O
 0

 
ro 

-§-,  
1
:5

 _
c
 c

 
C

) 
 C

 
4 - •- ,..., 

a
  

=
 

o
 —

 
0
. 

C
 o

w
  
c
e

.
c
.
 

4
-, 0

 	
-C

 fly
 

Q
  
z °
  a

 u
)
 	

a.".
,, >

 
-cs 

ro 	
.- c

 .`-^
 
- 0

 
i.- 

C
V

 C
O

 0
 

a —
 cu 

E
u. c _. 

0
/
 
.
-
 
4
)
 
e
a
 
v
i
 

C
O

 c
 

' - -4
- ,  c

r
 

Ln 
D

 C
C

 	
a) 

O_ 
a
) 0

 7
, ra

 
1„.., LI. ,  $

2
 8

_
 

h_ 
z
  4
_

, 
C

 	
c
r) ., 

,_.- 
a
 	

ra 
 
r
a

 
0
 
-- 	

—
 

v, 
a1

D
 .i..--, 

- 0
 :

,-
. 
t
 

>
 	

n:3  
0
 

ro
 4

-• 
ra

 
 

• 
.,), 	

z
 A

s
 
m

 . c
 p

.3.1  
4 _

, ra
 a

.) ,_
 

CS) 
C

 	
-0

 	

. 

Q
J 	

w o
 , c

 0
) rz

- -  
a., c

r 	
0
 c

  .0
 

—
 

'''' +
., .. -Z

.
' 	

03 
E

 
75 

F
II ro

 
.D

 
0
)
  t-) IA

 
v-, 

C
 	

—
 c

 
>

 
a,
 

...-, 
0
  
-R

 .4
2
 C

ul  E
 2

 
_c 

a, 
, -.c

; o
 V

, 
U

 
L

i-, r., 
4-, 

in
 

ra
 w

 
0

 IT
S

 
CO 

"
"

'"
 "

 
<

 Z
 -

0
 
a

 E
 

.2
 0

 

-0
 

r
n
 

C
 

4E
.  
O
 

C
 

O
 
z
 

O
 

4
- 

C
 

Lri 
o

 
z
 
c
 

c
 5

 

ro 
C12. 
ro 
-0

 

ro 
U
 

4
-

▪  • 

U
i
 

C
 

Z15 
-C

 

0
 

O
 

LLJ 
00 

c
i 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 254 of 351



Figure  9.1.  Site  Key  Plan  

I  -  Northern  State  Campus  Design  Guidelines  Manual 

C
 

aJ 

c
n

 

C
 
>

 
GJ 

L1/4.1 

1
1
1
 C

 
-
C

 ON
 

 

1
.4

 0
_

 
CU 

E
 

1
0
 
0
 

ra
 -c

 
>

 

-2
 

-2
 

CS 

rra 
a) 

C
 

=
 . 

 r
n
 
—
 

ci 
z
 

-0
 

C
 

E
 

DJ 

U
 

1/4,1 
<

 

aJ 
C

 

cc 

_c 

E
 

r 
I
 

0 fb 

C
 

O
 

it 

-C
3 

C
) 

5
 

---.. 

0_ • 

6
 

Z
 

a
) 	

>1/4, 
-C

 
I—

 
-0

 

7
. 5

 
C

 
0

 _
_

I 
m

 m
 

0
_

 • 
• 

0
 

u
 
Z

 	
a
 r

a
 

U
 	

0
 

0
 	

v
i 

-C
  

-17  U
s

 N
 

▪  

E
 

• 
c
 c

o
 ▪  

E
 

aJ 
„= 	

I-73 
0
 

2
 2

:I 	
n_ 

h
 
6

1
 

'D
 1

.(1
 1

/4
0

 
tr

, 4
1
 V

D
 C

O
 •

 
N

. c
o

 
L

n 
1/40 

C
O

 C
O

 Q
S

 

	

P
1/4. O

N
 	

4 
 

r
-
 	

N
 	

m
4?- 

'4 ` 	
Fg

L in
 

tri 

•
 Le) 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 255 of 351



Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 256 of 351



EXHIBIT B 

PROCEDURES PERTAINING TO REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF PROPOSED 
ALTERATIONS WITHIN THE NORTHERN STATE HOSPITAL NATIONAL REGISTER 

DISTRICT 

Approved by the Commission by Resolution No._1, November 10, 2015 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 257 of 351



I. 	DEFINITIONS 

a. Project Proponent is the person proposing to perform alterations to extant 
structures and or landscaping, and or to conduct new development, within 
the District 

b. Architectural Review Committee is the Port of Skagit Commission 
c. Design Guidelines Manual is the Design Guidelines Manual for the Center 

for Innovation and Technology Northern State Hospital National Register 
Historic District as adopted by the Port of Skagit 

d. District is the Northern State Hospital National Register Historic District as 
designated by the US Secretary of the Interior 

e. Port is the Port of Skagit 

II. 	REVIEW PROCESS 

a. Project Proponent shall submit to the Port the materials listed below: 

i. A general project narrative that describes the proposed project 
information. Include an explanation of whether this project involves 
new construction and or alteration of existing structures and or 
landscaping, and an explanation of how the project conforms to the 
Design Guidelines Manual. If applicable, include: description of 
building materials, building square footage, parking design, 
landscaping plan, lighting and signage. 

ii. Four (4) copies of a site plan and or survey and elevation drawings of 
all structures reduced no larger than 11"x17". Copies must be legible 
and drawn to scale. 

The documents listed above shall be provided to the Port as one 
transmittal and may be submitted in person and or by mail to: 

Port of Skagit 
15400 Airport Drive 
Burlington, WA 98233 

b. Port staff shall review the Project Proponent's submittal for completeness and 
may request additional / supplemental information or clarifications that may 
be needed for the Architectural Review Committee to review the proposal. 
Staff shall have 20 days to review the submitted information to determine if 
it is complete. If a submittal is incomplete or supplemental information is 
necessary, staff will notify the Project Proponent and Project Proponent shall 
have up to 180 days to provide additional information. Once a submittal is 
determined to be complete, the proposal must be reviewed by the 
Architectural Review Committee within 60 days; provided, for good cause, 
the Port may extend this period by up to 60 additional days. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 258 of 351



c. Port staff will make a recommendation of approval, approval with 
conditions, or denial of the project to the Architectural Review Committee. 

d. Following review of a proposal during a Port Commission meeting, the 
Architectural Review Committee shall decide to approve, approve with 
conditions, or deny the proposal and a final decision letter will be issued to 
the Project Proponent. The Architectural Review Committee's decision shall 
be final and not subject to appeal in any forum. 

e. Once a final decision of approval or approval with conditions is issued, 
project proponent shall submit the letter of approval (which shall set forth 
any conditions of approval) to the City of Sedro-Woolley as part of its 
Planned Action Application submittal, or to Skagit County, if applicable. 

ENGAGEMENT OF DESIGN AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION CONSULTANTS 

a. The Architectural Review Committee may, at its sole discretion, engage 
professional design and historic preservation consultants or governmental 
entities to provide recommendations regarding conformance of a proposal 
with the Design Guidelines Manual. 

b. Should the Architectural Review Committee engage professional design and 
historic preservation consultants be engaged by the Port, the project 
applicant shall be invoiced for the consultant fees. The Port will provide the 
Project Proponent an estimate of the anticipated fees which shall be 
deposited with the Port in full before review continues. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 259 of 351



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

DEC 0 9 2015 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL FIAMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

Building and Planning Departments 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

MEMO: 

To: 	City Council 
Mayor Anderson 

From: 	Jana Hanson 
Planning Consultant 

21% 
READING 

OLD 
BUSINESS 

Date: 	December 9, 2015 

Subject: Proposed Amendments to Chapter 17.32 SWMC, Public Zone - Second Read 

ISSUE 

The proposed amendments to Chapter 17.32 are necessary to accomplish the processing of 
planned action projects approved through the adopted Planned Action Ordinance for the Center of 
Innovation and Technology. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION / HISTORY 

The City, the Port of Skagit and Skagit County have successfully completed a robust planning 
process for the Center for Innovation and Technology (The Center), which will result in the adoption 
of a Subarea Plan and Planned Action Ordinance. The plans and uses envisioned for the site 
include research & development facilities, manufacturing, hospitality and general commercial uses. 

In order to support future redevelopment activities, a Planned Action Environmental Impact 
Statement was utilized in accordance with RCW 43.210.440 and WAC 197-11-164 the purpose of 
which is to emphasize quality environmental review of early planning efforts and early public input to 
shape decisions. The basic steps in designating planned action projects are to prepare an 
environmental impact statement (EIS), designate the planned action projects by ordinance, and 
review permit applications for consistency with the designated planned action. The intent is to 
provide more detailed environmental analysis during formulation of planning proposals, rather than 
at the project permit review stage. The Planned Action Ordinance is expected to encourage 
redevelopment and revitalization at the Center and property owners and potential investors will be 
encouraged by the streamlined development process that takes place under the Planned Action. 

The Planned Action Area is currently zoned Public. The proposed code amendment references the 
approved Planned Action ordinance which in turn lists the uses for proposed projects within the 
Planned Action area. 

Staff recommends amending the Municipal Code as proposed. Future code amendments will be 
proposed to the Landscaping, Sign and Design Standards chapters in Title 17 and Title 15 that will 
reflect the approved Planned Action Ordinance. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 260 of 351



The proposed amendment is supported by and implements the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan, 
Economic Element: 

Goal El: To develop a sound fiscal base. 

Policy E1.1:  Create employment opportunities within the Sedro-Woolley economy, particularly for 
residents who now commute to other distant employment areas. 

Policy E1.2:  Participate with other public agencies and private interests in labor force training 
programs that take advantage of traditional resources. 

Policy E1.3:  Identify and promote sites which can be developed for a variety of local employment 
projects. Promote development of business and industrial parks, office and professional centers, and 
specialized commercial and entertainment centers. 

Council reviewed the attached materials at their meeting on December 2, 2015. 
Staff recommends amending the Municipal Code as proposed. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment 1 — Proposed Ordinance No. 	regarding amendments to Chapter 17.32 SWMC 
Attachment 2 — Planning Commission Findings and Recommendation and Procedural Items 

REQUESTED ACTION  

Council is requested to make the following motion: 
Motion to approve Ordinance No. 	approving amendments to Chapter 17.32 SWMC 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 261 of 351



Attachment 1 
Proposed Ordinance Relating to Amendments to 

Chapter 17.32 SWMC 
Public Zone 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 262 of 351



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON, 
RELATING TO AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 17.32-PUBLIC ZONE, OF THE SWMC 

REFERENCING PLANNED ACTION ORDINANCE NO. 	 

WHEREAS, the requisite public hearing before the Planning Commission on November 17, 
2015 and before the City Council on December 9, 2015 were preceded with appropriate notice, 
published on November 6, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, amendments to SWMC Chapter 17.32 are substantive and require review under the 
State Environmental Act (SEPA). A Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) was issued on 
October 22, 2015 determining that proposed amendments do not have a significant 
environmental impact; and 

WHEREAS, the City, the Port of Skagit and Skagit County have successfully completed a 
robust planning process for the Center for Technology and Innovation in the Pacific Northwest 
(the Center), resulting in the adoption of a Subarea Plan and Planned Action Ordinance. The 
plans and uses envisioned for the site include research & development facilities, manufacturing, 
hospitality and general commercial uses; and 

WHEREAS, in order to support future redevelopment activities at the Center, a Planned Action 
Environmental Impact Statement was utilized. A Planned Action Environmental Impact 
Statement in accordance with RCW 43.21.C.031(2) and WAC 197-11-164 the purpose of which 
is to emphasize quality environmental review of early planning efforts and early public input to 
shape decisions. The basic steps in designating planned action projects are to prepare an 
environmental impact statement (EIS), designate the planned action projects by ordinance, and 
review permit applications for consistency with the designated planned action. The intent is to 
provide more detailed environmental analysis during formulation of planning proposals, rather 
than at the project permit review stage. The Planned Action Ordinance is expected to encourage 
redevelopment and revitalization at the Center and property owners and potential investors will 
be encouraged by the streamlined development process that takes place under the Planned 
Action; and 

WHEREAS, the Planned Action Ordinance No. 	 specifically lists permitted uses and 
outlines conditions for development at the Center, including building and site plan design, 
landscaping, parking and internal signage requirements; and 

WHEREAS, the Center is located on property that is zoned Public (P). The P zone currently 
provides flexibility under section 17.32.010 B "Conditional Uses" allowing all uses not allowed 
under section 17.32.010 A "Permitted Uses". Section 17.32.010 A has been modified to 
reference permitted uses per Planned Action Ordinance No.  and to specify that property 
must be publicly owned, and similar language is added to section 17.32.010 B; and 

WHEREAS, The City utilized the State Attorney General Advisory Memorandum: Avoiding 
Unconstitutional Takings of Private Property for evaluating constitutional issues, in conjunction 

Ordinance No. 
Page 1 of 4 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 263 of 351



with and to inform its review of the Ordinance. The City has utilized the process, a process 
protected under Attorney-Client privilege pursuant to law including RCW 36.70A.370(4), with 
the City Attorney's Office which has reviewed the Advisory Memorandum has discussed this 
Memorandum, including the "warning signals' identified in the Memorandum, with decisions 
makers, and conducted an evaluation of all constitutional provisions potentially at issue and 
advised of the genuine legal risks, if any, with the adoption of this Ordinance to assure that the 
proposed regulatory or administrative actions did not result in an unconstitutional taking of 
private property, consistent with RCW 36.70A.370(2). 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON, 
DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  Recitals. The City Council adopts and incorporates the foregoing recitals as 
findings as if set forth fully herein. 

SECTION 2.  The City Council makes the following findings: 

A. The proposed amendments are procedural. 
B. The proposed ordinance and amendments herein are necessary to address consistency 

with Planned Action Ordinance No. 	 
C. Planned Action, as defined in WAC 197-11-164, will enable early environmental review 

of complex phased projects in accordance with RCW 43.21.C.031 (2) and WAC 197-11-
164. 

D. The proposed amendments are supported by and implement the Sedro-Woolley 
Comprehensive Plan, Economic Element. 

E. Amendments to SWMC Chapter 17.32 were reviewed under SEPA and a Determination 
of Non-Significance was issued on October 22, 2015. 

F. The proposed ordinance is in the best interest of City of Sedro-Woolley citizens and 
promotes the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City of Sedro-Woolley. 

G. The proposed ordinance has been disseminated and opportunities have been provided for 
written comments and public hearing after effective notice. 

SECTION 3.  That Chapter 17.32 of the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code is hereby amended as 
follows: 

17.32.010 Use restrictions. 

Use restrictions in the public zone shall be as follows: 

A. Permitted Uses on publicly owned properties. 

1. Public uses. Allows parks, schools, public infrastructure and other developments 
intended for primarily public use; 

Ordinance No. 
Page 2 of 4 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 264 of 351



2. Quasi-public uses. Allows parks, schools, public infrastructure and other developments 
intended primarily for quasi-public use; 

3. Low-intensity agriculture; 

4. Recreational uses; 

5. Institutional residential uses related to the above uses. 

6. Uses as outlined and described in the Center for Innovation and Technology Subarea 
Plan and Planned Action Ordinance No. and or adopted amendments.  

Proposed uses in the public zone must conform to Chapters 17.65 (Natural Resource and 
Sensitive Areas Regulations), 17.66 (Floodplain Management) and 2.88 (Environmental 
Policy), as applicable. 

B. Conditional 	uses: 	All 	uses 	not 	permitted 	above. 
The following uses may be allowed when located on publicly owned property:  
1. All uses not permitted under section A above.  

C. Prohibited uses: adult entertainment establishments. (Ord. 1312-98 § 1 (part), 1998: 
Ord. 1309-98 § 8, 1998: Ord. 1013 § 2.07.01, 1985) 

17.32.020 Bulk restrictions. 

Bulk restrictions in the public (P) zone shall be as follows: 

A. Minimum setbacks: none; 

B. Maximum building height: sixty feet. (Ord. 1677-10 § 1 (part), 2010; Ord. 1312-98 § 1 
(part), 1998: Ord. 1013 § 2.07.02, 1985) 

17.32.030 Minimum lot size requirements. 

Minimum lot size requirements in the public (P) zone shall be as follows: 

A. Lot area: none; 

B. Lot width at building line: none; 

C. Lot frontage on a public street: twenty feet. (Ord. 1312-98 § 1 (part), 1998: Ord. 1013 
§ 2.07.03, 1985) 

(EXHIBIT A). 

SECTION 4. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, chapter, provision, or 
phrase of this ordinance or its application to any person or circumstance is found to be 

Ordinance No. 
Page 3 of 4 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 265 of 351



unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the 
validity of the remainder of the ordinance, chapter, or the application or the provisions to other 
persons or circumstances. 

SECTION 5.  Effective Date. This ordinance or a summary thereof shall be published in the 
official newspaper of the City, and shall take effect and be in full force five days after passage 
and publication as provided by law. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this day of . 

Mike Anderson, Mayor 

PATSY NELSON, Finance Director 

Approved as to form: 

ERON BERG, City Attorney 

Ordinance No. 
Page 4 of 4 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 266 of 351



Proposed amendments to the Public Zone 

Chapter 17.32 
PUBLIC (P) ZONE 

Sections: 

17.32.010 Use restrictions. 

17.32.020 Bulk restrictions. 

17.32.030 Minimum lot size requirements. 

17.32.010 Use restrictions. 

Use restrictions in the public zone shall be as follows: 

A. Permitted Uses on publicly owned properties. 

1. Public uses. Allows parks, schools, public infrastructure and other developments intended 

for primarily public use; 

2. Quasi-public uses. Allows parks, schools, public infrastructure and other developments 

intended primarily for quasi-public use; 

3. Low-intensity agriculture; 

4. Recreational uses; 

5. Institutional residential uses related to the above uses. 

6. Uses as outlined and described in the Center for Innovation and Technology Subarea Plan 

and Planned Action Ordinance No. and or adopted amendments. 

Proposed uses in the public zone must conform to Chapters 17.65 (Natural Resource and Sensitive Areas 

Regulations), 17.66 (Floodplain Management) and 2.88 (Environmental Policy), as applicable. 

B. Conditional uses: All-uses-net-peFmitted-abeve. 

The following uses may be allowed when located on publicly owned property: 

1. All uses not permitted under section A above.  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 267 of 351



Attachment 2 

Planning Commission Findings and Recommendation 

Procedural Items 
Notice of Public Hearing and Department of Commerce Materials 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 268 of 351



oleman, Planning Director 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
325 Metcalf Street 

Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 
Phone (360) 855-0771 

Fax (360) 855-0733 

TRANSMITTAL & REPORT MEMORANDUM 

DATE: 	November 17, 2015 

TO: 	 Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission 

REGARDING 
	

Proposed Amendments to Chapter 17.32 Public Zone, of the Sedro- 
Woolley Municipal Code 

FROM: 

The following amendments are proposed and submitted by the Planning Department. This 
report serves as the staff report for the proposed amendments to the City's development 
regulations and was submitted in accordance with Chapter 2.90 SWMC. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

PROPOSAL 

Proposed are amendments to the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code (SWMC) Chapter17.32 -
Public Zone. 

Please see the attached code section, labeled as Exhibit A, formatted in a tracking 
program, so that the proposed changes to the code are easily identifiable. 

BACKGROUND 

The City, the Port of Skagit and Skagit County have successfully completed a robust 
planning process for the Center for Innovation and Technology (The Center), which will 
result in the adoption of a Subarea Plan and Planned Action Ordinance. The plans and uses 
envisioned for the site include research & development facilities, manufacturing, 
hospitality and general commercial uses. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 269 of 351



In order to support future redevelopment activities, a Planned Action Environmental 
Impact Statement was utilized in accordance with RCW 43.21C.440 and WAC 197-11-
164. The purpose of a planned action environmental impact statement is to emphasize 
quality environmental review of early planning efforts and early public input to shape 
decisions. The basic steps in designating planned action projects are to prepare an 
environmental impact statement (EIS), designate the planned action projects by ordinance, 
and review permit applications for consistency with the designated planned action. The 
intent is to provide more detailed environmental analysis during formulation of planning 
proposals, rather than at the project permit review stage. The Planned Action Ordinance is 
expected to encourage redevelopment and revitalization at The Center and property owners 
and potential investors will be encouraged by the streamlined development process that 
takes place under the Planned Action. 

The Planned Action EIS studied elements of the human and physical environment and 
identified impacts and assigned specific mitigation measures to address those impacts. The 
mitigation measures were incorporated into development conditions along with elements 
from the adopted Subarea Plan. These conditions are outlined in the Planned Action 
Ordinance that is under review and consideration with the Planning Commission and then 
for final review and action before the City Council. This level of study and detail will 
facilitate proposed development and will provide developers with the information that will 
be required to qualify as a Planned Action project. 

The Planned Action area is currently zoned Public. The proposed code amendment 
references the approved Planned Action ordinance which in turn lists the permitted uses 
within the Planned Action area. 

Staff recommends amending the Municipal Code as proposed. Future code amendments 
will be proposed to the Landscaping, Sign, Parking and Design Standards chapters in Title 
17 and 15 that will reflect the approved Planned Action Ordinance. 

The proposed amendment is supported by and implements the Sedro-Woolley 
Comprehensive Plan, Economic Element: 

Goal El: To develop a sound fiscal base. 

Policy E1.1:  Create employment opportunities within the Sedro-Woolley economy, 
particularly for residents who now commute to other distant employment areas. 

Policy E1.2:  Participate with other public agencies and private interests in labor force 
training programs that take advantage of traditional resources. 

Code Amendments — Chapters 17,32 SWMC 
City of Sedro-Woolley 

Page 2 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 270 of 351



Policy E1.3:  Identify and promote sites which can be developed for a variety of local 
employment projects. Promote development of business and industrial parks, office and 
professional centers, and specialized commercial and entertainment centers. 

This proposed amendment also supports the newly amended Land Use Element, The 
Center for Innovation and Technology — Subarea Plan 

PROPOSAL REVIEW PROCESS 

• A SEPA threshold Determination of Non-Significance was issued on October 22, 
2015. 

• Public Notice of the Planning Commission Hearing was published in the Skagit 
Valley Herald on November 6, 2015. 

• The State Department of Commerce (COMM) was notified of the proposed 
amendments on June 1, 2015, an acknowledgment letter of the receipt of that notice 
was received June 3, 2015 (COMM material ID #21320). Expedited review of the 
proposed amendments was granted via email on June 18, 2015. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff Recommends that the Planning Commission review the proposed amendments to 
Chapter 17.32 (Public Zone), hold a public hearing and make a recommendation to the City 
Council to adopt the amendments (with PC recommended amendments if applicable). 

EXHIBITS: 

A. Chapter 17.32 Proposed Code Amendments Formatted in Tracking Program 
B. Ordinance amending Chapter 17.32 
C. Procedural Items: Notice of Public Hearing, and Commerce materials 

Code Amendments — Chapters 1732 SWMC 
City of Sedro-Woolley 

Page 3 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 271 of 351



The City of Sedro-Woolley Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City COuncil 
APPROVAL of amendments to Chapter 17.32 SWMC to reference the adopted Planned Action 
Ordinance, at a REGULAR meetingof the City of Sedro-Woolley Planning coniplisOon held 
on Tuesday, November 41, 2015,  at which time a quorunilkas present and the deCistOn*gfor 
approval by a vote of 	, AGAINST, and _,Ap..-00$144-  --62#6.-  6 

CONCLUSIONS 

The Planning Commission, having reviewed the Planning Department Transmittal and 
Report Memorandum and hearing public testimony, makes the following conclusions: 

1. Adoption of the proposed amendments to Chapter 17.32 of the SWMC comply with 
the State GMA, have been approved by the State Department of Commerce, and 
have been adequately vetted through the public review process; and 

2. Adoption of the proposed amendments to Chapter 17.32 of the SWMC are in 
conformance with the goals and policies of the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive 
Plan. 

DECISION 

Based upon the foregoing, the Planning Commission recommends approval of amendments 
to Chapters 17.32 of the SWMC, found herein as Exhibit A and Exhibit B. 

CERTIFICATION 

Patrick Huggins, P anni (oin-mission Chair 	Date 

Code Amendments — Chapters 17.32 SWMC 
City of Sedro-Woolley 

Page 4 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 272 of 351



John Coleman 

From: 	 COM GMU Review Team <reviewteam@commerce.wa.gov> 
Sent: 	 Thursday, June 18, 2015 7:16 AM 
To: 	 John Coleman 
Cc: 	 Andersen, Dave (COM) 
Subject: 	 21320, City of Sedro-Woolley, Expedited Review Granted, DevRegs 

Dear Mr. Coleman: 

The City of Sedro-Woolley has been granted expedited review for the: Proposed amendment 
to Chapters 15.44, 16.28, 17.32, 17.36, 17.40, and 17.50. Proposed changes will reflect 
projects reviewed under a Planned Action ordinance and provide consistency with other 
chapters within the SWMC. This proposal was submitted for the required state agency 
review under RCW 36.70A.106. 

As of receipt of this email, the City of Sedro-Woolley has met the Growth Management Act 
notice to state agency requirements in RCW 36.70A.106 for this submittal. For the purpose 
of documentation, please keep this email as confirmation. 

If you have any questions, please contact reviewteam@commerce.wa.gov  

Thank you. 

Review Team, Growth Management Services 
Department of Commerce 
P.O. Box 42525 
Olympia WA 98504-2525 

1 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 273 of 351



eman, Planning Director 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
NOTICE OF SEPA THRESHOLD DETERMINATION OF 

NON-SIGNIFICANCE (DNS) 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Non-project action to amend Title 17 of the SWMC to clarify 
allowed and conditional uses in the Public zone. 

Proponent: City of Sedro-Woolley 
	Project Contact: 	Sedro-Woolley Planning Dept. 

325 Metcalf Street 
	

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

	
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Location of project, including street address if any: Non-project action, no specific address. 

Lead Agency: City of Sedro-Woolley 

The lead agency for this proposal has determined that it does not have a probable significant 
adverse impact on the environment. An environmental impact statement (EIS) is not required under 
RCW 43.21C.030(2)(c). This decision was made after review of a completed environmental 
checklist and other information on file with the lead agency. This information is available to the 
public on request. 

This DNS is issued under WAC 197-11-340(2); the lead agency will not act on this proposal for 14 
days from the date of issue. 

Responsible SEPA Official: Planning Director — City of Sedro-Woolley 
SEPA Contact Person: John Coleman, Planning Director 
Address: 325 Metcalf, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Date of Issue: Tuesday, October 27, 2015 
Date of publication: Tuesday, October 27, 2015 in the Skagit Valley Herald 

Per SWMC 2.88.170, you may appeal this threshold determination in writing to the City of Sedro-
Woolley Planning Department no later than 4:30PM on Tuesday, November 10, 2015.  Written 
appeals must be submitted, along with the required fee, to the City of Sedro-Woolley Planning 
Department, 325 Metcalf Street, Sedro-Woolley, Washington, 98284. Phone (360) 855-0771. 
Contact the Planning Department to read or ask about the procedures for SEPA appeals. 

Signature: 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 274 of 351



SKAGIT PUBLISHING 
C/O ISJ PAYMENT PROCESSING CENTER 

PO BOX 1570 
POCATELLO ID 83204-1570 

(360)424-3251 

ORDER CONFIRMATION 

Salesperson: Jeanette Kales 
	

Printed at 11/03/15 09:01 by jka30 

Acct #: 228136 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY PUBLIC WORKS 
325 METCALF ST 
SEDRO WOOLLEY WA 98284 

Ad #: 1374040 	Status: N 

Start: 11/06/2015 	Stop: 11/06/2015 
Times Ord: 1 	Times Run: *** 
STDS 1.00 X 8.05 Words: 206 
Total STDS 8.50 
Class: 0001 LEGAL NOTICES 
Rate: LACR 	 Cost: 89.68 
# Affidavits: 1 

Contact: 	 Ad Descrpt: SVH-1374040 
Phone: 	(360)855-0771 	 Given by: * 
Fax#: 	 Created: 	jka30 11/03/15 08:53 
Email: 	jcoleman@ci.sedro-woolley.wa Last Changed: jka30 11/03/15 09:01 
Agency: 

PUB ZONE ED TP START INS STOP SMTWTFS 
SVH A 	97 S 11/06 
WEB A 	97 S 11/06 

AUTHORIZATION 

Under this agreement rates are subject to change with 30 days notice. In the 
event of a cancellation before schedule completion, I understand that the 
rate charged will be based upon the rate for the number of insertions used. 

Name (print or type) Name (signature) 

(CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE) 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 275 of 351



SKAGIT PUBLISHING 
C/O ISJ PAYMENT PROCESSING CENTER 

PO BOX 1570 
POCATELLO ID 83204-1570 

(360) 424-3251 

ORDER CONFIRMATION (CONTINUED) 

Salesperson: Jeanette Kales 	 Printed at 11/03/15 09:01 by jka30 

Acct #: 228136 

NOTICE OF 
PUBLIC HEARING 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
The Center for Innovation 
and Technology Subarea 

Plan, Planned Action 
Ordinance and 
Amendments to 

Chapter 17.32 (Public Zone) 
of the Sedro-Woolley 

Municipal Code 

The City of Sedro-Woolley 
Planning Commission will 
hold a public hearing on 
November 17, 2015 at 6:30 
PM, at the Sedro-Woolley 
Council Chambers located at 
325 Metcalf Street, to hear 
testimony regarding the Sub-
area Plan (amendment to the 
City's Comprehensive Plan) 
and Planned Action Ordi-
nance for the Center for Inno-
vation and Technology (for-
mally known as the Northern 
State Campus). Additionally, 
the Planning Commission will 
hold a public hearing on pro-
posed amendments to Se-
dro-Woolley Municipal Code 
Chapter 17.32 Public Zone. 

Interested parties can com-
ment on the proposed 
changes in writing or at the 
hearing. Written comments 
must be received by 4:30 
PM November 17, 2015 to 
be considered at this public 
hearing. 

Following the public hearing 
the Planning Commission's 
recommendation will be for-
warded to the City Council 
for consideration and action 
at a future Council meeting. 

Send written comments to: 
Sedro-Woolley Planning De-
partment, 325 Metcalf Street, 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284. 
Complete project files are 
available for review at the 
Planning Department be- 

. tween the hours of 8:00 AM 
to 5:00 PM, Monday through 
Friday. 

Published 
November 6, 2015 

SVH-1374040 

Ad #: 1374040 	Status: N 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 276 of 351



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

DEC 0 9 2015 

7:00 EM. COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA NO 	  

Planning Department 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

MEMO: 

To: Sedro-Woolley City Council 
Mayor Anderson 

2ND READING 
OLD BUSINESS 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

John Coleman, AICP 
Planning Director 

December 9, 2015 

Preliminary approval of the Plat of Sauk Mountain View Estates North V — A Planned 
Residential Development (file #LP-2014-094) — Second Read 

ISSUE 

Should the Council grant preliminary plat approval for the Plat of Sauk Mountain View Estates V — A 
Planned Residential Development? 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION / HISTORY 

Please find the attached Hearing Examiner's Findings of Fact, Conclusions & Decision for a 
complete history of the application and the completed review process. 

EXHIBITS  

Resolution 	-15 to approve the preliminary plat of Plat of Sauk Mountain View Estates V — A 
Planned Residential Development subject to the conditions contained in the Hearing Examiner's 
Findings of Fact, Conclusions & Decision. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Make motion to grant preliminary plat approval for the Plat of Sauk Mountain View Estates V — A 
Planned Residential Development subject to the conditions contained in the Hearing Examiner's 
Findings of Fact, Conclusions & Decision. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 277 of 351



RESOLUTION NO. 	 -15 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING PRELIMINARY APPROVAL FOR THE "PLAT OF 
SAUK MOUNTAIN VIEW ESTATES NORTH PHASE V — A PLANNED RESIDENTIAL 

DEVELOPMENT," A 28-LOT SUBDIVISION AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR 
AND HIS DESIGNEE(S) TO SIGN ALL PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL 

DOCUMENTS 

WHEREAS, T. Jones Inc. and Dukes Hill LLC, property owners of tracts A, B, C-1, C-2, C-3 
and P-4 of previously platted SMVEN-4, has applied for a 28-lot planned residential 
development (subdivision) that also includes an alteration to lots 36, 37, 58, and 42 - 45 of 
SMVEN-4 for play area and utility easement improvements; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Sedro-Woolley Planning and Public Works staff reviewed the proposed 
preliminary plat and determined the preliminary plat has met the requirements of SWMC 
chapters 15, 16 and 17; and 

WHEREAS, the Sedro-Woolley Hearing Examiner held an open record public hearing for the 
planned residential development (subdivision) application on Tuesday, October 20, 2015 and 
public testimony was received and considered; and 

WHEREAS, the Hearing Examiner determined that the application was technically compliant 
with SWMC Ch. 16.08 and recommended to the City Council that the proposed preliminary plat 
of Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase V — A Planned Residential Development be 
approved subject to conditions. The Hearing Examiner's Findings, Conclusions and Decision 
(and its exhibits) is attached hereto as Attachment A. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Sedro-Woolley, 
Washington adopts the attached Findings, Conclusions and Decision of the Hearing Examiner; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council finds that preliminary plat application 
#LP-2104-094, the Preliminary Plat of Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase V — A Planned 
Residential Development, meets the requirements of SWMC 16.08 and should be given 
preliminary plat approval, subject to conditions stated in the Findings, Conclusions and Decision 
of the Hearing Examiner. 

Mike Anderson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 	 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Patsy Nelson, City Clerk/Treasurer 	Eron Berg, City Attorney 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 278 of 351



Resolution 	-15 

Attachment A 
Findings, Conclusions and Decision of the Hearing Examiner 

including Exhibit a (i-x) and Exhibit b 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 279 of 351



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND DECISION in the matter of 
Preliminary Plat Approval for Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase V Planned 
Residential Development 

HEARING DATE: 	 October 20, 2015 

DECISION DATE 	 November 4, 2015 

DECISION SUMMARY: 	The hearing examiner recommends approval with 
conditions. 

PROPERTY OWNER: 	T. Jones, Inc. 
2715 First Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98121 

Dukes Hill, LLC. 
103 N. Township Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

PROPERTY 	 P131113, P131114, P131115, P131117, P131119, P131081, 
IDENTIFICATION: 	 P131082 & P131103 

CURRENT ZONING: 
	

Residential 5 (R-5) 

Minimum lot size: 8,400 sqft Lot width at building line: 40 feet 
Front Setback: 20 feet Lot width at road frontage: 20 feet 
Rear Setback: 10 feet Maximum building height: 35 feet 

Side Setback: 
5 feet for 1-story buildings, 
8 feet for 2-story 

Maximum building 
coverage: 

35% 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

This matter came before the hearing examiner for public hearing and recommendation on the 
application by the property owner for a Planned Residential Development. 

In addition to the Sedro-Wooley Municipal Code and Comprehensive Plan, those documents 
identified herein as exhibits were considered by the hearing examiner. 

The hearing examiner makes the following Findings of Fact based upon consideration of the 
exhibits admitted herein, and evidence presented at the public hearing. To the extent that . 

NOV - 6  2015 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 280 of 351



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND DECISION in the matter of Preliminary 
Plat Approval for Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase V Planned Residential Development, 
page 2 

any finding of fact is more properly characterized as a conclusion of law, the hearing 
examiner adopts it as such: 

1. Introduction. A public hearing before the Sedro-Woolley hearing examiner was held 
on October 20, 2015. 

2. Testimony. In addition to the presentation by staff and the appellant at the public 
hearing, testimony was received from: 

a. Rob Janicki, representing Dukes Hill, LLC; 
b. Lin Haldeman III; and 
c. Matt Howry, Secretary, Sauk Mountain View Estates South Homeowner's 

Association. 

At the conclusion of the hearing, the hearing examiner left the record open until October 
26, 2015 to receive additional comment solely on applicable open space calculations, 
which comments were received by the examiner on October 22, 2015. 

3. Exhibits. All exhibits submitted were admitted without objection. Exhibits include the 
following:' 

a. Transmittal and Report Memorandum, which includes the following documents: 

i. Preliminary Plat Application and PRD Checklist forms; 
ii. Revised Open Space and density calculations date-stamped August 17 and 

19, 2015; 
iii. Landscape Plan Sheets 1 & 2 date-stamped September 21, 2015; 
iv. SEPA checklist; 
v. Written comment(s) on SEPA Checklist 

vi. Notice of Application and SEPA Comment Period issued August 13, 
2014; 

vii. Written comment(s) on Notice of Application and SEPA Comment 
Period; 

viii. Mitigated Determination of Non-Significance (MDNS) issued October 
23, 2014; and 

ix. Notice of Public Hearing published October 9, 2015; and 
x. Proposed Plat Map date stamped September 21, 2015. 

b. Letter dated October 19, 2015 from Matt Howry, Secretary, Sauk Mountain View 
Estates South Homeowners Association. 

' Exhibits marked A, B, C, and D were submitted with the staff report, and consist of sections of the Sedro-
Wooley Municipal Code. The hearing examiner has considered all relevant portions of the municipal code, and 
construes these documents to be submitted for the convenience of the hearing examiner, but does not construe 
them to be exhibits for the purposes of the record. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 281 of 351



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND DECISION in the matter of Preliminary 
Plat Approval for Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase V Planned Residential Development, 
page 3 

4. Proposal. The proposal before the hearings examiner is a Planned Residential 
Development (PRD) involving Tracts A, B, C-1, C-2, C-3 and Lots 36, 37 and 58 of 
the previously completed PRD of Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase IV 
(SMVEN — 4). The properties are being subdivided through the PRD provisions set 
forth in Chapter 17.43 SWMC (hereinafter, the "Proposal"). The name of the proposed 
subdivision is Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase V — A Planned Residential 
Development (SMVEN — 5). The proposal is to subdivide five tracts identified as and 
reserved for "future development" in SMVEN — 4, into 28 buildable lots. In addition, 
one residential lot from SMVEN — 4 will be converted into a residential play area to be 
owned and maintained by a homeowners association, and an easement is proposed 
across two other existing residential lots to grant secondary access to the new play 
area. The two residential lots affected by the easement will still be buildable. 

5. Infrastructure. The infrastructure for the proposed development was completed 
pursuant to the City's approval of earlier phases of the Sauk Mountain View Estates 
development. The stormwater system was designed to accommodate the proposed 
development, although minor modifications in the nature of altering a bioswale must 
be accomplished. See, Exhibit i, Narrative for Sauk Mountain View Estates Ph V.2  
The water and sanitary sewer systems were similarly designed and constructed 
pursuant to the City's approval of earlier phases of the Sauk Mountain View Estates 
development to accommodate the proposed development. Id. Utilities were stubbed 
out under earlier phases of the development. 

6. Area. The undeveloped tracts combined are approximately 4.45 acres. 

7. Zoning. The Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Code designation for the property 
included in the Proposal is Residential 5 (R-5). Chapter 17.08 SWMC includes the 
regulations for the R-5 zone. In this zone, single-family housing is allowed on 8,400 
square-foot or larger lots. 

8. Application. On May 29, 2014, a representative for the Property Owners submitted to 
the City a Preliminary Plat Application form accompanied by a Planned Residential 
Development Checklist (Exhibit i) for a twenty-eight-lot subdivision for the Proposal. 

9. Property Identification. The property subject to the Proposal included Skagit County 
Assessor's tax parcel Nos. P131113, P131114, P131115, P131117, P131119, P131081, 
P131082 & P131103. 

10. Pre-App. A pre-application meeting for the Proposal was held per SWMC 2.90. 
070(G)(2) on April 10, 2013, file #2013-043. 

2  The narrative states that the bioswale work would be completed in the summer of 2014. The record does not 
indicate if this work has already been accomplished. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 282 of 351



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND DECISION in the matter of Preliminary 
Plat Approval for Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase V Planned Residential Development, 
page 4 

11. Application Complete. The application was determined to be administratively 
complete by staff on August 8, 2014. 

12. SEPA. Long plats are subject to SEPA review pursuant to Chapter 2.88 SWMC, and 
require a SEPA checklist to be submitted along with the application. The SEPA 
checklist for this proposal is included as Exhibit iv. The SEPA checklist is sent to all 
state and local agencies with an interest in development in the City. One comment was 
received from the state Department of Ecology (Exhibit v). 

13. Notice of Application. A Notice of Application and SEPA Comment Period was 
issued by the SEPA lead agency, the City of Sedro-Woolley, on August 13, 2014 
(Exhibit vi). Notice was published in the local newspaper, posted at the project site and 
mailed to the property owners and residents within 500 feet of the subject parcel. The 
notice required a two week comment period ending August 26, 2014. One written 
comment was received (Exhibit vii). 

14. Notice of Public Hearing. On October 8, 2015, in compliance with Chapters 16.04, 
16.08 and 2.90 SWMC, Notice of Public Hearing (Exhibit ix) for the public hearing on 
the Preliminary Plat proposal was sent to the property owners and residents within 500 
feet of the subject parcels and posted on the project site. On October 9, 2015 the 
Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Skagit Valley Herald. 

15. SEPA. On October 10, 2014, the SEPA lead agency issued a Mitigated Determination 
of Non-Significance (MDNS) for the proposed Plat of SMVEN 5 (Exhibit viii). The 
MDNS included a 14 day appeal period that ended on October 23, 2014. No appeals 
were received. 

16. Critical Areas. The subject property was reviewed for compliance under the Sedro-
Woolley Critical Areas Ordinance as codified under Title 17.65 and no critical areas 
were identified that would be impacted. 

17. Transportation. The Proposal is situated on East Gateway Heights, West Gateway 
Heights and Gateway Heights Place. Each of these streets is classified as a local access 
street in the Transportation Element of the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan. 
Public transportation is available at the intersection of Portobello and Fruitdale. 

18. Adjacent properties. All of the properties adjacent to the Proposal are zoned R-5 
except the properties north of the plat limits which are outside of city limits and are 
zoned Rural Reserve under Skagit County's Code. 

19. Open Space. The open space calculations used for SMVEN-5 are born out of the 
calculations for the previous subdivisions at SMVEN. The previous calculations were 
intended to include the additional 28 lots of SMVEN-5. The open space dedicated as 
part of the SMVE North Phases 1-5 meets the open space dedication requirements. No 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 283 of 351



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND DECISION in the matter of Preliminary 
Plat Approval for Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase V Planned Residential Development, 
page 5 

future subdivisions may claim open space credits for land dedicated as open space as 
part of the subdivision process for SMVE North or South. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact, the hearing examiner makes the following 
conclusions of law. 

1. Subdivision Review Criteria. Subdivisions of land into five or more properties are 
classified as "subdivisions" (also frequently referred to as "long plats"). Subdivision 
applications are reviewed under the Subdivision Act, Chapter 58.17 RCW, and a local 
government's implementing ordinances. Sedro-Woolly's implementing ordinances are 
primarily codified at Chapters 16.08 and 17.43 SWMC. 

2. Subdivision Review Process. In accordance with 2.90.070(G)(1) SWMC, preliminary 
approval for a subdivision is a Type IV decision by the City Council following an open 
record hearing and recommendation by the hearing examiner. Long Plats may also be 
performed under the separate, but complimentary, regulations for Planned Residential 
Developments in Chapter 17.43 SWMC, and are also a Type IV decision by the City 
Council following an open record hearing and recommendation by the hearing examiner 
in accordance with SWMC 2.90.070(G)(1). 

3. Notice. Pursuant to RCW 36.70B.110 and 2.90.075 SWMC, a notice of application must 
be provided by the local government for all subdivision applications. The City of Sedro-
Woolley gave proper and timely notice of the application, and used reasonable methods 
of providing notice of the application by those means described in Finding of Fact No. 
13. 

4. Public Hearing. Pursuant to RCW 58.17.090 and 2.90.070(G)(2) SWMC, a public 
hearing on a preliminary plat is required. The notice of the public hearing was provided 
by the City in a manner calculated to reach those with an interest in the project, by those 
means set forth in Finding of Fact No. 14. An open public hearing was conducted by the 
hearing examiner in this matter, at which time opportunity was provided for all 
comments to be heard by the hearing examiner, and which conformed with standard 
protocols to ensure that due process was provided to all participants. 

5. Plat Modifications. SMVEN — 5 is a separate plat situated within the boundaries of the 
SMVEN - IV. The proposal includes the relocation of a utility easement from lot 4 of 
SMVEN — 5 onto an adjacent strip of land, and the dedication of one residential lot from 
SMVEN — 4 to a residential play area. These modifications do not constitute an 
alteration to SMVEN — 4 as that term is used in RCW 58.17.215. 

6. Planned Residential Development. The provisions for PRDs may apply to the R-5 
zone pursuant to 17.43.020 SWMC. In accordance with SWMC 17.43.070 D, the 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 284 of 351



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND DECISION in the matter of Preliminary 
Plat Approval for Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase V Planned Residential Development, 
page 6 

criteria to be considered by the hearing examiner in making a recommendation to the city 
council on a planned residential development include the following: 

A. Suitability of the site area for the proposed development. 

B. Requirements of the subdivision code for the proposed development; 

C. Reasons for density bonuses; 

D. Time limitations for the entire development and specified stages; 

E. Development in accordance with the Sedro-Woolley comprehensive plan; 

F. Public purposes have been served by the proposed development; 

G. Compliance with the design standards and guidelines. 

7. Suitability of the Site. SMVEN — 5 is encompassed by earlier phases of the same 
residential development. There are no critical areas on site. The site is suitable for 
residential development of this type. 

8. Reasons for Density Bonuses. The minimum lot size in the R-5 zone is 8,400 square 
feet. Under the provisions of the PRD regulations, lots in the R-5 zone may be a variety 
of sizes below the standard 8,400 square feet, provided no lot shall be less than 6,000 
square feet in size. No proposed lots in SMVEN-5 are less than 6,000 square feet. In 
addition, the averaged lot size in the R-5 zone shall be reduced by not less than twenty 
percent of the minimum lot size for that zone. 20% of 8,400 = 1,600; thus the averaged 
size of the 28 lots must be 6,720 square feet of larger. The applicant submitted revised 
density calculations (Exhibit ii) to confirm that the subdivision complies with the 
requirements in Ch. 17.43 SWMC. The project density complies with the City's 
requirements. 

9. Time Limitations for the Entire Development and Specified Stages. Pursuant to 
16.08.064 SWMC, a preliminary plat approval is valid for five years. The infrastructure 
for SMVEN — 5 was constructed with earlier phases of the development. Because 
construction will be limited and unlikely to disturb residents, and because improvements 
that have been constructed will not be impacted by newly adopted development 
regulations, there is no need to further limit, or expand, the five year limitation described 
above. The plat should therefore comply with 16.08.064 SWMC. 

10. Development in accordance with the Sedro-Woolley comprehensive plan. The 
following analysis examines Sedro-Woolley's Comprehensive Plan ("CP") in the context 
of the proposed development. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 285 of 351



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND DECISION in the matter of Preliminary 
Plat Approval for Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase V Planned Residential Development, 
page 7 

A. Goal LU1: To safely accommodate population growth without causing urban sprawl. 

a. Policy LU1.2: Prevent urban development outside the urban growth area (UGA). 

The CP establishes as a land-use goal the prevention of urban sprawl, and implements that goal 
in part through the policy of preventing development outside of Sedro-Woolley's UGA. The 
proposed project is not outside of the UGA. The proposed development meets this goal. 

B. Goal LU2: To coordinate land use decisions within and surrounding the urban growth 
area with other jurisdictions. 

Properties to the north of the proposed development, situated in Skagit County, are zoned Rural 
Reserve by Skagit County. "The purpose of the Rural Reserve district is to allow low-density 
development and to preserve the open space character of those areas not designated as resource 
lands or as urban growth areas." 14.16.320 Skagit County Code. The uses allowed within a rural 
reserve district are not incompatible with residential uses. The proposed development meets this 
goal. 

C. Goal LU3: To provide concurrent urban services. 

a. Policy LU3.1: Coordinate land use decisions with the transportation and capital facilities 
elements of the comprehensive plan. 

b. Policy LU3.3: Do not approve developments that cannot be serviced by city 
transportation and sewer services. 

c. Policy LU3.4: Deny approval to developments that would lower streets or sewer lines 
below established levels of service standards, unless: 

1. The city accounts for such deficiency in its capital facilities plan, or 
2. The developer provides services which maintain the level of service standard. 

d. Policy LU3.5: Ensure that new development bears its fair share of the cost of associated 
increases in required capital facilities and services. 

The streets, street lighting, sidewalks, stormwater improvements and street trees have all been 
installed as part of the development of earlier phases of the project, and new infrastructure for 
SMVEN-5 is not required. The development of the proposed plat was anticipated in the design of 
earlier phases of the development, and the City's sewage system will accommodate the proposed 
plat. The proposed plat will be accessed off of local access streets, and the project will not lower 
the street system LOS below accepted standards. The proposed development meets this goal. 

D. Goal LU4: To reduce damages from natural disasters and preserve the characteristics 
of the natural environment. 

a. Policy LU4.3: Require new residential development in outlying areas to provide 
adequate buffer areas to relieve conflict with adjacent operations on natural resource 
lands that may be incompatible with residential living. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 286 of 351



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND DECISION in the matter of Preliminary 
Plat Approval for Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase V Planned Residential Development, 
page 8 

b. Policy LU4.4: Provide effective and timely application of sensitive and critical area land 
use policies, including SEPA review for all developments involving potentially 
significant environmental issues. 

SEPA review of the proposed development has been conducted, and all impacts mitigated. No 
critical areas have been identified that would be impacted by the proposed development. The 
proposed development meets this goal. 

E. Goal LU5: To preserve community character. 

a. Policy LU5.2: Resist growth pressures which could have a negative impact on 
community values. 

b. Policy LU5.3: Seek and support developments that further the community character of 
Sedro-Woolley. 

c. Policy LU5.5: Prevent incompatible uses within residential areas. 
d. Policy LU5.7: Recognize the rights of property owners to freely use and develop private 

property consistent with city regulations. 
e. Policy LU5.8: Encourage high standards of appearance in all residential areas and in 

other high visibility areas. 

The proposed plat anticipates the construction of homes ranging in size from 1,200 to 2,200 
square feet, which are anticipated to be consistent with prior phases of the development. The 
proposed plat will consist entirely of residential development, and a play area for use by 
neighborhood children. These uses are compatible with the neighborhood residential area. 
These uses further community's character, and the appearance of the homes to be constructed 
within the proposed plat are likely to be consistent with the homes that have already been 
constructed within earlier phases of the development. The proposed development meets this 
goal. 

F. Goal LU17: To control the impacts of development activities on the quality of surface 
and ground water. 

a. Policy LU17.5: Require future developments to use city sewer facilities whenever 
feasible rather than septic systems. 

b. Policy LU17.6: Allow wetland or stream alteration when such alterations results in 
restoration or enhancement of functions and values of degraded wetlands and streams. 

c. Policy LU17.7: Maintain or enhance water quality within the Skagit River and its 
tributaries. 

d. Policy LU17.10:Water-courses, wetlands, bodies of water and their shores should be 
kept in a natural condition where possible, and protected from development impacts 
through the use of buffers and green spaces. 

A sewer collection system was installed with the development of earlier phases of the project, 
and in accordance with 13.08.030, septic systems are not allowed. Stormwater improvements 
were installed as part of the development of SMVEN-4, and except for minor modifications, 
further construction of stormwater facilities is not anticipated. Construction impacts will be 
mitigated during the course of construction s required by a NPDES stormwater permit issued by 
the state Department of Ecology. The proposed development meets this goal. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 287 of 351



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND DECISION in the matter of Preliminary 
Plat Approval for Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase V Planned Residential Development, 
page 9 

G. Goal T3: To benefit social welfare and economic development through street design. 

a. Policy T3.2: Ensure that street size is sufficient (and not excessive) to support proposed 
land use density. 

Street improvements were installed with the development of SMVEN-4, and modifications are 
not anticipated with the proposed development. The proposed development meets this goal. 

H. Goal T6: To fund and implement transportation improvements that serve the city. 

a. Policy T6.2: Ensure that growth mitigates its impacts through transportation impact fees, 
SEPA mitigation, coneurrency, and development regulations. 

Growth impacts have been mitigated for the proposed development through the conditions 
imposed in the City's MDNS. The proposed development meets this goal. 

I. Goal UI: To develop all city utilities at levels of service appropriate to planned orderly 
growth. 

a. Policy U.1.3: Expand existing utility system according to the city's land use plan. 
b. Policy U2.10: Require all new development to provide either telecommunications or 

conduit to encourage the extension of telecommunications within the public right-of-
way. 

Public and private utilities were installed during the development of SMVEN-4, and 
modifications are not anticipated with the proposed development. The proposed development 
meets this goal. 

J. Goal H3: To benefit social welfare through housing design. 

a. Policy H3.1: Require usable outdoor recreation space as part of all residential 
developments. 

b. Policy H3.6: Encourage "cluster" single-family residential development within the R7 
and R5 land use designations. Cluster developments are characterized by areas of 
common open space shared and maintained by residents of the development. 

The proposed development includes the dedication of a "tot lot," for recreational 
purposes. In addition, 1.44 acres of usable open space has been provided, to be shared 
by residents. The proposed development meets this goal. 

11. Public Purposes. A discussion of public purpose is addressed in Conclusion 26, below. 

12. Design Standards and Guidelines. Pursuant to SWMC 15.44.060, the Planning 
Department has the authority to approve, approve with conditions, or deny an application 
which shall comply with the city of Sedro-Woolley design standards and guidelines as 
adopted by the city. The Planning Department found that the play area, public trail 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 288 of 351



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND DECISION in the matter of Preliminary 
Plat Approval for Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase V Planned Residential Development, 
page 10 

system, lot layout and street tree planting plan as shown in Exhibit vii meet the 
requirements of the Sedro-Woolley design standards and guidelines manual and Chapter 
12.40 — Tree Standards. The Planning Department determined that the improvements 
depicted in Exhibit vii — Landscape Plan Sheets 1 & 2 shall be required elements of the 
plat. 

13. Compliance with Applicable Law. Section 16.04.040 SWMC provides that all 
divisions of land within the City must comply with (1) the provisions of state law; (2) the 
provisions of title 16 SWMC; (3) the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan; and (3) all 
zoning regulations in effect at the time of preliminary plat is approval. In addition, 
section 16.04.040 SWMP provides that lots are to be of a size and dimension and have 
access and infrastructure adequate to satisfy the requirements of Sedro-Woolley 
Municipal Code Titles 13, 15, 16 and 17. 

The hearing examiner concludes the proposed development will comply with all 
provisions of state law, including Chapters 36.70A and 36.70B RCW. The hearing 
examiner further concludes the proposed development will comply with all provisions of 
all provisions of Title 16 and Title 17 SWMC. The hearing examiner has previously 
concluded above that the proposed development complies with the Sedro-Woolley 
Comprehensive Plan. Finally, the hearing examiner concludes that the proposed 
development will comply with all requirements of Title 13 SWMC. 

14. Minimum Development Acreage. Pursuant to 17.43.060 SWMC, the minimum site for 
a PRD is three acres. Here, the undeveloped tracts combined are approximately 4.45 
acres (See Finding of Fact No. 6, above.) 

15. Land Use. In accordance with 17.43.030(A) SWMC, the only allowable residential use 
for a PRD within the R-5 zone are single-family residences or detached condominiums. 
SMVEN-5 is proposed to include single family residential lots only, and the proposed 
development meets this criterion. 

16. Design and Layout. The design and layout of a planned residential development, per 
SWMC 17.43.060(A), shall take into account the relationship of the site to the 
surrounding areas. The PRD shall be so designed as to minimize any undesirable impact 
of the PRD on adjacent properties. The proposed SMVEN-5 PRD is designed to 
minimize any undesirable impact on the existing surrounding lots, which are also 
designed for single family residential use. At hearing, a neighbor testified that the 
proposed development will invade the privacy of his home; see also Exhibit "vii" 
submitted by the neighbor. The applicant's proponent, Rob Janicki, testified in response 
that the applicant would construct a sight-obscuring cedar fence, 6 feet in height, along 
the northerly border. 

17. Open Space. In accordance with the requirements of SWMC 17.43.060(D), a planned 
residential development shall provide not less than twenty percent of the gross site area 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 289 of 351



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND DECISION in the matter of Preliminary 
Plat Approval for Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase V Planned Residential Development, 
page 11 

of the PRD for common open space. The revised open space calculations (Exhibit ii) 
establish compliance with this requirement. 

18. Transportation Easements. In accordance with 16.08.052 SWMC, each subdivision 
must make adequate provision for easements as may be required to protect the public 
health, safety and welfare. A series of easements are proposed to grant pedestrian access 
around and throughout Phases 4 and 5 of the development. Access north from the 
northernmost portion of East Gateway Heights Loop to Fruitdale Road (across Tract P-4 
and Skagit County Asessor's Parcel #P38613) has been granted to the City for 
emergency services access only. Both Tract P-4 and Parcel #P38613, and the 
infrastructure allowing emergency access are to be owned and maintained by a 
homeowners association. At hearing, the project representative, Rob Janicki, testified 
that a bollard would be placed across the emergency vehicle access to prevent 
unauthorized use. 

19. Utility Easements. As noted next above, 16.08.052 SWMC, provides that each 
subdivision must make adequate provision for easements. Pursuant to 16.04.090 
SWMC, utility easements are to be located within the street rights-of-way, unless a 
waiver is approved by the city engineer. Easements outside the street rights-of-way are 
to be twenty feet in width, and all utilities are to be installed underground unless a waiver 
is approved by the city engineer. The project proponent must obtain a waiver from the 
City Engineer for the 10 foot wide utility easements running along the interior lot lines of 
the plat. 

20. Streets. In accordance with 16.08.052 SWMC, each subdivision must make adequate 
provision for streets and alleys, and convenient pedestrian and vehicular access to every 
lot is to be provided. Pursuant to 16.04.080 SWMC, each subdivision is to be served by 
streets which meet the standards of Chapter 15.40 SWMC. Pursuant to RCW 58.17.110 , 
appropriate provisions are to be made for streets, roads, alleys, and other public ways. 
The street design, street lighting, sidewalks, stormwater improvements and street trees 
have all been installed as part of the SMVEN-4 PRD build-out. Construction of new 
infrastructure for the SMVEN-5 PRD is not necessary. 

21. Sidewalks. In accordance with RCW 58.17.110, local governments are to consider if 
sidewalks and other planning features will assure that safe walking conditions will result 
for students who walk to school. Here, sidewalks have been installed as part of the 
SMVEN-4 PRD build-out. Such sidewalks are adequate to ensure safe pedestrian 
passage. 

22. Sewer. Pursuant to 16.04.080 SWMC and RCW 58.17.110, each lot created by 
subdivision on which a residence may be located shall be served by the city sanitary 
sewer system. The proposed development will be served by utilities constructed for the 
SMVEN-4 plat. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 290 of 351



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND DECISION in the matter of Preliminary 
Plat Approval for Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase V Planned Residential Development, 
page 12 

23. Stormwater. Pursuant to 16.04.080 SWMC, proposed subdivisions must comply with 
the stormwater management and maintenance standards set forth in Chapters 13.36 and 
13.40 SWMC. In addition, and in accordance with RCW 58.17.110, appropriate 
provision must be made for drainage ways. The stormwater system that was constructed 
during earlier phases of the project was designed to accommodate the proposed 
development, provided minor modifications to a bioswale are accomplished. 

24. Fire Protection. Pursuant to 16.04.100 SWMC, fire hydrants and fire access shall be 
provided to each lot, under guidelines as determined by the fire chief. Minimum fire 
flow shall be required consistent with the standards of the Uniform Fire Code, and 
building and fire codes for the specific use. Emergency access will be provided in part 
by a 20 foot easement over tract P-4. Fire hydrants were installed to serve during the 
construction of improvements for the SMVEN-4 plat, which will serve this development. 
To the extent additional hydrants are required, or hydrants must be relocated, installation 
or relocation will be accomplished prior to final plat. 

25. Consistency with Development Regulations. Pursuant to RCW 36.70B.040, a local 
government must determine if a proposed project is consistent with its development 
regulations through the consideration of (a) The type of land use; (b) the level of 
development, such as units per acre or other measures of density; (c) infrastructure, 
including public facilities and services needed to serve the development; and (d) the 
characteristics of the development, such as development standards. 

The proposed development is consistent with the City of Sedro-Wooley's development 
regulations. This residential land use complies with Chapters 16 and 17 of the Sedro-
Woolley Municipal Code, and the level of development is consistent with minimum and 
maximum lot size. Infrastructure to serve the development is either in place, or will be 
constructed prior to final plat. The proposed development, with the conditions 
recommended below, is consistent with the City's development standards as set forth in 
the municipal code, and as supplemented by the City's Comprehensive Plan. 

26. Public Purposes. In addition to the provisions of section 17.43.070 D SWMC, which 
direct the hearing examiner to examine whether or not a PRD furthers the public 
purpose, RCW 58.17.110 directs a local government to determine if a proposed 
subdivision serves the public health, safety, and general welfare, and make written 
findings to that effect. Moreover, section 16.08.054 SWMC provides that the hearing 
body shall inquire into the public use and interest proposed to be served by the 
establishment of a subdivision and dedication, and in so doing consider all relevant facts 
to determine whether the public interest will be served by the subdivision and dedication, 
and if the proposed plat makes appropriate provision for the public health, safety and 
general welfare and for open spaces, drainage ways, streets, alleys, other public ways, 
water supplies, sanitary wastes, fire protection facilities, parks, playgrounds, sites for 
school and schoolgrounds. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 291 of 351



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND DECISION in the matter of Preliminary 
Plat Approval for Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase V Planned Residential Development, 
page 13 

The public purposes of a proposed plat are advanced if appropriate provisions are made 
for the public health, safety, and general welfare, and if the public interest will be served 
by the subdivision of land and the dedications contained within the proposed plat. The 
hearing examiner concludes that the proposed development will help provide sound, 
adequate housing for current and future Sedro-Woolley residents in accordance with the 
housing element of the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan, while having limited 
impacts on the natural and human-made environment. Adequate provision has been 
made for public safety services (police and fire.) The adequacy of pen spaces, drainage 
ways, streets, alleys, and other public ways have been found adequate above, through the 
SEPA processes, and in conjunction with the approvals granted by the City to prior 
phases of the development. Water supplies and distribution, sanitary sewer systems, and 
fire protection facilities have been found to be adequate above, through the SEPA 
processes, and in conjunction with the approvals granted by the City to prior phases of 
the development. The inclusion of a tot lot adequately addresses the parks and 
recreational needs for the youngest residents of the development who have a need for a 
park facility with easy access, while the City's existing recreational opportunities will 
serve older residents. The public school system provides schools adequate to the needs 
of the residents of the development. Impacts of the development have been mitigated 
through the City's MDNS. 

The proposed development advances the public purpose. 

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION 

Based upon the foregoing findings of fact and conclusions of law, the hearing examiner 
concludes that the proposed subdivision is in conformity with the City of Sedro-Woolley's 
zoning ordinances and other applicable land use controls. The hearing examiner 
recommends the city council APPROVE the Preliminary Plat of Sauk Mountain View 
Estates North — Phase V subject to the following conditions: 

1. Comply with the mitigation measures included in the SEPA mitigated determination of 
non-significance (MDNS) issued October 10, 2014 and as set forth below: 

a) Hours of construction shall be limited to 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. weekdays and 8:00 
a.m. to 9:00 p.m. weekends as required in SWMC 9.46.020; 

b) Comply with Northwest Clean Air Agency Regulations during construction 
activities; 

c) Any water discharged to the City stormwater system as a result of this project must 
be approved by and comply with conditions of the Public Works Department; 

d) Provide a temporary erosion and sedimentation control plan for approval by the city 
engineer; 

e) Complete stormwater system modifications per the Sauk Mountain View North 
Alternate Drainage Report and the recommendations of Freeland and Associates, Inc; 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 292 of 351



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND DECISION in the matter of Preliminary 
Plat Approval for Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase V Planned Residential Development, 
page 14 

f) All construction traffic shall use temporary construction access as approved by 
Public Works; 

g) Obtain and comply with conditions of a NPDES stormwater general permit from the 
Department of Ecology as may be required; 

h) Contribute police impact fees of $202.96 per unit as per the residential unit fee 
calculation in the Capital Facilities Element of the City of Sedro-Woolley 
Comprehensive Plan; and 

i) Construction shall comply with all local, state and federal regulations, including 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code Title 13.36 Stormwater Management Standards; 
Title 13.40 Stormwater Facilities Maintenance; Title15.40 Public Works 
Construction Standards; Title 17 Zoning; Sedro-Woolley Public Works Design 
Standards and the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan. 

2. Construction of all required infrastructure improvements shall be completed prior to final 
plat application, or in accordance with RCW 58.17.110 a bond covering the costs of the 
improvements and in an amount approved by the City Engineer shall be filed with the 
City. 

3. The lots within SMVEN-5 shall contribute their proportionate share of the costs of the 
maintenance and repair of any of the shared infrastructure owned and maintained by the 
SMVEN-4 homeowners association, as well as the maintenance and repair of shared 
infrastructure developed for the SMVEN-5 subdivision. This requirement may be 
accomplished by the incorporation of SMVEN - 5 into the SMVEN Phase 4 homeowner 
agreement for the maintenance of the shared tracts, paths, play equipment, stormwater 
and other shared infrastructure. Maintenance of the stormwater facilities will be defined 
in the operation maintenance manual recorded with the CC&Rs and referenced on the 
plat. In the event the SMVEN-4 homeowners association fails to authorize the 
incorporation of SMVEN — 5 into the SMVEN-4 homeowners association, then a new 
homeowner's association for SMVEN — 5 shall be established, subject to the approval of 
the City of Sedro-Woolley. 

4. The trail, play area improvements, landscaping and general design elements depicted in 
Exhibit iii — Landscape Plan Sheets 1 & 2 shall be required elements of the plat. 

5. A fence six feet in height shall be installed along the development's northern boundary 
that is adjacent to privately-owned property, provided that emergency access to the 
development shall not be curtailed by the installation of a fence. 

6. A bollard or bollards to prevent unauthorized use of the emergency vehicle access that is 
to be installed on Tract P-4 and Parcel #P38613 shall be placed, that is acceptable to the 
fire chief. 

7. The certificate filed for record pursuant to RCW 58.17.165 shall include a waiver of all 
claims for damages against any governmental authority which may be occasioned to the 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 293 of 351



FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND DECISION in the matter of Preliminary 
Plat Approval for Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase V Planned Residential Development, 
page 15 

adjacent land by the established construction, drainage and maintenance of any areas 
dedicated for street or other areas to the public. 

Scott G. Thomas, 
Hearing Examiner 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 294 of 351



c.r -  .6 
1.1,'cl`rt 

EXHIBITa 

PRELIMINARY PLAT APPLIgi 

APPLICATION NUMBER:  CQA1---1 - LI 
Proposed name of Subdivision:  Sauk Mountain View Estates North - Phase V  

Location (cross street names and addresses, if they exist): Vecchio Drive North of 

Portobello and the North end of North Arrezo Loop 

• ; e • A. 	 a 	 Srr C 

Assessor's Parcel number(s):  131113, 131114, 131103, 131115, 131117,  131119  

Applicant Name:  T. Jones Inc. and Dukes Hill, LLC 

Applicant Address:  103 N. Township Street, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 
Agent: Ronald T. Jepson & Terry Unger 

Applicant Phone:  360-856-2068 email:  erin.klinger@janicki.com   

Building, Planning and Engineeri 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360)855-0771 
Fa)_...c1.3612)866:0733 © LE 11 	E.5.: 

i i
• 

T. Jones Inc. 
Owner: Dukes Hill, LLC 

2715 First Avenue 	 103 N. Township Street 
Owner Address: Seattle, WA 98121 Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

 

   

Owner Phone: 360-856-2068 email: erin.klinger@janicki.com  

I am applying for the following variances or other permits at the same time: 	N/A  

Zoning Designation:  R-5 	Flood zone:  X  

Total site size in acres:  4 . 45  	Critical Areas by type and acres:  None 

Number of lots proposed:  28 	Number of housing units proposed: 	28  

Describe existing conditions on and adjacent to site:  Developed plat, street and 

utilities previously installed for PRD. Surrounding sites developed  

as residential to south. Open space to north and west. 

P:Worms\Current Planning Forms\Long Plats\Long Plat Application 2013.doc 	 - 1 - 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 295 of 351



Application Checklist: 

❑ A. 	Pre-application file #:  2013043 	Pre-application date:  4/10/13  
-; State Environment Policy Act (SEPA). The applicant shall submit a SEPA Checklist or 

	environmental impact statement (EIS), including a site plan and associated fees, with an 
application for a subdivision. The SEPA Checklist or EIS shall be reviewed by the SEPA 
official, Upon determination by the Planning Department that the SEPA Checklist is complete 
and accurate, thirteen (13) copies of the checklist will be required. No public hearing on a Mx519-ve--13 
subdivision proposal shall be scheduled prior to the issuance of a determination of 
nonsignificance or mitigated determination of nonsignificance by the SEPA official. 
C. 	Fees. See current fee schedule. The applicant will also be billed for mailing and 
publication costs. 

❑ D. 	Complete Application Required. The planning director notifies applicant when the 
application is complete. 

❑ E. Project narrative including: •a detailed description of the proposal; any other applications 
Deirgi submitted concurrently(suchaspianned residential development  application or a  
variance); size of proverties to be subdivided; number of lots ptiop-osed; critical areas, opet/-  
space and recrekiiin area calculations or any other information that will be pertinent to the 
review the application. 

..."2" F. 	Application Map. Ten copies of an accurately scaled and dimensioned map of the plat t7  
prepared by a land surveyor licensed by the state of Washington and showing the following: 

**Every preliminary plat shall consist of one or more maps, on both mylar and in digital format 
approved by the City Engineer, together with written and digital data including the following: 

ri  The name of the proposed subdivision; 
❑ North point and scale; the location of existing property lines: streets, building, if any; 

watercourses and all general features; 
❑ The legal description of the land contained within the subdivision; 
❑ The names and addresses of all persons, firms and corporations holding interest in the 

lands, including easement rights and interest; 
❑ The proposed names, locations, widths and other dimensions of proposed streets, alleys, 

easements, parks, lots, building lines, if any, and all other information necessary to interpret 
the plat, including the location of existing utility and access easements which are to remain; 

❑ The location of streets in adjoining plats and the approximate location of adjoining utilities 
and proposed extensions into the plat; 

❑ The names of adjoining plats; 
The name, address and telephone number and seal of the registered land surveyor who 
made the survey or under whose supervision it was made; 

❑ The date of the survey; 
❑ All existing monuments and markers located by the survey; 
❑ The zoning classification applicable to the land within the subdivision; 
❑ The conditions of or the limitations on dedications, if any, including slope rights; 
❑ Contour intervals as required, based upon city datum with intervals of five feet or less 

utilizing U.S.G.S, or better datum. 
❑ Location of significant physical features such as buildings, bodies of water, power lines, 

slopes, trees, and section lines within or adjacent to the proposed plat; 
❑ Location and description of existing and proposed drainage, sewer, and water facilities 

within or adjacent to the proposed plat; 

P:\Forms\Current  Planning Forms\Long Plats \Long Plat Application 2013.doc 	 -2- 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 296 of 351



❑ Location and outline of any sensitive areas, as defined under Section 17.65.040, using the 
delineation and classification methods and definitions provided for the specific sensitive 
area under the provisions of Chapter 17.65; 

❑ If a replat, the layout for the original plat in dotted lines, with replat status reflected in the 
plat name; 

❑ Vicinity map at a smaller scale, to include the location of any natural resource lands within 
three hundred feet of the edge of the proposed plat. 

G. Mailing labels: See separate form for instructions. 
H. Posting: See attached form for instructions. 
I. Copies of covenants, restrictions and collective maintenance agreements, if applicable. 

111 	J. 	Environmental checklist or EIS. 	15 ,1 La 1,--,.A..i.t..?---14—CANC-c-etrsr 
Survey information of all features within 100 feet of the boundary of the proposed 
subdivision. 1/41t4-551— 
Evidence of water availability. PUD letter date: 	(OP  

❑ N. /E17  

	

M. 	Evidence of sewer availability. 
Required materials identified in the pre-application meeting, such as additional 
information required for PRDs. 

❑ 0. 	Other information deemed necessary by the planning director, planning commission or 
city council. 

	

P. 	Landscaping Plan j- 

	

)ff Q. 	Street Profiles 

Special Studies: Studies: 
❑ R. 	Traffic 
❑ S. 	Stormwater 
❑ T. 	Critical areas 

Criteria: 	The proponent bears the burden or proving that the application should be granted. The 
project permit must be supported by convincing proof that it conforms to the applicable elements of the 
city's development regulations and comprehensive plan. The proponent must also prove that any 
significant adverse environmental impacts have been adequately mitigated. 

Describe how the following provisions will be met with the proposed subdivision: 

❑ Public health, safety and general welfare:  This plat meets the criteria for 
urban inf ill required by Washington Growth Management Act and meets 
Sedro-Woollev zoning code.  

Open spaces:  Areas were previously dedicated to the public and 

the home owners association in anticipation of this 

development.  

❑ Drainage ways:  All drainage ways were developed in anticipation 
of this proposed 28 lots. 

Streets and utilities were installed 
❑ Streets, alleys, other public ways: 	  

in anticipation of this development. 

P:\Forms\Current  Planning Forms \Long Plats\Long Plat Application 2013.doc 	 - 3 - 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 297 of 351



[1 	Water supplies:  Water utilities were installed to serve the 
proposed 28 lots in Phase V of Sauk Mountain View Plat. 

❑ Sanitary waste:  Sewer utilities were installed to serve the 

proposed 28 lots in Phase V of Sauk Mountain View Plat. 

❑ Fire protection facilities:  Property was dedicated for a future fire 

station. 

	 ,s1Parksiplaygrounds:. Phase IV lot 58 is being modified to 
accommodate a "tot lot" and a trail access is being modified as 
well to accommodate lot access. 

Purpose: 	The purpose of the Subdivision (Long Plat) regulations: 
To regulate the division of land and to promote the public health, safety and general welfare in 
accordance with standards established by the city and state to: 
A. Prevent the overcrowding of land; 
B. Lessen congestion in the streets and highways; 
C. Promote effective use of land; 
D. Promote safe and convenient travel by the public on streets and highways; 
E. Provide for adequate light and air; 
F. Provide for open spaces, drainage ways, streets or roads, alleys, other public ways, transit stops, 

potable water supplies, fire protection, sanitary wastes, parks and recreation, playgrounds, 
schools and school grounds, sidewalks or other facilities to assure safe walking conditions for 
students who walk to and from school; and other public requirements; 

G. Provide for proper ingress and egress; 
H. Provide for expeditious review and approval of proposed divisions which conform to zoning 

standards and local plans and policies, including the purposes stated herein; 
1. 	Adequately provide for the housing and commercial needs of the citizens of the city; and 
J. 	Require uniform monumenting of land divisions and conveyance by accurate legal description. 

Process: 	Preliminary plat applications shall be processed simultaneously with applications for 
rezones, variances, planned residential developments (PRDs), site plan approvals, and similar quasi-
judicial or administrative actions to the extent that procedural requirements applicable to these actions 
permit simultaneous processing. 

No public hearing on a subdivision proposal shall be scheduled prior to the issuance of a 
declaration of non-significance or mitigated declaration of non-significance by the SEPA official. 

P:1Forms\Current Planning Forms\Long Plats'Long Plat Application 2013.doc 	 - 4 - 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 298 of 351



Applicable local and state rules which will be used in the review of all subdivision applications: 

Applications shall be processed according to the procedures set forth in Chapter 2.90 SWMC, and the 
additional procedures established in Chapter 16.08 SWMC and state law (Chapter 43.21C RCW, and 
Chapter 36.70B RCW). 

Chapter 16.04 SWMC — General Provisions, Chapter 16.08 SWMC — Subdivisions; Chapter 2.88 
SWMC — State Environmental Policy Act; Chapter 15.40 SWMC — Public Works Construction 
Standards; Chapter 2.90 SWMC — Consolidated Planning Procedures; and Title 17 SWMC — Zoning. 

Also applicable to subdivisions are the Public Works Department Standards manual and the Sedro-
Woolley Design Standards and Guidelines manual. These documents are adopted by reference in the 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code. 

Signature: 

I request preliminary approval in accordance with the Sedro-Woolley subdivision ordinance and other 
applicable city codes. Application is hereby made for a PRELIMINARY PLAT and to authorize the 
activities described herein. I certify that I am familiar with the information contained in this 
application, and that to the best of my knowledge and belief, such information is true, complete, and 
accurate. I further certify that I possess the authority to undertake the proposed activities. I hereby 
grant to the officials of the City of Sedro-Woolley the right to enter the above-described location to 
inspect the proposed or completed work. 

rt 

ot Jut. v 	2, q- (1-(  

SIGNATURE 	 DATE RECEIVED 

Owner's certification: I certify hat I am the legal owner of the property listed above and that the 
applicant li 	above has 	ermisson t represent me in this application for development. 

OWNER'S SIGNATURE 	 DATE 

PAForms \Current Planning Forms\L.ong Plats\Long Plat Application 2013.doc 	 - 5 - 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 299 of 351



Building, Planning and Engineering 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

I 325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360)855-0771 
Fax (360) 855-0733 

Planned Residential Development (PRD) applications shall be processed as subdivisions 
under SWMC Chapter 16.08 as well as the criteria for PRDs in SWMC Chapter 17.43. An 
application for preliminary plat must be submitted with the PRD Checklist. Please submit this 
completed checklist and the items required in this checklist with your Preliminary Plat (Long 
Plat) Application. 

Proposed name of PRD: SC1 (ky_ V\--VrANItu, Esaks  
Assessor's Parcel number(s): 	'310, 0114-, 131 \03, I3} 	31  

Applicant Name:qtb  

Applicant Address:  b 	K\).(c-5un-) tuf  
Applicant Phone:  3160--A 51,n - Deka  
email:  01 n awl 6.0)(-  jan az C-01'Y-)  

Application Checklist: 

❑ 	 A. 	Pre-application date:  LA 	I -3  

a" B. 	A written statement providing justification for the density bonus, if requested by 
the applicant. 1 	uciuk 
C. 	A written statement providing a program for development including staging or 
timing of development. 	Mt; 

El./.  D. 	A written statement providing proposed ownership pattern upon completion of 
the project. ki/A 
E. 	A written statement prqviding basic content of any restrictive covenants. n CA _k_ctkc.t 

Er F. 	A written statement explaining provisions to assure permanence and 
maintenance of common open space through a homeowners' association or similar 
association, condominium development or other means acceptable to the city. 

‘,/\.)1 \\ 	\NI triA-k-c_n vloy ±o 1 1(Y.,a vta>rd.i1,-)3 
P:\Forms\Current  Planning Forms \Planned Residential Development\PRD Checklist 2013.doc 	 -1- 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 300 of 351



[71 G. 	Application Map. Preliminary Plat applications require ten copies  of an 
accurately scaled and dimensioned map of the plat prepared by a land surveyor 
licensed by the state of Washington (see Long Plat Application). In addition to those 
requirements, PRD applications require that the following features must also be 
represented on the maps: A map of the site drawn to a scale of not less than one inch 
representing one hundred feet showing the following: 

1=1 Existing site conditions including watercourses, floodplains and unique natural 
features; 

❑ The location and floor area size of all existing and proposed buildings, structures 
and other improvements including maximum heights, types of dwelling units, 
density per type, and nonresidential structures, including commercial facilities, if 
any; 

❑ The location and size in acres or square feet of all areas to be conveyed, 
dedicated, or reserved as common open spaces, public parks, recreational areas, 
and similar public or semipublic uses; 

❑ The existing and proposed circulation system of streets, including off-street parking 
areas, service areas, loading areas and major points of access to public rights-of-
way; 

❑ The existing and proposed pedestrian circulation system; 
❑ The existing and proposed utility systems, including sanitary sewers, storm sewers, 

water, electric, gas and telephone; and 
❑ The proposed treatment of the perimeter of the PRD, including materials and 

techniques used such as screens, fences and walls. 

171 	H. 	A PRD application must contain sufficient detail to show compliance with the 
design standards and guidelines of SWMC Chapter 15.44 for the layout, infrastructure, 
and buildings within the PRD, to allow the reviewing body to incorporate compliance 
with design standards into its recommendation and final decision. The applicant is 
expected to submit this information in a format that meets the standards of an architect 
or design professional. The integration of a comprehensive, well-planned design into 
all aspects of the PRD is a required element of the application. The application and 
approval shall require subsequent construction within the PRD to conform with the 
approved design elements, at a sufficiently detailed level to ensure subsequent 
compliance with the approval documents. 

I. 	The design and layout of a planned residential development shall take into 
account the relationship of the site to the surrounding areas. The PRD shall be so 
designed as to minimize any undesirable impact of the PRD on adjacent properties. 

E 	J. 	Setbacks, building heights and lot sizes of the PRD shall be comparable to, or 
compatible with, those of the existing development of adjacent properties or, if 
adjacent properties are undeveloped, the type of development that may be permitted. 

K. Other information deemed necessary by the Planning Director, Hearing 
Examiner or City Council. 

L. Completed and signed checklist. 

g 	M. 	Fees associated with both the PRD and Preliminary Plat application. 

P:Worms\Current Planning Forrnalanned Residential Development\PRD Checklist 2013.doc 	 - 2 - 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 301 of 351



Procedure: 
Public Hearing. A PRD is a Type IV land use application under Ch. 2.90. The Hearing 
Examiner shall hold a public hearing on the proposed PRD. Following the public hearing, the 
Hearing Examiner shall make a report of findings and recommendations with respect to the 
proposed PRD, and shall forward the report to the City Council. Such report shall include, but 
need not be limited to, the following items: 

• Suitability of the site area for the proposed development; 
• Requirements of the subdivision code for the proposed development; 
• Reasons for density bonuses; 
• Time limitations for the entire development and specified stages; 
• Development in accordance with the Sedro-Woolley comprehensive plan; 
• Public purposes have been served by the proposed development; and 
• Compliance with the design standards and guidelines. 

City Council Decision. After receipt of the Hearing Examiner's findings and recommendations, 
the City Council shall make a decision based on the materials submitted by staff and the 
Hearing Examiner's recommendation. The City Council shall give approval, approval with 
modifications or disapproval to the proposed PRD. The City Council's decision may be 
appealed to Skagit County Superior Court as allowed in SWMC Chapter 2.90. 

Purpose: 	The purpose of the PRD regulations: to create open space in residential 
developments and to encourage imaginative site and building design by permitting greater 
flexibility in zoning requirements than is permitted by other sections of this title. Furthermore, 
it is the purpose of this section to: 
A. Promote the retention of significant features of the natural environment, including 
waterways and views; 
B. Encourage a variety of housing types and densities; 
C. Encourage maximum efficiency in the layout of streets, stormwater facilities, utility 
networks and other public improvements; and 
D. Create and/or preserve usable open space for the enjoyment of the occupants and the 
general public. 

Signature: 
I DECLARE UNDER PENALY OF THE PERJURY LAWS THAT THE INFORMATION I 
HAVE PROVIDED ON THI FORM/APPLICATION IS TRUE, CORRECT AND 
COMP  

5-21- vi 
SIGNTATURE 	 DATE RECEIVED 

PAForms\Current Planning Forms \Planned Residential Development\PRD Checklist 2013.doc 	 - 3 - 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 302 of 351



Dukes Hill LLC 

103 N. Township 

Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Narrative for Sauk Mountain View Estates PH V 

This phase of the project is to create 28 recorded lots interspersed within the Sauk Mountain View 

Estates Phase IV recorded plat # 201203220011. The infrastructure for these lots is complete except for 

some additional street trees that will be planted at the time that the city requires prior to recording the 

final plat. This phase of the plat is also a PRD in conjunction with the subdivision and will be following 

the rules and codes for a PRO from the City of Sedro-Woolley. 

The City of Sedro-Woolley allowed a prior developer to complete the infrastructure for these lots even 

though they were not included in the Sauk Mountain View Estates Phase IV plat. These finished lots are 

now proceeding through the final plat process to be recorded as legal lots. 

The original design for the Sauk Mountain View Estates Phase IV plat included these additional 28 lots 

but they were not accounted for in the SEPA. The stormwater plan incorporated these lots in its 

design. This has been reviewed by Freeland and Associates and the storm system is adequate except for 
some widening on the downstream bioswale from the detention pond. That work is projected to be 

completed this summer (2014) during the dry season. The open space requirements were included in 

the original design and are described in a letter dated 5/18/05. In addition, the applicant has agreed to 

remove lot 58 of Sauk Mountain View Estates Phase IV and dedicate that lot as a community play 

area. The play area design will be provided and installed prior to final approval. The water and sewer 
systems were originally designed and installed to accommodate these additional lots. The Sauk 

Mountain View Estates Phase IV plat was modified to include a full loop road system to improve traffic 

flow. The added lots should have minimal impact on traffic. 

All of the proposed lots meet the current zoning requirements. They average more than 6720 square 

feet as required and no lot is less than 6000 square feet as required by the current City of Sedro-Woolley 

zoning. These lots will accommodate detached single family houses ranging in size from 1200 to 2200 

square feet. The entire road system was built using rolled curb allowing builders to place the homes 

without consideration for curb cuts. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 303 of 351



AUG 1  9 2015 

JERI GROUP 
	 EXHIBITsiL 

222 Grand Avenue, Suite C Bellingham, WA 98225 
(360)733-576o 

August 18, 2015 

City of Sedro-Woolley, Building & Planning Dept. 

Attn: John Coleman, Planning Director 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf St 

Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Subject: 	Response to SMVE North Phase V — PRD — Planning Review 4 — File #2014-094 

Dear John, 

Please see next page for our team's response in bold to your letter referenced above. A list of 

enclosures is provided below. Thank you and feel free to contact me with any further 

comments or questions. 

Best, 

Otag-413-No, 
Kiersten Sahlberg 
Planning Coordinator 

Enclosures: 

A. Exhibits A-C from letter dated May 18, 2005 

B. SMVE Ph V Calculation Breakdown 

C. Copy of Calculations from Spreadsheet 

D. Revised Landscaping Plan 

1 I 222 Grand Avenue Suite C Bellingham WA 98225 	360-733-5760 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 304 of 351



1. Please submit Attachments A-C of the letter from Rob Janicki dated May 18, 2005 which 

were not included in the application materials. Please note, that letter assumes 24 

additional lots, this proposal is for 28 additional lots. The calculations included therein 

will need to be updated, clarified and must be based on the required density 

calculations in the current PRD code (Chapter 17.43 SWMC). Also note that current 

regulations do not allow for critical areas, stormwater facilities and utility corridors to be 

counted toward open space calculations, unless they meet the definition of useable 

open space in 17.43.060, subsection (E). Lot 58 and the new trail serving Lot 58 may be 

included in the useable open space calculation of course. 

Attachments A-C are attached here for your reference. A breakdown of the updated 

calculations is provided as well as a copy of the spreadsheet showing these updated 

calculations. You will see that the development exceeds requirements for open space 

and useable space. 

2. The application narrative states that the lots average more than 6,720 square feet (20% 

less than the minimum lot size of 8,400 square feet). Please submit a spreadsheet 

showing the lot sizes and the calculations showing that those lots average over 6,720 

square feet. 

A copy of the spreadsheet is attached here for your reference. Lot sizes average 

6,806.25 SF with a minimum lot size of 6,000 SF. 

3. The letter from Rob Janicki dated May 18, 2005 also states that the easement between 

SMVE N Phase Ill and the lots to the east will be developed with a 0.54 acre trail. Please 

include this trail on the landscape plans. This trail will run from Portobello Road north to 

roughly the area behind proposed Lot 16. 

The trail has been added to the landscape plan and is included as part of this 

resubmission package. 

2 1 222 Grand Avenue Suite C Bellingham WA 98225 	360-733-5760 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 305 of 351



Ctr,P.,11.4>NSTOSVEC4 MO? .1. VW P-W,.,OP 

His rT " 4/  

in4 
CI PL,At.IL 
428A 

1, 	AUG 1 7 2015 
fr c./ 9 	U 

2D114-9L( 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 306 of 351



Density and Required °Inn Spade Calculator .  

Percentage Open Space Req'd: 

Min Lot Area per Dwelling (DLA): 

Gross Land Area (GLA): 

Dedicated Land 

Critical Areas and Buffers: 

Slormwater facilities 

Existing R.O.W. 

20% 

8,400 

39,38 Ac 

1.15 Ac 

11.65 Ac 

1.83 Ac 

0.00 Ac 

6)(1-11 a us" 
City of Sedro-Woolley Planned Residential Development Calculator Using the Old PRD 

Code, with 1999 Modifications 

Project: Sauk Mfn View North 

Description: Open Space: Wildflower, Flemming, Kindred, Janicki, NIC future 24 lots. 

By; Tim Garrison, P.E. 

Date: 5/13/2005 

Per 17.43.015.F, zoning code 

Per underlying zoning for RD2 

WIldflower+KIndred+FtemmIng Upland4Self-help 24+Portobello 4. Does 
not Include future 24 or Frulldale access corridor. 

Wildflower open space 

Flemming's gorge + Kindred's gorge 

Wildflower pond + Flemming upland pond 

(No internal ROW existed at time of initial SMVN plat) 

	

Not Site Area (NSA) 	24.75 Ac 	1,078,110 s,f. 

Base Density (BD) 120.3 Units 

	

Percentage Critical Area: 	29.68% 

Transfer Units due to critical areas (TU): 38.0 Units 

167>166, okay. Note, 156 does not Include future 24; it 
Max Allowed Density Based on Gross Acreage: 167 Units Includes only SMVN lots. 

This equals 20% of the GLA, and Is the min, open space 

	

Minimum Open Space Req'd 	7.88 Ac 	required for SMV•N, Including Wildflower. 

	

Total Open Space 	14.63 Ac Dedicated lands + Crlt areas + stormwater; from above 

Difference of above two numbers. A small part of this 

	

Leftover Open Space 	6.75 Ac 	leftover will be used for the 24 future lots. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 307 of 351



k 	IT c 
City of Sedro-Woolley 2004 Planned Residential 

Development (PRO) Calculator 

Project: Duke's lig West 
Description: 24 Lots East of Power Lines (16441) 

By: Tim Garrison, P.E. 
Date: 5/13/2005 

Lot Size and Open Space Requireinent Calculator  

Min. Lot Size per Underlying Zoning 8,400 s.f, 

Minimum Clustered Lot Size: 6,000 s.f. 

	

Max. Reduction Average Clustered Lot Size 
	

20% 

Gross Land Area (GLA): 3.97 Ac 

	

Total Percentage Open Space Req'd: 
	

20% 

	

Percentage of Total Open Space to be 'Usable': 
	

60%.  

For zone R5 (old SF2) 

City Requirement for AS and R7: 17.43.060.8.1 

City Requirement for R5 and 197: 17.43.060.8.2 

Area of 16 lots (2.72 ac) + area of 8 lots (1.25 ac) 

City Requirement: 17.43.060.E 

City Requirement:17.43.060.F 

Minimum Average Size of Lots 6,720 s.f. 

Total Minimum Open Space Req'd 0.70 Ac 

Useable Open Space Required 0,40 Ac 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 308 of 351



SMVE North Ph V Calculation Breakdown*: 

Total acreage of proposed 28 lots 

Tract A 	 0.80 Acres 

Tract B 	 1.12 Acres 

Tract C-1 	 1.91 Acres 

Tract C-3 	 0.55 Acres 

Total 	 4.38 Acres 

Required open space @ 20% 	 0.9 Acres 

Total open space provided 

Tract P-1 	 0.03 Acres 

Lot 58 (site of future park) 	0.13 Acres 

Easement/trail area off Lot 58 0.02 Acres 

Tract P-3 	 0.02 Acres 

Portion of Tract C-2 	 0.54 Acres 

Tract P-4 	 0.05 Acres 

P-38613 	 0.65 Acres 

Total 	 1.44 Acres 

Required useable space @ 50% of open space 0.44 Acres 

Total useable space provided 1.44 Acres 

Lot Square Footage*: 

Average size of proposed 28 lots 	 6,806.25 SF 

Smallest proposed lot size 	 6,000 SF 

*See attached spreadsheet calculations 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 309 of 351



SMVE PH V LOT SQUARE 

FOOTAGES 

Lot No. Size (SF) 

1 6,003 

2 6,003 

3 6,003 

4 6,003 

5 6,000 

6 6,115 

7 7,010 

8 9,268 

9 8,390 

10 6,675 

11 7,187 

12 6,322 

13 7,367 

14 6,297 

15 6,064 

16 6,291 

17 6,391 

18 6,471 

19 6,934 

20 6,683 

21 6,899 

22 7,529 

23 8,030 

24 6,185 

25 6,795 

26 6,913 

27 7,333 

28 7,414 

Total SF 	190,575 

/28 = 

Avg Lot Size 	6806.25 

SMVE PH V OPEN & USEABLE SPACE 

Acreage to be Developed 

Required Open Space 

Total Open Space 

Required Useable Space 

Total Useable Space 

@ 20% 

@ 50% 

	

190,575 SF 	4.38 Acres 

	

38115 SF 	0.9 Acres 

	

62,048 SF 	1.44 Acres 

	

19057.5 SF 	0.44 Acres 

	

62,048 SF 	1.44 Acres 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 310 of 351



1
1
J
.F

.5
5
,4

0
.1

k
it.u

. S
O

V
O

M
M

It  
1
,0

4
■9

3
1
 

.
0

,0
1

1
.1

 
r 	

'4
U

11
 

,'• 	
-
 

v
A

k
 'A

D
T

IO
O

M
-O

aa3
s '2

A
v

 0
1

1
3

9
o

il3
0

d
 

A
 9 A

l 3S
V

H
d S

3iV
iS

3 A
h9lA

 N
1'0'11111011 )Inve 

1. 1231-1S
 M

1c1 3
d
V

3
S

C
IN

Y
1
 

d
flO

H
D

 rd
 9

1
4
1
:'d

0
d
 0

3
1
1
V

d
3
k
ld

 

1
:2

2
9

.1
1

1
F

.K
r
0

.1
1

1
4

Ir
 r

il•K
t 

o
x
iu

m
n

. n
o

s
, 9

0
4
7
/M

1
1
 • 0

.1
1
W

d
:III •3

1
1

;1
7

 

'0
0

S
5

1
1

 2.9 N
O

S
.:1

3
f C

rIV
N

O
U

 

• I 
2
 

1
9

 
1470 

e
.n

I S
P

 

0
 

1
1
. 

A 
1 

V
I 

A 
A 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 311 of 351



5
  

id I
I 

U
 

0
 

0,1 

.s
a
e
la

v
a
s
ra

rc
rw

u
rrO

x
o

s
e
rv

-F
rrn

 m
a-m

.1
,w

 
c

ru
m

n
a

l.......-m
n

a
m

rc
d

,a
w

s
-a

n
.a

n
v

o
n

v
n

za
 

M
m

Iv
/T

1
0
M

.,
  • [1

3
1
,0

■
M

I
,
 
a
l
t
1
1
.
0
1
0
.
2
 
„

li
g
 

poesy 
N

O
3
d
a
r
 =

N
O

N
 

V
M

 .A
3
1
1
0
0
M

-O
V

0
3

S
 'a

n
y e

rn
a
lca

n
Jo

a
 

A
 V

 A
l 3

S
V

H
d

 5
3

1
1

1
1

5
3

 M
JIA

 N
re

iN
n

o
w

 N
n

vs 

Z
 1

3
3

H
S

 N
V

- 14:1 3cIV
O

S
O

N
V

1 

a
ln

o
a
a
 r8

 3
H

1
:7

.1
0
d
 0

3
2
1
§
1
d
3
V

d
 

N
 

9
 

r
l 

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

U
 

a
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A 
A 

A 
A 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 312 of 351



EXHIB&Iv 

SEPA 
ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

Purpose of checklist: 

Governmental agendes use this checklist to help determine whether the environmental impacts of your proposal are 
significant. This information is also helpful to determine if available avoidance, minimization or compensatory 
mitigation measures will address the probable significant Impacts or if an environmental impact statement will be 
prepared to further analyze the proposal. 

Instructions for applicants: fhelpi 

This environmental checklist asks you to describe some basic information about your proposal, Please answer each 
question accurately and carefully, to the best of your knowledge. You may need to consult with an agency specialist 
or private consultant for some questions. You may use "not applicable" or "does not apply" only when you can  
explain why it does not apply and not when the answer is unknown. You may also attach or incorporate by 
reference additional studies reports. Complete and accurate answers to these questions often avoid delays with the 
SEPA process as well as later in the decision-making process. 

The checklist questions apply to all parts of your proposal, even if you plan to do them over a period of time or on 
different parcels of land, Attach any additional information that will help describe your proposal or Its environmental 
effects. The agency to which you submit this checklist may ask you to explain your answers or provide additional 
information reasonably related to determining if there may be significant adverse Impact. 

Instructions for Lead Agencies: 

- Additional information may be necessary to evaluate the existing environment, all interrelated aspects of the 
proposal and an analysis of adverse impacts. The checklist is considered the first but not necessarily the only source 
of information needed to make an adequate threshold determination. Once a threshold determination is made, the 
lead agency is responsible for the completeness and accuracy of the checklist and other supporting documents. 

Use of checklist for non-project proposals: fhelpl 

For nonproject proposals (such as ordinances, regulations, plans and programs), complete the applicable parts of 
sections A and B plus the supplemental sheet for nonproiect actions (part D). Please completely answer all questions 
that apply and note that the words "project," "applicant," and "property or site" should be read as "proposal," 
"proponent," and "affected geographic area," respediVely. The lead agency may exclude (for non-projects) questions 
in Part B - Environmental Elements that do not contribute meaningfully to the analysis of the proposal. 

f 

May 12, 2014 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 313 of 351



Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 314 of 351



A. BACKGROUND 

1. Name of proposed project, if applicable: 

Sauk Mountain View Estates Phase V: a planned residential development 

2. Name of applicant 

T. Jones Inc. & Dukes Hill LLC 

3. Address and phone number of applicant and contact person: 

Applicant: Dukes Hill LLC/Rob Janicki, 103 N. Township, Sedro Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone: (360) 856-2068 

Contact: Ronald T. Jepson, 222 Grand Avenue Suite C. Bellingham, WA 98225 

Phone: (360) 733-5760 

4. Date checklist prepared: 

July 2 2013 

5. Agency requesting checklist: 

Sedro Woolley Building & Planning Department 

6. Proposed timing or schedule (include phasing, if applicable) 

Project to commence within 180 days of City Approval 

7. Do you have plans for future additions, expansion, or further activity related to or connected with 

this proposal? 

None 

8. List any environmental information you know about that has been prepared, or will be prepared, 

directly related to this proposal. 

See: Stormwater report for Phase IV of this plat, which covered lots now being platted 

See: Wetland Report and Wetland Mitigation Report prepared for Sauk Mountain View Estates 

PRD. 

9. Do you know whether applications are pending for other government approvals of other proposals 

directly affecting the property covered by your proposal? if yes, explain. 

None known at this time 

10: List any government approvals or permits that will be needed for your proposal, if known. 

- Approval of a Planned Residential Development for the proposed 28 new lots 

- Building permit for residential units on the new lots 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 315 of 351



11. Give brief, complete description of your proposal, including the proposed uses and the size of the 

project and site. There are several questions later in this checklist that ask you to describe certain 

aspects of your proposal. You need not repeat those answers on this page. 

All streets and utilities were previously-installed, but the tracts that are now being developed 

were not approved as individual lots at the time of project completion. The proposed 28 lots 

would nearly complete the development potential of presently installed streets and utilities. 

12. Location of the proposal. Give sufficient information for a person to understand the precise 

location of your proposed project, including a street address, if any, and a section, township, and 

range, if known. If a proposal would occur over a range of an area, provide the range or the 

boundaries of the site(s). Provide a legal description, site plan, vicinity map, and topographic map, if 

reasonably available. While you should submit any plans required by the agency, you are not required 

to duplicate maps or detailed plans submitted with any permit application related to this checklist. 

The project is located within the NW of NE of Section 18, TWP 35 N, R 5 E, W.M. along Vecchio 

Drive north of Portobello and along the north end of North Arrezo Loop (see attached vicinity 

map). 

B. ENVIRONMENTAL ELEMENTS 

1. EARTH 

a. General description of the site (circle one): flat rolling steep slopes, mountainous, other... 

Project site is developed with gentle slope to the east 

b. What is the steepest slope on the site? 

Steepest slope Is about %15 

c. What general types of soil are found on the site (for example, clay, sand, gravel, peat, 

muck)? If you know the classification of agricultural soils, specify them and know and note any 

prime farmland. 

Heavy glacial till with little topsoil. no evidence of agricultural soils 

- d. Are there surface indications or history of unstable soils In the Immediate vicinity? If so, 

describe. 

None 

e. Describe the purpose, type, and approximate quantities of any filling or grading proposed. 

Indicate source of fill. 

Some excavation will be required for individual house foundations, but none for plat 

approval. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 316 of 351



f. Could erosion occur as a result of clearing, construction, or use? If so generally describe. 

No 

g. About what percent of the site will be covered with impervious surfaces after project 

construction (for example, asphalt or buildings)? 

35% 

h. Proposed measures to reduce or control erosion, or other impacts to the earth, if any: 

Best Management Practices will be utilized for erosion control during individual house 

foundation excavation 

2. AIR 

a. What types of emissions to the air would result from the proposal (i.e. dust, automobile, 

odors, and industrial wood smoke) during construction and when the project is completed? If 

any, generally describe and give approximant quantities if known. 

Only those produced by construction equipment during the construction of houses 

b. Are there any off-site sources of emissions that may affect your proposal? if so, generally 

describe. 

None known 

c. Proposed measures to reduce or control emissions or other impacts to air, If any: 

None 

3. WATER 

a. Surface 

1. Is there any surface water body on or in the immediate vicinity of the site (including 

year-round and seasonal streams, saltwater, lakes, ponds, and wetlands)? If yes, 

describe types and provide names. If appropriate, state what stream or river it flows 

into. 

There is an intermittent stream to the east, a tributary to Brickyard Creek 

2. Will the project require any work over, in, or adjacent to (within 200 feet) the 

described waters? If yes, please describe and attach available plans. 

Not regarding the plat, only regarding individual building permits 

3. Estimate the amount of fill and dredge material that would be placed in or removed 

from surface water or wetlands and indicate the area of the site that would be 

affected. Indicate the source of fill material. 

None 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 317 of 351



4. Will the proposal require surface water withdrawals or diversions? Give general 

description, purpose, and approximate quantities if known. 

No 

5. Does the proposal lie within a 100-year floodplain? If so, note location on the plain 

site. 

No 

6. Does the proposal involve any discharges of waste materials to surface waters? If 

so, describe the type of waste and anticipated volume of discharge. 

All storm water is discharged Into a previously approved and installed 

stormwater treatment and discharge system. 

b. GROUND 

1. Will ground water be withdrawn, or will water be discharged to ground water? Give 

general description, purpose, and approximate quantities if known. 

Storm water runoff with be through previously approved and installed outfa II 

structures 

2. Describe waste material that will be discharged into the ground from septic tanks or 

other sources, if any (for example: domestic sewage; industrial, containing the 

following chemicals...; agricultural etc.). Describe the general size of the system, the 

number of systems, the number of houses to be served (if applicable), or the number 

of animals and humans the system(s) are expected to serve. 

Lots will accommodate 28 residential units, and all units will be served by the 

previously installed city of Sedro Woolley Sewer and Stormwater system 

c. WATER RUNOFF (INCLUDING STORMWATER): 

SEE ABOVE 

1. Describe the source of runoff (including stormwater) and the method of collection 

and disposal, if any (include quantities, if known), Where will this water flow? Will this 

water flow into other waters? If so, describe. 

Stormwater from lots goes to the street dra ins, then through treatment ponds 

owned and operated by the Sauk Mountain Homeowners' Association. The 

pond then empties into Brickyard Creek. 

2. Could waste materials enter ground or surface waters? If yes, generally describe. 

Not likely 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 318 of 351



d. PROPOSED MEASURES TO REDUCE OR CONTROL SURFACE, GROUND, AND RUNOFF WATER 

IMPACTS, IF ANY: 

All stormwater will be controlled and handle_ d according to Best Management Practices 

4. PLANTS  
a. check or circle types of vegetation found on the site: 

Deciduous Tree: alder, maple, aspen, other 

Evergreen tree: fir, cedar, pine, other 

Shrubs 

X_ Grass 

Pasture 

Crop or grain 

Wet soil plants: cattail, buttercup, bulirush, skunk cabbage, other 

Water plants: water lily, eelgrass, milfoil, other 

Other types of vegetation 

b. What kind and amount of vegetation will be removed or altered? 

None during development. Ground will be totally disturbed during construction of 

houses. This will only affect weeds and common native plants. 

c. List threatened or endangered species known to be on or near site 

None known 

d. Proposed landscaping, use of native plants, or other measures to preserve or enhance 

vegetation on the site, if any: 

Some street trees added in planting strip per City of Sedro Woolley specifications 

e. List all noxious weeds and invasive species known to be on or near the site. 

Himalaya Blackberries 

S. ANIMALS 
a. Circle any birds and animals which have been observed on or near the site or are known to 

be on or near the site: 

Birds: hawk, heron, eagle, ongbir. other 

Mammals: 6;;;  )ear, elk, beaver, other 

Fish: bass, salmon, trout, herring, shellfish, other 

b. List any threatened or endangered species known to be on or near the site: 

None known 

c. Is this site part of a migration route? If so, explain. 

No migration routes known in this area 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 319 of 351



d. Proposed measures to preserve or enhance wildlife, if any: 

None 

e. List any invasive species known to be on the site. 

None 

6. ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES  

a. What kinds -of energy (electric, natural gas, oil, wood stoves, solar) will be used to meet the 

completed project's energy needs? Describe whether it will be used for heating, 

manufacturing, etc. 

Electricity and natural gas will be available to lots, Solar energy will not be affected. Use 

by homeowners is not known at this time, 

b. Would your project affect the potential use of solar energy by adjacent properties? If so, 

generally describe. 

No, all housing units will abide by height limits set by zoning code 

c. What kinds of energy conservation features are Included in the plans of the proposal? list 

other proposed measures to reduce or control energy impacts, if any. 

None known at this time 

7. ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 

a. Are there any environmental health hazards, including exposure to toxic chemicals, risk of 

fire and explosion, spill, or hazardous waste that could occur as a result of this proposal? if so, 

describe. 

No 

1. Describe special emergency services that might be required. 

None; emergency services would be those normally required by a residential 

subdivision. 

2. Proposed measured to reduce or control environmental health hazards, if any: 
None known at this time 

b. Noise 

1. What types of noise exist In the area which might affect your project (for example: 

traffic, equipment, operation, other)? 

None known at this time 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 320 of 351



2. What types and levels of noise would be created by or associated with the project 

on a short-term and long-term basis (for example: traffic, construction, operation, 

other)? Indicate what hour noise would come from the site. 

Only those normally associated with a residential subdivision 

3. Proposed measures to reduce or control noise impacts, if any: 

None 

8. LAND AND SHORELINE USE  

a. What is the current use of the site and adjacent properties? 

Residential and vacant 

b. Has the site been used for agriculture? If so, describe. 

No 

c. Describe any structures on the site. 

None 

d. Will any structures be demolished? if so, what? 

No 

e. What is the zoning classification of the site? 

R-5 

f. What is the current comprehensive plan designation of the site? 

R-5 according to the Sedro Woolley comp plan 

g. If applicable, what is the current shoreline master program designation of the site? 

Not applicable 

h. Has any part of the site been classified as an "environmentally sensitive" area? If so, 

specify. 

No 

i. Approximately how many people would reside or work in the completed project? 

28 units X 2.5 = 70 

j. Approximately how many people would the completed project displace? 

None 

k. Proposed measures to avoid or reduce displacement impacts, if any: 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 321 of 351



None 

I. Proposed measures to ensure the proposal is compatible with existing and projected land 

use plans, if any: 

Lots now would be slightly larger, but all lots will meet present zoning code for Sedro 

Woolley 

9. HOUSING  

a. Approximately how many units would be provided, If any? Indicate whether high, middle, 

or low income housing. 

28 middle income houses 

b. Approximately how many units, if any, would be eliminated? Indicate whether high, 

middle, or low income housing. 

None 

c. Proposed measures to reduce or control housing impacts, if any: 

None 

10. AESTHETICS  

a. What is the tallest height of any proposed structure(s), not including antennas; what is the 

principle exterior building material(s) proposed? 

All units would meet present zoning code height limits 

b. What views in the immediate vicinity would be altered or obstructed? 

None 

c. Proposed measures to reduce or control aesthetic impacts, if any; 

None 

11. LIGHT AND GLARE 

a. What type of light or glare will the project produce? What time of day would it mainly 

occur? 

Only street lights to meet Sedro Woolley street standards 

b. Could light or glare from the finished project be a safety hazard or interfere with views? 

No 

c. What existing off-site sources of light or glare might affect your proposal? 

None 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 322 of 351



d. Proposed measures to reduce or control light and glare impacts, if any: 

None 

12. RECREATION  

a, What designated and informal recreational activities are in the immediate vicinity? 

A slight modification of Sauk Mountain Estates Phase IV to improve the east west trail 

access to a tot lot being added, 

b. Would the proposed project displace any existing recreational uses? If so, describe. 

No 

c. Proposed measures to reduce or control impacts on recreation, including recreation 

opportunities to be provides by the project or applicant, if any: 

Trails, open space and golf course were dealt with in previous development phases 

13. HISTORIC AND CULTURAL PRESERVATION  

a. Are there any places or objects listed on, or proposed for, national, state, or local 

preservation registers known to be on or next to the site? If so, generally describe. 

None known 

b. Generally describe any landmarks or evidence of historic, archaeological, scientific or 

cultural importance known to be on or next to the site. 

None known 

c. Proposed measures to reduce or control impacts, if any: 

None 

14. TRANSPORTATION  

a. identify public streets and highways serving the site, and describe proposed access to the 

existing street system. Show on site plans, If any. 

All lots are located on improved public streets. Access to the plat from WA State Route 

20 is northerly along Fruitda le Road, then west on Portobello Ave. 

b. Is the site currently served by public transit? If not, what is the approximate distance to the 

nearest transit stop? 

Public Transit is available at the intersection of Portobello and Fruitdale Road 

c. How many parking spaces would the completed project have? How many would the project 

eliminate? 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 323 of 351



16. UTILITIES 

a. Circle utilities currently available at the site: 

septic system, other. 

Each lot has a minimum of two parking spaces 

d. Will the proposal require any new roads or streets, or improvements to existing roads or 

streets, not including driveways? If so, generally describe (indicate whether public or private). 

None will be required 

e. Will the project use (or occur in the immediate vicinity of) water, rail, or air transportation? 

If so, generally describe. 

No 

f. How many vehicular trips per day would be generated by the completed project? If known, 

indicate when peak volumes would occur. 

28 @ 10 TPD = 280 TPD total 

g. Proposed measures to reduce or control transportation impacts, if any: 

None known at this time 

15. PUBLIC SERVICES  

a. Would the project result in an increased need for public services (for example, fire 

protection, police protection, health care, schools, other)? If so, generally describe. 

Only those normally required for the 28 residential units 

b. Proposed measures to reduce or control direct Impacts on public services, if any; 

None known at this time. Previous Sauk Mountain subdivisions did dedicate an area for 

a fire station 

b. Describe the utilities that are proposed for the project, the utility providing the service, and 

the general construction activities on the site or in the immediate vicinity which might be 

needed. 

All utilities currently installed servicing proposed lots 

c. Signature 

The above answers are true and complete to the best of my knowledge. I understand that the lead 

agency is relying on them to make its decision. 

c... 
A 

Signature: 	  Date Submitted 
 j"----I)  V 3 — Z0f4--  

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 324 of 351



John Coleman 

From: 	 Gresham, Doug (ECY) <DGRE461@ECY.WA.GOV> 
Sent: 	 Friday, September 05, 2014 12:10 PM 
To: 	 John Coleman 
Subject: 	 RE: Sauk Mountain View Estates Phase 4 EXHIBlia  v  
John, 
Thanks for the clarification. Now that I understand the history of the site, we don't have any issues. 

Doug Gresham, PWS 
Washington State Department of Ecology 
3190 - 160th Ave. SE 
Bellevue, WA 98008 
Phone: (425) 649-7199 
Email: Doug.Gresham@ecy.wa.gov  

From: John Coleman [mailto:jcoleman@ci.sedro-woolley.wa.us]  
Sent: Friday, September 05, 2014 8:35 AM 
To: Gresham, Doug (ECY) 
Subject: RE: Sauk Mountain View Estates Phase 4 

Yes, I can get you that info. I should point out that the site work was approved and completed in roughly 2002, The 
original application included all the sites on that street, but they changed another part of the project (Phase 2) to have 
28 more lots. The original SEPA (issued November 26, 2001— Attached) and Long Plat approval limited the number of 
lots they had to 213. Thus they took units approved in Phase 4 and moved them to Phase 2 — robbing Peter to pay Paul. 
Now they are going through the process to officially re-establish the 28 lots that were moved out of phase 4. 

Clear as mud, I'm sure. I also left you a voicemail in attempt to clarify. Please contact me so I can try to clarify and let me 
know if you want the wetland report. 

John Coleman, AICP 
Planning Director 

Sedro-Woolley Planning Department 
(360) 855-0771 

From: Gresham, Doug (ECY) [mailto:DGRE461PECY.WA.GOV]  
Sent: Tuesday, August 26, 2014 9:25 AM 
To: John Coleman 
Subject: Sauk Mountain View Estates Phase 4 

John, 
I am reviewing the Sauk Mountain View Estates Phase 4 development during the SEPA comment period. I just realized 
that the public comment period ends today and I need to get my letter in. Do you have a copy of the wetland report 
that I could review? Sorry for the short notice but I just heard about this project. 

Doug Gresham, PWS 
Washington State Department of Ecology 
3190 - 160th Ave. SE 
Bellevue, WA 98008 
Phone: (425) 649-7199 
Email: Doug.Gresham@ecy.wa.gov  

1 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 325 of 351



Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 326 of 351



EXHIBITa 
NOTICE OF APPLICATION AND SEPA COMMENT PERIOD 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

Description of proposal/application: The city has received an application for a proposed 28-lot residential subdivision. 
The project is referred to as Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase 5. The lots are proposed on reserve tracts within the 
previously approved and completed subdivision of Sauk Mountain View Estates Phase 4. The roads and utilities are already 
in place and the project will not require significant site work. The project is being processed as a subdivision and following 
the regulations for long plats and planned residential developments (PRD). File # 2014-094. 

Proponent: 	Dukes Hill, LLC 
Contact: Erin Klinger 
103 N. Township Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Location of project, including street address if any: Tracts A, B, C-1, C-2, C-3 and Lots 36, 37 and 58 of Sauk Mountain 
View Estates — North Phase IV. Located on Vecchio Drive and North Arrezo Loop, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284. 

Environmental Review: The optional DNS process in WAC 197,11-355 is being used. Agencies, tribes, and the public are 
encouraged to review and comment on the proposed project and its probable environmental impacts. The City of Sedro-
Woolley has reviewed the proposed project for probable adverse environmental impacts and expects to issue a mitigated 
determination of non-significance (MDNS) for this project. The MDNS will likely include the following conditions and any 
other conditions that may be necessary to address concerns raised during this comment period: 

1. Hours of construction shall be limited to 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. weekdays and 8:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. weekends as 
required in SWMC 9.46.020; 

2. Comply with Northwest Clean Air Agency Regulations during construction activities; 
3. Any water discharged to the City stormwater system as a result of this project must be approved by and comply with 

conditions of the Public Works Department; 
4. Provide a temporary erosion and sedimentation control plan for approval by the city engineer; 
5. Complete stormwater system modifications per the Sauk Mountain View North Alternate Drainage Report and the 

recommendations of Freeland and Associates, Inc.; 
6. All construction traffic shall use temporary construction access as approved by the Public Works Department; 
7. Obtain and comply with conditions of a NPDES stormwater genera] permit from the Department of Ecology as may be 

required; and 
8. Construction shall comply with all local, state and federal regulations, including Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code Title 

13.36 Stormwater Management Standards; Title 13.40 Stormwater Facilities Maintenance; Title15.40 Public Works 
Construction Standards; Title 17 Zoning; Sedro-Woolley Public Works Design Standards and the Sedro-Woolley 
Comprehensive Plan. 

Documents are available for review at: The City of Sedro-Woolley Planning Department, 325 Metcalf Street, Sedro-
Woolley, WA 98284, Monday through Friday, 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM. Environmental documents available include a SEPA 
checklist and wetland study. For more information, contact John Coleman at the Sedro-Woolley Planning Department at 
(360) 855-0771 or by email: icoleman@ci.sedro-woolley.wa.us.  

Public Comment Period: The lead agency for this proposal has NOT yet made a threshold determination of whether or not 
the proposed project has a probable significant adverse impact on the environment. Interested persons may comment on the 
application and/or the anticipated SEPA determination, receive notice, participate in any hearings and request a copy of the 
decision. Public comments must be received by 4:30 p.m. August 26, 2014 and should be submitted to the City of Sedro-
Woolley Planning Department, 325 Metcalf Street, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284. Comments may be mailed or personally 
delivered and should be as specific as possible. This may be your only opportunity to comment on the environmental 
impacts of the proposed project. 

John Coleman, Planning Director 
City of Sedro-Woolley Planning Department 

Published in Skagit Valley Herald on August 13, 2014 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 327 of 351



A 

1.0 
2
 

w
  

2
 

UJ 

w
 w

 
ti 

tx) 

0
 z

 
z
 0

 

ce 

0
 

Ic13 z
 

Fo
 

0
 0

 

2
  

H

•
 Q
 

 U
 0

  

Le 
w

 › 
O

 w
 

UJ  1-Y) 
z
 

,.,_ 3 	
6 

0
 	

X 

O
 

z
 6

 
;
 

z
L
L
 

B 
w

  
=

 0
  A

x
 

0
0
 

§
g
 

g
 

❑
 
T

 
I
V

 

I—
 a

( 
z
 	

LL 

CD 	
0

 	
og 
g5 

0
 

ci)n
 

a
"-  

0
 
<

 
‹C

 	
0 g 

Cn 

a
 

0 8 5
 

Eg 

b1. r
6
 

ro 0
,t.  

a g 
le

 
 

z
e

•
 ! 

 HE 
IL ▪
  A

 
 

o 
o

q
; 

-
I
 

0
 q

 

O
 fg

 
o
 

Lu
tP

 

•
 
,
 

m 
F

▪ 	

N
S

 

1 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 328 of 351



lij  
I 	11 AUG 20 2014 

Lin Holdeman II 
24412 Willida Lane 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 
August 26, 2014 

John Coleman 
Director, Sedro-Woolley Planning Dept. 
City of Sedro-Woolley 
325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Mr. John Coleman: 

This letter is in regard to a Notice of Application and SEPA Comment Period, I received. 
I own property located directly North of the Dukes Bill, LLC project on North Vecchio 
Drive. I am interested in this developing area and its effects on my residence. 

Having purchased and lived at 24412 Willida Lane for the past two plus years, this area 
of development is of no surprise. I would like, however, to use this opportunity to 
express my concerns and request regarding the future of this property. 

My family and I have been burglarized since owning my house, we have witnessed 
several illegal drug sales, and numerous youthful activities (such as campfires, and 
parties, and "driving lessons") in the proposed development. 

I would like to ask for consideration of my privacy and right to quiet enjoyment of my 
property. I would ask for a screen of some appropriate fashion be erected and maintained 
between my country home and the approaching urban development. There is currently a 
wood and brush line separating the properties. I expect this will be removed/or 
compromised as the building process gets under way. I propose something along these 
lines: chain link fence, heavy vegetation (the existing black berry bushes are OK), rock 
walls or similar deterrents. 

Also, cable TV has not available along Willida Lane or Bramble Lane. High Speed 
Internet was not an option until recently. Comcast has been approached several times by 
me and my neighbors requesting these services. They have been unable to get permission 
to bring a cable along/under the utility easement from Vecchio Drive to my property. We 
would like to request access the existing cable network that is in place along our Southern 
Property line, using nothing more than the existing easement set aside for the Power Line 
repair crews. 

Lastly, the trees due South of my house, technically fall outside of my property line (as I 
understand it), have grown very tall. I would guess over 100 ft. Since they stand alone, 
we are very concerned of them up-rooting during a wind storm and falling to the North, 
or on my house. If there is any foliage removal to be done, I would ask these to be 
topped. I ask they DON'T be removed, as for the natural beauty and privacy they 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 329 of 351



John Coleman 
August 26, 2014 
Page 2 

provide. I would be willing to assist in this any way possible and would appreciate using 
the wood they produce. In other words, I am willing to remove the tree debris, if 
someone can handle the shorting of the trees, without destruction of my house. 

Thank you for allowing me to comment on the development of this area. Please 
understand that when I purchased my home, I was fully aware of the pending projects, 
and am in no way trying to deny or slow down this development. ( I didn't know about 
the internet issue though). I look forward to a peaceful and harmonious neighboring 
relationship with the current land developers and the new tenants as they arrive. I just 
ask for a little consideration in the early planning phases. 

Sincerely, 

Lin Holdeman II 

,J51--e.,d4-z-ele6 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 330 of 351



< C/D :1---  
•

--z
 

2
 	

-12 
0_ 	

Ill 
1—

 	
al 

Z
 

r
 

Ili 7
- g

 
c
o

 5
 

13_
al 

E
g

 
 
M

I
 

	

0
 c

q
 	

M
N

 I 8 
-
-

I C
O

 
1(7)  

W
 C

D
 <

 a
- •-.. _

 	
1E1 	

-01
 

	

0
1

 	
M

I 1311E11' 

	

U
.1 •-c; 	

;, a
m,. iE

s
t
i
 

	

—
I it 	

sip
 

❑
 

(,.1  

	

<
 L

. 	
r
a
lliji 
 

	

1
7
 <

 	
li M

O
 S

W
t  

il 

	

W
 w

 	
imed

m
  

=
M

ID
 m

pg lialk 
❑

 

a
 

 ctP,  r
 	

iw
w

w
ip

s 	
•
 o

v
, 

	

-I
- 	

II
I
 e
■S

. IV
O

° 11111  
z
  

0
 E

r
 r

s
t
,'/%

0
 

0
0
 m

o
, 

- 	
■

'''''''' 
c

 w
 

co-  co
  

Z
 LT_ 

Z
 5

- 

<
 —

 
E

 8 
z
 >

 0
 w

 4
4
, fk

 
_

I
Li] 

Ill 
U

0 
LL 	

co 
(I)  

0
  

< < .„,- ° ix
 '., 

a 
I I __ w

 
i_ u_

 . z  0
 

Ix
 0

 
o

 z
  a
l- 6

 
 

0
 
°
 
-
 1 

zt 

1
"
 
—

 
W

 1--. 	
:■

 
"Cr L

L
 1

6
-6

  
0
 
•
 

	

1—
 LI-I '.- 

	>. 
H

 
0
  1

8
 

ill  —
1
z
 c

o
 .. I 

E., 
1
—

 ° 
64  

W
  L

i r LL-;:'  
r
i
 

0 ,..., 
t9r,. 

a
_

 v-  

L:
J
 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 331 of 351



Date of Issue: October 10, 2014 
	

Date of publication: October 10, 2014 

Signature: 
leman, Planning Director John 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
SEPA Notice of Threshold Determination 

Mitigated Determination of Non-significance (MDNS) 

Description of proposal/application: A proposed 28-lot residential subdivision. The project is referred to as Sauk 
Mountain View Estates North Phase 5. The lots are proposed on reserve tracts within the previously approved and 
completed subdivision of Sauk Mountain View Estates Phase 4. The roads and utilities are already in place and the 
project will not require significant site work. The project is being processed as a subdivision and following the 
regulations for long plats and planned residential developments (PRD). File # 2014-094. 

Proponent: 	Dukes Hill, LLC 
Contact: Erin Klinger 
103 N. Township Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Location of project, including street address if any: Tracts A, B, C-1, C-2, C-3 and Lots 36, 37 and 58 of Sauk 
Mountain View Estates — North Phase IV. Located on Vecchio Drive and North Arrezo Loop, Sedro-Woolley, WA 
98284. 

Environmental Review: The City of Sedro-Woolley, lead agency for this proposal, has determined that it does not 
have a probable significant adverse impact on the environment. An environmental impact statement (EIS) is not 
required under RCW 43.21C.030(2)(c). This decision was made after review of a completed environmental checklist 
and other information on file with the lead agency. This information is available to the public on request. This 
determination is based upon the following mitigation being provided by the applicant: 

1. Hours of construction shall be limited to 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. weekdays and 8:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. weekends 
as required in SWMC 9.46.020; 

2. Comply with Northwest Clean Air Agency Regulations during construction activities; 
3. Any water discharged to the City stormwater system as a result of this project must be approved by and comply 

with conditions of the Public Works Department; 
4. Provide a temporary erosion and sedimentation control plan for approval by the city engineer; 
5. Complete stormwater system modifications per the Sauk Mountain View North Alternate Drainage Report and 

the recommendations of Freeland and Associates, Inc; 
6. All construction traffic shall use temporary construction access as approved by Public Works; 
7. Obtain and comply with conditions of a NPDES stormwater general permit from the Department of Ecology as 

may be required; 
8. Contribute police impact fees of $202.96 per unit as per the residential unit fee calculation in the Capital 

Facilities Element of the City of Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan; and 
9. Construction shall comply with all local, state and federal regulations, including Sedro-Woolley Municipal 

Code Title 13.36 Stormwater Management Standards; Title 13.40 Stormwater Facilities Maintenance; 
Titkl5A0 Public Works Construction Standards; Title 17 Zoning; Sedro-Woolley Public Works Design 
Standards and the Sedro-Woolley Comprehensive Plan. 

The lead agency previously issued a comment period for this proposal under the optional DNS process in WAC 197-
11-355. There is no further comment period on this threshold determination. Per SWMC 2.88.170, you may appeal 
this threshold determination in writing to the City of Sedro-Woolley Planning Department within 14 days from date 
of publication. Written appeals and appeal fees must be submitted by 4:30 p.m. Thursday, October 23, 2014. 
Contact the Planning Director at the City of Sedro-Woolley, 325 Metcalf Street, Sedro-Woolley, Washington, 98284 
or electronically at  icolemanaci.sedro-woollev.wa.us  to read or ask about the procedures for SEPA appeals. 

Responsible SEPA Official: Planning Director — City of Sedro-Woolley 
Address: 325 Metcalf Street, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 332 of 351



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING EXHIBlick 
Tuesday October 20, 2015 at 3:00PM 
Sedro-Woolley City Council Chambers 

325 Metcalf Street, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Application: 

Applicant: 

Contact: 

Location: 

LP-2014-094, Preliminary Plat of Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase V —
A Planned Residential Development 

T. Jones, Inc. & Dukes Hill, LLC 

Ronald T. Jepson and Associates, ATTN: Terry Unger 
222 Grand Ave. Suite C, Bellingham, WA 98225 

Skagit County Assessor's parcels P131113, P131114, P131115, P131117, 
P131119, P131081, P131082 & P131103 located on East & West Gateway 
Heights Loops in Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Project: 	The proposal is to subdivide five (5) "future development" tracts within a 
previous subdivision (SMVEN — 4) into 28 buildable lots. In addition, one 
residential lot from the previous subdivision will be converted to a residential play 
area to be owned by the homeowner association and an easement is proposed 
across two other existing residential lots to grant secondary access to the new play 
area. The two residential lots affected by the easement will still be buildable. 
Improvements for the 28 lots were constructed as part of the previous plat phases 
and no new roads or infrastructure is necessary. The undeveloped tracts combined 
are approximately 4.45 acres and are zoned Residential-5. The application was 
determined complete on August 8, 2014. File #LP-2014-094. 

Public Comment: Interested persons may appear and provide testimony at the hearing and 
request a copy of the decision. Written testimony may also be submitted until 
2:00 PM of the date of the public hearing to: John Coleman, Planning Director, 
City of Sedro-Woolley, 325 Metcalf Street, Sedro-Woolley, Washington, 98284, 
or by email: jeoleman(&,ci.sedro-woolley.wa.us. 

Documents are available for review at: The City of Sedro-Woolley Planning Department, 
Monday through Friday, 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM. Project documents are available 
for review at no cost; copies will be provided at the requestor's cost. For more 
information, contact the Sedro-Woolley Planning Department at (360) 855-0771. 
A staff report will be available prior to the hearing. 

Hearing Examiner: The Sedro-Woolley Hearing Examiner will hold an open record public 
hearing on the Preliminary Plat of Sauk Mountain View Estates North Phase V at 
3:00PM, Tuesday, October 20, 2015  at the Sedro-Woolley City Council 
Chambers, 325 Metcalf Street. Based on the information presented to the Hearing 
Examiner and the testimony at that hearing, the Hearing Examiner will make a 
recommendation to the City Council whether to approve, approve with conditions 
or deny preliminary approval of the proposed Preliminary Plat of Sauk Mountain 
View Estates North Phase V. 

Notice Published: 	Published October 9, 2015 in the Skagit Valley Herald 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 333 of 351



Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 334 of 351



'C
a 

O
 

w
 

w
 

F-7  

(1)  
u

, Cr) 
Z

 

Z
 

co 
X

 
<

 
0

 
z
 

an 

el z
 

E
 

0
)
0

 
Z

 

0
 

• 0
 

a 5 Fjj 

ow ›-  w 
P
O
 
 

o
 

0
 0

  
rf 
w

 
z
 0

 

0
 
1
 

a
l 

z
 0

 
- 0

 
• 

w
 

z
 

W
 F
 

o(7) 

z
 

3- 

z
 

L
y. 

'g• 

1 

wegmkt,  
‘-‘7'*ig Pt, • TRACT E 

E
) 

cV 
c
)
 

0
 

O
 

(-V
 

z
 

LL 0
  

0
 

LLI 

L
L
 

0
 

H
 

I- 
<

 _1 
CL 

O 
8 

6 

SKAGIT  COUNTY TREASURER'S CERTIFICATE  

z
 

0
 

_J 

❑
 

❑
 

U
) 

z
 

Q z
 

0
  z 

U
)
 

U
)
 

z
 

cT 

z
 

0
 

CO 

Lb 
N
 

6,4 
.7 
m
 
g
 
>
 

1
 

15 
7
 

D
 

W -J 
• 
 co 

C
.)

 
0

 
w

0
 

t
o
 

 
7
U

 
&

) • 
(
/)

  
i' 

C.f
)
 
a

 
l
 

w
 

o
w

 

Pz  
o

 w
 

(D
I 

P
)
  

ur) 
-

a. 

Z
Le. 
Le , 
0 

0
  i
 
I
 

7 Li' 
C

ID
 wo R 

P
-4

 S
 il  

W
4
 kil  

/ —
 D FA 

Lu r-- 
• 

g
s
 

H
w

 g3 
2 a

 

al s  g et,  2—,
 

46-  2
 

.
 0  

z
  ii. Ln 2 

 
0

  L'
N  

L
j w

  
co z  

p
4
 E

1
i 

0
0
. 

8
 

r 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 335 of 351



I 
LL. 
0
 

cNi 

A 

g  

z
 

g 

z
 o

 5
 

0_ <3 il  
- 

ce) 1-7 
LU

 
>

 C
V

  
U

J
r
 
w
 
 

10
 
 
N
 z 

-
 it 

<
 	

±- 
<

 [L
i 

I=
  

Z
 
o

 

❑
 c, 6 

❑(7) z 
LU

 	
zto 

E
t
 0
 

 

0
 w

 
L1.1 —

1 os 
Z

  
z
 —

 o
 8
 

—
 

U
J w 0

 
a

CA 
Lcf_ 

<
 
<
 0 (1) 

 
I 

 
IL 

2
:
 
C
L
 

F
-
 
L
L
 

C
)
 

0
Z
 

C) ( 

111 -I::

:)t 
C
O
 
-
 

UJ 
0

) 
U

J 	
z
 

w 
1
—

 =
 

LL1
 

 15
0
 

5;
 CL 

Z
 

Z
 

<
 Z

 
LIJ 

<
 
O
 

O
 

6
 

•
 
E 2_ < 

CO 

8 i 
iht 
 Ew
 

ggp 
citkE 
gsEb 
tpx 

6--bq 	
tei 	

1 
s

n
 	

.
 

c;,.! 	
2 	

ri 
id

  
n
 
3
 

0
,4
.
8
›
 

r
t
g
q
q
 
	g

 iII 
 

0
,
 
n
 

L
o
r
a
n
 
.
,
 

.
4
,
6,

2 	
2
 r ft ,- 	

Z
i i 

cn 	
e; 	

E 	
z 

t..) 

	

gE-1
 

z
O

il 1
-.5

 	
11 

(0
6
. 

w
 

a 	
N

- '4 
a tuM

, 
- 

g6. 
re 

g
 

wz
il 

tu

•
 	

t/3 42  
1

 

	

3
 .‘2

 	
x  

a
 
 
o
a
lo li% CL  3  0

1
 i ■•• 
0

 g
! 

SO .16°-  
.
"A

k
iq

 L
I
- Z

I
g
i 

CO 
sa  V- 	

o 	
Et 	

z 

	

::`,3 	
E-
 	g 

q
 	

gIR
 i 

.
 0+8 

 

..18481
k
i .--;"11i L151 6 2 ▪  

"
 

CITY OF SEORO-W 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 336 of 351



§J 

l E
§
f
.
§
k
 

;
;
w

~
~

 
$
$

~
t
t
 

■
k
k
~

~
y
 |
/
(
 

■
~

~
 

|
 

=
~

 

~
'
~
■
-
 
~
~
~
 

#
E
r
!
■

£
.
~

~
 

■
a
~
.
.
 

■
e
B
B
r
 

;
#
■

 

»
,
n
,
 :
«
 
■
4
;
 ;
 #
■.
 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 337 of 351



o
 

 
 

Lc) 
LL 
0
 

 

A 1 

OBELLO AVE.  

„cp 	
Nr3 

aocr%
 G

vle°r1  

.OE 	
A

E 

k 

ff 

fJ 

>
 

LU 
(/) 	

g z
 

Q
  

z
 
E

 
0_ 	

ill 
2
 

I-
 	

til 

11.1 ‘—
 

M Z
 o

 5
 

0_ o __I 
0

 cl i  
- 

w 
tu

  
>

 c., 
c
 

W
 —

  w
 

0
 No

 0
 
.
 

— 1  *
 §

 
< u_ ±- 1E 
I= 

<
 1

-
a
 

Z
 ix  

0
 

fr CO 
W

 w
 z

 z
 

0
 a

 
kn L

o  f
-
 

0
 

a
. 0

 
C7) 2

 
E

 z 
U

J
 D

 w
 T

 
z
 w

 
C

e a
  3

 <
 

❑
 W

 12 
W

 -Ic
c; 

Z
 u.

-
 

 
z
 
D

 
Z

 >
 
0
 

o
 

o
 

_
 P

 ° 
I-
 

LIA 0 
w

  c4
 

u)  
<

 <
 L

i_
 
 

0
 u) 
i
 7-J-- 

I
 11  w

 o
 

-1 
I- U

_
 

z
 

w
 ° 

( It 0
 x

 
O

 
F -  0

 
Z

 
IL 

 
Z

 0
 o

 
0)  
I-

p
. 

 
L11 

	

 
§

 
z
 

	 
<

 
.6 

1
-W

 j 
-.. E5 

U
) 

1
-  

L
U

 -I z
 

Q
 u.$ 

f- x
 

IL
I  
o

 
5 Q

- .-.4. - 

H
 Z

 
c) w

 
Lt 

<
 

1—  <
 

Z
 	

LL 
=

 
0

 
O

 
6 

• 
ff 2 

n
 
a
 

CD 
<

r 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 338 of 351



z 
it) 
U

- 
0

 

I
 

L
)
 

2 
A 	

E 

11 

z
 PHASE IV PLAT ALTE 

LOT 58 PARK DEDICATION 

Q
 

0
- 	

w
 

2
 

w
 

Z
 
r
 

u_r N
 g

 

>
 N

 

o
 

<
 

_ w 
F- 

 

Z
 	

C
C

 I- 
0
) 

L
IJ

 W
 z

 z
 

0
 	

Q
 

e
l I- 

CT) 
Z

 a
. 0

 
z
 

1-1 -1
D

co
-±  

C
t  

W
Li.1 

Z
 L

L
.  Z

 z
 

Z
>

  
 

0
0
  

(.173 1-- (j  
W

 
0_ 

co 
V) 
11. 

<
 

<
 C

 
V

) 

I
 
I
 	

er; 
I
 

C
I- o

 
z
 

w
 --1 

LL  
' 
0

 
O

z
 I-  a

 
u_ 

Z
 

0
 0

 
0
 

F
t_ 
ow

 

LIJ 	
L6- 

g 
2
 

F
- 

• W
 z

r 

LU
 	

z
 

<
 w

 

1-1-1  
0 

>
 

<
 z w

 
Z

 	
LL 

-0
 

S O
  

0
 

u_ 

a 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 339 of 351



Sauk Mountain View Estates South HOA 
1285 Portobello Ave. 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

EXHIBIT b 
October 19, 2015 

John Coleman 
Sedro-Woolley Planning Department 
325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Sedro-Woolley Planning Department: 

As the Board of the Sauk Mountain View Estates South HOA (Arrezo and Vecchio 
streets), we have no objections to the ongoing development, nor to the proposed 
subdivision. 

We are concerned, however, with the apparent lack of an HOA for these new houses. 

Both sections of Sauk Mountain View Estates share responsibility for a common 
retention pond. Now that that section is being developed, we want to make sure the 
structure is in place to share the maintenance of it. 

Since so much is in common, they are welcome to join our HOA so there is only one 
HOA to handle it all. Or they're welcome to form their own HOA, but share in the 
maintenance and liability associated with the retention pond. 

If the new development is completed without the HOA being taken care of, the builders 
will have no motivation to get one in place. Therefore, we encourage you to approve the 
request, but on the condition that they have an HOA in place (either by forming their 
own, or joining into ours) for all developed and undeveloped lots no later than December 
31, 2015. 

Thank you. 

Matt Howry 
Secretary 
Sauk Mountain View Estates South HOA 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 340 of 351



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

DEC 0 9 2015 

7:00 P.M. COUNCIL CliAMBERS 
AGENDA NO 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
Sedro-Woolley Municipal Building 

325 Metcalf Street 
Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

Phone (360) 855-9922 
Fax (360) 855-9923 

Eron M. Berg 
City Supervisor & Attorney 

MEMO TO: 
FROM: 
RE: 
DATE: 

City Council 
Eron Berg 
Utility Tax on Water 
December 9, 2015 

3/c1) READING 
OLD BUSINESS 

ISSUE: 	Should the Council adopt the attached ordinance increasing the City's 
utility tax rates on water? 

BACKGROUND: 3rd  reading: The al)) Council voted 3-3 on this item at the November 
24, 2015 meeting. Under RCW 35A.12.130, the affirmative vote of at least four council members 
is required for the passage of an ordinance. And, under Resolution 546, Section 15, a 3-3 vote is 
considered tabled until the next meeting when all seven council members are present. The 
council adopted a 6.0% utility tax last year in an effort to address equity following the 
Wenatchee v. Chelan County PUD No. I case and to fund two critical governmental functions: 
(1) accelerated debt reduction for city hall and (2) critical infrastructure needs through a council-
restricted reserve fund. 

The ordinance is drafted to implement the tax increase effective January 1, 2016 (for the 
February billing). The original ordinance imposed a 6.0% tax, but because the PUD is not 
required to pay the tax on the portion of their revenues attributable from fire capacity, the 
effective tax rate collected from the PUD has been about 4.5%. Therefore, to collect 6.0%, the 
city must levy a tax of 7.5%. 

Finally, it should be noted that Sedro-Woolley's proposed utility tax on water is not out 
of line with our neighbors. Anacortes is at 7.0% and Lyman and Concrete are at 6.0%. This 
ordinance would create an effective tax rate of 6.0% and would increase annual revenue by an 
estimated $27,075 for a total water utility tax on the PUD of $135,375 per year. 

RECOMMENDATION: 	3rd Reading: Motion to adopt ordinance 
15, an ordinance increasing the city's utility tax on water. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 341 of 351



ORDINANCE No. 	-15 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SWMC 5.06.020 TO INCREASE THE CITY 

UTILITY TAX ON DOMESTIC WATER 

Whereas, SWMC 5.06.020 establishes utility tax rates and for city owned utilities the 
current rate is 7.5%, and 

Whereas, the City of Sedro-Woolley is continuing to experience the effects of the great 
recession while also experiencing annual increases in the costs of government; and 

Whereas, because the City is served by a public utility district, it has long been 
determined that the city was unable to impose a utility tax on the sale of domestic water provided 
by a public utility district; and 

Whereas, cities that provide their own water utilities have long imposed utility taxes on 
domestic water; and 

Whereas, the Washington Court of Appeals recently determined that code cities are not 
prohibited from imposing their utility taxes on domestic water provided by public utility districts 
in their proprietary function, rather cities are prohibited from taxing districts governmental 
function (e.g., providing water for fire suppression); and 

Whereas, RCW 35A82.020 grants the City Council in a code city broad authority to 
impose excise taxes for regulation or revenue; and 

Whereas, the City Council found it necessary to expand utility taxes to fund basic 
government services in 2014 and imposed a 6.0% utility tax on water effective January 1, 2015; 
and 

Whereas, the PUD No. 1 of Skagit County is not required to pay the utility tax on 
revenue from water for fire flow purposes which resulted in an effective tax rate of 4.5%; and 

Whereas, the City Council desires to actually collect a utility tax of 6.0%; and 

Whereas, this ordinance was first presented for consideration on the regular agenda on 
November 12, 2015 and public testimony was taken at a public hearing on November 24, 2015; 
and 

Whereas, the Council desires to balance the community's need for municipal services, 
with the burden placed upon citizens through taxation with an expansion of the utility tax to 
maintain those services; now therefore, 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY DO HEREBY 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 342 of 351



Section 1. SWMC 5.06.020D is amended to read as follows: 

5.06.020 Utility tax levied—Rate. 
D. Domestic water. Upon every person engaged in the business of selling or supplying 

domestic water, a tax equal to six seven and one-half percent of the total gross income from such 
business in the city of Sedro-Woolley, not including revenue derived from the delivery of water 
for fire suppression. 

Section 2. This ordinance shall be effective January 1, 2016, which is more than five (5) days 
after passage and publication as provided by law. 

Section 3. The provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable, and if any section, 
sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance shall for any reason be held invalid or 
unconstitutional or if the application of this ordinance to any person or circumstances shall be 
held invalid or unconstitutional, such decisions shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
sections, sentences, clause or phrases of this ordinance. 

PASSED by majority vote of the members of the Sedro-Woolley City Council 

this 	 day of 	 , 2015, and signed in authentication of its passage this 	 

day of 	 , 2015. 

Mike Anderson, Mayor 

Attest: 

Patsy Nelson, Finance Director 

Approved as to form: 

Eron Berg, City Attorney 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 343 of 351



First Reading by City Council: 
Second Reading by City Council: 
Public Hearing by City Council: 
Third Reading by City Council: 
Approval by City Council: 
Signed by the Mayor: 
Date of Publication: 

November 12, 2015 
November 24, 2015 
November 24, 2015 
December 9, 2015 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 344 of 351



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

DEC 0 9 2015 
DO NOT DESIGNATE THE SKAGIT RIVER TO 

WILD STEELHEAD GENE BANK STATUS 
7:00 P.M. COUNCIL 91:AMBERS 
AGENDA NO. 	  

Even though the comment period for this issue has been terminated, the far reaching implication 
has to be confronted. Responsible Skagit County government entities, tribes, organizations, and 
individuals who strongly oppose the designation of the Skagit River to become a Wild Steelhead 
Gene Bank  (WSGB) must responsibly be given an audience by WDFW. 

We are a nation of governance of, by, and for the people. The first amendment to the 
constitution permits the "petitioning [and we do petition] the government for a redress of 
grievance." WDFW and NOAA's National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) are extensions of 
state and federal governance. NMFS has been overburdened. They did not have time to prepare 
or approve the required Hatchery Genetic Management Plan (HGMP) for the steelhead hatchery 
at Marblemount. Many such HGMPs involving hatcheries through the state do now exist. It 
appears to have become a common practice which may actually make them liable for lawsuits by 
groups with an agenda. 

The Wild Fish Conservancy's filing the lawsuit against WDFW was facilitated because WDFW 
was not provided a HGMP. A number of events transpired because the WDFW folded instead of 
fighting the lawsuit which was rumored that they could have won. Among other factors treaty 
tribes, co-managers of the fish resource were left out of the process. A further provision of the 
lawsuit requires that WDFW must enact their Established Network of Wild Stock Gene Banks. 
The program was set forth in the February 20, 2008, Statewide Steelhead Management Plan. 
Supposedly the ESA required Plan will not be completed before 2016? 

Evidence for the rumor is the Tokul Creek Hatchery's improvement application success. The 
lawsuit ultimately did force them to wait for the HGMP to be provided. Steelhead Trout Club of 
Washington had intervened against the lawsuit which again had been filed by the Wild Fish 
Conservancy. 

The Steelhead Trout Club of Washington is a prominent long-standing fishing group. Its 
president, Al Senyohl, maintains that WSGB designation of the Skagit River is a priority for the 
Wild Fish Conservancy. Is that the reason that Kurt Beardslee, Executive Secretary of the Wild 
Fish Conservancy was in attendance at the WDFW July 27, 2015, hearing on Gene Bank 
designation at the Mount Vernon PUD facility? Does that mean that an outside force is 
attempting to exercise further control of the Skagit River LOCATED IN OUR COUNTY? 

A broken system of NMFS not having sufficient means to rapidly process HGMPs along with 
WDFW not being protected from this type of lawsuit must end. Immediate correction is a must! 
There has to be a means for actions expressed below. 

The steelhead is Endangered Species Act listed. We hope to be permitted to as soon as possible 
implement responsible integrated hatchery programs. Programs to help wild steelhead on the 
Skagit River for speeding up ESA delisting. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 345 of 351



The steelhead hatchery program implemented in the 1950s was a boom to local economies along 
the Skagit River as well as to the Skagit River Tribes. We hope to not be denied the opportunity 
to once again have a quality operating hatchery program using wild stock steelhead consistent 
with a NMFS approved steelhead HGMP. 

Governor Jay Inslee, in a letter to the Chair of the Washington State Fish and Wildlife 
Commission emphasized that "Recreation license fees increasingly represent the largest single 
portion of revenue for the Department (WDFW) to manage sustainable fisheries" and "fishing 
license revenue and related expenditures contribute significantly to the State's economy." He 
further urged the Commission to see ways to expand public access to the recreational fisheries, 
"to implement scientifically credible hatchery practices that ensure hatchery production" and "to 
make wise fishery management decisions based upon sound science with the goal of building a 
sustainable commercial fishery." 

We hope that WDFW will work to facilitate our expressed concerns. 

If the spirit moves you, please sign this or write your own letter. Send it to Dr. Jim Unsworth, 
Director, Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife, Olympia, WA 98501. 

Bill Reinard 
12221 Bayhill Drive 
Burlington, WA 98233 
360-707-0407 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 346 of 351



WILDCAT STEELHEAD CLUB 

RESOLUTION TO NOT DESIGNATE THE SKAGIT RIVER AS A WILD STEELHEAD 
GENE BANK 

November 	2015 

Directed to Dr. Jim Unsworth 
Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife 
600 Capitol Way North 
Olympia, WA 98501 

WHEREAS the Skagit River steelhead are currently being managed under the Endangered 
Species Act; and 

WHEREAS the former steelhead hatchery program provided a buffer against incidental harvest 
of wild steelhead; and 

WHEREAS the former hatchery program provided a buffer against incidental harvest of wild 
steelhead it provided fishing opportunity. Opportunity for both treaty and non-treaty Skagit 
River fishers locally and from around the state; and 

WHEREAS Governor Jay Inslee, in a letter to the Chair of the Washington State Fish and 
Wildlife commission emphasized that "Recreation license fees increasingly represent the largest 
single portion of revenue for the Department (WDFW) to manage sustainable fisheries" and 
fishing license revenue and related expenditures contribute significantly to the State's economy. 
He further urged the Commission to see ways to expand public access to the recreational 
fisheries, "to implement scientifically credible hatchery practices that ensure hatchery 
production" and "to make wise fishery management decisions based upon sound science with the 
goal of building a sustainable commercial fishery." 

THERE, BE IT RESOLVED that 
opposes the designation of the Skagit River as a Wild Steelhead Gene Bank. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 347 of 351



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

DEC 0 9 2015 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

7:00 P.M. COUNCILf,A-MBERS Sedro
-Woolley Municipal Building 

AGENDA NO. 	  
325 Metcalf Street 

Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 
Phone (360) 855-9922 

Fax (360) 855-9923 

Eron M. Berg 
City Supervisor/Attorney 

MEMO TO: City Council 
FROM: 
	

Eron Berg 
RE: 
	

Animal Code update error correction 
DATE: 
	

December 9, 2015 

ISSUE: 	Should the City Council adopt two sections of the city's animal code which were 
inadvertently repealed as part of the comprehensive update from October? 

BACKGROUND: 	This is a first reading, but because the two sections have long been part of 
the City's code and they were inadvertently repealed, we are requesting action at this meeting. 
Laura Can performed an extensive review and update of the code, which was adopted following 
council deliberation and consideration last October. We inadvertently repealed Sections 
6.08.160 and 6.08.170 (dealing with intentionally harming an animal with a vehicle and failing to 
provide shelter and food). The attached ordinance reenacts those sections as they existed prior to 
the comprehensive review. 

RECOMMENDATION: 	MOTION to approve the attached ordinance which reenacts two 
sections to Chapter 6.08 dealing with animals within the City of Sedro-Woolley. 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 348 of 351



ORDINANCE NO. 	-15 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY REENACTING SECTIONS OF THE 

SEDRO-WOOLLEY MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 6 RELATING TO THE KEEPING OF ANIMALS 

AND ANIMAL TREATMENT WITHIN THE CITY 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Sedro-Woolley reviewed and comprehensively updated its 

code regarding animals, some of which date back to 1905, in October of this year; and 

WHEREAS, the city council of the City of Sedro-Woolley has the authority to regulate the treatment of 

animals within the City of Sedro-Woolley; and 

WHEREAS, two sections of Title 6, dealing with injuring animals with vehicles and another addressing 

suitable shelter and food were inadvertently omitted from the reenactment of the animal title; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Sedro-Woolley desires to reenact those provisions that have 

long been part of the City's code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the interests of the public health, safety and welfare to 

adopt the sections set forth below, now therefore; 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS 

FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Chapter 6.08 of the Sedro-Woolley Municipal Code is hereby amended to include the following 
two sections: 

6.08.160 Injuring animal with vehicle. 
No person shall willfully injure, beat, abuse or run down any animal with a 
vehicle. Any person who kills or injures an animal while driving a vehicle shall 
stop at the scene of the accident and render such assistance as practicable, shall 
make a reasonable effort to locate and identify himself to the owner or any person 
having custody of the animal, and shall report the accident immediately to the 
police department. 

6.08.170 Suitable shelter and food. 
It is unlawful for any person to keep or harbor an animal within the city without 
providing a suitable clean, dry place for the housing thereof, or to fail to provide a 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 349 of 351



suitable amount of wholesome food and clean water for the nutrition and comfort 
thereof, or to leave the premises where such animal is confined or to which it 
customarily returns, for more than twenty-four hours without providing for the 
feeding and care of such animal in the absence of such person. 

SECTION 2. Effective date. A summary of this Ordinance consisting of its title shall be published in the official 
newspaper of the City, and shall take effect and be in full force five (5) days of the date of publication as provided 
by law. 

SECTION 3. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance should be held to be 
invalid or unconstitutional, the invalidity or unconstitutionality thereof shall not affect the validity or 
constitutionality of any other section, clause or phrase of this ordinance. 

SECTION 4. Short Title & Application. This ordinance shall be known as the Sedro-Woolley Animal Code and 
may be cited as such. The enforcement provisions of this ordinance shall apply to any offense committed on or 
after the effective date of this ordinance, which is defined in this ordinance, unless otherwise expressly provided 
or unless the context otherwise requires, and shall also apply to any defense to prosecution for such an offense. 
The provisions of this ordinance do not apply to or govern the construction of and punishment for any offense 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, or to the construction and application of any defense to a 
prosecution for such an offense. Such an offense must be construed and punished according to the provisions of 
law existing at the time of the commission thereof in the same manner as if this ordinance had not been enacted. 

PASSED by majority vote of the members of the Sedro-Woolley City Council this 	day of 

December, 2015, and signed in authentication of its passage this 	day of December, 2015. 

Mike Anderson, Mayor 

Attest: 

Patsy Nelson, Finance Director 

Approved as to form: 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 350 of 351



Eron Berg, City Attorney 

First Reading: 
Second Reading: 
Passed by the City Council: 
Signed by the Mayor: 
Date of Publication: 

December 9, 2015 

Sedro-Woolley City Council Packet Page 351 of 351


	AGENDA
	1.  Call to Order
	2.  Pledge of Allegiance
	3.  Consent Calendar
	  a.  Approval of Agenda
	  b.  Minutes from Previous Meeting
	  c.  Finance
	  d.  Ordinance 1833-15 - 2015 Budget Amendment #4
	  e.  Employment Contract
	  f.  Ordinance 1834-15 - 2016 Salary Ordinance
	  g.  Biosolids Contract with King County and BPI - Amendment No. 1
	  h.  Professional Services Agreements for Miscellaneous On-Call Professional Services
	4.  Public Comment
	PUBLIC HEARING
	5.  Moratorium on Public Uses in the Mixed Commercial Zone (Interim Ordinance 1827-15)
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	6.  Proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Subarea Plan for the Center for Innovation and Technology (2nd reading)
	7.  Planned Action Ordinance and Mitigation Decision Document, Attachment A for the Center for Innovation and Technology (2nd reading)
	8.  Proposed Amendments to Chapter 17.32 SWMC, Public Zone (2nd reading)
	9.  Preliminary approval of the Plat of Sauk Mountain View Estates North V - A Planned Residential Development (file #LP-2014-094) - (2nd reading)
	10.  Utility Tax on Water (3rd reading)
	NEW BUSINESS
	11.  Resolution to not designate the Skagit River as a Wild Steelhead Gene Bank (Wildcat Steelhead Club)
	12.  Animal Code Update Error Correction (1st reading - action requested)
	COMMITTEE REPORTS AND REPORTS FROM OFFICERS
	EXECUTIVE SESSION (if needed)

